Democratic Service
Complete Agenda e e

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
CYNGOR LL55 1SH

GWYNEDD

Meeting

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time
1.00 pm, MONDAY, 26TH FEBRUARY, 2024
*NOTE*
This meeting will be webcast

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/len GB/portal/home

Location

Hybrid - Siambr Dafydd Orwig, Council Offices, Caernarfon LL55 1SH
and Virtually via Zoom
N.B.

To be preceded by a site visit in relation to application number C21/0861/23/LL
Seiont Manor Hotel, Llanrug, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 2AQ

Committee members to meet on site at 10:00am

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679 878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 16/02/24)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP (15)

Plaid Cymru (9)

Councillors
Elwyn Edwards Delyth Lloyd Griffiths
Elin Hywel Gareth Tudor Jones
Huw Wyn Jones Olaf Cai Larsen
Edgar Wyn Owen Gareth A Roberts

Huw Rowlands

Independent (5)

Councillors
Louise Hughes Elwyn Jones
Anne Lloyd-Jones John Pughe Roberts
Gruffydd Williams
Lib/Lab (1)

Councillor Gareth Coj Parry



PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKING ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Council has decided that third parties have the right to speak on planning applications at
the Planning Committee. This leaflet outlines the normal operational arrangements for
speaking at the committee.

1. | Report of the Planning Service on the planning application
including a recommendation.

2. | If an application has been received from a 3™ party to speak the
Chairman will invite the speaker to come forwards.

3. | Objector or a representative of the objectors to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

4. | Applicant or a representative of the applicant(s) to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

5. | Local Member(s) to address the committee 10 minutes

6. | Committee Chairman to ask for a proposer and seconder for the
planning application.

7. | The committee to discuss the planning application




5.1

5.2

5.3

AGENDA

APOLOGIES
To accept any apologies for absence.

DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL
MATTERS

To receive any declaration of personal interest and to note protocol matters.
URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

MINUTES 7-21

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee, held on the 5" of February 2023, be signed as a true record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To submit the report of the Head of Environment Department.

APPLICATION NO C23/0302/22/LL CHWAREL CAE EFA LLWYD, 22-74
PENYGROES, LL54 6PB

Application for extension to Cae Efa Lwyd sand and gravel pit
LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Craig ab lago

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C22/0952/17/LL LAND AT COLEG 75-109
GLYNLLFION, LLANDWROG, LL54 5DU

Demolition of existing sheds and erection of two livestock sheds together
with associated facilities and milking parlour, creation of landscaping bund
and associated works

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Llio Elenid Owen

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C22/0953/17/LL LAND TO THE NORTH OF 110-152
EXISTING FARM YARD AT COLEG GLYNLLIFON, LLANDWROG,
LL54 5DU


https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34080&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=33454&language=en

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Demolition of existing dairy farm building and cow shed, removal of two
existing slurry tanks, erection of a new livestock shed and milking parlour,
construction of a silage clamp and dry manure store, internal access road
together with associated works.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Llio Elenid Owen

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/0917/14/DT 7, RHES MARINE PORTH
WATERLOO, CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD, LL55 1LP

Full renovation of the existing house, proposed new garage, proposed
photovoltaic array, landscaping and flood mitigation measures in addtion to
demolition of exsisting outbuilding.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor loan Thomas

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/03/TP COLLEGE PARK, FFORDD
DEINIOL, BANGOR, GWYNEDD, LL57 2TQ

Mixed woodland with mature trees

LOCAL MEMBERS: Councillor R Medwyn Hughes and Councillor Huw Wyn
Jones

No link to application

APPLICATION NO C21/0861/23/LL SEIONT MANOR HOTEL,
LLANRUG, CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD, LL55 2AQ

Application for the remodeling and extension of the existing hotel and spa to
together with the siting of 39 holiday lodges, formation of outdoor activity
zone, reception, biomass plant unit together with temporary construction
traffic road, car parking and landscaping.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Beca Brown

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/0981/39/AM MYNYTHO GARAGE,
MYNYTHO, PWLLHELI, GWYNEDD, LL53 7RH

Outline application with some matters reserved to demolish an existing
residential dwelling and commercial garage with associated buildings and
redevelopment of brownfield land to create a new hotel, community public
house & shared community parking for the village hall (re-submission of
withdrawn application C23/0089/39/AM).

153-171

172 - 180

181 - 242

243 - 275


https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=33452&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34679&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=32323&language=en

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Angela Russell

Link to relevant background documents



https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34747&language=en

Agenda Item 4.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 05 February 2024

Present: Councillor Edgar Owen (Chair)
Councillor Elwyn Edwards (Vice-chair)

Councillors: Delyth Lloyd Griffiths, Louise Hughes, Elwyn Jones, Gareth T Jones, Huw Wyn
Jones, Cai Larsen, Anne Lloyd Jones, Gareth Coj Parry, Gareth Roberts, Huw Rowlands and
Gruffydd Williams.

Local Member: ClIr Peter Thomas
Officers: Gareth Jones (Assistant Head of Planning and the Environment), Miriam Williams (Legal

Services), Keira Sweenie (Planning Manager (Development Control and Enforcement), Gwawr
Hughes (Development Control Team Leader) and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services Officer).

Swyn Hughes and Elen Morris (Professional Trainees in Environment Planning) — observers.
1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Elin Hywel and John Pughe Roberts.
2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS

a) The following members declared that they were local members in relation to the items
noted:
e Councillor Elwyn Jones (a member of this Planning Committee), in item 5.1
(C23/0959/15/AC) and 5.2 (C23/0463/18/LL) on the agenda.
e Councillor Peter Thomas (not a member of this Planning Committee), in item 5.7
(C21/08912/LL) on the agenda.

3. URGENT ITEMS
None to note.
4. MINUTES

The Chair accepted the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee, held on 15
January as a true record.

5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS
The Committee considered the following applications for development. Details of the
applications were expanded upon and questions were answered in relation to the plans and

policy aspects.

5.1 Application Number C23/0959/15/AC
Glyn Rhonwy Estate Land, Llanberis, Caernarfon, Gwynedd LL55 4EL

Page 7



Application to amend condition 1 of planning permission reference C21/0934/15/AC for the
installation of underground 132kV grid connection cables between the Glyn Rhonwy
Pumped Storage Facility and Pentir Substation to extend the development commencement
period for an additional 2 years.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form which included an update to the relevant
planning history.

The Development Control Team Leader highlighted that an application to amend the
condition relating to the commencement period of the development was granted in January
2022 under reference C21/0934/15/AC so as to provide an additional two years, i.e. until
10/1/2024.

It was explained that the principle of the development of installing an underground cable to
connect the Glyn Rhonwy pumped storage generating station with the Pentir substation had
already been established by the Local Planning Authority by means of planning permission
C16/0886/15/LL and the application before them involved extending the development's
operating period by an additional 2 years by amending condition 1 of application
C21/0934/15/AC. It was confirmed that there were no changes to the plan and that the
process of releasing conditions associated with the original planning permission continued.
However, the importance of considering whether local and national planning policy
circumstances or the policy position had changed since the application was originally
granted was highlighted. Only if there was evidence of a significant change in position could
the proposal be considered differently in the context of local relevant policies relating to the
acceptability of the principle of this latest application - Policy ISA 1 'Infrastructure Provision'
and policy PS 7 'Renewable Technology'. Policy ISA 1 of the Local Development Plan (LDP)
states

It was reported that the proposed cable path runs through the 'North-Western Fringes of
Snowdonia' Special Landscape Area, the 'Dinorwig' Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest and borders the 'North-West Wales Slate Landscape' World Heritage Site; the
intention was to lay an underground cable in line with the guidance in policy PS 7.

It was reiterated that the principle of creating a pumped storage generating station at Glyn
Rhonwy quarry had already been accepted and approved by the Secretary of State for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy granting a Development Consent Order in 2017.
Permission for a non-material amendment to the Development Consent Order was granted
by Welsh Ministers to extend the operational period. The work of creating a grid connection
could usually be considered as an Associated Development but here in Wales it could not
be approved as part of the process; therefore, a separate formal application for permission
must be submitted in line with the Planning Act. The principle was deemed acceptable and
that this element was a necessary follow-up step to the planning permission already granted
by ensuring a link between the electricity generating site and the distribution site.

In the context of visual, general and residential amenities it was accepted that this type of
work, particularly given that it would be undertaken on the verges of busy public roads, would
be likely to affect local amenities and the amenities of residents living close to the path and
those affected directly should it cross a section of private land. It is also likely to occasionally
have an impact when traffic control needs to be installed when working on more
restricted/narrow sections.

Page 8



Although there was no objection from the Transportation Unit, it was highlighted that the
developer needed to submit applications for relevant permits to carry out the work within
highway lands. This will ensure that the restoration work is carried out to appropriate
standards.

When considering biodiversity issues, it was noted that a revised Initial Ecological
Assessment Report had been submitted with the application and in response to the statutory
consultation period the Council's Biodiversity Unit had no objection to the application
although excavation work under afon Rhyddallt meant that it would cross a section of the
Llyn Padarn Site of Special Scientific Interest.

In the context of archaeological and heritage issues, it was highlighted that CADW had stated
that while there would be potential for temporary impacts on the setting of the World Heritage
Site, it was considered that this would not be significant, and the Gwynedd Archaeological
Planning Service (GCAG) had confirmed that the application would not have an impact on
archaeological matters (in accordance with its observations on the original application).

In accordance with the instructions in appendix 5 of the Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG): Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities, the applicant
had concluded that a 'Welsh Language Statement' was not required. It was therefore
considered that the proposal continued to be in accordance with policy PS 1 and would not
cause harm to the Welsh language.

Having considered all the relevant matters, it was not considered that the proposal of
extending the time given under permission number C21/0934/15/AC to commence the
development was contrary to the relevant local and national policies or guidance. It was
considered that the proposal continued to be acceptable subject to including relevant
conditions as included within the previous planning permissions. The observations objecting
to the proposal were acknowledged regarding the delay in commencing the work, but having
fully assessed the proposal, there was no valid planning reason to reject the application.

The Local Members (Councillors Kim Jones, Elfed Williams, Menna Baines, Elwyn Jones,
Sasha Williams, lwan Huws and Berwyn Parry Jones) highlighted via emails, that they
agreed with the recommendation, and although the work caused temporary inconvenience,
undergrounding was the best option.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED:
To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the application
subject to the following conditions:

1. 5years

2. Complete the development in accordance with the conditions attached to
permission C16/0886/15/LL and any details agreed through the condition
release requests.

5.2 Application number C23/0463/18/LL
Plas Coch, Penisarwaun, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 3PW

Retrospective application to convert an outbuilding to a holiday let.

Page 9



Some of Members had visited the site on the morning of 05-02-2024.

The Planning Manager highlighted that this was a full retrospective application to convert an
outbuilding to a holiday let. As the proposal had already been completed without planning
permission, a retrospective application had been submitted. It was explained that the unit
had been an outbuilding which was being used as an ancillary use to the Plas Coch property.
The outbuilding had now been renovated and converted into one modern holiday unit. A
decision on the application was deferred at the Planning Committee on 15-01-24 for
Members to visit the site.

It was highlighted that the principle of the proposal was assessed against policy TWR 2
'Holiday Accommodation' in the Local Development Plan (LDP) that permitted proposals that
involved the provision of self-serviced holiday accommodation provided the proposal
complied with a series of criteria.

In considering the criteria, it was noted that the building already existed and was not a new
building - it was located within the curtilage of the existing property and made good use of a
used building that was ancillary to the residential property. It was considered that the scale
was appropriate as it did not create a holiday let that was excessively large, and as the unit
was already being used as an outbuilding it did not lead to the loss of permanent housing
stock. It was reiterated that the unit was located in a rural area near individual scattered
houses, and as a result would not cause significant damage to the residential character of
the area as it was a sprawling residential housing location.

It was highlighted that any application to convert an existing building should include a full
structural survey by a qualified person indicating that the building would be structurally
suitable for conversion without undertaking substantial reconstruction, alterations and
extensions. It was noted that no structural report had been included with the application as
the property had already been converted - there was no value to a structural report as the
alterations had already been completed on site.

There was a reference to paragraph 3.2.1 TAN 23: Economic Development, which noted
that the re-use and adaptation of existing rural buildings had an important role to play in
meeting the needs of rural areas for commercial and industrial development, and tourism,
sport and recreation. It was emphasised that the building in question needed to be suitable
for use.

When considering over-concentration and responding to the criterion - "that the development
would not lead to an over-concentration of such accommodation in the area", it was
highlighted that it should be ensured that a Business Plan was submitted as part of the
application to include the necessary information in terms of the vision for the proposal and
to ensure there was a market for this type of use (paragraph 6.3.67 of the LDP). It was noted
that a Business Plan had been submitted with the planning application, outlining the proposal
and how the development added to the local economy through tourism. To this end it was
considered that the Business Plan met this relevant criterion.

In the context of visual matters, although the proposal did not involve any change to the size
of the outbuilding, there were changes to the front elevation with glass being installed on the
majority of the elevation. As well as this, a roof-light, and other windows and doors were
being repositioned, and the building's finish was completely different to that of the former
building. It was not deemed that the proposal would detract from the visual amenities of the

Page 10



area, nor that it would have a significantly negative impact on the Landscape of Outstanding
Historic Interest.

However, attention was drawn to concerns received that the unit did not fit in with the
landscape and that original materials had been removed and replaced with other materials.
It was reiterated that concerns that the alteration to the building was causing a negative
visual impact, however, the plans did not show a change in the shape or size of the original
building. It was highlighted that there was a significant change to the front elevation with the
developer having installed glass along the elevation, but the elevation did not directly face
nearby housing, and the elevation was not overly noticeable from the road as it was the side
elevation that faced the access road. Although the original materials had not been retained,
the materials used were not considered unacceptable and they did not affect the character
of the area significantly enough to cause a negative impact. This meant that the development
was acceptable and met the requirements of Policy PCYFF 3, PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

In the context of general and residential matters, it was noted that although the building's
appearance had changed somewhat, the changes were not considered excessive, and
consequently did not affect the setting of the unit on the site. Although it could be argued
that the changes made were modern, contrary to the character and the rural sense of the
area, the impact was not considered significant enough to be considered unacceptable and
it was not believed that this impact was substantial enough to be considered unacceptable
in terms of the policy as the shape and scale of the unit remained unchanged.

In the context of transport and access matters, it was noted that there were concerns about
the location of the holiday unit on a narrow road which was used by local people. There were
concerns about the holiday unit use that would make this narrow lane busier and affect the
amenities of nearby residents. The Transportation Unit was consulted regarding this matter
and the unit had no objection regarding this element of the development. It was reported that
parking spaces had been designated for the holiday unit, and the residential property had a
garage on site.

Although the applicant was asked several times for a Language statement, no statement
had been received. It was noted that the guidance contained in Appendix 5 stated that all
retail, commercial or industrial developments where a Welsh Language
Statement/Assessment was not needed to be submitted should demonstrate how
consideration had been given to the language. In this case, the policies of the plan supported
tourism developments in line with specific criteria that related to over-provision, therefore it
was considered in this case and as the proposal complied with the requirements of the
relevant policies, the proposal was unlikely to have a harmful impact on the Welsh language.
In addition, it was also possible to impose a condition to ensure that bilingual signs were
used on the site and therefore it was considered that the proposal was acceptable in respect
of policy PS1 and the relevant SPG.

Reference was made to several concerns received during the public consultation with some
of them being non-planning issues. The Local Planning Authority had no control over the
fact that the original property on the site was also holiday accommodation, as there was
currently a right to change use from a residential property to holiday accommodation without
planning permission. It was emphasised, in this case, that it would be the plans that were
the subject of the application that would be approved, and that it was the applicant's
responsibility to ensure that the development conformed to what had been permitted.

Page 11



It was noted that the development was completed without the necessary Planning
permission and was consequently an ‘'unauthorised development'. Carrying out a
development without first obtaining the necessary planning permission was not a criminal
offence, but such action was discouraged. However, and in accordance with national
guidelines as contained in the Development Control Manual it should be sought to correct
the effects of the unauthorised development and not to penalise the person(s) carrying out
the unauthorised development. It was considered that the proposal met the requirements of
the relevant policies and was acceptable for approval.

b)  Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following points:

o He was grateful to Members for visiting the site.

e That the development infringed the neighbours' privacy.

¢ The Member did not agree with the officers' statement that there was only 'a little
change' here; one side of the converted house had been converted from stone to
glass.

e That light from inside the house would disturb a dark night.

e There were other huts on site - was there an intention for these also to be
converted into holiday homes? Setting a dangerous precedent.

e The track to the site was in a poor condition - this would worsen with increased
occupancy - need to ensure that the track is maintained in a good condition.

e That the site was unsuitable for holiday accommodation.

c) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

ch) During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were made by members:

e That overlooking was a concern- it was possible to see into the conservatory of
nearby neighbours.

¢ Although the holiday accommodation had been converted to a high-quality, it
looked out of place.

e That the track to the site was narrow and in a poor condition — unsuitable.

e There were other buildings on site - concern that this may set a precedent.

e That the Community Council had stated their opposition along with several
objections from neighbouring residents.

e That the property was having a negative impact on nearby residents - particularly
its proximity to Coed y Parc - this was a gross infringement on privacy.

e That the window was too obvious - substantial overlooking.

e The property was in a quiet area - the hot tub encouraged noise.

d) Inresponse to a question regarding the installation of a window pane with opaque glass to
reduce overlooking and the impact on neighbours' amenities, it was noted that a condition
could be imposed to secure this.

dd) The proposal was modified to allow the application subject to the inclusion of a condition to
install an opaque glass pane in the window.

A vote was taken on the proposal. The proposal fell.

e) Itwas proposed to refuse the application on the grounds of overlooking, disturbance and the
impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties

The amendment was not seconded.

Page 12



f)

ff)

5.3

The Assistant Head of Planning and Environment suggested that an option of deferring the
decision could be considered to hold further discussions with the applicant about the level
of activity within the site, set a definite boundary and consider further modifications to
mitigate the impact on neighbours.

It was proposed and seconded to defer the decision to hold further discussions with the
applicant.

RESOLVED: To defer to conduct further discussions with the applicant
- need to discuss the mitigation measures to reduce the development's impact on
residential amenities in terms of disturbance and privacy

Application Number C23/0574/26/AC
Hen Gapel, Caeathro, Gwynedd, LL55 2ST

Application to vary condition 1 on planning permission C18/0993/26/LL (which extended
planning permission C09A/0412/26/LL to erect 12 dwellings and associated works) to extend
the time granted to commence the work for another five years.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form which contained observations regarding
the Affordable Housing arrangement, residential use, Biodiversity matters and further
comments from the Language Unit responding to the revised language statement.

The Development Control Team Leader highlighted that it was an application to vary
condition 1 on planning permission C18/0993/26/LL to extend the period of the planning
permission on the site for another 5 years. The site was located on a plot of land within the
development boundary of Caeathro Local Village as defined in the LDP and it was reiterated
that there were no changes to the original plan.

It was explained that the development of the site had been prevented in the past due to the
concerns of Welsh Water regarding the capacity of the sewerage system to cope with the
foul water that would derive from the site. The concerns had now been resolved. It was
highlighted that the proposal consisted of five types of houses ranging from two-bedroom
semi-detached houses to detached four-bedroom houses, satisfying the recognised need
for housing within the local area; four of the 12 dwellings would be affordable (a 106
Agreement was already in place to control their occupation).

The importance of considering whether local and national planning policy circumstances or
the policy position had changed since the original application was granted was noted. The
proposal could only be considered differently if there was evidence of a substantial change
in circumstances in the context of relevant policies.

Application C09A/0412/26/LL (the original application) was assessed against the policies in
the Unitary Development Plan, i.e., the Development Plan in effect at that time and later
application C18/0993/26/LL extending the original consent was assessed against the
policies within the LDP. As the LDP remained in force, there was no change in the local
planning policy position since the time the previous application had been assessed.

It was explained that the application site as a whole was located within the Caeathro
development boundary as contained in the LDP and the proposal complied with the

Page 13



b)

requirements of Policy PCYFF 1 which aimed to locate new developments within the
development boundaries. It was expressed that Policies TAI 4 and TAI 15 were the relevant
policies in terms of housing development within the boundaries of a Local Village such as
Caeathro. These secure open market housing with a percentage of affordable housing,
provided that the size, scale, type and design of the development were in keeping with the
settlement's character.

In the context of visual amenities, it was noted that the site was identified as being in a fairly
prominent spot in the centre of the village and adjacent to a busy road. Most of the houses
would be visible from nearby public places but they would not be noticeable from afar as they
would be seen in the context of existing housing developments within the village. The design,
elevations, materials, layout nor the form of the houses have not changed since the previous
application was approved in 2014. It was therefore considered that the proposal remained
acceptable based on the requirements of Policy TAI 4, PCYFF 3 and PCYFF 4 of the LDP.
In the context of general and residential amenities, the development was not considered to
create any significant amenity harm to the amenities of nearby residents in terms of impacts
such as over-looking, loss of privacy or creating dominant structures and therefore was
acceptable on the basis of the requirements of policy PCYFF 2 in the LDP.

In considering biodiversity matters, no significant change had occurred in the nature of the
site's habitat since the previous applications were granted; the current conditions of
introducing an Ecological Construction Management Plan and an Ecological Management
Plan could be reiterated to protect existing biodiversity features and bring about
improvements.

Although the site was not situated within a flooding zone due to concerns that the site had
been flooded in the past, a Flood Consequence Assessment was received with the previous
application which included mitigation measures (which included surface water management)
and a plan to redesign and re-route an existing culvert running through the site. The Land
Drainage Unit had confirmed that they had no further comments to that proposed on the
previous application, and an existing condition required the submission of a comprehensive
drainage scheme for the development; the proposal was acceptable based on Paolicy
requirements ISA 1, PCYFF 5 and PCYFF 6 of the LDP.

In the context of educational provision issues, it was noted that the latest SPG: Housing
Developments and Educational Provision superseded the previous SPG which meant that
the figure per pupil had been reduced, and based on the information in the current SPG there
would be an expectation for a total contribution of £50,480, which was less than the figure in
the existing 106 agreement condition. To this end, it would be possible for the applicant to
amend the 106 agreement later on the grounds of the current information at the time. It was
reiterated that in the context of amenity open spaces, as there was no change in the scale or
type of development from what was previously approved, along with the fact that a children's
playground existed in the village and there was no change in the relevant planning policy,
there was no justification for providing amenity spaces as part of the proposal.

The Local Planning Authority considered that the proposal met the requirements of the local
and national policies and recommended that the application should be granted.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the agent noted the following observations:
¢ Inthe past, the Watkin Jones Group had been prevented from developing the site due
to Welsh Water's concerns about the capacity of the sewerage system in the area.
These concerns had now been resolved, and had recently led to a condition relating to

Page 14



ch)

the drainage system. This would mean that should the application be approved, the
site would be developed.

e They were working in partnership with local builders and affordable housing providers
to ensure that the site was being developed. It would not be possible to start the
development before the existing permission expired at the end of the summer, and
therefore an application had been made to extend the consent.

e That the company was committed to providing homes on this site.

¢ Arequest was made for the Committee to support the officers' recommendation and
to approve the application,

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application in accordance with imposing an
agreed condition and the affordable housing scheme.

In response to a question as to why there was no reference to a contribution for playground
eguipment or a contribution towards the maintenance of an existing playground, it was noted
that as there was no change in the scale or type of development from that previously
approved along with the continued existence of a children's playground in the village. There
was no justification for providing an amenity area as part of the proposal.

In response to a comment that neither the Community Council nor the Local Member had
commented and if the Local Planning Authority had re-consulted them, it was noted that
officers would re-consult those Councils who respond consistently, but if they do not receive
a response they would not re-ask. In response to an accompanying question that the
boundaries of this ward had changed recently and that there was a different Local Member
from the one consulted during the previous application. It was noted that the officers had
consulted with the current Local Member.

RESOLVED: To delegate the power to the Head of Planning to approve the application

1. 5 years

2. In accordance with the plans.

3. Slate on the roof

4, Highway conditions - entrance, estate road, turning space, kerbs, footway,
height of wall/lhedge/fence

5. Details of fencing and flooding diversion

6. Plan of system to control surface water

7. Environmental Management Plan - to include lighting scheme and
biodiversity improvements

8. Construction Environmental Management Plan

9. The applicant should adopt and comply with plan number TR-01-VR in the
Tree Restrictions Preliminary Report (03.06.13) submitted with application
number CO9A/0412/26/LL, and to also appoint a tree specialist and ensure
that the obstructions are removed.

10. All the work on the trees must be carried out in accordance with British
Standard 5837: 2012

11. Landscaping.

12. Removal of permitted delegated rights for the affordable units

13. To agree on external finish

14. The southern gable-end window of dwelling 5 on plan number BP/CB/12

submitted as part of application number C09A/0412/26/LL must be of opaque
glass and permanently closed

Page 15



15. Welsh names must be used for the development hereby permitted to include
the name of the houses and the streets

16. The houses hereby permitted must only be used for residential use within the
C3 Use Class as defined by the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987 (as amended) and not for any other use, including any other use
within C Use Classes

17. Affordable Housing Scheme agreement condition

18. Biodiversity Condition

5.4 Application Number C23/0844/16/AM
Zone 7, Parc Bryn Cegin, Llandygai, Gwynedd.

Development of 4 commercial units (of varying sizes) inclusive of new vehicular and
pedestrian access with car parking.

It was highlighted that the late observations form noted that a Welsh Language Statement
had now been submitted together with additional plans displaying the site layout and
indicative elevations for a new building on Plot 3 of the site - the plans were consistent with
the scale, design and overall industrial nature of the location.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that this was an application for outline planning permission
to develop four commercial buildings of various sizes on one of the empty plots within Bryn
Cegin Business Park, Llandygai.

As this was an outline application, members were reminded that details of access to the site
and the internal arrangement had been submitted - the reserved matters would have to be
agreed before the planning permission could be implemented. Appearance, Landscaping and
Scale. It was reiterated that it was proposed to obtain flexible permission for uses within Use
Classes B1 (Business), B2 (General Industrial) or B8 (Storage or Distribution) - the application
being one of three current applications for on-site developments.
e (C23/0844/16/AM Outline application to develop 4 commercial units (of varying sizes)
including a new access for vehicles and pedestrians with a car park (this application).
e (C23/0849/16/LL - Full application to construct new industrial units (on the southern part
of this application site) - item 5.5
e (C23/0850/16/LL - Full application to construct new industrial units (on the north eastern
part of this application site) - item 5.6

It was explained that the site was situated on the Bryn Cegin Strategic Regional Business Site
approximately 1km south of the development boundary of the Bangor Sub-regional Centre,
as defined in the LDP and within the Dyffryn Ogwen Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest. Reference was made to Policy PCYFF 1 of the LDP that encourages the refusal of
developments outside the development boundaries, unless they are in accordance with other
specific local or national policies. In this case, when considering its designation as a Business
Site in the LDP, there was proper justification to approve this development.

In the context of Economic Development, Parc Bryn Cegin is protected as a Regional Strategic
Business Site for businesses in Use Classes B1, B2 & B8 by policy CYF 1 of the LDP and
therefore the proposal is consistent with that policy. During the consultation process the
Economy and Community Department confirmed that there was a shortage of such units in
the area and the development would meet with recognised demand. It was reiterated that

Page 16



Strategic Policy PS 13 in the LDP aimed to facilitate economic growth by supporting many
aspects of the local economy including supporting economic prosperity by facilitating growth
at an appropriate rate. It was highlighted that this was a scheme to enable employers to set
up a business locally on a strategically significant site. The proposal for suitable uses was
considered to be at an appropriate scale for the location within such an industrial site and
therefore met with the requirements of the policy PS 13 in the LDP.

In the context of access, it was noted that the development would use a road network designed
for the industrial estate with the existing infrastructure designed to cope with transport levels
similar to what was envisaged, and the site may be controlled via conditions. It was reiterated
that the Bryn Cegin site had been the subject of extensive archaeological excavations and
had been known as a historically significant location offering an insight into life of the last years
of prehistory in Wales (Iron Age), and the relationship with the Roman Occupation. That said,
for practical reasons, not all areas of the site with archaeological potential were excavated
during the previous work. Confirmation was received from the applicant that there would be
no development in that part of the site, but no further response had been received from the
Archaeological Trust. Once confirmation was received from GCAG that they were satisfied
with the scheme, it was considered that the scheme could move forward in accordance with
the requirements of the policy AT 4 in the LDP.

b) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application, contrary to the recommendation.

RESOLVED To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of Environment Department to
approve the application subject to completing discussions regarding archaeology as
well as relevant planning conditions relating to:

The commencement of the development and submitting reserved matters
All materials to be agreed

Submission of a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan prior to the commencement
of the development

Landscaping scheme

Welsh Water Condition

Highways Conditions

Permitted use of buildings for any purposes within Use Class B1, B2 or B8
only

Ensure Welsh / Bilingual signs

Opening Hours: 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 09:00to 17:00 Saturday and
not at all on Sunday / Bank Holidays

10. A Welsh name for the development and ensure that there is Welsh language
signage within the site.

Nook~ whpE

© ®

Notes:
1. Welsh Water
2. Land Drainage Unit
55 Application Number C23/0849/16/LL

Zone 7, Parc Bryn Cegin, Llandygai, Gwynedd.

Construction of new industrial units.

Page 17



b)

Attention was drawn to the late observations form that highlighted that a Welsh Language
Statement had now been submitted — this went beyond the statutory requirement.

The Planning Manager highlighted that it was a full application for a new building to include
four business units on one of the vacant plots within Bryn Cegin Business Park, Llandygai
with a view to developing the site for uses within use class B2 (General Industrial) in
accordance with the permission for the estate as a whole.

Access to the site would be provided via the existing vehicular entrance which provided
access from the inner road that served the wider Parc Bryn Cegin site and it was proposed
to provide hard-standings for parking and turning in front of each unit.

It was explained that the application site was located outside the development boundary of
the Sub-regional Centre of Bangor as defined in the LDP, however, it was part of a site
protected as a Strategic Regional Business Site. It was reiterated that Policy PCYFF 1 of the
LDP encouraged the refusal of developments outside development boundaries unless they
were in accordance with other local or national planning policies. In this case, when
considering its designation as a Business Site in the LDP, there was appropriate justification
to approve such developments at this location.

It was noted that in the context of access the development would use a road network
designed for the industrial estate and therefore the existing infrastructure was designed to
cope with similar transport levels to what had been envisaged. The site could be managed
by means of conditions.

The proposal was not considered to be contrary to any material planning policy within the
LDP and the proposed development was appropriate for the site, it complied with the relevant
policies and was likely to be of strategic importance to the county as a starting point for
business developments on the site. Having taken all material planning considerations into
account it was not considered that the proposal would be likely to cause unacceptable
adverse effects to nearby residents or the community in general.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application stating that it was good to see a
development in Parc Bryn Cegin after twenty dormant years.

RESOLVED To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of Environment Department to
approve the application subject to completing discussions regarding archaeology as
well as relevant planning conditions relating to:

Commencement time

Development must be in accordance with the plans

All materials to be agreed

Submission of a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan prior to the commencement
of the development

Landscaping scheme

Welsh Water Condition

Highways Conditions

Permitted use of buildings for any purposes within Use Class B1, B2 or B8
only

. Ensure Welsh / Bilingual signs

10. Opening Hours: 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 09:00to 17:00 Saturday and
not at all on Sunday / Bank Holidays

PodPE

© NG

Page 18



Notes:
1. Welsh Water
2.Land Drainage Unit

5.6 Application Number C23/0850/16/LL
Zone 7, Parc Bryn Cegin, Llandygai, Gwynedd.

Construction of new industrial units.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form that highlighted that a Welsh Language
Statement had now been submitted — this went beyond the statutory requirement.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that it was a full application for a new building to include
four business units on one of the vacant plots within Bryn Cegin Business Park, Llandygai
with a view to developing the site for uses within use class B2 (General Industrial) which was
in accordance with the permission for the estate as a whole.

Access to the site would be provided via the existing vehicular entrance which provided
access from the inner road that served the wider Parc Bryn Cegin site and it was proposed to
provide hard-standings for parking and turning in front of each unit.

It was explained that the application site was located outside the development boundary of
the Sub-regional Centre of Bangor as defined in the LDP, however, it was part of a site
protected as a Strategic Regional Business Site. It was reiterated that Policy PCYFF 1 of the
LDP encouraged the refusal of developments outside development boundaries unless they
were in accordance with other local or national planning policies. In this case, when
considering its designation as a Business Site in the LDP, there was appropriate justification
to approve such developments at this location.

It was noted that in the context of access the development would use a road network designed
for the industrial estate and therefore the existing infrastructure was designed to cope with
similar transport levels to what had been envisaged. The site could be managed by means of
conditions.

The proposal was not considered to be contrary to any material planning policy within the LDP
and the proposed development was appropriate for the site, it complied with the relevant
policies and was likely to be of strategic importance to the county as a starting point for
business developments on the site. Having taken all material planning considerations into
account it was not considered that the proposal would be likely to cause unacceptable adverse
effects to nearby residents or the community in general.

b) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.
RESOLVED To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of Environment Department to

approve the application subject to completing discussions regarding archaeology as
well as relevant planning conditions relating to:

1. Commencement time
2. Development must be in accordance with the plans
3. All materials to be agreed

Page 19



5.7

B

Submission of a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan prior to the
commencement of the development

Landscaping scheme

Welsh Water Condition

Highways Conditions

Permitted use of buildings for any purposes within Use Class B1, B2 or B8
only

0. Ensure Welsh / Bilingual signs

10. Opening Hours: 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 09:00 to 17:00 Saturday
and not at all on Sunday and Bank Holidays

©NoO

Notes:
1. Welsh Water
2. Land Drainage Unit

Application Number C23/0891/22/LL
Talysarn Celts Football Club, Talysarn, LL54 6BY

Creation of new football pitch and erection of new storage shed.

The Planning Manager highlighted that this was a full application for the creation of a new
football pitch and the erection of an additional storage shed adjacent to the existing football
pitch. The football pitch would be slightly smaller in size than a full-sized pitch, and it was
not proposed to install any floodlights.

A revised site plan was submitted, highlighting existing parking along with a land drainage
system.

The site was located outside the Talysarn development boundary, but on the outskirts of
the village inside a Special Landscape Area, Landscape of Special Historic Interest and
Wildlife Site and the site was served by an existing entrance and access road to a nearby
class 3 and unclassified county road.

It was explained that policy ISA 2 Community Facilities applied to this application and
aimed to protect existing community facilities and encourage the development of new
facilities where appropriate. Although the application does not propose new facilities (in
terms of land use), it would significantly improve and enhance the existing facilities and
was likely to benefit the school and the wider community. It was reiterated that the site was
easily accessible by foot, bicycle and public transport, and it was considered that the scale
and type of proposal was appropriate in terms of size, character and function of the
settlement. The proposal was therefore considered acceptable in principle and was in
compliance with policy ISA 2.

In the context of visual, general and residential matters, it was noted that the site was
located adjacent to an existing football pitch with associated activities already on the site.
However, it was considered that the current use of the application site was occasional and
informal and did not include full football matches. Although the site backed onto a
residential area, it was not considered that the proposal would have a different impact to
what already existed. The site was associated with several amenity paths which were
regularly used by the public and it was considered that the use of the site as a whole would
be more intense as a result of the site's development.

Page 20



b)

Comments had been received from Public Protection recommending that the applicant
submit a Noise Management Plan that covered matters such as hours and days of use,
community liaison, complaints procedures and the required response/timescales, and
prevention of unauthorised use. In addition, it was suggested that a condition be imposed
to manage the development hours, and also a condition to manage the noise level
emanating from the site were included when it was operational to ensure that the proposal
met with the policy requirements of PCYFF 2.

Comments received in objection to the proposal were acknowledged, however, it was not
considered that the proposal, with appropriate conditions, would cause significant adverse
disruption to the residential amenities of nearby dwellings, and would not alter public use
of the nearby footpaths.

In the context of Biodiversity matters, it was noted that recent changes to Planning Policy
Wales (PPW) had been considered along with the comments from the Biodiversity Unit.
There were no new matters that would have any material influence on the decision, and it
was considered that the contents of the ecological report along with the ability to impose
conditions to secure mitigation measures and enhancements to biodiversity were sufficient
to satisfy the requirements of PPW.

In the context of linguistic matters, it was made clear that the application was to improve
community facilities that would be used by the local community. A statement was received
from the applicant stating, "The project and the club's language policy address many
elements of the 2023-28 Gwynedd Plan including the priority of "Gwynedd Gymraeg". It
was added that "the club's activities are operated entirely / a large majority through the
medium of Welsh which allows all children (first and second languages) to be able to use
Welsh naturally in a social / sporting setting which is such an important foundation to protect
and develop the language in our communities in the future.”

It was also noted that the football club's website was bilingual and messages on social
media prioritised the Welsh language which showed that the club was committed to the
language, and supported the above statement.

In the context of archaeological matters, it was noted that GAPS stated that the
archaeological potential of this site arose from the Coed Madog historic slate quarry that
covered the entire footprint of the football pitches. It was explained that evidence indicated
that the site was landscaped some years ago however, it was unclear to what extent any
historic structural material had been removed. Despite the possibility that archaeological
remains survived beneath the surface, groundworks to varying depths could disturb any
remains, however, conditions could be imposed for a programme of archaeological work
to be agreed to address this.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following points:
e Talysarn Football Club would celebrate its 100th anniversary this year.
e The current field was provided for the purpose of 1 men's team.
e There were now children's, youth, women's and men's teams in the club with a
waiting list due to the lack of space.
e The application was in response to the challenge of extending opportunities to the
youth and funds had been raised locally for the enterprise.

Page 21



The need and potential had been identified - this was an opportunity to create more
facilities and plan ahead so that more of the local community could get involved.
Long-term lease (25 years) agreed with Cyngor Gwynedd for the land with grants
received from Football Wales and Cyngor Gwynedd (depending on the Committee's
decision).

It was not just a Club for the village - several nearby villages used it.

The Club was a hub for community events.

The provision would make a difference — the plan was fair and responsible, with the
community benefiting from the scheme in the future.

Gratitude was expressed to the Chair of Talysarn FC and the local community for
bringing the application together.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED: To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of Environment Department
to approve the application subject to completing discussions regarding
archaeology as well as relevant planning conditions relating to:

CoNoOR~WNE

Five years.

In accordance with plans and documents

No containers or other equipment to be kept outdoors
No lighting on the site without agreement.
Landscaping

Landscape maintenance

Welsh / bilingual signs

Provision of disabled parking spaces

Additional car parking spaces to be completed before the new pitch is used
Contaminated land survey work condition

In accordance with the noise management plan
Archaeological survey work condition

The meeting commenced at 13:00 and concluded at 14:40

CHAIR

Page 22



Agenda Item 5.1

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 1

Application
Number:

Date Registered:

Application
Type:

Community:

Ward:

Proposal:

Location:

Summary of the
Recommendation:

C23/0302/22/LL

17/04/23
Full

Llanllyfni

Penygroes

Application for extension to Cae Efa Lwyd sand and gravel
pit

Chwarel Cae Efa LIwyd, Penygroes, LL54 6PB

TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 22


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=323555

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

Description:

This is an application for an extension to the extraction area of the Cae Efa Lwyd sand and gravel
pit. Cae Efa Lwyd is a working sand and gravel pit located on agricultural land west of the village
of Penygroes with vehicular access gained off Ffordd Clynnog (Class 3 public highway). Under
existing planning permission(s), the site has been subject of phased mineral extraction that is
transported along the public highway to Cefn Graianog for processing and sale. The proposed
extension to the extraction area and existing planning permissions do not provide any scope for
screening, crushing, washing or the installation of any machinery at the Cae Efa Lwyd site.
Overburden and soils stripped from working areas will be stored on site in screening bunds until
use in restoration following the end of mineral extraction operations.

The proposed extraction extension area will extend the site northwards, covering an area 4.1ha
with the base level of the extraction at 93m-95m aOD. This will release around 792,803 tonnes of
sand and gravel in addition to the 298,000 tonnes remaining within the existing permitted
extraction area (giving a total of 1.1 million tonnes extracted from the site). The mineral will be
limited to 125,000 tonnes a year and will take approximately 10 years to complete (in
combination with existing permitted reserves). The vehicular access completed in March 2019
under planning permission reference C17/0455/22/LL will continue to be used under the
proposal.

This application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) and is subject of an
Environmental Impact Statement following a screening and scoping opinions in line with the
requirements The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales)
Regulations 2017.

Relevant policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the seven well-being goals within the Act.
This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable
development principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council
has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026, adopted 31 July 2017

PS1: Welsh language and culture

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility
TRA 2 Parking Standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Alleviating the effects of climate change

PCYFF 1: Development boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.4

PCYFF 5: Carbon management

PCYFF 6: Water conservation

PS 13: Providing opportunity for a flourishing economy

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
AMG 2: Special Landscape Areas

AMG 5: Local biodiversity Conservation

AMG 6: Protecting Sites of Regional or Local Significance

PS20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens

AT 4: Protection of non-designated archaeological sites and their settings

PS 22: Minerals

MWYN 1: Safeguarding mineral resources

MWYN 2: Preferred Areas

MWYN 3: Mineral developments

MWYN 5: Buffer zones around mineral sites

MWYN 9: Restoration and after care

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): ‘The Slate Landscapes of Northwest Wales’ World
Heritage Site.
SPG ‘Maintaining and Creating Distinctive Sustainable Communities’

National Policies:

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Mineral Technical Advice Note 1 (MTAN) Aggregates
Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning
Technical Advice Note 11: Noise

Technical Advice Note 18: Transport

Technical Advice Note 23 Economic Development
Technical Advice Note 24: The Historic Environment

Relevant Planning History:

C19/0852/22/AC ‘Discharge of conditions 1 (Written notification of commencement of
development), 2 (Written notice of commencement of development), 8 (Completion of access), 27
& 28 (Restoration & aftercare), 37 (Badgers), 38 (Archaeology), 40 (Oil & fuel), 41 & 42
(Surface water management) on ROMP determination C13/0217/22/MW’ — Conditions formally
discharged on 09/10/20109.

C18/1190/22/AC ‘Discharge of Conditions 1, 3, 7, 11, 14, 23, 24, 27 & 28 on Planning
Permission C17/0455/22/LL (Condition 1 — Written notification of commencement, Condition 3 —
Written notification of commencement of certain activities, Condition 7 — Location and details of
wheel wash, Condition 11 — Soil storage scheme, Condition 14 — Restoration and aftercare
proposals, Condition 23 — Badgers, Condition 24 — Archaeology, Condition 27 & 28 — Hydrology
(surface water management) ’ - Conditions formally discharged on 04/02/2019.

C17/0455/22/LL ‘Formation of a vehicular access to Cae Efa Lwyd sand and gravel pit from the
Class 3 County Highway at Allt Goch and associated engineering works.” — Planning permission
granted on 18/12/2017.

C13/217/22/MW ‘Environment Act 1995. Application for the determination of conditions to re-
activate a dormant sand and gravel site under planning permission 2250 dated 10 December

Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1951 - field no. 297, Cae Efa Lwyd, Penygroes’ — Permitted as under permission N0.2250 subject
schedule of conditions modified on 20/12/2017.

2250 ‘Proposed re-opening of existing gravel pit on Field No.297 and future working of Field
Nos. 155, 298 and 298a, at Cae Efa Lwyd Fawr, Penygroes’ — Planning permission granted on

10/12/1951.

4. Consultations:

Community Council: Response received on 11/05/2023:
Comments requesting that conditions placed on the existing planning
permission can be extended to cover the new application.

Transportation Unit: Response received on 09/05/2023:
I have no objection to the proposed increase from 20 to 25 HGV
loads per day.

Public Rights of Way Unit: Response received on 28/11/2023:
Comments- | refer to the above-mentioned application. No recorded
Rights of Way appear to be affected by this proposal.

Natural Resources Wales: 2" Response received 20/11/2023:

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru (CNC)/Natural
Resources Wales (NRW) about the further information in support of
the above, which we received on 31 October 2023. We continue to
have concerns with the application as submitted. However, we are
satisfied that these concerns can be overcome by attaching the
following groundwater protection condition to any planning
permission granted: Please note, without the inclusion of this
condition we would object to this planning application. Further
details are provided below.

Groundwater Protection

We have reviewed the following information:
1. Environmental Statement. Kedd Limited, February 2023

2. Hydrogeological Impact Assessment — Penygroes Quarry. Hafren
Water Limited, Report Reference: 3013/HIA Final version F2,
November 2022.

3. Email dated 16/10/23 (17:30) from Lian Toland to Rhys
Cadwaladr. Re: Application for extension to Cae Efa Lwyd sand and

Page 25



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

gravel pit — Ref: C23/0302/22/LL.

We note the reiteration of working above the water table with a 1
metre unsaturated zone buffer. We previously advised details on
ongoing monitoring be submitted to ensure that mineral extraction
remains 1 metre above the local water table. The email dated
16/10/23 (17:30) from Lian Toland to Rhys Cadwaladr explains that
the existing groundwater monitoring network will be used to check
the 1m buffer above the water table is maintained. The email goes on
to suggest this could be checked annually via condition. We advise
that this is implemented and secured through a suitably worded
condition within any permission. The applicant should inform the
LPA (and NRW) immediately if it is found that the 1m buffer above
the water table is breached.

Protected Sites

We note that both bat transect and activity surveys for bats have been
undertaken on the site between June and September in years 2020
and 2022, and that 6 bat species were recorded during the surveys.
Whilst the survey undertaken did not detect Lesser Horseshoe bat,
we note the proximity of the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation
and Glynllifon Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) (<1km), and
therefore welcome the proposals for site restoration, particularly the
inclusion of an interconnecting woodland corridor at the northern end
of the development site. We note that revised restoration plans have
been submitted which include some planting in phase 2, in order to
introduce connecting features that could be used by bats. As the
competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding
to give consent for a project which is likely to have a significant
effect on a SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or in combination
with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation
objectives. You must for the purposes of the assessment consult
NRW and have regard to any representations we make within such
reasonable time as you specify. In the absence of that assessment,
NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not result in an adverse
effect upon the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site. Providing the impact
pathways referenced above for the SAC are adequately addressed,
NRW consider the features of the SSSI will also be adequately
safeguarded.

European Protected Species

We refer you to our advice within the Protected Sites section above
and have no other European Protected Species comments. Protected
Landscapes The proposal is 3.2km from the Eryri National Park and
2.1km from the Llyn Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).
We do not consider that proposal would conflict with the purpose of

Page 26



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

the National Park / AONB however we advise that you liaise with
your internal landscape advisory regarding any local landscape
impacts.

Surface Water Drainage

The site lies within Zone A of the Development Advice Maps
(DAM) contained within Technical Advice Note 15 Development
and Flood Risk (July 2004). TAN15 advises that for development
located in Zone A the justification test is not applicable and surface
water requirements apply. The acceptability criteria is for no increase
in flooding elsewhere to occur as a result of the development. Given
the location of development in Zone A, we advise that surface water
requirements should be assessed. We note it is for the Authority’s
Land Drainage Department to comment on the suitability of these
proposals.

Other Matters

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on
our checklist, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation
Topics (September 2018), which is published on our website. We
have not considered potential effects on other matters and do not rule
out the potential for the proposed development to affect other
interests. We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning
permission, it is their responsibility to ensure they secure all other
permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. Please refer
to our website for further details. If you have any queries on the
above, please do not hesitate to contact us.

15t Response received on 24/05/2023:

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural
Resources Wales about the above, which we received on 21st April
2023. We have concerns with the application as submitted because
inadequate information has been provided in support of the proposal.
To overcome these concerns, you should seek further information
from the applicant regarding groundwater protection. If this
information is not provided, we would object to this planning
application. Further details are provided below.

Groundwater Protection

We have reviewed the following information:
1. Environmental Statement. Kedd Limited, February 2023

2. Hydrogeological Impact Assessment — Penygroes Quarry. Hafren
Water Limited, Report Reference: 3013/HIA Final version F2,
November 2022.

Page 27



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

We note the reiteration of working above the water table with a 1
metre unsaturated zone buffer. However, how will this be checked
and complied with is, has not explained. There is a groundwater
monitoring network at the site — will this be retained to ensure that
the 1 metre unsaturated zone is maintained during the extraction of
the mineral? We advise that the applicant provide details on the
ongoing monitoring that will be employed on site to ensure that
mineral extraction remains 1 metre above the local water table to
support this application.

Protected Sites

We note that both bat transect and activity surveys for bats have been
undertaken on the site between June and September in years 2020
and 2022, and that 6 bat species were recorded during the surveys.
Whilst the survey undertaken did not detect Lesser Horseshoe bat,
we note the close proximity of the Glynllifon Special Area of
Conservation and Glynllifon Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)
(<1km), and therefore, welcome the proposals for site restoration,
particularly the inclusion of an interconnecting woodland corridor at
the northern end of the development site. Landscape mitigation
measures include the use of progressive restoration, however as
shown and described on the phasing plans this would not be
considered full restoration. No tree or shrub planting is proposed
until after the last phase (Phase 4). We would therefore recommend
tree/hedgerow planting as part of the earlier phases, wherever
feasible (e.g., in the western part of the site), in order to introduce
connecting features that could be used by bats. As the competent
authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to give
consent for a project which is likely to have a significant effect on a
SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or in combination with other
plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the implications
of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives. You
must for the purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have
regard to any representations we make within such reasonable time
as you specify. In the absence of that assessment, NRW cannot
advise that the proposals would not result in an adverse effect upon
the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site. Providing the impact pathways referenced
above for the SAC are adequately addressed, NRW consider the
features of the SSSI will also be adequately safeguarded.

European Protected Species

We refer you to our advice within the Protected Sites section above
and have no other European Protected Species comments.

Protected Landscapes

The proposal is 3.2km from the Eryri National Park and 2.1km fr&gn
age 2

8



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

the LIyn Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). We do not
consider that proposal would conflict with the purpose of the
National Park / AONB however we advise that you liaise with your
internal landscape advisory regarding any local landscape impacts.

Surface Water Drainage

The site lies within Zone A of the Development Advice Maps
(DAM) contained within Technical Advice Note 15 Development
and Flood Risk (July 2004). TAN15 advises that for development
located in Zone A the justification test is not applicable and surface
water requirements apply. The acceptability criteria is for no increase
in flooding elsewhere to occur as a result of the development. Given
the location of development in Zone A, we advise that surface water
requirements should be assessed. We note it is for the Authority’s
Land Drainage Department to comment on the suitability of these
proposals.

Other Matters

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on
our checklist, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation
Topics (September 2018), which is published on our website. We
have not considered potential effects on other matters and do not rule
out the potential for the proposed development to affect other
interests. We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning
permission, it is their responsibility to ensure they secure all other
permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. Please refer
to our website for further details. If you have any queries on the
above, please do not hesitate to contact us.

DWwr Cymru: Response received on 02/05/2023:

We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above site, and
we can provide the following comments in respect to the proposed
development.

ASSET PROTECTION

The proposed development is crossed by a trunk/distribution
watermain, the approximate position being shown on the attached
plan. Dwr Cymru Welsh Water as Statutory Undertaker has statutory
powers to access our apparatus at all times. | enclose our Conditions
for Development near Watermain(s). It may be possible for this
watermain to be diverted under Section 185 of the Water Industry
Act 1991, the cost of which will be re-charged to the developer. The
developer must consult Dwr Cymru Welsh Water before any
development commences on site.

Page 29



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

SEWERAGE

It appears the application does not propose to connect to the public
sewer, and therefore Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has no further
comments. However, should circumstances change and a connection
to the public sewerage system/public sewage treatment works is
preferred we must be re-consulted on this application. Our response
is based on the information provided by your application. Should the
proposal alter during the course of the application process we kindly
request that we are re-consulted and reserve the right to make new
representation.

Public Protection Unit: Response received on 05/10/2023:

I refer to the above application and make the following comments:

The application has been considered and responses are made in
reference to the submitted reports as follows;

e Dust Impact Assessment by SLR, Ref: 416.13225.00001
Version No: 2.0 July 2022 (Dust I1A)

e Noise Assessment by SLR, Ref: 403.13225.00002v1 Version
No: 2 July 2022 (NA)

e Proposed Extension to Penygroes Quarry, Gwynedd
Environmental Statement, February 2023 KEDD Ltd (EA)

The application is for the extension to the existing Sand and Gravel
Quarry determined under Planning Application C13/0217/22/MW for
a further 7 years, the areas for the proposed works have been
highlighted in the application as phase 2,3 and 4.

The application is to include the extension to phase 1 area. The
normal operational hours are stated as 0800 hours to 1800 hours daily
Monday to Friday and not at all on Saturday, Sunday, or Bank
Holidays. We note and agree to these hours as detailed in the EA
report para 3.2.1. Condition 12 of C13/0217/22/MW which relates to
the working hours should be transposed to this application should the
application be granted.

The plans reference KD.PEN.D.012A and KD.PEN.D.013A make
reference to screening bunds 1-5 indicating their hight and location.
We would advise that the hights of the bunds are conditioned should
the application be granted. Bund 1 is highlighted as a noise
attenuation bund and must be 5m in hight as indicated.

No permitted process activities, such as the processing and crushing
of materials should be conducted on site.

Noise

Potential noise impacts are associated with mobile/fixed site plant

Page 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

and vehicle movement. The noise assessment makes calculations at
sensitive receptors for a worst-case scenario of all activities operating
concurrently; and these are compared against suggested noise limits
set out in the relevant guidance.

Concerns were raised by the Service with the noise consultant prior to
receiving this application regarding the background noise monitoring
undertaken over the Easter holidays. However, the noise report has
provided evidence of background surveys undertaken in 2014 and
2017. The results of the 2017 survey are representative and similar to
the levels taken in 2022.

There are several residential neighbouring properties located close to
the proposed area, which is within a mainly rural area.

The Mineral Technical Advice Note (Wales) recommends 100 metres
minimum buffer zone for sand and gravel between active operational
areas of a pit (not the application boundary) and sensitive property.
The extension of the Quarry will comply with the buffer zone. An
acoustic barrier and bund are already in place to the south-eastern
boundary for the existing quarry and must remain in situ should the
extension be granted.

The noise report has provided calculations of the predicted noise
levels from the proposed extension in comparisons to MTAN 1
guidance, stating noise levels from the proposed workings of the
Quarry shall not exceed the background noise level by more than
10dB(A). We accept the conclusion of the noise report and proposed
mitigation measures outlined within section 4.2 of the report. It is
advised that the mitigation measures are conditioned.

Except with prior written agreement with the Mineral Planning
Authority, noise emissions from the operations carried out at the site
(excluding temporary operations such as soil stripping etc) shall not
exceed the following noise levels in dB LAeq, 1 nour at the specified
monitoring locations, when measured at a height of 1.5meters above
the ground and in free-field conditions:

Monitoring Monday- Temporary Any other
location Friday 0800- | operations (no | period
1800 more than 8
(excluding weeks per
Bank annum)
holidays)
Pentyrch, 45 67 42
LL54 6NS
Ffermdy 47 67 42

Page 31




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Minffordd,
LL54 6PE

Cae Efa Lwyd | 46 67 42
Fawr, LL54
6PB

Cae Efa 51 67 42
Llwyd Fach,
LL54 6PB

Temporary Activities

Where temporary activities can bring a longer-term environmental
benefit, a limit of 67dB LAeq has been adopted (no more than eight
weeks per annum), based on the MTAN 1 guidance. A written record
shall be made of the dates that these activities are taking place and
shall be made available to the Planning Authority on request.

Operational Noise/ Road Traffic

A written record shall be maintained at the site office of all
movements out of the site by heavy goods vehicles; such records
shall contain the vehicle's weight, registration number and the time
and date of the movement and shall be made available for inspection
by the planning Authority on request at any time during permitted
working hours.

The number of vehicles should also be restricted by means of
planning condition. Planning conditions should be imposed in respect
of controls for the use of ‘white noise’ reverse alarms for site based
mobile plant.

All vegetation, topsoil and subsoil stripped from each phase, and
areas affected by excavations, temporary access roads and vehicle
haulage roads, should be stored within acoustic screening bunds.

Air Quality

Between February 2019 and April 2020, the Public Protection
Service deployed an OSIRIS Particle Monitor (instrument #
TNO2558) at Pentyrch, LL54 6NS. This house is directly adjacent to
the Quarry and the monitoring period included pre and post
operation.

This instrument is a continuous monitor and was used to measure
PM10, PM2.5 and PM1 particles with a resolution of 0.1 pg/m3. It is
Environment Agency MCERTS certified for reliable and accurate
recording of PM1 and PM 5 data.

The data obtained over this period was collected and used to

Page 32



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

determine any exceedances of the Air Quality Standards below:

Air Quality (Wales) Regulations 2000, as amended by the Air
Quality (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2002

Pollutant Air Quality Objective
Concentration Measured as

Particles (PMio) 50 pg/m3, not to be  24-hour mean
(gravimetric) exceeded more than
35 times per year

40 pg/m?® annual mean

Other air quality standards relevant to human health

Pollutant EU Limit or target value
Concentration Measured as

Particles (PM2s) = 25 pg/m® annual mean
(gravimetric)

No exceedances of the above standards were shown in the data
collected over this period.

Air Quality criteria should be included in relation to public health to
meet the air quality objectives to ensure that any air pollutants arising
from the works do not have an adverse impact on public health. The
main area of concern would be the release of fugitive emissions to air
during the operational phases and resulting from HGV traffic
movements.

We have reviewed the submitted Dust Impact Assessment by SLR
Ref: 416.13225.00001 Version No: 2.0 July 2022. We concur with
Section 6.2.1 of the report that there is little potential for Site
operations to cause a breach in the above objectives.

An updated Dust Monitoring and Control Scheme will be required as
outlined in Section 6.1.1 of the report. The scheme must be put in
place and the following matters conditioned (see Table 1 and Table 2

Page 33



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

below):

The levels of PM10’s shall not exceed 50ug/m?® as a daily mean with
no more than 35 exceedances per year, and 40ug/m® measured as an
annual mean, when measured at the nearest sensitive human health
receptor.

The levels of PM2.5 shall not exceed 25ug/m3 as an annual mean,
when measured at the nearest sensitive human health receptor.

Nitrogen Dioxide NO; levels shall not exceed an hourly mean of
200ug/m® more than 18 per year and shall not exceeded 40ug/m?
measured as an annual mean and shall be measured at nearest
sensitive human health receptor.

Table 1

Authority | Pollutant | Objective Measured | Relevance
as:

EC/UK PMo 50ug/m 24hr mean | Air Quality
Air Exceeded < in relation
Quality 35 to public
Standard times/annum health
EC/UK PMio 40ug/m3 Annual Air Quality
Air mean in relation
Quality to public
Standard health
EC/UK NO; 200pug/m3 Hourly Air Quality
Air mean in relation
Quality to public
Standard health
EC/UK NO: 40ug/m Annual Air Quality
Air mean in relation
Quality to public
Standard health
UK Air PM:s Target value | Annual Air Quality
Quality 25ug/m mean in relation
Standard - to public
target health

Page 34



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Soil Policy & Agricultural
Land Use Planning Unit:

Statutory Nuisance and Dust Deposit Gauges

No statutory limits have been set for acceptable levels of dust
nuisance, but UK guidance suggests a guideline value of 200
mg/m2/day as an indication of likely nuisance. It is therefore advised
to place a condition to reflect Table 2 below.

Table 2
Authority | Pollutant | Objective | Measured | Relevance
as:
Nuisance | Particulate | 200 mgm- | Averaged Nuisance
Dust %/day over 1 Dust
Deposition month - Deposition
Rate Annual
mean

Upon receipt of a complaint or on the request of the Planning
department Air Quality Monitoring, and/or a dust survey shall be
undertaken for a minimum period of 3 months at agreed location/s
with the planning authority. This can be conditioned worded in
condition 14 of the planning consent C13/0217/22/MW.

Dust from HGV’s and Road Debris

A wheel wash facility should be sited before the weighbridge and
exiting the public highway. Details of the vehicle cleaning facilities
to be installed including location, design, specification, and controls
to be used to ensure correct usage shall be submitted to the for
approval in writing. The approved facilities shall thereafter be
maintained in full working order and used by all HGV's leaving the
site to ensure that no mud, dust, or other deleterious material is
transferred onto the public highway when leaving the site.

All vehicles transporting minerals from the site, of a size less than
100mm in any dimension, shall be securely sheeted.

2" Response received on 22/11/2023:

I refer to your e-mail on the 31% of October 2023 consulting the
Department on the above amended planning application. This
response is made in accordance with:

* Schedule 51 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended); and,

* Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1, Chapter D2

Page 35



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

» Annex B of Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6 —2010. 3

* Planning Policy Wales (PPW), Edition 11 — 2021. 4 The
Department for Climate Change does not wish to comment upon the
principle of the development and will confine comments to the
agricultural after use that is proposed for part of the site.

Agricultural Land Classification (ALC):

A detailed ALC survey was commissioned by the Applicant using
LRA (January 2022). The survey mapped two distinct blocks of ALC
sub-grades 3a and 3b.

Aqgricultural After Use:

The submitted scheme for the working and restoration of the quarry
identifies an area approximately 0.81ha (noted as Field A) intended
for restoration to Best and Most Versatile agricultural land (Subgrade
3a) and an agricultural after use on cessation of quarrying. Plan 2 of
the Clarification of Soil Resources and Agricultural Quality of Land
report specifies Species Rich Grassland managed by grazing. All soil
material found within the extension area shall be recovered, stored
and used in the agricultural and amenity restorations all in a manner
that is detailed in Technical Appendix H.

Schedule 5, Part 1(1):

Subject to the condition below, it is confirmed that agriculture is an
appropriate after use for Area A and can be specified as such by your
Authority in accordance with Schedule 5, Part 1(1) of the 1990 Act.
Condition 1: The applicant has provided additional information on
water table and drainage management for Field A. The Department
cannot comment on the validity of this information. Your Authority
will need to be satisfied that the drainage proposals are adequate.
Any drainage problems causing a high-water table or surface water
ponding whether seasonally or permanent would prevent a beneficial
agricultural after use and as such render the paragraph above void,
i.e., not in accordance with Schedule 5, Part 1(1) of the 1990 Act.

Schedule 5, Paragraph 3(2):

The scheme does not provide confidence that it is practicable to
restore Area A to Best and Most Versatile (BMV) Agricultural Land.
As such the standard of agricultural after use should create an
agricultural resource that is of continuing, long term economic
benefit to the local agricultural community. Grade 3b (ALC)
productive grassland is considered to be the appropriate standard in
this case, to reflect the quality of land taken in the extension area, the
available soil resource, the lack of a soil physical characteristics
report and specific BMV measures, and to satisfy the requirement of

Page 36



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

paragraph 3(2) of Schedule 5 of the 1990 Act. BMV Policy: 0.81ha
of BMV agricultural land is likely to be lost as a result of this
development (Plan 1 of the Clarification of Soil Resources and
Agricultural Quality of Land Report). TAN6 Annex B6 expects,
“that planning authorities should be able normally to determine
applications for development on agricultural land in the light of
evidence before them... Such [non-statutory] consultations [with the
Department] should be confined to matters of technical detail and not
relate to the merits or otherwise of the application, on which it is for
the planning authority to take a view.”

Agricultural Restoration and Aftercare Conditions

It will be necessary to impose appropriate conditions to regulate the
necessary operations during the life of the quarry to achieve the
required standard of agricultural after use. These conditions should
require the quarry operator to follow the sequence of operations set
out in the submitted working scheme, as above, or in the event of a
change in method of working and/or restoration strategy, to require
submission of revised proposals for prior approval. | attach a
schedule of conditions that highlight restoration and aftercare
operations that require to be regulated by condition (see Annex 1 and
Annex 2). Please discuss if your Authority sees any difficulty in
including such matters in the permission. The advice expressed does
not bind any other part of Welsh Government commenting on the
proposal. | trust the above expression of view and associated remarks
are clear and unambiguous. Please do not hesitate to contact if
necessary.

15' Response received on 15/05/2023:

I refer to your e-mail on the 24th of April 2023 consulting the
Department on the above planning application. This response is made
in accordance with:

* Schedule 51 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended); and,

* Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1, Chapter D2
» Annex B of Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6 — 2010. 3

* Planning Policy Wales (PPW), Edition 11 — 2021. 4 This response
will first set out our consideration of the Agricultural Land
Classification survey undertaken for the site, followed by our
response on the proposed application and wider worked area within
the existing permitted boundary.

Page 37



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) - Advice:

An ALC report has been prepared by Land Research Associates
(LRA) (Ref: 1921/1 — Soil Resources and Agricultural Quality of
land at Penygroes Quarry, dated 10th January 2022) — a copy is
attached for information. The report found the survey area to be
5.6ha ALC Subgrade 3a, 4.2ha Subgrade 3b and 3.7ha ‘other land’—
a total of 13.5ha surveyed. The Department has undertaken a
validation of the LRA survey report and can confirm it has been
undertaken in accordance with the ‘Revised Guidelines and Criteria
for Grading the Quality of Agricultural Land’ (MAFF 1988)5. The
report can be accepted as an accurate reflection of the agricultural
land quality on the site. This confirms the surveyed area contains
5.60ha of Best and Most Versatile (BMV) agricultural land as
defined in Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 11, paragraph 3.58. The
Department wishes to note that references to ‘MAFF Good Practice
Guide for Handling Soils’ (Section 5.0 of the report) has now been
superseded by the Institute of Quarrying (IoQ) ‘Good Practice Guide
for Handling Soils in Mineral Workings’ 6 (2021). Sheets 1, 2, 3, 4
and 14 are now superseded by Sheets A, B, C, D and G respectively
of the 10Q guidance.

2. Best and Most Versatile (BMV) agricultural land.

The application involves BMV agricultural land and therefore
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) paragraphs 3.58 and 3.59 will apply.
The department does not consider that the policy has been addressed
in the application, demonstrating how: - i. ‘considerable weight’ is
given to protecting BMV land from development. ii. demonstrating
an ‘overriding need’ if BMV land needs to be developed, iii. clear
application of the sequential test approach. The application is unclear
on how much BMV land will be worked / disturbed and how much
will be lost or intended for restoration and if this is to pre-working
condition or alternative after use. BMV agricultural land is a finite
resource. The department disagrees with the statements in paragraph
5.3.45 and 5.3.47 of the planning statement. TAN 6, paragraph 6.2.2
notes that °...once agricultural land is developed, even for ‘soft” uses
such as golf courses, its return to agriculture as best and most
versatile agricultural land is seldom practicable’.

3. Restoration and After Use:

A concept restoration plan has been provided for the entire site
(drawing: KD.PEN.D.006A Concept Restoration - FINAL) noting
that the quarry will be progressively restored to an ‘...agricultural
and/or wildlife habitats...” after use (see paragraph 1.1.5 of planning
statement). It is unclear if the intended after use of the site is for
amenity (Schedule 5, 3 (4) of the 1990 Act) or agricultural (Schedule
5, 3 (2) of the 1990). It appears to be for amenity after use managed
by grazing (para 1.1.6), however, this is matter for the Applicant to

Page 38



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

clearly state and not for the Department to assume. It is essential to
clarify the intended after use to ensure restoration and aftercare
proposals are achievable and be able to condition against. If
agriculture after use is intended for the quarry floor, it is not clear
how water table and drainage would be managed for beneficial
agricultural after use. The Department is concerned that the bowl
feature may lead to drainage problems and surface water ponding
whether seasonally or permanently (MTAN1 para 99). The concept
restoration plan (Ref: KD.PEN.D.006A) notes the slopes of the
quarry would be 1:2 or 1:3, this would limit these areas to no better
than ALC Grade 5 (very poor quality agricultural land) due to risk of
soil erosion and safe working limits of agricultural machinery (Table
1 of ALC Guidelines and Criteria7). Some of this area is currently
confirmed ALC Subgrade 3a (BMV). From the figures provided in
the soil resources report (Technical Appendix H) there appears to be
adequate topsoil (29,400m3) and subsoil (11,800m3 and 23,500m3)
available to restore the 7.73ha worked area (based on 300mm topsoil
and 400mm subsoil). The application provides no details on expected
base material, base ripping or a proposed aftercare scheme. It is the
responsibility of the mineral operator to design and implement a
high-quality restoration and aftercare scheme that must be an integral
part of any mineral extraction application (MTAN1 Para 97 and PPW
5.14.50). At this stage, it is not clear whether agriculture is an
appropriate after use for the quarry floor area, given the uncertainty
over drainage and practicality.

4. Expression of View:

The Department offers a Conditional Objection to the application on
the basis of the proposal’s inconsistency with PPW, MTAN1 and
TANG. Reasons:

* BMV agricultural land policy (PPW 3.58 & 3.59) has not been
addressed.

* The intended after use of the site (as defined in Schedule 5, 3 of the
1990 Act) is unclear.

* The application lacks details of an appropriate restoration and
aftercare scheme. It is the responsibility of the mineral operator to
design and implement a high-quality restoration and aftercare scheme
that must be an integral part of any mineral extraction application
(MTAN 97 and PPW 5.14.50).

Further Consideration: The Department would be pleased to

reconsider its position should further information be provided
addressing the deficiencies raised.

Page 39



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Biodiversity Unit:

Response received on 30.01.2024:

The application is unlikely to have a significant effect on the SAC
and therefore an appropriate assessment is not required.

Response received on 20/06/2023:

The extension will be within agricultural fields to the north of the
existing permitted Penygroes Quarry. There is approximately
298,000 tonnes of remaining permitted mineral on site. This gives an
approximate 3 year remaining lifespan based on extraction of
125,000 tonnes per annum. Based on geological investigations, it is
estimated that the proposed extension will release approximately
792,803 tonnes of additional sand and gravel.

Badgers

Badgers are protected in the UK under the Protection of Badgers Act
1992 and Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). | visited
the quarry in February 2023. | found an active badger sett within the
quarry and more signs of badger around the quarry. During my site
visit | was disappointed to see that the mitigation badger sett was in a
similar and worse condition than it was in 2019. Badger condition for
mineral permission C13/0217/22/MW in a letter discharging the
conditions for quarrying works under C19/0852/22/AC states that
repairs and enhancements are required for the badger mitigation sett
(condition 37). These have still not been completed. | would like to
see that the fence around the mitigation badger sett is repaired, and
the gate locked shut and that trees are planted around along the fence
that includes elder, hazel, damson, hawthorn and bramble. | would be
grateful if this was completed as soon as possible. The applicant has
provided a Badger Report by Kedd Ltd dated Feb 2023 the survey
found two outlier setts are in locations that are not currently required
for extraction works, and recommends that a 30m stand-off is to be
retained to ensure the protection of these setts. A licence from
Natural Resource Wales will be required to undertake works that will
destroy a badger sett. The artificial badger sett is to be retained
during the extent of the works. In addition, the quarry extraction will
observe a 30m stand-off from this sett and hedgerow planting is
recommended to be undertaken around the protection fence of the
sett. | continue to be disappointed that the mitigation badger sett has
not been enhanced. | would like a report as soon as possible detailing
enhancements made to the artificial replacement sett. | recommend
that this is completed before this planning proposal is determined.

Reptiles

The applicant has provided a Reptile Report dated July 2022 by
Kedd Ltd. No reptiles were recorded. However, | consider it likely

Page 40



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

that reptiles would be present and perhaps in March 2022 a Common
Lizard was found 58 meters from the quarry entrance on the opposite
side of the road on a style. The cycle track is 270 meters to the east
of the quarry and this is likely to have reptiles as is the wetland 240
meters to the west. | therefore recommend that it is assumed that
reptiles are present and the reptile report also recommends “Although
no reptiles were recorded during the surveys, it may be the case that
individual reptile species may move through the site commuting
from adjacent habitats. It is therefore recommended that all soil
stripping works for the proposals are conducted under Ecological
Clerk of Works (ECoW). The ECoW supervision will involve a
suitably qualified ecologist conducting a fingertip search prior to the
commencement of soil stripping works onsite. In addition, the
ecologist should then observe soil stripping works from a safe
distance and in the unlikely case that reptiles are observed, these
reptiles can then be safely translocated from the site boundary” I
agree with this.

Breeding Birds — Sand Martins

The soft cliffs of the quarry have sand martin colonies and the
Breeding bird Survey Report dated July 2022 produced by Kedd Ltd.
confirms that 29 sand martins were counted. Several other bird
species are possibly breeding on site including tree pipit and cuckoo.
A total of 25 species were recorded within the site during the
breeding bird surveys. The proposed development has the potential to
impact on four Red List Species (cuckoo, herring gull, grasshopper
warbler and tree pipit) and seven Amber List species (dunnock, song
thrush, rook, wren, whitethroat, woodpigeon and willow warbler).
The Brid Report recommends that the removal of any vegetation
should occur outside of the nesting bird season which usually takes
place from late February to late August. In the event that this is not
possible then all vegetation removal works should be preceded by a
survey conducted by a suitably qualified ecologist, in order to check
for nesting birds and to advise accordingly on the most appropriate
way to proceed. Mitigation should include the planting of scrub such
as bramble, hawthorn, blackthorn, elder and hazel as patches and
hedges. The Bird report recommends a sand martin wall to be
installed.

Cloddiau & hedges

The proposed extension area is agricultural fields with degraded
hedges (mainly gorse) and cloddiau. The applicant has provided a
PEA produced by Kedd Itd. The hedges and cloddiau on the site will
be destroyed by the quarry extension. To mitigate this it is important
that once quarrying is completed that hedges and scrub is planted.

Page 41



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Grasslands

Although the majority of the grasslands are agriculturally improved
there are area where they are semi-improved and support several
wildflower species. This habitat will be lost.

Wildlife Site

Wildlife Site: Minffordd South596 is a wetland to the west of the
quarry directly adjacent to the proposed extension. The quarry will
not be within the Wildlife Site but quarry may alter the flow of
ground water which could impact the Wildlife Site by reducing the
amount of water it receives. To ensure that this Wildlife Site |
recommend hydrological monitoring.

Hydrology

Hydrogeological Impact Assessment produced by Hafrenwater
November 2022. Sand and gravel extraction will be undertaken to
approximately 1 meter above the water-table. A small watercourse
and a spring are located close to the western boundary of the site, no
other sensitive water features or abstractions are present within 500
m of it. Groundwater monitoring indicates that water features located
immediately to the west of the site are partially groundwater-
supported. Wetland to the west of proposed quarry extension.
Extraction depths should not be deeper than the wetland to the west
of the site.

Bats

The applicant has provided a Bat Activity Report dated February
2023 produced by Kedd Ltd. Surveys took place on 11 dates in 2020
and 2022. Bat Activity Surveys recorded Common Pipistrelle,
Soprano Pipistrelle, Noctule, Myotis Bat (natterers and Daubenton’s)
Brown long eared. Bats were observed foraging within onsite pasture
and also along the quarry boundary and linear scrub patches on the
site. However, optimal foraging corridors were observed along the
marshy grassland to the west of the site and also along the woodland
to the north of the site boundary. The quarry extension will not cause
the loss of bat roosts. The extension of the quarry will result in a loss
of wildlife corridors and foraging habitats for bats. This must be
mitigated by shrub and hedge planting in the restoration of the
quarry.

HRA

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), Cyngor Gwynedd must
undertake an assessment, before deciding to give consent for a
project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC. The
applicant has provided information to inform a HRA produced by

Page 42



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Kedd Ltd. Dated Feb 2023 This HRA information assesses any likely
significant effects (LSEs) on the Corysydd Eifionydd / Eifionydd
Fens Special Areas of Conservation (SAC), Glynllifon SSSI and
Cors Llanllyfni SSSI. The Cors Llanllyfni SSSI is part of Corsydd
Eifionydd SAC is located approximately 1.2km to the south of the
quarry. This site is predominantly wet heathland found to have
internationally important moss species which include slender green
feather moss. The hydrological assessment conducted in February
2022 by Hafrenwater Report Reference: 3013/HIA concluded he
following, ‘as the mineral extraction will be undertaken entirely
above the water table, consequently, there will be no change in the
groundwater level resulting from mineral extraction’. This report
further states ‘As no development is taking place below the water
table, groundwater flow paths and elevations are predicted to remain
unchanged following restoration’. This report then concluded by
stating ‘As it is considered that there is no risk posed to the water
environment from the site post restoration, no mitigation measures
are considered necessary’. It is therefore assessed that there will be
no hydrological issues for any designated sites within 2km of the site
boundary. The Glynllifon SSSI & SAC is located approximately
1.1km to the north of the site boundary. Glynllifon is designated for
its population of Lesser Horseshoe Bats. No lesser horseshoe bats
were recorded foraging within the site during the 2020 activity
surveys and also within the automated static detector surveys. In
addition, no lesser horseshoe bats were recorded during the May and
June 2022 surveys and also during the May/June 2022 static detector
survey. The HRA report produced by Kedd concludes that the
proposed quarry extension will not have any likely, significant
effects on the Corysydd Eifionydd / Eifionydd Fens Special Areas of
Conservation (SAC), Glynllifon SSSI and Cors Llanllyfni SSSI; and
I agree with this conclusion.

Restoration & Biodiversity Enhancement

The Environment Act (Wales) 2016 places a duty on all public
bodies to enhance biodiversity and ecological resilience. The
restoration plan shows that one field will be a species rich grassland.
The details of how this is created and managed will be required. |
recommend that a condition states that within 2 years of permission
being granted that a biodiversity management plan be provided that
details management for 25 years and must included traditional hay
meadow management that excluded livestock from April until
September to allow flowers to set seed and provided a nectar source
for pollinators, and that the hay is cut and baled. Livestock grazing
levels must be suitable for the enhancement of biodiversity. The
restoration plan includes two ephemeral ponds, hedge planting and
clawdd reinstatement. | recommend that the hedges are wide to
create substantial wildlife corridors and are at least 2meters wide.
Pole mounted bat boxes. | recommend that the restoration plan

Page 43



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Gwynedd Archaeological
Planning Service:

include a cliff for nesting sand martins or Vivara Pro Sand Martin
Wall as recommend in the Bird Report, reptile habitat suitable for
hibernation. The applicant has provided a biodiversity metric, but
this is not applicable to Wales. | recommend that an amended
Restoration Plan is provided before this proposal is determined. It
must be more detailed and include all the recommendations in the
ecological reports. Recommend Planning Conditions:

1. Restoration — Before works for the extension of the quarry any
works take place a final Restoration Plan must be submitted. It must
include features for bats, reptiles, badgers, sand martins and habitats
such as wildflower meadow, cloddiau, hedges, tree planting and
pools and habitat management plan. Restoration must be completed
to the satisfaction of the LPA.

2. Nesting Birds — Vegetation, shrub, tree clearance must not take
place within the bird nesting period (1st March until 31st August)
unless it can be proven in writing that such works will not damage
nesting birds. Quarry faces with Sand Martin colonies must be not be
damaged while birds nesting.

3. Reptiles — Removal of hedges and cloddiau and soil stripping must
only take place under supervision of an ecologist.

4. Hydrology monitoring of Wildlife Site wetland and extraction
depths and ground water levels. The hydrological monitoring reports
must be provided to the LPA each quarter.

Response received on 13/12/2023:

Thank you for the above consultation. Having reviewed the submitted
information, this appears to be unchanged (in terms of archaeology
and cultural heritage) since the pre-application consultation in
November 2022. The Council was copied to our response to the PAC
(our ref. 0105je/D3590.02, 5th January 2023), but I have attached a
further copy for ease of reference.

Two key points raised in our PAC response were that the Heritage
Impact Assessment (HIA) did not meet professional standards for an
archaeological desk-based assessment and that post-excavation work
arising from the trial trenching had not been undertaken and needed
to be completed in order to understand what had been found. These
points remain unaddressed. While the role of the HIA in the planning
process has to some extent been superseded by the subsequent field
evaluation, the post-excavation work (specifically radiocarbon
dating) is important. Besides the risk of samples degrading, the dates
of features may determine their importance and will inform on the
potential for further associated evidence. We

Would therefore advise that this should be completed as soon as
possible, regardless of the decision, in order to adhere to professional
standards and conclude this phase of work.

Page 44



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The application documents make various statements to the effect that
extensive archaeology is unlikely to be present, or that the proposed
development would not have a significant archaeological impact.
These assertions are not supported by the evaluation results or by
previous fieldwork in comparable locations. The evaluation has
demonstrated the presence of archaeological remains at the site, the
most significant of which is the probable later prehistoric enclosure
(PRN 96890), which may reasonably be regarded as of

at least regional importance (based on similar examples in the
region). This is located in the south-western corner of the Phase 2
area, extending into the existing consented area and a proposed
screening bund. As such, the proposed development will result in
substantial or total loss of this enclosure and any associated features.
In the Phase 3 area, a gully possibly denoting a small settlement was
recorded, and it is likely that additional deposits and pit-type features,
which have not been identified by the work to date, will be present.
These again may be provisionally expected to be of up to regional
significance.

In light of the above, and in accordance with Planning Policy Wales
11 (February 2021) and TAN24: The Historic Environment (May
2017), it is recommended that, should the minerals planning authority
be minded to grant planning permission, an appropriate programme
of archaeological mitigation should be required. The following
wording is suggested to secure such work:

(i) No development (including site clearance, topsoil strip or other
ground works) shall take place until a written scheme of investigation
for archaeological work has been submitted by the applicant (or their
agent or successors in title) and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and all
archaeological work completed in accordance with the approved
written scheme of investigation.

(ii) A detailed analytical report on the archaeological work required
by condition (i) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
within 12 months of completion of archaeological fieldwork. The
report must be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reasons: 1) To ensure the implementation of an appropriate
programme of archaeological mitigation in accordance with the
requirements of Planning Policy Wales 2021 and TAN24: The
Historic Environment.

2) To ensure that the work will comply with MORPHE/Management
of Archaeological Projects (MAP2) and the Standards and Guidance
of the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists (CIfA).

Page 45



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The archaeological mitigation programme should entail the
archaeological strip, map and record of the site in advance of
development activity, with full excavation of any remains identified
and subsequent post-excavation stages as appropriate to the
discoveries made. The investigation area should include the extent of
intended extraction and ancillary activities with a 2m buffer, so as to
record any archaeological deposits that would be impacted upon by
temporary or permanent landscaping, soil management, and general
construction/operational activity. If the archaeological mitigation will
be completed in stages connected to the phases of extraction, each
stage must be reported separately. This is to prevent loss of evidence
through environmental decay and to ensure that the results are
promptly entered into the public domain. The local planning authority
may wish to modify the above suggested wording to allow the
condition(s) to be discharged in phases as the development
progresses: | am happy to discuss such an approach if needed. Please
do not hesitate to contact me with any queries regarding the above.

North and Mid Wales Trunk 2" Response received on 23/01/2024:
Roads Agency:

I refer to your consultation of 15/01/2024 regarding the above
planning application and advise that the Welsh Government as
highway authority for the A487 trunk road does not issue a direction
in respect of this application.

15' Response received on 12/05/2023:

I refer to your consultation of 215t April 2023 regarding the above
application and advise that the Welsh Government as highway
authority for the A487 trunk road directs that planning permission is
not granted at this time as the applicant has provided insufficient
information to determine the application. The applicant must provide
the following information to support this application or resubmit the
application with the following details;

1. The increase in vehicle movements will, as noted in one of the
reports, increase at the junction to Cefn Graianog Quarry (Postcode
LL54 6SY). At this junction there are quarry signs which may be in
verge that is adopted highway, developer must therefore review if
this land is adopted highway and propose alterations to signage if so
(land ownership details not applicable). Developer must also submit
proposals for this access to demonstrate how vehicles exiting the
trunk road has priority over the cattle grid towards the quarry to
vehicles coming from the quarry. This is so that large vehicles do not
hamper free flow and visibility of the trunk road at this junction due
to the development.

Page 46



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Health and Safety Executive:

Language and Scrutiny Unit

Public Consultations:

No response received.

2" Response received on 11/01/2024:

The applicant is encouraged to secure Welsh or bilingual signs on the
site. There is no solid evidence to support the positive economic
view. We would like to direct the developer to the website of the
Welsh Language Commissioner and the Welsh Offer in order to
assist them in creating a Language Scheme

1t Response received on 19/12/2023:

In order for the Unit to be able to offer a fair and balanced opinion on
the application, we encourage the applicant to use the latest data that
is now available from the 2021 census, and include a more detailed
analysis, for example, by age groups for the study area.
Consideration should be given to resubmitting the updated
assessment before submitting the application to a committee.

The applicant is encouraged to secure Welsh or bilingual signs on the
site.

There is no solid evidence to support the positive economic view.

We would like to direct the developer to the website of the Welsh
Language Commissioner and the Welsh Offer in order to assist them
in creating a Language Scheme.

A notice was placed in the press, notices were placed in several
locations close to the site and nearby residents were informed. The
advertising period has expired, and comments were received noting;

e Signage for the quarry refers to the site as ‘Penygroes
Quarry’ in English only that is contrary to Welsh language
policies of the Welsh Government and Gwynedd Local
Authority.

e Concerns about the assessment of potential impact of the
quarry operations on local air quality.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations

Principle of development

5.1 The principle of a lateral extension to an existing mineral operation is based on Strategic Policy
PS 22 and policy MWYN 3 of the JLDP which support such developments to maintain the plan
area’s landbank. Strategic Minerals Policy PS 22, Policy MWYN 2 and Policy MWYN 3 of the
Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011 (JLDP). Policy PS 22 states that the
council will contribute to the continuous regional and local demand for a supply of minerals by

Page 47



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.2

5.3

54

maintaining a minimum 7-year land bank of Sand and Gravel and 10 years land bank of crushed
rock aggregate reserves in line with national guidance.

The aim of Policy MWYN 2 is to provide ‘Preferred Areas’ to maintain a future provision (of
mineral extraction to meet the need of the industry. The proposed extraction extension area falls
entirely within an identified preferred area for supply of sand and gravel. The purpose of this
policy is to facilitate the additional provision of sand and gravel reserves to meet the identified
shortfalls highlighted by the North Wales Regional Technical Statement.

Policy MWY N 3 states that support will be given to mineral developments to maintain the plan
area’s landbank where it can be demonstrated that the proposal complies with the following
criteria;

1. There is no unacceptable harm to the amenity or health of local residents in terms of visual
impact, levels of dust, noise, vibration, and light as a result of the operation itself or the
resulting traffic movements;

2. There is a suitable buffer between mineral development and sensitive development;
3. There is no unacceptable harm to the stability and support of adjacent land;
4. The development is sensitively screened and landscaped;

5. The development will not have a significant adverse impact on sites of international,
national, regional or local environmental, nature conservation, landscape and /or heritage
importance;

6. The proposal does not sterilize or otherwise prevent the working of other significant mineral
deposits;

7. There is no unacceptable harm to land drainage groundwater and water resources;

8. The proposal ensures that the potential use of the resource is maximised and there is
satisfactory disposal of any waste arising from the mineral operation;

9. Where blasting is proposed, the proposal includes a scheme of blasting to demonstrate that it
can be controlled to meet the conditions detailed in Mineral Technical Advice Note MTAN
(Wales) 1: Aggregates, or any amendments;

10. The proposal includes a scheme for the after use of the site and details of the restoration
and aftercare required to achieve it in accordance with Policy MWYN 9;

11. Wherever economically feasible, mineral waste or products should be transported by rail or
water.

Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 (PPW) integrates the Welsh Government’s planning policies
for minerals development which were previously set out in Minerals Planning Policy Wales
(2001). In accordance with the requirement of PPW 11, Gwynedd Council as the Mineral
Planning Authority has a duty to ensure that mineral resources are exploited in a sustainable way
so that they can make an appropriate contribution to the area’s construction materials
requirements. The key principles noted in the section 5.14 (Minerals) of the PPW are;

Provide positively for the safeguarding and working of mineral resources to meet society’s needs
now and in the future, encouraging the efficient and appropriate use of high-quality materials;
ging pprop gh-quality p age 48



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e Protect environmental and cultural characteristic of places, including those highly cherished for
their intrinsic qualities, such as wildlife, landscapes, ancient woodlands and historic features, and
to protect human health and safety and general well-being;

¢ Reduce the impact of mineral extraction and related operations during the period of working by
ensuring that impacts on relevant environmental qualities caused by mineral extraction and
transportation, for example air quality and soundscape, are within acceptable limits; and

e Achieving, without compromise, a high standard of restoration and aftercare so as to avoid
dereliction and to bring discernible benefits to communities, heritage and/or wildlife, including
beneficial after uses or opportunities for enhancement of biodiversity and the historic
environment.

e Amongst other objectives, Planning Policy Wales recognises that mineral working is different
from other forms of development in that extraction can only take place where the mineral is found
to occur, and that the development is transitional and cannot be regarded as a permanent land use
even though operations may occur over a long period of time.

5.5 Gwynedd Council, along with all of the Welsh Authorities have endorsed the Regional Technical
Statement (RTS) produced by the North Wales Regional Aggregates Working Party
(NWRAWP). The statement has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Minerals
Planning Policy (Wales) and Technical Advice Note (Wales) 1: Aggregates (MTANL), to set out
an overarching objective to ensure a sustainable managed supply of aggregates;

5.6 “.... S0 that the best balance between environmental, economic and social considerations is
struck, while making sure that the environmental and amenity impacts of any necessary
extraction are kept to a level that avoids causing demonstrable harm to interest of acknowledged
importance”.

5.7 The main purpose of the Regional Technical Statement is to set out the strategy for the provision
of the aggregates in the North Wales region. The 2021 RTS identified an existing permitted
reserve of sand and gravel in Gwynedd of 1.175 million tonnes (an equivalent of 6.7 years
landbank) with a shortfall of shortfall and minimum allocation needed to meet required provision
of 2.659 million tonnes.

5.8 The proposed extension would release around 792,803 tonnes of sand and gravel in addition to
the 298,000 tonnes remaining within the existing permitted extraction area (giving a total of 1.1
million tonnes extracted from the site). Therefore, the proposal will provide additional mineral
and a reduction in the shortfall in existing reserves landbank within the plan area as required by
Strategic Policy 22: Minerals, MWYN 2 and MWYN 3 of JLDP. In addition to the principle of
the need for the development, the essential planning issues in this case are addressed in the
following chapters.

Visual amenities and landscape

5.9 The Cae Efa Lwyd site is located immediately west of Penygroes with the proposed extraction
area extending northwards. The application does not fall within any landscape designations and is
area predominately characterised by the village of Penygroes to the East enclosed agricultural
land and scattered dwellings. Nearby landscape designations include the ‘Nantlle Valley’
Landscapes of Outstanding Historic Interest (LOHI) (60m east), Special Landscape Area of the
‘North Western fringes of Snowdonia’ (900m east), Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
(2.3km south west), UNESCO World Heritage Site ‘Slate landscapes of North West Wales’
(2.8km east).

Page 49



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.10 A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been included within the submitted
Environmental Statement. As mentioned above the site does not fall within any statutory
landscape designations but entirely is located entirely within the Caernarfon Coast & Plateau
Landscape Character Area (LCA) which extends from Clynnog in the south to Bangor in the
north. The area comprises of rolling pasture between the coastal lowlands and rising foothills of
Snowdonia, separated by shallow west-flowing valleys with field boundaries consisting of a mix
of woodland, stone walls, and hedges in varied state of repair.

5.11 Inaddition to these designated landscape assets, the LVIA has incorporated the undesignated
landscape assets of the area surrounding site within the assessment. Prior to assessing any
potential impact on the landscape, the current value, sensitivity and susceptibility of these sites
has been determined.

5.12  The primary landscape effects and changes from the development will include gradual reduction
in land level, mobile operating in quarry, 5m high soil screening bund along eastern boundary,
restoration of site to ground below original levels and to a wildlife enhanced agricultural land.

5.13  The LVIA has identified receptors in the immediate surrounding areas will receive the greatest
adverse effect, specifically, during the operational period. This is due to the progressive
extraction of mineral that will alter the landform. Areas from higher ground will also be affected
during operational period, however, the combination of distance and broad panoramic from these
areas will reduce the magnitude of effect.

5.14  Drawing ‘No. KD.PEN.D.0O06A’ details the concept restoration scheme of the site to agricultural
land and wildlife habitat. The scheme incorporates;
« Undisturbed grazing land;
* Reinstated grazing land;
« Agriculturally managed Species Rich Grassland;
* Native tree and shrub planting;
 Ephemeral surface water Ponds; and
« Native hedgerows / hedgerow trees and reinstated Clawdd/Cloddiau.

5.15 The LVIA also states that the post restoration level of visual impact will be neutral or beneficial
with no adverse view to receptors.

5.16 A conceptual restoration scheme has been produced indicating intention to reinstate agricultural
land and wildlife habitat. This will include undisturbed and reinstated grazing land, species rich
grassland, native tree and shrub planting, water ponds, hedgerows and cloddiau. The vehicular
access will be retained for agricultural and land management access and the site will be subject to
a 5-year aftercare and management plan.

5.17  Concerns have been raised by the Soil Policy & Agricultural Land Use Planning Unit (Welsh
Government) about the practicality of restoring the site to the Most Versatile (BMV) Agricultural
Land and issues relating to ground water. Matters surrounding ground water have been resolved
and are discussed below in the Hydrology chapter.

5.18  The Soil Policy & Agricultural Land Use Planning Unit consider that the land is considered
Grade 3 (a and b) in the Agricultural Land Classification to be the appropriate standard of land in
this case and 0.81ha of the this is to be lost. Paragraph 3.59 of the PPW states “When considering
the search sequence and in development plan policies and development management decisions
considerable weight should be given to protecting such land from development, because of its
special importance. Land in grades 1, 2 and 3a should only be developed if there is an overriding

Page 50



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

need for the development, and either previously developed land or land in lower agricultural
grades is unavailable, or available lower grade land has an environmental value recognised by a
landscape, wildlife, historic or archaeological designation which outweighs the agricultural
considerations. ”

5.19  Asdiscussed above, there is an overriding need for the development to occur to meet demand (as
supported by local and national planning policies) as mineral can only extracted can only take
place where the mineral is found to occur. The Soil Policy & Agricultural Land Use Planning
Unit have provided a schedule of conditions for agricultural conditions restoration and
agricultural aftercare.

5.20  Itis considered therefore that, subject to a detailed restoration scheme and scheme of aftercare to
be agreed under planning condition, there will be sufficient mitigation for the potential visual &
landscape impacts of the development and complies with the requirements of Strategic Policies
PS 19, PS 20 and Policies AMG 3, MWYN 3 & MWYN 9 of the Gwynedd & Mon Joint Local
Development Plan.

General and residential amenities

5.21  Policy MWYN 3 of the JLDP states that extensions to existing mineral sites will be acceptable
subject to no unacceptable harm to the amenity or health of residents in terms of visual impact,
levels of dust, noise, vibration, and light as a result of the operation itself or the resulting traffic
movements.

522 MTAN 1 Wales; Aggregates recognises that there is often a conflict between mineral workings
and other land uses and has established the principle of buffer zones around permitted and
allocated mineral extraction sites. The objective of a buffer zone is to protect land uses that are
most sensitive to the impact of mineral operations by establishing a separation distance. MTAN 1
further recommends that a minimum distance of 100 metres should be adopted for sand and
gravel extraction sites and that development plans should indicate the boundary of a buffer zone
for each mineral working.

5.23  Both Minerals Planning Policy Wales and MTAN1: Aggregates have established the principle of
buffer zones around mineral extraction sites, where the objective is to protect land uses that are
most sensitive to the impact of mineral operations by establishing a separation distance between
potentially conflicting land uses. Sensitive development is defined in MTANI1 as; “any building
occupied by people on a regular basis and includes housing areas, hostels, meeting places,
schools and hospitals where an acceptable standard of amenity is expected”. A buffer zone is
defined from the outer edge of the operational area, including site haul roads and lagoons.
MTAN1 recommends a minimum distance of 100 metres for sand and gravel operations and
others where no blasting is permitted.

5.24  The Welsh Government have taken the stance that unless there are justifiable reasons for reducing
this distance, the buffer zones should be adopted. At this particular site, the existing permitted
workings were subject of a ROMP (agreed/permitted in 2017) that raised issue that there was a
clear conflict with national and local planning policy in respect of the buffer zones. Residential
properties are located within 100m of the original workings, however, the principle of quarrying
the site had already been established through grant of planning permission. The proposals subject
of this application intend to extend the site in a northernly direction, away from residential
properties and outside of the 100m buffer zone. Given the separation distance, and the evidence
to demonstrate that site already operates without detriment to amenity, under the terms of
planning conditions and/or environmental permits it is considered that the proposal complies with
policy PCYFF 2 and MWYN 3.

Page 51



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

Issues relating to noise, vibration and air quality are discussed in further detail below.

Noise and vibration

The noise assessment submitted has considered the operational noise associated with the
proposed development to extend the site and the noise impacts to the nearest sensitive receptors at
a worst-case scenario of all activities operating concurrently. These results have then been
compared against the noise limits set out in the guidance.

A Dbaseline sound survey was undertaken over a continuous period including weekdays and
weekends at the nearest noise sensitive sites. The assessment undertaken has considered both
extraction operations and the transporting of material from site. The assessment concludes that
based on a limit of 10dB(A) (above prevailing background noise in line with MTAN 1 guidance)
the predicted noise levels would have an impact level and significance of effect of ‘None’.
Section 4.2 of the assessment numerous mitigation measures so as to reduce or alleviate any noise
generated on site, these include;

Activities within the site would be undertaken in locations where noise attenuation from existing
landforms would maximise the benefit to the noise-sensitive properties; avoid unnecessary
rewving of engines and switch off equipment when not required;

Internal haul routes would, wherever possible, be routed such that separation distances to the
noise sensitive properties is maximised;

Use rubber linings in, for example, chutes and dumpers to reduce impact noise;

All haul roads would be kept clean and maintained in a good state of repair to avoid unwanted
rattle and “body slap ”” from vehicles;

Start-up plant and vehicles sequentially rather than all together;

All mobile plant and heavy goods vehicles entering the site will move in a circular pattern to
minimise, as far as is practical and safe, noise from reverse warning systems;

Plant would be operated in a proper manner with respect to minimising noise emissions, for
example, minimisation of drop heights and no unnecessary engine revving;

Plant would be subject to regular maintenance.

All plant at the site would be fitted with effective exhaust silencers and would be maintained in
good working order to meet manufacturers’ noise rating levels. Defective silencers would be
replaced immediately;

Plant that is used intermittently, would be shut down when not in use; and

Pumps, generators and compressors would be located behind existing screening mounds or
landform, would be electrically powered and fitted with an acoustic cover where necessary.
Diesel powered pumps, generators and compressors, if used, will be installed within acoustic
enclosures.

Consultation was undertaken with the local authority’s Public Protection Unit for comments on
the contents of the assessment and proposal. They accept the conclusion of the assessment subject
of conditioning the mitigation measures, use of white noise reversing alarms and retention of the
acoustic barrier and bund along the south eastern boundary of the site.

Subject to the appropriate conditions it is considered that the proposal complies with the relevant
policies of MWYN 3 and PCYFF 2 of the JLDP.

Page 52



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

5.35

5.36

5.37

Air Quality and dust

Air quality impacts (specifically dust) deriving from operations associated with the proposed
extension on local receptors have been assessed in chapter 9 of the ES and accompanying dust
impact assessment. The dust impact assessment has assessed the potential impacts from
particulate matter arising from onsite operations with regard to PMio and PM..s particulate matter.

The assessment concludes that there is little potential for the proposed operations to cause a
breach in air quality standards.

Concerns were raised by Public Health Wales regarding management of air quality however, the
local authority’s Public Protection Unit have been reviewed the contents of the dust impact
assessment and agree with its conclusion of negligible effects. Conditions relating to an updated
‘Dust Monitoring and Control Scheme’ following specific levels of air quality, limits on dust
nuisance, air quality monitoring/dust survey in the event of complaints, wheel wash facility and
sheeting of vehicles (laden with mineral less than 100mm dimension).

Subject to the appropriate conditions it is considered that the proposal complies with the relevant
policies of MWYN 3 and PCYFF 2 of the JLDP.

Traffic matters and Public Rights of Way

Policy TRA 4 of the JLDP states that “Proposals that would cause unacceptable harm to the safe
and efficient operation of the highway, public transport and other movement networks including
pedestrian and cycle routes, public rights of way and bridle routes, will be refused. The degree of
unacceptable harm will be determined by the local authority on a case-by-case basis. ”

The site would continue to utilise the vehicular access developed under planning permission
C17/0455/22/LL with a proposal to increase the maximum rate of HGV loads leaving the site to
25 (from 20 currently conditioned). The loaded HGVs will transport an average payload of 20
tonnes to Cefn Graianog Quarry where the material will be processed. The site’s vehicular access
is onto Ffordd Clynnog (a class 3 Highway) that links to the A487 Trunk (approximately 380m
distance).

Cyngor Gwynedd’s Transportation Unit have confirmed that they do not object to the proposed
increase in daily traffic movements. The North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency (NMWTRA)
originally placed a holding direction on the application to the location of a sign on a highway
verge and junction arrangements (near Nasareth) from the A478 Trunk Road and unclassified
road to Cefn Graianog Quarry. Although the site (Cae Efa Lwyd) operator/applicant intend to
carry the mineral for processing at the Cefn Graianog site, there is no guarantee or requirement
specifying the next destination of the extracted material (nor can this be conditioned). The
NMWTRA confirmed on the 23/01/24 that they no longer issued a direction in relation.

The closest Public Right of Way (PROW) to the site is PRoW Llanllyfni 37 that skirts around
north-eastern corner of the application boundary. Consultation with the PRoW officers confirmed
that they are of the opinion that no routes will be affected by the proposal.

Page 53



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.38

5.39

5.40

541

542

543

To this end, it is considered that the proposal poses no risk to the highway network and
accessibility of footpaths and complies with Strategic Policy PS 4 and TRA 4 of the JLDP.

Hydrology and Hydrogeology

The application has been accompanied by a Hydrological Impact Assessment (HIA) and Flood
Consequences Assessment (FCA).

During the initial consultation period Natural Resources Wales (NRW) raised concerns regarding
compliance with working above the water table and surface water runoff. Further information
shared by the agent via e-mail on the 16/10/2023 confirmed the existing groundwater monitoring
is undertaken by a network of boreholes. The agent confirmed that during operations, ground
level pegs and levels boards are set in the ground to ensure that work remains at approved levels
and have offered to supply annual topographical surveys to ensure that approved levels are
adhered.

The HIA supplied by Hafren Water confirmed that operational and restoration landform will
slope inwards to ensure retention of surface water runoff in addition to the 1m of sand and gravel
retained above the water table retained that will act as a soakaway. NRW have confirmed that the
additional information submitted is acceptable and are satisfied that any effects from the
development can be controlled by inclusion of a condition(s) and advise that any breaches should
be reported immediately to the LPA and NRW.

The Environmental Statement (supplemented by the HIA), states that mitigation measures for
accidental spillages to watercourses will include;

Fuel will not be stored on-site. Fuel bowsers will only be on-site to facilitate refuelling and will
be double skinned and/or bunded;

All plant will be maintained in accordance with best practice and manufacturer's specification.
Where possible, all maintenance will be undertaken off-site;

Written procedures will be in place for responding to accidental spillages of hydrocarbons,
which will minimise the risk to the environment. A copy of the Safe System of Works is
presented in Appendix 3013/HIA/A4 of Technical Appendix F.1; and

Spills kits will be available for use on-site in the unlikely event that a spillage occurs.

Previous mitigation measures conditioned as part of the agreed ROMP will be reinstated for the
proposed extension. These include;

A small bund established around the periphery of the site will contain any surface water to
within the quarry and which will be allowed to dissipate and drain naturally through the in situ
mineral via a soakaway whilst the site is in operation. The soakaway will be retained as part of
the restoration proposals within the north western void of the quarry which will provide an
ephemeral water body with additional advantages for wildlife.

A drain will be installed alongside the access roads to contain the run off from the road.
Appropriate measures will be put in place to ensure that the fuel stores, leakages from
machinery or any other sources of pollution are controlled to ensure that pollution does not
reach ground water.

Fuel will not be stored on site. All fuel will be transported from Cefn Graianog in a bowser
when required. Ellesmere Sand and Gravel have a set procedure for refuelling. The fuel
bowser will be; double skinned, can be securely locked, has an on-board spill kit, auto stop
nozzle fitted, does not have a drain fitted to either the inner or outer tank and can therefore

only be emptied by pumping. Page 54



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

¢ Only minor maintenance / servicing of plant and machinery will be carried out at Penygroes.
All major work would be removed to Cefn Graianog and tasks performed there where the
facilities are located.

5.44  Additionally, NRW’s statutory guidance on pollution prevention measures include;

¢ Plant and wheel washing to be carried out in designated hard standing area at least 10m from any
watercourse or surface water drain.

e Run off to be collected in sump and recycled and reused if possible.

e Settled soils to be removed regularly.

o Discharge of contained water to foul sewer where possible with prior permission from local
sewerage provider.

5.45  The site is located within ‘Zone A’ of the Development Advice Maps (DAM) contained within
Technical Advice Note 15 Development and Flood Risk (TAN 15). Zone A is described as
“Considered to be at little or no risk of fluvial or tidal/coastal flooding” and a justification test is
not applicable.

5.46 Itis considered that the any surface and ground water issues can be managed accordingly subject
to the relevant conditions and complies with the requirements of policies MWYN 3 and PCYFF 6
of the JLDP.

Ecological and biodiversity matters

5.47  The site does not fall within any ecological/biodiversity related designations and is primarily
comprised of agriculturally and semi-improved lowland grassland. The closest protected sites
include Wildlife Site ‘No. 596 Minffordd South’ immediately west of the site, Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC) ‘Glynllifon’, located
approximately 1km north and SSSI ‘Corsydd Llanllyfni’ and SAC ‘Corsydd Eifionydd’ located
1.2km south.

5.48 Technical documents submitted with the accompanying ES include; Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal, Breeding Bird Survey Report, Reptile Survey Report, Bat Activity Survey Report,
Badger Survey Report, Habitats Regulations Assessment and Biodiversity Net Gain Report.

5.49  The council’s ecologist noted that during an inspection in February 2023 a mitigation badger sett
subject of a previous planning permission was in a poor state of repair and requested that works
to provide fencing, locked gate and tree planting around the badger sett be completed. In July
2023 this work to replace the fencing and gate around a vacant artificial sett was carried out and a
specification of proposed planting and monitoring was provided. The Badger Survey Report
submitted found two outliner badger setts located beyond the extraction areas and a
recommended 30m standoff will be implemented for their protection.

5,50 Reptiles were not recorded during the survey of the site. The Council’s Ecologist advises that
although reptiles were not recorded, it should be considered likely that this does not guarantee
their absence (as there are recent records of reptiles in the surrounding area). The report
recommends that as there is potential for reptiles to be moving through the site to adjacent
habitats, that all soil stripping works is conducted with a suitably qualified ecologist conducting
fingertip search prior to works and translocate any reptiles found beyond the site. The council’s
ecologist has confirmed agreement with this approach. Pa ge 55



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.51

5.52

5.53

5.54

5.55

5.56

5.57

5.58

The Breeding Bird Survey Report has confirmed that 25 species of breeding birds were counted
and recommends the removal of vegetation outside of the nesting season (February-August). If
this approach is not possible, then it is advised that vegetation removal should proceed subject to
surveys by suitably qualified ecologist to check for nesting bird and advise works accordingly.
Mitigation measures proposed include a Sand Martin wall, planting of scrub (Bramble, Hawthorn,
Blackthorn, Elder and Hazel) as patches and hedges.

Various bat species were recorded during the Bat Activity Surveys observed onsite and along the
boundaries. The extension to the site will not result in the loss of bat roosts but will result in the
temporary loss of wildlife corridors for foraging bats. Mitigation recommendations are for shrub,
hedging and cloddiau to be reinstated during restoration.

Whilst the restoration concept for the site provides scope for rough grazing and biodiversity, it is
considered that a detailed scheme of aftercare should be submitted for the approval of the mineral
planning authority prior to the commencement of development on site to specify the best use of
soil resources on site together with aftercare, soil handling and husbandry of the restored area.
Restoration plan should include compensation measures for the impact of the development
proposals on biodiversity including badgers, reptiles, invertebrates, lowland acid grassland &
sand habitat and restoration of cloddiau & hedgerows.

Other conditions will include a restriction of vegetation, shrub, and tree clearance to avoid nesting
periods, removal hedges and cloddiau to be undertaken with the supervision of qualified ecologist
and hydrology monitoring of wildlife site ‘No. 596 Minffordd South’ wetland, extraction depths
and ground water levels to be provided on a quarterly basis.

On 7™ February 2024, the Welsh Government published an update to Chapter 6 of Planning
Policy Wales (PPW), which deals with green infrastructure, net worth to biodiversity, the
protection afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and woodlands. The changes to
PPW have been considered, however, in this case, they do not raise any new matters that have
any material influence on the recommendation.

In consideration of the above, the proposal is acceptable subject to the appropriate mitigation
measures and complies within policies AMG 5, AMG 6, PS 19 of JLDP and TAN 5.

Habitats Regulation Assessment

Under regulation 63 of the Habitats and Species Regulation 2017 the applicant has provided a
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) as the proposal is within approximately 1.2km of the
SSSI “Corsydd Llanllyfni’ and SAC “Corsydd Eifionydd / Eifionydd Fens’ and 1km of the SSSI
and SAC of “Glynllifon’.

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended), Cyngor Gwynedd must undertake an assessment, before deciding to give consent for a
project which is likely to have a significant effect on the designations. The Biodiversity Unit have
screened the proposal and concur that there are not likely significant effects (LSE) on any of the
qualifying habitats within the SAC or SSSI from the water environment as extraction is to be
above the water table, surveys indicated an absence of bat activity at the site and cumulative
effects with other nearby developments.

Page 56



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.59

5.60

5.61

5.62

5.63

5.64

5.65

5.66

Archaeology and cultural heritage

Policies PS20 and AT 1 of the JLDP and TAN 24: The Historic Environment places a duty on
local authorities to assess the impacts of new developments on heritage assets and archaeological
matters. Chapter 10 of the ES addresses Archaeology and Cultural Heritage and supporting works
including a Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA), Geophysical Survey and Trial Trenching has
been undertaken.

A desk-based survey (include within the HIA) has been undertaken to identify designated
heritage assets in the vicinity of the application area, the closest being Cae Efa Lwyd farmhouse
and cowshed (Grade Il Listed Buildings), Eglwys Sant Rhedyw (Grade Il Listed Building),
Penybryn Mawr standing stone (Scheduled Ancient Monument). The HIA concludes that the
proposal will not have adverse impact on any designated heritage features in the vicinity.

In accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) the Geophysical Survey was
conducted to assess the archaeological resource within the proposed development area. The
chapter provides potential mitigation measures including identification and recording of
archaeological features within the proposed extraction area and to avoid the prehistoric circular
enclosure entirely.

Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service (GAPS) have reviewed the submitted information and
have provided comments and recommended conditions. As outlined in their response to the pre-
application consultation process, there were concerns that the HIA did not reach a professional
standard for an archaeological desk-based assessment. Additionally, the assertion that ‘extensive
archaeology’ is unlikely to be present is not supported by the evidence submitted. There is
presence of archaeological remains (specifically a potential for prehistoric enclosure and small
settlement) that are located partially within the extraction area.

GAPS do not object to the application subject to the following conditions being imposed (if
minded granting permission);

Submission of written scheme of investigation for archaeological work prior to the development
implementation (extension) and work completed in accordance with submitted scheme.
Submission of detailed analytical report of the archaeological work required by 1% permission
with 12 months of completion of works.

Subject to these conditions and mitigation measures, it is considered that the proposal will have
no significant impact on designated and undesignated heritage assets and therefore, complies with
policies PS20, AT 1 and AT 4 of the JLDP.

The Welsh language

Criterion 1 (a) of strategic policy PS 1 'The Welsh Language and culture' notes that a Welsh
Language Statement will need to be provided with a proposed "retail, industrial or commercial
development which employs more than 50 employees and/or has a floor area of at least 1,000 m
Sg. or more".

In response to this need, the applicant has provided a Welsh Language Statement. Chapter 6 of
the statement has assessed the potential effects of the developments on the language and
community based on language and population movement; visual elements; quality of life and
community infrastructure; employment.

Page 57



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.67

5.68

5.69

5.70

571

5.72

5.73

5.74

Chapter 7 of the statement concludes that there is an established workforce at Cae Efa Lwyd (and
Cefn Graianog Quarry) that are Welsh speakers. The proposal would help sustain and operations
and maintain the current workforce and there is no requirement of an inward migration of
workers.

A single objection was received during the course of the public consultation in relation to the
signage of the quarry. The signage in question refers to the site as ‘Penygroes Quarry’ exclusively
in English. Criterion 5 states that “The Councils will promote and support the use of the Welsh
language in the Plan area. This will be achieved by... Expect that Welsh names are used for new
developments, house and street names ”.

Further guidance is provided in C31 of the SPG ‘Maintaining and creating distinctive sustainable
communities’ that state’s; “criterion 5 of Policy PS 1 encourages developers to use Welsh place
names for developments, new house and street names in order to strengthen the linguistic
character of communities... Using a new name that derives from historical, geographical or local
links to the area would be a good idea. If the existing name is an original one or has been the
name of the property for a number of years, particularly if it is a Welsh one, the Council will ask
the applicant to reconsider the new name, even if the proposed new name is a Welsh one.
However, the final decision lies with the owner.”

Given that the application site’s name (Cae Efa Lwyd) is linked with nearby historic Cae Efa
Lwyd Fawr farmhouse, it is considered reasonable to request the applicant to consider this to be
displayed as the sites name. Alternatively, if this is not agreed then a condition requiring the
display of Welsh version of the site’s name will be placed on the permission.

The Council's Language Unit have given comments recommending that the site uses bilingual
signage and that they do not consider there to be no evidence of a positive economic view. Based
on the nature of the application and evidence to hand, it is not considered likely that the proposal
would have a negative impact on the Welsh Language. It is therefore considered that the proposal
conforms with policy PS 1 and the guidance contained within the SPG Marinating and creating
distinctive and sustainable communities.

The economy

Technical Advice Note 23, Economic Development states; in determining planning applications
local planning authorities need to bear in mind that traditional business use, classes B1-B8, only
account for part of the activity in the economy. It is important that the planning system recognises
the economic aspects of all development and that planning decisions are made in a sustainable
way which balance social, environmental and economic considerations. It further states that;
Local planning authorities should recognise market signals and have regard to the need to guide
economic development to the most appropriate locations, rather than prevent or discourage such
development.

The proposal is critical to supply additional mineral to Cefn Graianog quarry. The company
makes a direct and significant contribution to the local economy and direct/indirect employment
as a result of quarry operations. Furthermore, the retention of a local workforce has positive
impacts on the culture and more specifically, the status of the Welsh Language in the region.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposal would make a positive impact of the economy of the
area and accord with policy PS 13 of the JLDP and TAN 23.

Page 58



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.1

ok wnE

© ®

11.
12.
13.
14.

Conclusion:

This is an application for an extension to the extraction area of the Cae Efa Lwyd sand and gravel
pit. As discussed above, the principal of a lateral extension and increase in HGV movement from
the site is acceptable and supported by local policies MWYN 2, MWYN 3 and PS 22 of the JLDP
and nationally by MTAN 1.

Due to the location, scale and well-established controls regarding noise, dust and environmental
matters it is considered that it is unlikely for the development to result in any adverse effect to
visual and residential amenities.

The main ecological issues relate to mitigation measures to protect badgers, nesting breeding
birds and reptiles. Both NRW and the local authority’s Biodiversity Unit have confirmed that the
proposal is acceptable subject to relevant conditions will ensure compliance with policy AMG 5
of the JLDP and TAN 5.

Conditions relating to archaeological works will ensure that the proposal is adequately mitigated
against causing detrimental harm to heritage assets or designations, therefore, complying with
policies PS 20, AT1 and AT 4 of the JLDP.

The development will result in an increase of 5 HGV loads per day (to a total of 25). No
objections have been raised in relation to the increase of HGV movements from the site and the
access arrangements. It is considered that the proposal will have no effect on highway safety or
proposed highway. The proposal therefore complies with TRA 4 of the JLDP.

The development would have a minor positive impact on the Welsh language by securing and
maintaining employment locally and it is considered that the proposal complies with policy PS 1
of the JLDP.

The proposed development, therefore, complies with all relevant planning policy and
considerations and it is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.

Recommendation:

To delegate powers to the Head of the Environment Department to approve the application,
subject conditions relating to the following:

5-years

Duration of works — 10 years at 125tpa

In accordance with plans

Restriction of GPDO rights for buildings, structures, private ways, floodlighting, fencing etc.
Copy of determination and approved plans to be shown at site office.

Restriction to 125,000 tonnes per annum removed from site at a maximum rate of twenty-five
(25) HGV loads per day.

Surface of site access to county highway to kept clean and no mud/debris to be deposited on
highway.

No materials shall be imported to site (Refuse or waste materials).

Mark boundary of site and mineral extraction zones.

. Hours of working. No operations on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank & Public Holidays other

emergency, servicing, maintenance.

All loaded vehicles to be sheeted or treated to avoid emission of dust.
Record of traffic.

No processing on site.

Noise limits and noise limits in relation to temporary operations.

Page 59



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

15. Noise mitigation measures.

16. Acoustic fencing retained and bunding retained.

17. Vegetation, topsoil, subsoils to be stored in acoustic screening bund.

18. Noise monitoring.

19. Air quality limits and Air quality monitoring.

20. Dust mitigations measures and updated dust monitoring and control scheme.

21. Boundary of mineral extraction area temporarily fenced.

22. Groundwater monitoring.

23. Detailed Submission of written scheme of investigation for archaeological work.

24. Submission of detailed analytical report of the archaeological work required by WSI.

25. oration plan.

26. Storage/management of soils.

27. No soils to be removed from site and kept in to be employed in restoration.

28. Soil storage mounds to be kept free from weeds.

29. Submission of restoration and 5-year aftercare plan.

30. Restoration subject to 5-year aftercare and monitoring scheme.

31. Ripping of ground to avoid compaction.

32. Correct sequence and spread of soils in restoration.

33. Chemical analysis of soils during restoration.

34. No livestock to be kept until land is of an acceptable condition.

35. Annual review of operations and aftercare.

36. Revised scheme of restoration to be submitted to the LPA in the event of premature cessation of
mineral extraction for a period of 12 months.

37. Mitigation measures for badgers, breeding birds, reptiles.

38. Restriction on removal of vegetation during bird nesting season.

39. RAMs to protect reptiles during demolition of walls and field boundaries.

40. Pollution prevention measures.

41. Collection and disposal of water to restrict release to water environment.

42. Compliance with surface water management plan.

43. Condition to identify the site by its Welsh name

Page 60



“Cae Uchat 7
yroAll e s ‘

4{
W LY
% !‘5 '

SN X sk TP
S Taleithind ). (Jis).ﬂ*

7%




T 1l dinl 88 Lo
‘ Ll

LR g [
\Eo

s
ﬁ :I L e
Penygroes

LEGEND

Proposed Application Site Boundary
(13.49 Ha)

Proposed Limit of Mineral Extraction
(~7.62 Ha)

- Existing Woodland / Hedgerows
E Buildings & Roads

Contours (5m intervals) & Spot Heights
(m aOD})

I:l Agricultural Grazing Land within the Site
Permitted Quarry & Access
(~3.32 Ha)

99.0

PROJECT:

Penygroes Quarry

TITLE:

Context Plan

REF NO:

KD.PEN.D.007

DATE: SCALE:
January 2022 1:5,000 @ A3 ‘
STATUS:

FINAL N

This drawing may not be used without the consent of Kedd Development Limited
Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL
® Cro s

Grown copyright and database rights [2017] Ordnance Survey 0100031673




Penygroes Quarry . S : ) R 7 : =1 Current Situation |EER=el=\[s]
7 : ! ¥ I : Lt . pre
p . DA ‘ ; 4 ) A H | Proposed Application Si
J B . . - . : - ! 8 posed Application Site Boundary
Y/ S e 0
i : ’ H e - “ - R - Existing Woodland / Hedgerows
E Buildings & Roads
Contours (1m intervals) & Spot Heights
oD
l:l Agricultural Grazing Land within the Site
Permitted Quarry & Access
(~3.32 Ha)

05/04/23

DERBYN - Adran Cynllunio Pwllheli

o

Bodriala

Existnig 3m to 5m Soil
Storage / Screening Bund

1 ks

PROJECT:

Penygroes Quarry

TITLE:
Current Situation

REF NO

KD.PEN.D.004

DATE: SCALE:

J July 2022 1:2,500 @ A3 ‘
RN o 5 W STATUS:

N .
E RN FINAL N

This drawing may not be used without the consent of Kedd Development Limited
Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL

® Grown copyright and database rights [2017] Ordnance Survey 0100031673




—-

Penygroes Quarry 7 s A Vs ' : ppe—_{, W= Phase LEGEND

Phase 1 Operations:

Permitted Mineral E Proposed Application Site Boundary
5 . . (13.49 Ha)
« Phase 1 represents the currently permitted area of the quarry. . B O e - l ' ¢

5 . |

! o S ] l:l Phase 1 Exiraction Area (Remaining Mineral)
» There are no further soils to be stripped. ‘ . f - e T g .
A\ &

Restoration formation levels will be achieved along the western A P =" A, Bac - II' Direction of Working
boundary of Phase 1 - 5 1] [ y e

Temporary Soil storage / Screening Bunds
"As dug" mineral to be transported by HGV to Cefn Graianog ] R Y 7 R Lo Y [
Quarry for processing and onward sale. / . N AR WL 2 . l:l f::;\osm(siznr::m::;m:?aﬁn?mﬂm
J o v . i.e. il g
placement of soll profile)

All land witin the site is to be managed and maintained
y Contours (1m intervals) & Spot Heights (m aOD)

05/04/23

DERBYN - Adran Cynllunio Pwilheli

Phase 1 Restoration

/ 5
Area: Formation Levels !

Permitted '
Operational Area

PROJECT:

Penygroes Quarry

. - ™ TmE:
2m High Soil Storage / — ———— Phase 1

Screening Bund Existing Site Access
/] - REF NO

KD.PEN.D.011A

DATE: SCALE,

Jan 2023 1:2,500 @ A3 ‘

2 d STATUS:
PHASE  Soils / Overburden | As Dug ‘ Waste / Silt | Mineral | Mineral (ST) FINAL N
(m?) Mineral (m?)  10% (m?) (m? 1.8 Conversion
| | This drawing may not b used without the consent of Kedd Development Limited

i [ e Rpe) | s Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL

ight and database rights [2017] Ordnance S 00031673

@ Crown cop




Penygroes Quarry

The proposals are for an extension of mineral extraction to the existing

| Penygroes Quarry

# The extension is required to enable the on-going supply of mineral,

to allow for a balanced supply of mineral products / blending

materials from Penygroes and Graianog Quarries, to meet building
{ construction supply needs and for the non-sterilisation of mineral.

The extension will be within agricultural fields to the north and west

of the existing permitted development.

There will be no initial increase in vehicle moevements (for 3 to 4

years), whilst Penygroes mineral is blended with mineral from
Graianog Quarry.

"As dug" mineral will be transported from the quarry to Tudor
Griffiths Gralanog Quarry, where it will be processed and then
transported to point of sale.

Mineral will only be worked dry i.e. there will be no extraction
below the ground water table.

L

/= 2m High Soil Storage /
Screening Bund /
Integrated Landform

The remaining permitted mineral on Site is: ~ 298,000 tonnes.

Processed sales of this mineral is based upon 100,000 tonnes per
annum (~3 years remaining life).

8 There is a similar tonnage remaining at Graianog Quarry. Post this 3 to
4 year period, all mineral and sales will be based upon mineral supplied
from Penygroes. The extension will release ~ 792,803 tonnes of Sand

and Gravel.

Itis impo tant to note that during this period, all existing mitigation
measures will remain in place e.g. the eastern screening bund and no
right tuin rom the quarry for HGV vehicles. New mitigation measures
will inct-++-4 additional screening and wildlife enhancement measures.
All restored land will be placed in Aftercare and Managed

N i

B 2m High Soil Storage /

Screening Bund

7

Permitted

Operational Area
i \
\

Existing Site Access

Block Propoéals

— 1 -
3m High Soil Storage /
Screening Bund

5m High Soil Storage / ¥
Noise Attenuation Bund

B Ciynop  Cynnog

s

Plan

Materials Audit

Soils / Overburden ‘ As Dug
{m?) Mineral (m’) | 10% (m?)
10,581 (in store) 158,181 15,818 142,363 | 256,253
7.651 ‘ 167,301 16,730 | 150,571 | 271,028
13,847 250,133 25,013 | 225,120 | 405,215
14,001 (partially in store) ' 97,720 9,772 87,948 ' 158,308
46,060 673,335  [67,334 | 606,002 | 1,000,803

Waste / Silt | Mineral ‘ Mineral (ST)
(m?) 1.8 Conversion

LEGEND

Proposed Application Site Boundary
(13.49 Ha)
Progressive Phased Mineral Extraction
(Phases 1 to 3)
I:l Phase 4 - Final Working & Restoration Area
II’ Direction of Working

Temporary Soil storage / Screening Bunds

Contours (1m intervals) & Spot Heights (m aOD)

Please Note: the Site will be worked and restored
progressively so that at any one point in time, approximately,
only one quarter of the Site area will be disturbed

05/04/23

DERBYN - Adran Cynllunio Pwllheli

PROJECT:

Penygroes Quarry

TITLE:
Block Proposals Plan

REF NO:

KD.PEN.D.005A

DATE: SCALE:

Jan 2023 1:2,500 @ A3 ‘

STATUS:

FINAL N

This drawing may nol be used without the consant of Kedd Development Limited
Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL

o ht and dat Ordnan: v 673




Penygroes

K4

Quarry

7T B Propos—c;d Limit & Base of

i

Cae-Efa-Lwyd-Fawr
i

A

Extractio

_

LEGEND

Proposed Application Site Boundary
(13.49 Ha)
Proposed Limit of Mineral Extraction
(~7.73 Ha)
- Existing Woodland / Hedgerows
E Buildings & Roads

Contours (1m intervals) & Spot Heights
(m aOD)

I:l Agricultural Grazing Land within the Site

Base of Extraction Levels (m aOD)

Average Thickness of Mineral (metres)

Please Note: this scheme refiects the permitted scheme, which
allows for the extraction of mineral from beneath the soil
screening bunds to the eastern boundary of this Site.

05/04/23

DERBYN - Adran Cynllunio Pwllheli

KED

Limited

PROJECT:
Penygroes Quarry

TITLE:
Proposed Limit & Base of Extraction

REF NO:

KD.PEN.D.008

DATE: SCALE,

January 2022 1:2,500 @ A3 ‘

STATUS.
This drawing may not be used without the consent of Kedd Development Limited

Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL

@ Crown copyright and database rights [2017] Ordnance Su 00031673




enygroes Quarry

Mineral Extraction and Restoration Sections

Eastern Screening / Noise Attenuation Bund
Existing Landform & Phase 4 Mineral Extraction

Restoration Landform

SECTION A-A' metres
- Eastern Screening / Noise Attenuation Bund
Existing Landform & Phase 4 Mineral Extraction
B B'
g~ e
H —_—— Restoration Landform
- —_—_/—_—_—’__/_K |
3 2 i B i i H H ] i 2 H H i 3 i
SECTION B-B' melres
Existing Landform Eastern S:re_aninngn\sa_Auenualmn Bund
& Phase 4 Mineral Extraction
< Restoration Landform c
T T T T —
- —
?
: 1 i 2 i i H H : i H i H i H H i
SECTION C-C' melres
Screening Bund & Phase 4
D Mineral Extraction D'
% - Restoration Landform T T — =
g 1 H H] H H H H H i H i H i H H i i
SECTION D-D' meires

69 abed

LEGEND

E Current Topographical Levels (mAOD)
E Base of Extraction (mACD)

; Restoration Landform Levels (mAOD)
m Screening Bunds / Phase 4 Extraction

See Drawing No. KD.PEN.D.006A for Section
Locations

05/04/23

DERBYN - Adran Cynllunio Pwllheli

&

KED
Limiiad
PROJECT:
Penygroes Quarry
TITLE:

Mineral Extraction and Restoration Sections

REF NO.

KD.PEN.D.017A

DATE: SCALE:

Jan 2023 1:2,500 @ A3 ‘
STATUS:

FINAL N

This drawing may not be used without the consent of Kedd Development Limited
Fox Studio, Much Wenlock, Shropshire TF13 6BL
v i e [2 a

tand databa:



















Agenda Item 5.2

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 2

Application C22/0952/17/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 01/02/2024

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llandwrog

Ward: Groeslon

Proposal: Demolition of existing sheds and erection of two livestock

sheds together with associated facilities and milking
parlour, creation of landscaping bund and associated
works.

Location: Land at Glynllifon College, Llandwrog, LL54 5DU

Summary of the
Recommendation:  TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 75


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=330238

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 This is a full application to demolish existing sub-standard agricultural sheds and replace them
with two livestock (sheep) sheds together with associated facilities, milking parlour, landscaping
bund and associated works on one hard-standing area of the agricultural holding of Glynllifon
College to the south of the main education centre. The proposal can be split into several elements
as follows: -

e Demolish the existing sub-standard structure which includes two agricultural sheds used
for lambing and to shelter sheep as well as a pheasantry.

e Erect a building for a sheep milking parlour and area to keep 300 sheep which measures
43m in width, 56m in length with a height of 8.4m (2,105 m2) to the ridge. Internally,
the building will include an office, equipment room, freezer, milking parlour, concrete
paths for feeding, stores, changing rooms and a processing area. Externally, the building
will be covered with profile corrugated steel to the roof; walls to include Yorkshire
boarding, profile steel covering, concrete panels and natural stone to be reclaimed from
the existing structure if possible; timber windows and doors to be confirmed.

e Erect a building for lambing which measures 16m in width, 30m in length with a height

of 6.5m (480m2) to the ridge. Internally, the building will include a water store together
with 11 folds measuring 30mz2.

o Erect a feed silo adjacent to the northern elevation of the milking parlour (details to be
agreed).

e Create a parking space for lorries near the feed silo.

e Create a service and turning area for vehicles to the west of the proposed structure.
o Provide a fold to treat sheep between the two proposed buildings.

e Provide car parking spaces to the west and to the north-east.

e Create a 1m high clawdd/bund and plant an indigenous hedgerow on it to the south-east
of the site.

o Install lighting on the external elevations of the proposed buildings.
o Fell some trees where the new structure is located.
o Biodiversity enhancements by providing boxes for swallows, bats and sparrows.
o |tis proposed to use the existing private road network within Glynllifon to serve the site.
1.2 The site is located adjacent to several grade 11* Fort Williamsburg listed buildings/structures and
is within the grade | Registered Historic Park and Gardens of Glynllifon by CADW. It is also
noted that it is located close to the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation and the Glynllifon

Site of Special Scientific Interest. The Afon Llifon Wildlife Site is located approximately 600m
to the west of the site.

Page 76



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

In order to support the application, the following documents were submitted:

Design, Access and Planning Statement;

Bat Survey Report;

Archaeological Assessment;

Pre-application Consultation Report;

Heritage Impact Assessment;

Pheasantry Building Record,;

Biodiversity Risk Assessment and Management Plan;
Arboriculture Impact Assessment;

Arboriculture Report and Restrictions;

Drainage Strategy;

Energy Conservation Statement;

Preliminary Ecological Assessment;

Preliminary Roost Assessment;

Sheep Shed Construction Details;

Ecology Impact Assessment and Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment.

Following the statutory consultation as part of the Planning process, additional information was
received on 16 June 2023 and 18 October 2023 which included the following documents along
with changes to elevation plans, landscaping and ecological plans that addressed the impact of the
development on protected species:

e Update to the Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) (June 2023)
e Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) (January 2023)

As part of the Planning process, discussions in terms of managing protected species and
Biodiversity mitigation plans have been an important point. Note that, as part of the discussions,
new mitigation areas have been submitted since the beginning of the application. To this end,
amended plans were received on 1 February 2024 indicating that the location of the application’s
red line had changed. Therefore, the additional ecological matters have been included within a
developed area of this planning application where it will be possible to control.

It was confirmed that the applicant had undertaken a pre-application consultation in accordance
with the requirements of Article 1 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Development Control
Procedure) (Wales) (Amendment) 2016, as the proposal is defined as a major development. A
Pre-application Consultation Report (PAC) has been included with the application to reflect this
consultation.

The development is described as an agricultural and aquaculture development project under
Schedule 2, Regulation 2(1) of Town and Country Planning Regulations (Environmental Impact
Assessment) (Wales) 2017, which means that the application will need to be screened. To this
end, the application has been screened but considering its scale, nature, as well as mitigation
measures, no Environmental Impact Assessment will need to be submitted with this current
application.

Page 77



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.1

2.2

2.3

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (LDP) adopted 31 July
2017: -

PCYFF 1 - development boundaries

PCYFF 2 — development criteria

PCYFF 3 - design and place shaping

PCYFF 4 - design and landscaping

PCYFF 5 - carbon management

PCYFF 6 - water conservation

ISA 1 - infrastructure provision

ISA 3 - further and higher education developments

PS 1 - the Welsh language and culture

PS 4 - sustainable transport, development and accessibility

PS 5 — sustainable development

PS 19 - conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
PS 20 - preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets
TRA 2 - parking standards

TRA 4 - managing transport impacts

AMG 5 - local biodiversity conservation

AT 1 - conservation areas, world heritage sites and landscapes, parks and registered historic
gardens

Page 78



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and Creating Unique and Sustainable

Communities.

Gwynedd Design Guidance (2003).

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature Conservation and Planning.

TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities.

TAN 12: Design.

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language.

TAN 24: The Historic Environment.

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 There is no relevant planning history to this particular site.

4, Consultations:

Community/To  Support the application.
wn Council:

Transportation No response.
Unit:

Page 79



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Natural
Resources
Wales:

(Due to the number of responses and length of observations, NRW's final
observations are shown only, previous observations can be viewed on the Council
website via the track and trace system.)

21/12/23 Observations

We continue to have concerns about the application as submitted. However, we are
satisfied that these concerns can be overcome by attaching the following conditions to
any planning permission granted:

CONDITIONS 1-2; PROTECTED SITES
CONDITION 3: CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
PLAN (CEMP)

We also advise, based on the information submitted thus far, that the documents
noted below (Protected Sites section) should be included in the approved plans and
documents conditions on the decision notice. Without including the condition and
documents, we would object to this planning application:

Special Area of Conservation (SAC) Protected Sites - The proposal is located within
75m of the Glynllifon SAC. We have concerns that a significant effect from the
proposed development on the Glynllifon SAC (designated feature: lesser horseshoe
bat, Rhinolophus hipposideros) cannot be ruled out. We note the submission of the
following documents in support of this application and these address many of our
concerns detailed in our previous response, dated 03/08/2023 (ref:
CAS-221751-79S1):

Proposed External Lighting (WSC-WSP-XX-XX-DR-E-63 0001KC T04
WSP). 12/09/2023

Proposed Landscape Plan (WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-0001A)WSP
18/05/2022

Proposed Site Ecology Features ) WSC WSP 00 ZZ DR A 900002) WSP
08/09/2022

Bat Cavity Roosting (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 770001) WSP 30/03/2023
Zone 1 Section A-A, F-F, G-G, H-H, and J-J (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A
063001)WSP.25/07/2022

Zone 1 Proposed GA Elevations Sheet 2 - East and West (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ
DR A 062003 P02) 22/07/2022.

Zone 1 Proposed Elevations (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 062001 P02) WSP
22/07/2022

Proposed Sections - Welsh Sheep Centre (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 050009
P05) WSP.23/03/2022

Proposed Elevations - Welsh Sheep Centre (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 050008
P06) WSP22/03/2022

Zone 1 Sheep Farm Proposed Ecology Plan (WSC WSP Z1 00 DR A
061008) WSP .12/09/2022.

Bat Loft Box Plan, Elevations and section (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 770002)
WSP 18/09/2023

We welcome the additional proposals, including:

The incorporation of a dedicated bat loft suitable for Lesser Horseshoe Bat
(LHBS) in the larger building.
+ Bat boxes and openings including bat cavity roosting boxes. These appear
to be well planned and located.
Page 80



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

* The external lighting is an improvement on the existing situation and we
welcome it. Downward pointing 2700K, motion activated external lighting
will be a great improvement for bats and other wildlife. We note that all the
College lighting is being audited and upgraded by the Dark Skies Project and
welcome the College’s cooperation in this project.

* The removal of non-native rhododendron and replanting with native, shade-
tolerant species to replace the under-storey, which will provide improved,
dense future habitat for LHBs forage and dispersal.

We recommend that the hedges are maintained ‘above’ 2m as the desired height.
Ideally, at a height of 3m, and 3m wide at the base, to form robust, sheltered flight
lines for bats. We also recommend that other hedges within the farm are allowed to
grow to this size as well to enhance the area for the benefit of bats.

We also recommend that suitable wetland tree species (e.g. alder & willow) should be
sparsely planted in the proposed wetland meadow. This would create a better habitat
more suitable for bats at an earlier stage and would be easier to manage in the long-
term. To secure the mitigation measures identified in the above information, we
advise that the above reports must be included in the ‘approved list of
plans/documents’ condition within the decision notice should consent for the project
be granted. However, we advise that long-term management of habitat features is also
secured and we therefore advise that the conditions and obligations set out below are
attached to any future planning permission for this development. Provided the
development is carried out in accordance with those conditions, and with the detail
described in the documents listed above we do not consider that it will adversely
affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC.

Conditions:

Condition 1: No development, including site clearance, shall commence until the
submission

of a Long-term Management Plan (for a duration of no less than 25 years). The
Management Plan should include:

» Defined aims and objectives (including targets that can be used as key
performance indicators for monitoring purposes);

* Habitat management and roost maintenance prescriptions;

» Details of the extent and timescales of any tree works proposed, and how
the natural range of LHBs is to be maintained at all times.

« Site liaison, wardening, incident reporting and response arrangements;

» Detail of the skills and competencies required by those undertaking
identified works (including building maintenance) or activities (including
surveillance) including whether they require European Protected Species
licenses for the activities proposed,;

+ Submission of a Post Construction Monitoring and Record Dissemination
Plan over a (minimum) 25 year period. This scheme shall include
surveillance methodologies, timescales and reporting requirements. The
approved monitoring scheme shall include monitoring artificial lighting
during construction and operational phases of the scheme.

» Periodic review mechanism for the Management Plan.

Condition 2: No development, including site clearance, shall commence until the
submission of an Ecological Compliance Audit (ECA) scheme to the satisfaction of
the Local Planning Authority. Owing to the importance of the site for bats, we ad\lgsg1 ge

81



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

that ECAs are carried out by an external party.

The purpose of the ECA is to evidence compliant implementation of all ecological
avoidance, mitigation and compensation works, either proposed or subject to the
provisions of reserved matters conditions. The Audit shall identify Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) that are to be used for the purposes of assessing and evidence
compliance. The approved scheme shall include specific KPI’s in respect of lighting.
We also advise that a night-time audit of the lighting post-construction is conducted
to ensure lighting is working as proposed.

Planning Obligation: We advise that any subsequent planning consent is subject to
the requirement for an appropriate planning obligation (Unilateral
undertaking/Section 106 Agreement) to ensure the long-term functionality of the site
for bats in respect of defined “red”” and “blue” land. The applicant may wish to amend
the red line boundary so as to incorporate all the proposed mitigation, which may
avoid the need for a planning obligation.

Provisions of the plan to include:

(a) Long-term dedication of identified red and blue land specifically for
bat conservation purposes;

(b) Long-term restrictions on the future use of the identified land
including relinquishment of future development rights to land
proposed for long term bat conservation purposes;

(c) Review and update of the Management and Monitoring Plan every 6
years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the SNCB.

The Management and Monitoring Plan reviews and updates every 6 years to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the SNCB. As the
competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to give consent for a project
which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or
in combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives. You
must for the purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have regard to any
representations we make within such reasonable time as you specify. In the absence
of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not result in an
adverse effect upon the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site.

Shadow HRA - We note that the 2023 Update for the Shadow Habitats Regulations
Assessment (HRA) has been submitted for the Glynllifon Welsh Sheep Centre and
Dairy Development Projects. We note that it states:

“The Rural Economy Hub currently risks causing adverse effects alone and
mitigation of the current proposals is unlikely to be sufficient, which is likely to
preclude it from being permitted. It is also anticipated to take place at a later stage
than these developments and is not yet permitted so where the proposals for that
development indicate loss of woodland and hedgerows, this is not confirmed and is
unlikely to be permitted and so is not a consideration for this in-combination
assessment at this time.”

We agree that the proposal risks causing adverse effects alone and that the proposed
mitigation is likely to be sufficient. We advise that as the Competent Authority, you
consider whether the Rural Economy Hub constitutes a Plan or Project under the
Habitat Regulations 2017 (as amended) and whether its potential in-combination
effects on Glynllifon SAC and the LHBs it supports with the dairy development
application. The proposal should be considered as part of your HRA.
Page 82



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

We note the 5-year felling plan included in the Shadow HRA. We have concerns
regarding the potential impact of this work. The shadow HRA shows a considerable
area of woodland within the SAC to be worked within a five-year period. The
information on tree felling and the impact from the tree works within this document is
unclear. The LHBs SAC feature is dependent on having access to the woodland and
hedgerows within the SAC, and the wider environment, for foraging and commuting.
Therefore, any reduction in these habitats will directly impact the LHBs. It’s crucial
that the overall woodland (and hedgerows) is not reduced and that commuting routes
are maintained at all times.

Five years is also too short a time to allow for sufficient regrowth before additional
sections are felled. We note that section 8 of the shadow HRA states:

‘the natural range of lesser horseshoe bats is unlikely to be reduced by these
proposals once all the mitigation is in place as planned, the planting matures
and the bats have had chance to adapt to the new landscape and connective
features (if they indeed can and do)'.

Please see the 3rd bullet in the Long-Term Management Plan condition above. Any
felling work may require a felling license and/or NRW assent.

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to give consent
for a project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC/SPA/Ramsar site,
either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate
assessment of the implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation
objectives. You must for the purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have
regard to any representations we make within such reasonable time as you specify. In
the absence of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not
result in an adverse effect upon the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site.

Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) - NRW consider the proposals have the
potential to impact upon the Glynllifon SSSI. Providing the impact pathways
referenced above for the SAC are adequately addressed, NRW consider the features
of the SSSI will also be adequately safeguarded. We would welcome an on-site
meeting with the developer to discuss our concerns and also the long-term
management of the SSSI and opportunities to work in partnership.

Bats - We note that the ecological report submitted in support of the above
application (Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) and Preliminary Roost
Assessment (PRA) Report Glynllifon Welsh Sheep Centre. Capita. 15 July 2022) has
identified that bats are present at the application site (lesser horseshoe bat). From the
information submitted, we consider that the proposed development is likely to
represent a higher risk for bats, as defined in our guidance document ‘Natural
Resources Wales Approach to Bats and Planning (2015)'".

Bats and their breeding and resting places are protected under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Where
bats are present and a development proposal is likely to contravene the legal
protection, they are afforded, the development may only proceed under
licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, having satisfied the three tests set
out in the Regulations (please also refer to Paragraph 6.3.7 of Technical
Advice
Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning). Please note, for the purposes of
providing advice at the planning application stage, our comments are limited
to the test relating to “demonstration of no detriment to the maintenance of
the favourable conservation status of European protected species”.

Page 83



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Please see our detailed comments above relating to protected sites. Provided those
measures described are implemented, we consider that the proposed

development is not likely to be detrimental to the restoration or maintenance to
favourable conservation status for each local population of bat that has been recorded
within and in the environs of the application site.

Great Crested Newts - Section 4.6.12 of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal
regarding the pond on site states: “The HSI results for the pond at TN3 are in the
table below, indicating a ‘good’ scoring for potential to support great crested newt .
It goes on to state: “An attempt to collect eDNA on 21 June 2022 was aborted as the
pond had largely dried up with a thick layer of silt present (Photograph 45).” Great
Crested Newts and their breeding sites and resting places are protected under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). The Pre-
Application Consultation Report (October 2022; Cadnant Planning; ref:
2019.176_05) confirms: “The ecological reports have been updated to confirm that
the proposal does not propose to discharge into the pond, only into the rushes around
it, therefore there would be no detrimental effect on GCNs.” We therefore have no
comments to make in relation to this aspect as submitted. Please consult us again if
any survey undertaken finds that Great Crested Newts are present at the site, and you
require further advice from us.

Otter and Water Vole - We agree with the conclusions in respect of these species.
Natural Resources Wales would refer the Planning Authority to the letter from the
Welsh Government to the Chief Planning Officer’s letter dated 1 March 2018 which
advises Local Planning Authorities to attach an informative regarding licence
requirements to all consents and notices where European Protected Species are likely
to be present on site.

Barn Owl - We note that the amended plans show the proposed Barn Owl box will
now be fixed to a robust tree trunk at least 3m high, facing east, away from buildings
and prevailing winds. We welcome this, however we advise that any planned Barn
Owl provision should be as far as possible form any planned bat access points and not
a minimum of 3m, as described. Keeping these 2 species separate is essential to avoid
predation of the bats. We are satisfied that the protected species survey has been
carried out to an acceptable standard. Given the nature and scale of the development,
we are in overall agreement with

the conclusions in the Report and concur that a survey for breeding Barn Owls would
need to be conducted prior to demolishing the existing sheds, so as to avoid adverse
impacts.

Foul Drainage - Having considered the further details submitted, (Response to
Planning Consultation Feedback NRW - Welsh Sheep Centre) we raise no further
concerns regarding this matter. However, if a private drainage solution is to be
progressed, the Applicant will need to apply for an Environmental Permit from us. It
is important to note that a grant of planning permission does not guarantee that a
permit will be granted, should a proposal be deemed to be unacceptable (either
because of environmental risk or because upon further investigation, a connection to
mains sewer was feasible). The Applicant is therefore advised to hold pre-application
discussions with our Permitting Team on 0300 065 3000, at the earliest opportunity,
to try to ensure that there is no conflict between any planning permission granted and
the permit requirements.

Pollution Prevention - We would advise that the following condition is included to
any planning consent granted for the proposals.

Page 84



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Condition 3: No development or phase of development shall commence until a
Construction
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The Construction Environment Management Plan
should include the following:
« Construction methods: details of materials, how waste generated will be
managed;
* General site management: details of the construction programme including
timetable, details of site clearance; details of site construction drainage,
containments areas, appropriately sized buffer zones between storage areas
(of spoil, oils, fuels, concrete mixing and washing areas) and any watercourse
or surface drain.
« Biodiversity Management: details of tree and hedgerow protection; invasive
species management; species and habitats protection, avoidance and
mitigation measures.
« Soil management: details of topsoil strip, storage and amelioration for re-
use.
» CEMP Masterplan: details of the extent and phasing of development;
location of
landscape and environmental resources; design proposals and objectives for
integration and mitigation measures.
+ Resource management: details of fuel and chemical storage and
containment; details of waste generation and its management; details of water
consumption, waste water and energy use.
« Traffic management: details of site deliveries, plant on site, wheel wash
facilities.
« Pollution prevention: demonstrate how relevant guidelines for pollution
prevention and best practice will be implemented, including details of
emergency spill procedures and incident response plan.
» Details of the persons and bodies responsible for activities associated with
the CEMP and emergency contact details.
« Landscape/ecological clerk of works to ensure construction compliance
with
approved plans and environmental regulations.

The CEMP shall be implemented as approved during the site preparation and
construction phases of the development. Justification: A CEMP should be submitted
to ensure necessary management measures are agreed prior to commencement of
development.

Drainage Plan - In our Statutory Pre-Application Consultation response, we noted
that section 3.2.2 of the Proposed Drainage Strategy (July 2022; Capita) explains that
a storage tank to collect dairy washings would be used. We advised that the formal
planning application should provide further clarification on the number of days’
storage that would apply. We note that the Proposed Drainage Strategy (September
2022; Capita) 3.2.2 now states: “The drainage connected by manholes discharge into
a small holding tank for 2 weeks before being pumped and tankered away to be
distributed across the local fields as specified by operators.” We also noted the sheep
are to be located on hardcore rather than concrete. We advised that further detail
should be provided on how the sheds would be cleaned out.

Section 3.2.2 of the Proposed Drainage Strategy now states: “The milking ewes and
lambs will be housed on straw bedding. The bedding will be collected as Farm Yard
Manure and either stored under cover or taken directly to a temporary field site, in

Page 85



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

accordance with The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales)
Regulations 2021”. Any manure produced should be managed (storage and
application to land) in line with the Water Resources (Control of Agricultural
Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021 and Code of Good Agricultural Practice
guidance. Transition periods apply for manure management and further guidance is
available here: The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales)
Regulations 2021 Guidance for Farmers and Land Managers (gov.wales).

Groundwater - We refer the developer to the Environment Agency (2017) 'Approach
to groundwater protection' position statements which have been adopted by Natural
Resources Wales. In particular, the developer should be aware of the position
statements in Section G "Discharge of liquid effluents into the ground” and H
"Diffuse (rural) sources of pollution™.

Ancient Woodland - The application site is adjacent to Plantation on Ancient
Woodland Sites. Please refer to our Advice to planning authorities considering
proposals affecting ancient woodland.

31/1/2024 Observations

Thank you for consulting Natural Resources Wales (NRW) on your Habitats
Regulations Assessment for the above development, which we received on
16/01/2024.

Our response should be taken as NRW's formal representation, as the appropriate
nature conservation body, to your appropriate assessment (AA) (HRA. Emily
Meilleur. under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017, as amended.

In consideration of the mitigation measures detailed we agree with your conclusion
that the development is unlikely to have an adverse effect upon the integrity of the
Glynllifon Special Area of Conversation.

Welsh Water: No observations to offer.

Public No response.
Protection Unit:

Gwynedd Although they confirmed that the Pheasantry Report, for an archaeological recording

Archaeological  purpose, is acceptable based on statutory requirements, details of a programme of

Planning archaeological recording will still need to be approved by the Local Planning

Service: Authority within 6 months to complete the fieldwork in the form of a planning
condition.

Page 86



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

CADW: Although the development does not involve additional improvements to the grade 1*
listed building (Fort Williamsburg), considering the location and setting of the
existing structure, along with the content of the Heritage Impact Assessment
submitted with the application, CADW has no objection to the proposal.

The additional landscaping that has been included as part of the amended plans is

welcomed.
Water and Since 7 January 2019, sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are needed to control
Environment surface water for every new development of more than 1 house or where the
Unit: construction area with drainage obligations is 100m2 or more. Drainage systems must

be designed and constructed in accordance with the minimum standards for
sustainable drainage as published by Welsh Ministers.

These systems must be approved by Cyngor Gwynedd in its role as SuDS Approval
Body (SAB) prior to commencement of the construction work.

Due to the size and nature of the development, an application will need to be made to
the SuDS Approval Body for approval before construction work commences. The
information provided shows that the developer intends to drain the site in a suitable
sustainable manner; however, until an application is made to the SAB, there is no
certainty that the site plan would enable compliance with the full suite of national
SuDS standards. Early consultation with the SAB is recommended.

Trees Unit: Arboriculture Report completed to acceptable standard and a condition will need to
be included in any planning permission with regards to compliance with the content
of these reports.

Any felling work must be undertaken outside the nesting season and by a tree
surgeon competent with BS 3998:2010.

Biodiversity 29/08/23 Observations
Unit:

e The developer is advised to plant more trees to improve the corridors

between the proposal and the existing woodland.

Include a bat roost in the buildings

Include lighting plans

Plant more hedgerows as part of the ecological mitigation plans.

It is advised to keep deforestation areas to a minimum and replant with

broadleaved trees and a variety of conifers species.

e Need to resubmit the Habitats Regulations Assessment that assesses this plan
against the new plans for the cattle farm and the HUB.

16/01/24 Observations

The applicant has provided the following documents:

Page 87



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e CEMP (38782 R1 Revl) dated January 2023 and received by the Planning
Department on 21 December 2023, produced by Atmos Consulting Ltd for
MPH Construction Ltd.

e Proposed Landscape Plan sheet 1 (drawing number: WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-
L-0001A, Rev P7) received on 18" October 2023

e Proposed Landscape Proposal sheet 2 (for specific trees and plants and
details) WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-0001B, Rev P7 received on 18th October
2023

e Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 2023 Update by WPS

Proposed Landscape Plan

| am pleased to see that some of my comments | sent to you in an email dated 13"
September 2023 have been incorporated into the amended Landscape plan; these
include:

e planting of 9 parkland trees in the field directly south of the proposed shed,

e thickening of hedge together with hedgerow tree planting,

e hedge planting along the access track — although | am concerned that the
hedge extends into the ancient oak tree at the most southern part of the track,
fencing and tree planting here is likely to impact on the trees roots,
particularly the stockproof fence referred to drawing WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-
L-0003 with posts set in concrete well at a depth of 50 cm.

2 alder trees to be planted in the northern half of the wetland and native

planting covering an area of 230 square meters — | recommend that the
wetland area be fenced to exclude live stock.

e The wetland area to be fenced and managed as a meadow.

The plan also shows the following:

e pole mounted maternity bat box at 3m high on a suitable retained tree
e ahibernation box mounted at 3m high on a suitable retained tree
e abarn owl box on a tree away from bat boxes and buildings

As | have stated before | recommend that the barn owl box be mounted within one of
the sheds barn.

I am concerned about landscape plan WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-0001B Rev P7 shows
“Preparation: In areas to be seeded the soil shall be cultivated to create a fine friable
seedbed down to 150 mm in depth. Immediately prior to sowing the upper 50 mm of
soil shall be reduced to a fine tilth.” — | disagree with this method and this it would be
better to plant plugs of raggid robin, meadow sweet, and devils bit scabious. And sow
with seeds of great bird’s foot trefoil Lotus pedunculatus and knapweed with out
cultivating the soils.

In my previous comments (August 2023) | recommended that the ancient trees at the
beginning of the access track be protected, however the plans show no indication of
this. I also recommended that the hedgerows be extended to enhance the wooded
connectivity for LHS bats.

Page 88



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Invasive non-native plant species

I recommend an eradication plan for Himalayan Balsam.
HRA

Cyngor Gwynedd, as the competent authority, under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), must, before deciding to give consent for a
project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives.

The applicant has provided a report to support this process (WPS update June 2023 -
Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment). This report has considered both the
Welsh Sheep Centre proposal and the Dairy Development Project as these are both
development proposals by Glynllifon College and current planning applications. |
have used this document to assist in undertaking an Appropriate Assessment under
Habitats Regulations for the Welsh Sheep Centre.

Appropriate Assessment

SAC: Glynllifon SAC is designated for its population of Lesser Horseshoe Bats.

Location & Proximity to SAC: The beginning of the proposed access track for this
development is within the Glynllifon SAC and the proposed Welsh Sheep Centre is
surrounded by the Glynllifon SAC within 75 to 300 meters.

Plan/Project: The proposed scheme involves loss of three agricultural buildings and
the construction of two new agricultural buildings on the footprint of the former
buildings — a sheep shed and a lamb rearing shed.

Conservation Objectives of SAC:

Glynllifon SAC is designated for its population of lesser horseshoe Rhinolophus
hipposideros bats (Annex Il species, which is the primary reason for the SAC
designation). The estate includes three summer roost sites and two hibernation sites
for the lesser horseshoe bat, comprising about 6% of the UK population. The main
maternity roost is situated in the cellars of the Glynllifon mansion house, built during
the 1830s. Within the estate, bats from the mansion forage in areas of plantation
woodland along the Afon Llifon and on the southern side of the estate near to Plas
Newydd. These areas also act as flight routes for bats going to other feeding areas
outside the estate boundaries. A number of other bat species are found within the
Glynllifon Estate. These include whiskered bat Myotis mystacinus, Natterer’s bat M.
nattereri, Daubenton’s bat M. daubentonii, common pipistrelle Pipistrellus
pipistrellus, soprano P. pygmaeus, noctule bat Nyctalus noctula and the brown long
eared bat Plecotus auritus.

The site also contains areas of woodland which is used by the bats as foraging areas
as well as hedgerows and other linear features used as flight routes. The conservation
objectives for the SAC are as follows:

 The natural range of lesser horseshoe bats will not be reduced, nor be likely to be

Page 89



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

reduced for the foreseeable future.

 There is, and will continue to be, sufficient habitat to maintain the lesser horseshoe
bat population on a long-term basis.

* The three maternity roosts will continue to be occupied annually by lesser horseshoe
bats and their babies:

o Glynllifon Mansion (maternity and hibernation roost, Unit 16)

0 Meliny Cim (maternity roost, Unit 32)

0 Pen y Bont (maternity roost, Unit 36)

» There will be a sufficiently large area of suitable habitat surrounding these roosts to
support the bat population, including continuous networks of sheltered, broadleaved
and coniferous woodland, tree lines and hedgerows connecting the various types of
roosts with areas of insect-rich grassland and open water.

« All factors affecting the achievement of these conditions are under control.

These conservation objectives as well as performance indicators and a core
management plan for the site (albeit from 2008) can be viewed online on the Natural
Resources Wales website.

The performance indicators largely relate to the maternity and hibernation roosts
themselves as well as maintaining woodlands and flight lines. It refers to ‘good

condition hedgerows’ as being those more than 2m in height with no gaps over 5m in

length.

Potential Impacts to Glynllifon SAC without mitigation

Obstruction of bat flight paths & foraging habitat due to lighting
Loss of bat flight paths & foraging habitat due to habitat destruction
Loss of access to bat roosts

The proposal will not result in the direct loss of Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts. No
Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts were found within the site of the proposed Welsh Sheep

Centre.

Mitigation

The Welsh Sheep Centre has been designed to include the features to mitigate
impacts to the lesser horseshoe bat population associated with the Glynllifon SAC,
which include the following:

The two proposed new agricultural buildings will have opening to allow bat

access in and out of the buildings.

New native species-rich hedgerows are proposed to be planted to the south of

the buildings (also to be planted with trees within species-rich grassland) and

to the south of the pond along the access track, along with natural
regeneration of marshy grassland habitat in an area to be fenced off from

regular grazing. This will provide further commuting and foraging habitats

for lesser horseshoe bats, and which connect to wider habitats. Page 90



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e A Lesser Horseshoe Bat roost will be incorporated into the building.
Lighting has been designed to minimize its impact on bats and to ensure that

bat flight paths are not obstructed. Proposed lighting plans showing outside
areas illumination and light spill. Light spill maps could be more detailed
with gradations of lux levels less than 0.2.

Assessment Alone with Mitigation

The proposed Welsh Sheep Centre has incorporated mitigation to remove any adverse
impact to Lesser Horseshoe Bats. This proposal will not have an adverse impact on
the Lesser Horseshoe Bat feature of the SAC.

In-combination Assessment

Under the Habitats Regulations as the competent authority Cyngor Gwynedd must
consider any other plans and projects in-combination with the proposed Welsh Sheep
Centre.

The report (WSP June 2023) provided to support the HRA process has considered
development proposals and projects relevant for in-combination impacts as part of
this assessment, and these are:

¢ Dairy Development Projects (current planning application)

¢ Rural Economy Hub (pre-application advice)

e Woodland & Forest Management and Tree Felling and tree works (proposed
extensive tree felling and forest clearance works yet to be granted license by
NRW)

e Ty’n Llan, Llandwrog extension (approved planning permission)

The Dairy Development Project is currently a planning application not yet decided,
however the report provided to support the HRA process (WSP June 2023) provides
undertakes an assessment of this proposal and concludes that with suitable mitigation
this development will not have an adverse impact on the Glynllifon SAC.

Rural Economy Hub this proposal currently at pre-application stage would cause
significant adverse impact on the Glynllifon SAC alone because it proposes to
remove large areas of woodland & trees. The repost by WPS (June 2023) states “The
Rural Economy Hub currently risks causing adverse effects alone and mitigation of
the current proposals is unlikely to be sufficient, which is likely to preclude it from
being permitted.”

Woodland Management & college commercial forestry is likely to have a very
significant impact on the foraging habitats and flight routes of the Lesser Horseshoe
Bats within the Glynllifon SAC. This Management Plan needs to be amended to be
sensitive to the needs of the Lesser Horseshoe Bats. Currently the Woodland Plan
requires approval from NRW.

The Ty’n Llan, extension in Llandwrog has been approved and this development has
incorporated mitigation and enhancements for Lesser Horseshoe Bats will not
contribute to in-combination impacts.

In summary there are two plans and project that would contribute to in-combination

Page 91



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

impacts:

e Woodland -felling
e Business hub
Individually they are both are very likely to have an adverse impact on the Glynllifon

SAC and its bat population, however there is no planning application for the Hub and
no certainty an application would be submitted or if such a development would be
granted planning permission and the Woodland Felling Plan will only be approved if
it is carried out in a way that is sensitive to bats and enhances the habitat for bats.

Conclusion of HRA

The Welsh Sheep Centre proposal will not have an adverse impact on the
conservation objective of the Glynllifon SAC alone, or in-combination

In a letter dated 21st December 2023 NRW do not consider that it will adversely
affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC, provided that the development is carried
out in accordance with conditions they recommend.

NRW must be consulted on this appropriate assessment.

Summary

e An appropriate assessment has been undertaken and concludes that the
proposed Welsh Sheep Centre will not have an adverse impact on the
Glynllifon SAC.

e Condition - Woodland & Forest Management Plan must be provided before
works commence.

e Amendments to landscaping planting specifications, fencing, and removal of
soil preparations required.

e Amend plans to put barn owl box in shed or barn.

e Ancient Trees on access track must be protected and plans amended to ensure
this. Detailed plans must be provided.

e Condition - Invasive non-native plant species eradication plan e.g. Himalayan
Balsam

e Condition stating that the site can not be operational until all ecological
mitigation and enhancement features have been completed to the satisfaction
of the LPA.

I do not object to this proposal if the above changes and plans are provided.

I recommend that Glynllifon College considers managing the fields within its holding
to enhance wildlife and nature as hay meadows rich in wild flowers. | recommended
that Glynllifon College produce a Manure Plan for the whole of the college farm,
where will the manure be stored and where will it be spread?

Welsh Historic No response.
Gardens Trust:

Page 92



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public A notice was placed in the press and near the main entrance to Glynllifon and nearby

Consultation: residents were informed. The notification period has already ended but no responses
had been received from the public following this statutory notification period.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:

5.1

5.2

53

54

55

The principle of the development

Policy PCYFF 1 of the LDP states that outside development boundaries proposals will be refused
unless they are in accordance with specific policies in the LDP or national planning policies or
that the proposal demonstrates that its location in the countryside is essential. This application
relates to improving existing sheep farming facilities on the Grwp Llandrillo-Menai campus
within Glynllifon Agricultural College and, to this end, it is considered that its location in the
countryside is essential. It is also noted that it replaces existing sub-standard structure on the
application site.

Policy ISA 3 relates to further and higher education developments that support proposals for new
facilities of extensions to existing buildings for academic or supporting purposes or for ancillary
social, cultural or leisure activities on further or higher education sites subject to being acceptable
in terms of such matters as scale, location, design, amenity and transportation. Priority should be
given to re-using existing sites or buildings. It is also noted that the sequential test should be used
when determining the location of further and higher education developments, and priority should
be given to sites located: - (i). Firstly, on existing further and higher education sites; or (ii).
Secondly, on sites that have a close connection with an existing campus.

The explanation to this particular policy states - Bangor University, Coleg Llandrillo Menai and
Coleg Meirion-Dwyfor have numerous and extensive educational facilities in the Plan area. They
make a valuable contribution to the local economy by providing employment to local residents,
upgrading the skills of local people and by means of student spending. The Council is committed
to improve the standards and availability of further and higher education facilities in the Plan
area. It is considered that new developments and extending existing facilities is necessary to
support proposed growth.

As referred to above, it is proposed to erect contemporary and modern facilities and replace
existing sub-standard structure on the same site for an agricultural education purpose, promoting
the local economy. The project will seek to develop a model to promote knowledge within the
agricultural sector to show the advantages of promoting a sustainable sheep milk market in
Wales. The proposal would offer potential additional income for agricultural enterprises and
Glynllifon College would play an important part in developing the dairy sector by developing a
better understanding of the commercial opportunities. Note that proposed new projects by Grwp
Llandrillo-Menai provide a range of modern facilities to help develop learning, entrepreneurship,
innovation, knowledge exchange and enterprise development. If approved, the new facilities
would be a way of establishing a Welsh Sheep Centre along with a lamb rearing unit here in
Glynllifon. To this end, therefore, it is believed that the proposal complies with the requirements
of Policy ISA 3 of the LDP.

Document TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities, states: - Strong rural economies

are essential to support sustainable and vibrant rural communities. A strong rural econom'%caaa e

93



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

also help to promote social inclusion and provide the financial resources necessary to support
local services and maintain attractive and diverse natural environments and landscapes... Farms
plans may usefully support applications relating to farm diversification proposals, although they
should not be made a requirement of applicants. Such plans can demonstrate how the diversified
activity fits into the wider farming picture, and set out its environmental consequences
highlighting how any significant adverse effects will be mitigated. In this particular case, the
current application was submitted to extend and meet the needs of the Agricultural College for an
education purpose and its important contribution to the local economy as noted above and,
bearing this in mind, it is believed that the proposal complies with the objectives and aims of
TAN 6. However, although the application is deemed acceptable based on principle, it must also
comply with other relevant policies within the LDP and these are discussed below.

Visual amenities

5.6 The application site is situated in the centre of Parc Glynllifon with the grade 2* listed fort
located directly to the north and east with an established woodland around the fort itself,
agricultural land/open pasture to the south and west, which includes cloddiau and woodlands on
the verges. The surrounding landscape can be described as undulating landscape but there is no
statutory environmental designation to this part of the landscape. The proposal involves
demolishing the existing sub-standard structure and erecting larger scale sheds in their place,
which also includes erecting a clawdd on the southern peripheries of the site and opposite a part
of the existing drive that serves the site, and also preserving the woodland that surrounds the lake
to the west of the site. Both sheds will be located parallel with each other with a hard-standing
between them for a sheep treating fold. The height of the sheds would vary from 8.4m to 6.5m
above ground level with a combined surface area of 2,585m2, which would replace sub-standard
agricultural sheds of smaller size and scale. Also, the proposal would involve situating a feed silo
adjacent to the northern elevation of the milking parlour which is 1m higher than the ridge of the
milking parlour.

5.7 The external elevations of the new sheds will be of traditional materials for this type of structure
which include profile corrugated steel covering; Yorkshire boarding, concrete panels and natural
stone to be reclaimed from the existing structure if possible; timber windows and doors to be
confirmed - non-reflective materials. Considering the setting of the structure within the
undulating landscape which includes a variety of vegetation, undertaking a landscaping plan as
well as the material and elevations of the structure, it is not believed that the proposal would have
a significant substantial impact within the local landscape and, considering these elements of the
application, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable based on the requirements of Policies
PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and PS 19 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.8 The site lies in the centre of Parc Glynllifon with residential dwellings and agricultural structures
dispersed within the landscape. The College Campus is approximately 550m to the north; the
Grand Lodge (the main entrance to the College) is approximately 850m to the north-east which is
in the applicant's ownership; Plas Newydd (including residential flats) is approximately 1.1km to
the south-west and beyond College grounds as well as Grafog to the east, which is also beyond
College grounds. Given that this current proposal replaces existing agricultural structures on the
site; the distance between the nearest residential dwellings to the application site (considering the
undulating topography of the landscape as well as established vegetation); mitigation measures
that the applicant will undertake and that the educational needs continue to exist on the site itself,

Page 94



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

it is not considered that the application, if approved, would undermine the general or residential
amenities of local tenants on the grounds of noise nuisance and other types of pollution such as
dust, fumes, litter, drains and lighting. To this end, therefore, it is considered that the proposal as
submitted is acceptable based on meeting the requirements of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP
regarding safeguarding the residential amenities of local occupiers.

Transport and access matters

5.9 It is intended to use the main entrance to the College from the A.499 trunk road for light vehicles
and the "new" entrance lower down from the main entrance for heavy goods vehicles together
with the private internal road network to serve the new facilities, which are the subject of this
application. The development provides 14 parking spaces (including two accessible parking
spaces for the disabled) for this particular facility, together with a parking and turning space for
service vehicles/lorries. Although no response has been received from the Transportation Unit
following the statutory consultation process, it is not considered that the proposal, if approved,
would have a detrimental impact on road safety along the trunk road nor on the private road
network within Glynllifon itself given that the facility already exists on the application site and
that it is located a considerable distance from the main entrance to the College itself. To this end,
therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable on the grounds of the requirements of
Policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

5.10  The Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation (SAC) as well as the Glynllifon Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI) are located 217m to the north; 248m to the east; 212m to the south and
181m to the west from the application site and the Afon Llifon Wildlife Site (WS) is located
approximately 600m to the west of the site. A SAC designation is a European site and the SSSI is
a UK site designation with the WS a local designation. Based on the importance of the statutory
designations (the existence of the lesser horseshoe bat protected species), the applicant has
submitted a number of reports and ecological assessments as noted in the first part of this report.
However, Natural Resources Wales confirms that the Council is required to undertake a Habitat
Regulations Assessment (HRA) in accordance with the requirements of the Habitats and Species
Conservation Regulations 2017 to show that this particular proposal, along with the cumulative
and joint impact if other developments are approved in Glynllifon, would not undermine the SAC
and SSSI designations. To this end, an assessment was carried out by the Biodiversity Unit which
noted that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the integrity of the Glynllifon
Special Area of Conservation (SAC). In accordance with the requirements of the habitats
regulations, a consultation was held with Natural Resources Wales on the HRA assessment of the
Biodiversity Unit and it was of the same opinion provided that the development was completed in
accordance with the needs they recommended in its ecological reports.

511 It is also noted that Natural Resources Wales has submitted observations regarding other
protected species and it raised the concern of the potential impact of pollution risks to the water
environment that would arise from the proposed development and these observations have been
included in the above assessment. In response to these concerns, the applicant's agent has
submitted details that state: -

o Further details regarding light mitigation measures (internal and external) to safeguard

protected species.
Page 95



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

¢ The plan includes planting additional cloddiau as one of the mitigation measures that are
proposed to be delivered and the landscaping plan has been updated to eradicate the
rhododendron plant that is not indigenous to the area and to replant with indigenous
species.

¢ Incorporate a dedicated bat loft that is suitable for Lesser Horseshoe Bat (LHBS) in the
larger building.

¢ Plant suitable wetland tree species in the proposed wetland meadow. This would create a
better habitat more suitable for bats.

e Further details regarding a private drainage system to comply with the requirements of
Welsh Government (Circular 008/2018) and which include a sustainable drainage system
that would prevent surface water pollution and undertaking a three-step treatment before
any water is discharged to adjacent land.

e Construction Environment Management Plan (received on 21.12.23)

5.12  Inresponse to the information submitted by the applicant, NRW states that any concerns relating
to protected species can be overcome by imposing conditions on the application when submitting
a long-term management plan and Ecological compliance audit plan. Therefore, these conditions
will manage and safeguard any protected species on the site. To this end, as well as receiving a
favourable response by the Biodiversity Unit on the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), it
can be confirmed that the proposal complies with the requirements of the Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 and that the proposal will not have an adverse effect on the SAC or SPA. The
proposal, therefore, complies with the requirements of policies PS19 and AMG 4 of the LDP.

5.13  On 7™ February 2024, the Welsh Government published an update to Chapter 6 of Planning
Policy Wales (PPW), which deals with green infrastructure, net worth to biodiversity, the
protection afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and woodlands. The changes to
PPW have been considered, together with the observations by the Biodiversity Unit and NRW,
however, in this case, they do not raise any new matters that have any material influence on the
decision, and it is considered that the contents of the ecological report along with the ability to
impose conditions to secure mitigation measures and enhancements to biodiversity are sufficient
to satisfy the requirements of PPW.

Heritage assets

5.14 It has already been confirmed that the application site is located adjacent to a grade 2* listed
building (Fort Williamsburg) and a Heritage Impact Assessment, together with an Archaeological
Assessment, was received to support the application. The Heritage Assessment concludes that this
is the most suitable site for the new structure with the minimum impact on the historic
environment, which includes the listed fort as well as the grade 1 registered landscape of
Glynllifon. However, it is possible that an archaeological recording task will need to be
undertaken considering its proximity to the fort itself. In response to the statutory consultation
process, observations were received by the Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service stating
that a condition must be included in any planning permission regarding the need to submit the
details of a programme of archaeological recording to be approved by the Local Planning
Authority within 6 months of completing the fieldwork. CADW has no objection to the proposed
development and, therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable based on the
requirements of Policies PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

The Welsh Language

5.15 In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This

Page 96



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

is reiterated further in para. 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), and Technical
Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how
it is expected for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development.

5.16 It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The
thresholds in terms of when it will be expected to submit a Statement/Report has been highlighted
in Policy PS1 of the LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. In terms of the type of developments
in question, it is noted that an educational development, as submitted, would not be subject to a
language statement. However, the applicant has submitted a statement that refers to the Welsh
Language by noting the following: -

e Any signage erected would be bilingual.

e The intention to establish a National Sheep Centre here in Glynllifon, if approved, would
be a valuable asset to the agriculture industry (sheep and dairy industry) and the future of
the College.

e A vast majority of facility users would be local students or from this part of north Wales
and bilingual speakers.

5.17  Therefore, to this end, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable based on the requirements of
Policy PS 1, the relevant SPG as well as the advice included in TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh
Language.

Sustainability matters

5.18 Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments which are consistent with
sustainable development principles, and where appropriate, developments should: “Reduce the
need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all users to travel when
required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, placing particular emphasis on
walking, cycling and using public transport in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 4”.

5.19  Itis considered that the policies of the LDP are consistent with national planning policies in terms
of how they deal with sustainable development principles. Paragraph 3.39 Planning Policy Wales
(PPW) (Edition 11, February 2021) states: "In rural areas the majority of new developments
should be located in those settlements which have relatively good accessibility by non-car modes
when compared with the rural area as a whole. Development in these areas should embrace the
national sustainable place making outcomes and, where possible, offer good active travel
connections to the centres of settlements to reduce the need to travel by car for local journeys.".”

5.20  This is supported by paragraph 3.11, Technical Advice Note 18: Transportation, which states:
“Development in rural locations should embody sustainability principles, balancing the need to
support the rural economy, whilst maintaining and enhancing the environmental, social and
cultural quality of rural areas. Most developments should be located in places accessible by a
range of travel modes.”

5.21  The applicant has submitted details with the following information: -

o The College is accessible from the A.499 highway that links the Caernarfon bypass with
Pen LIyn.
Page 97



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.22

6.1

7.1

e There are bus stops near the main entrance to the College that are already used by
students who attend the educational facility.
e Students would continue to use the new facility as usual.

In addition to the accessibility of the site, an Energy Conservation Statement was submitted in
support of the application, which refers to the energy saving strategy together with the adoption
of low carbon methods and renewable energy sources as part of the construction of the proposed
sheds. To this end, therefore, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable based on the
requirements of Policies PS5, PS 6 and PS 14 of the LDP and complies with the advice included
in TAN 18 and Planning Policy Wales, 2021.

Conclusions:

Considering the above assessment in its entirety, it is considered that the proposal to erect two
livestock sheds together with associated facilities and milking parlour, creation of landscaping
bund and associated works on this particular site within the holding of the Agricultural College,
would respond positively to the need to upgrade and enhance the existing facilities on offer by the
College. In assessing the application, full consideration has been given to the observations and
response received from the statutory consultees. Based on the above assessment, it is not
considered that the proposal is contrary to local or national policies and there is no material
planning matter that outweighs these policy considerations. To this end, therefore, it is believed
that this proposal is acceptable subject to the inclusion of the following conditions.

Recommendation:

To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of the Environment Department to approve the
application, subject to the following conditions: -

1. Five years.

2. Inaccordance with the documents and plans submitted as part of the application.

3. Submit details relating to external elevations.

4. Compliance with Part 5 (Interpretation and Advice) of the Ecology Impact Assessment
document as well as the Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment and observations of the
Biodiversity Unit.

5. Complete the landscaping plan within a specific period.

6. Compliance with the contents of the Arboriculture Assessments.

7. Standard conditions of the Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service relating to initially
submitting the details of a work programme of archaeological recording, and then submitting

a detailed report of the archaeological work within 6 months of completing the archaeological
work on the site.

Page 98



P e itk

Site Location Plan
2500

= L.

Arinns s e e v e
ittt b e e

7| s tnn 655

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

Dervyn &1.02.24

TarEm  dwn fwam | dmes
Asindicated EC MB  EC

C5/008555-60 23.03.2022

WEGWSP- 00 - Z2- DR - & - DSIEE ey P8
Architecture
w1 S Bk B LN Wl g

e e v
_ v




Glyn LUifon Farm - Sheep Pens

_%ubuﬁg Block Plan
1 - 500

[E

s o bt b
i oy

e S

7 et ot 0

7, Pt

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

Deryn 015221
£
e
A
[T —— o
proim s g
A i =
L P P e i
At tos e
7 L. Eroa
82 - Fit for information
Confidential
ot
- Grwp Liandrito-Menai

mlsh Sheep Centre - Campws
Glynilifon

=
Existing Biock Plan

TR dwn e me
Agindicaled EC MB

C5/088555-60

ure
o Bt e Bl B9 1 i e

e oz gy
| wikina

s0m

[




DONOT SCALE

P Bat and Bird Bowes | Rey

Internal and external Bat and bird boxes are to be instatled in accordence E Site Boundary
with drawiri Proposed WSC Site Flan with building fitted Ecology features,

‘ B L P i WSCCAP 002,004 05001 included within o x o e EcA and PR
{ Leylandihedge nterspersed it by coverecs —— Wl iirerien
/ ] T \ Bider . Not suitable for transplanting. ) D .
i Propdsed hedges are species rich hative | [l s el s, i 3 g
'\\\\\ / %i 7. Mo sl 14 Hikeroston B s, 3m Mg o st l:l E’é‘:‘:;::‘sa"z‘;fn":::;i::
\ “ “ et
- A ok e hdead ot Sk e b @ Proosadite e pntn e toTee

prevailing winds

FPropased Farkland tree planting with estate
fencing. Refer to Trea planting drawing
WSC-GLH-OC-X0-DR-L-000]

t \\\.-\ -‘.\\ \
; AN W \\\
§ AN \\ \\ :
’ b i Proposed Native hedge
1m high bu\nd with 1:3 gradient
slopes with native hedge and
tree planting for screening b

H4 (Centreline offset 1.5m
from existing hedgerow)

- icing treas/ Wlgos ta b retsined
Tree protection fencing to be in

= arcordance with BSS837:2012 trees in retation
to design, demolltion & construction,

Tree ROOt pratection 2omes v tree refs. Refer
to Armenity Care Tree Survey Constraints Regort

and Arbaricultural Impart Assessment
[7777] Trees to be removed. Trees ta be remaved
///' utsice the bird nesting sexson (Warch
£4 Pugusty or if outside this period 3 nesting ird
check is to be undertaken by an ecalogist
E Existing post and wire fnce
Stockproof fence. Refer to drawing
WEC-GLH-00- XX-DR 00T
4.5m wide galvanised steel farm gates
@ Log/ brash Piles
Approdmately location of invasie weed
* (Rhodaidendron ponticum) to be sradicated.

o b o s canyunion with She Salkng rawegs:
*+ WSC-GLH-00-KX-DR-LO0018 - Landscape Proposals Snant

Hedges Planted as
part of Dairy Farm &
works

2af2
*  WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-002 - Tror Panting Detad
o WSC.GLH00-XX-0R.L-0083 - Stock Proof fendng wih
miabit nesing

§
I e | F | ano sarosy arerces |
g o | | T e |
il R e & | %
2 % | m | | ot sormens we T AW # |
E; tan | 5 | P i ot A3
i R | |Gkt e # | w
2 | BT | F | ecoeiOA kY a0 ERREY pEtty # |
§ DATE | BY | pEscReTION CHiL [ AR
é il D2 - FOR TENDER
:
2 \\‘\I)
Mo B Frsl Streel, Monchesier, M5 4RP. UK
Te 4440} 161 200 5000
o
Cynllun Diwygiedig z R
Amended Plan =
Wesh Shesa ke
Campis Gymiion
Proposed Lancseage Pl
Sreet 1 of2
. = = Gz
Glyn LLifon Farm - Sheep Pens - |_ . w
_// -uwm |wm_f |m1 B M
4 =
/ WSCCLHIBXDRLIN A | #
@) WSPUKLid

mmnmn T By e 1o gyt e



A-083091 Zooe: | Section Aok, FF 58 HH anif 3

v, e bt box e high on well (min. 3m}, WSC-CAP-Z1-22-0R

@

SENERAL NOTES

1| [T TS ——,

Foar Ghanrel — ExXReEF lark apace s psls (e 0r 1200 (Hasgn Barner—— Facg Si0 o oot Foatwasn — Lorry Barng Fioar Channel
fu.re remosa] = Bpecialsl dhsign &
spectiatin tno. Eoo bal bei e high
away fram arificial sgning (mn, S%)
sozii 200, 15 Schwegie sparie At 3l T kel Rsfer [WSC-CAP:
21-2E-DRA-DE Prososad Eev: - Wit Shewg Conm
. it
e i S ) A
T |
1
3 e —
o o ran A Beatens.
b st A, Schwsglee Mo 1) swallow nest cups bmaly al apeosis
‘naves ey fom aribal L Reter 10 WEC-CAP-21-23-0R-4-050008
i A Frupnsed Flevatons - Wilih Sieep Centrs o Elw 2k
scliall L e, o 1 A 3 5205 Th
= S e . Backing G o sy, o ot sk
1 v i
i ! W Shvr ! B i o i o e e, T A2 vt Bk v
] ot g ety s .S Psens e s e, S
1 o D ——
g 4o . ok e e B (Tt M mnm e pave s
1 i i R o SR

i 20 B B o5k 0 bl st iy, vl ek g
b iy e

iy

& \'/- Atk e 31 s
i A frtal oot o, W ke Sk e cu sk g g s e
2 o e o g b e
e e e - oo Tty s g 1 i Pt
3 o vl vt vl sy Fan 2Tl &',
So00mm width Gmes & Cantractor
PR
K J ) et e ke e o e s
b3 ™ i g vedn
% 7% EM@!SWEM design N 4 B T TR IR
\ RSB LUV IS SIEREG 377 G T 000 MDA KO O
N A b A P 1 . 24 i 4 o] e e T el
il
; _eno —
i e oty o
[- s 23 H \ SecRBLINGR T TEORATIHG T i o e
T 25 m 4
! Concrote feon passage. %mm\i’%wcwnm
desin anc soedhal
ot | -
1T g Rt 180 stiovs o GFL :
235000 foed srips \
! PG Feology Faatures Amendment FA R
i P4 Planing Asendernl 1512203
A% A 63 lsaued for Plenning 008022
Exbrtal Rl Passags with Canspy P2 Planning Prasogicabon lase o7 2
o Sehawglor-typo bt bou fed Figh P Dwithes s uz
e Ll . o Dnren it 0w
mwm Wien et
§2 - Fit for information
% TR AR St A e kg Clasaloatin
ousEng ity adtres lortd it it n
et e 5 ks FEORATIE Confidential
S0 WSC-WSP-Z1-22-DR-A-T700G1 tor E X Cliat
nckosed inteenal pipkstreda bt roosin | sbotom whdhGales o Corecior = ¥
ki i ¥ sk s spsiseon Grwp Llandrillo-Menai
250rmim compecied MOT Typa 1 hardoore wilt Blls
uy from o foac passage T 1K) Fnaen 1ty 58 Schmesglor spanow temace
igh trved an s sevaln
Frect
Welsh Sheep Centre - Campws
2 H Glynliifon
2257
. Goncrate fead passage ¥
B Py 8 Rl {56mm aeme e GFL s S000Mm il Gl o Crtracke
" 2 % 500mm feed s design and specification
—
1 L Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Welsh
Sheep Centre
a
235" — —
§ 75 Ewes @ 3 sqmiEwes S G Eraun Goosted  Apgooved
Asindicated EC MB EC
i \ CS/098555-60 23.03.2022
N a. @
o~ F D ™y ) Cane Deewh ldeter

abed

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
1:100

)

BN

Cynllunio

Decoyn 1810.23

st e Sclwegie o 10 aalon st cups _/

nfereally ot oppeete eavas away from artfics Ign!

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

20m

W‘SCWSP Z!~DD DR A DSDDOE _rev P05
\\‘\I)

Architecture
¥ange Orchard, 1 Queen S5, Brisiot BEZAHG, Unfisd Kingsom

s
| wPuKLmesd

i iy

S 0. PP

oo s




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

17700

Cyr)IIunio

g 221
75 Ewes 6 3 somEwss

o |
|
|
|
|
i
| '
i — 2 H
j L [ 225 ! s
| Concrats feed passage

1 ! w ; ; I !

- L . -
- e i l
l 2500 e st !

1 | il PUY Ecoky Fasiutes Amendrent 2ina 2
. H an Tl Tender lsses 13020z
| Todrt
|
|
|
!

i

Exiernal ihum Fassage wif Caropy R Desarpion. Fainph D

Status
D2 - Fit for Tender

Clasalteation

Confidential

Cliat
Grwp Llandrillo-Menai

250mim cotigsicsd MOT Type 1 Pardcoes wifh Sl
1 2 Ll

Project
Welsh Sheep Centre - Campws

i |

i T

i i

i I

1 i Glynliifon

| T

i — el i

\ i . Concrsie fead passags ] =
mace i g v ! Zone 1 Sheep Farm Ground Floor
; ! "\ = ' Plan

I 1

i I i

! : S Ergun Chavted Apgroves

! 7 1:100 K/ PBM EC

! g % Ewszsamenmiweu ! = fer B

i ; * CS/098555-60 21.07.2022
J1Y) @\r = [ / \ ' i T R
Q i = i g N o i o WSC-WSP- 21 - 00 - DR~ A - 061004 _rev PO1

) ¥ ! o ! * \\ H ’
= @ Zone 1 Proposed Farm Ground Floor GA Plan Architecture
1:100 Wings Orchard, | Qeen S5 Briskol BE2IHO, Unied Kingtiom
(@) om 10m 20m R
V) | N [ R




i
w L Ll

e
L b

P St

Rt

e
B iy

B T T e————————

i
s gy B

B 15 g o o i e bl 21 ke ke v st e

re——.

W P (3 08 it MBI SRACVER NITO g HERGY LA T
Ly L e
/1“\ North Elevation
LW ARES ]
[
ansa
W06 e L b
#isen
¥ it
e
sisen s
WP it S b
e e

nitn . .
Ol Gy el s oo Al 0 » MO D ot et T oo

—
i
z J—
=
» o
et
bt
—
-
b
i _— T
o
y MW oW oW oW | ] . "
.
A
e

[T \ I H\ \|

i e s P Py Frabemarmrbtd sma
- HE Ecolepy Frsteae A wedimd. o
it | ———— - e i o
bt H P Pk s
e B
S tnrg S

7 South Elevation & Fit forinformation

(3) Vi

Conﬁden!m
Cynllun Diwygiedig Grwp Lisndrilo-Menai

Amended Plan

- Fore i S St i s teter
Bt kst s oy g b o
e T e i e

Welsh Sheap Cantre - Campus
Glynlifon

s — bl .kt g vty e e e ke
- Rl

o
o S —
¥

_— Cynllunio | e
I - Derbyn 18:10.23 Centre
W e e Gty B i

s = Asindicated EC

fm—— 508855560 23.03.2022

i

WEC-WSP- 21 - Z2- DR - & - UK0HE ey P16

Féyetr Sk D 208 b v i B o,

) West Elevation Wsl)
W s

Architecture
e Tt 1 it B BT B

[P R ——
_ | v




m
- i

e
> Emiienid

GOT abed

o

i o e e
S

o e

T e s
T e e b e

AN

Fai

s

ri\GANomEmam

o b e
A van e
[
Tanien
it sarel ke iyt o e Therien
ARSI
vt VA e e o
§ o s e o o
x T S T e
Bt e T Vi or e

et ) it .

et e

4 40 e e 2 i s
S e o s S o i b
S AT B e e e e
Ty e
3 B BB o 1t e
B Tt s

e ces
ot S
e
m.N-n-mlu\tv-Mwm
et a
¥

B 13 s T e s
T 15 m t  ee
ey

W st ety i v et

st et s
S e b

vt fetratrbutis e iand v sl e

T e T U R R Y

ity

7w s o, s 5 e St

Tty e T s e ek

| B AT oy e o
o i miag ek o

GA East Elevation
1i58

s
A

s
W s

ey
- uE

. GA West Elevation
4 Ve

GWYBODAETH YCHWANEGOL
. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

o g e et

l—wmk-q

b ity
g

T Sy Feames aresdoen @

T T pren
i L I S Darpien Frean
wanan

D2 - Fit for Tender

- Cynllunio | e

Derbyn 16.06.23

GA South Elevation
180

Asindicated KJ  PBM EC
C5/088555-60 25.07.2022
T e i s w ey

WEGCAR- 22 - Z2- DR & - DRRNE ey PO
Architecture
w1 S Bk B LN Wl g

e oz gy
| v




P e 15440 10 B

T cenemaLnoTES
:rm;ﬁ?hﬁww& v v e ey

T g o ) St 1 ARG i O e s
e
r

o 2y

e e e
oy

s e
it e sera e e,
gl

e
ottt oot e s
e B o e B e
ey

n bt
[ R R e

SAFETY, HEALTH ANO ENVIROMUENTAL INFORMATION

.‘:I eyl oo it i e
L ]
Cynllunio
Derbyn 21.10.22
oz
il LW B

e D
?’; - Fit for information
Clasalbesition
Public

et
Grwp Llandrillo-Menai

Project N
Welsh Sheep Centre - Campws
Glynliifon

Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Lamb
Rearing Shed

Fman Tmn Gl Jomoes
Asindicated EC MB EC

£5/098555-60 20.04.2022

Dawng lderiiter
d e wm e e

WSC-CAP-22 - 00 - DR~ A - 05005 _rev PO3

Propasea Ground Floor Plan
1:100

4

CAPITA

Architecture
am 10m 20

L E— ‘— sl

e




/0T abed

13 4 B e

71" North Elevation
1100

siaen

-
e
amen
v aT
pr——
Cynlluni
. ynliiunio
Derbyn 21.10.22
s
w s

@
- e

e -
4, South Elevation
@) 11100
it
- Grwp Liandrito-Menai
%)
Welsh Sheep Centre - Campws
Glynlifon
et
¥ st g ————————————————————
o Proposed Elevations - Lamb Rearing
A &Ll Shed
T I T
Agindicaled EC MB  EC
P e =
- B (5108855560 20.04.2022
e e y -y
WG - Z2-DR- & - DRT v FOS

Architecture

e
L SEE— - B P

e iR







Page 109




Agenda Item 5.3

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 3

Application No:  C22/0953/17/LL
Registration 06/02/2024

Date:

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llandwrog

Ward: Groeslon

Intention: Demolition of dairy farm building and cattle shed, removal
of two existing slurry tanks, erection of new livestock shed
and milking parlour, construction of silage clamp and dry
manure storage, internal entrance road together with
associated works.

| ocation: Land near the College Farm, Glynllifon, Llandwrog, LL54
5DU

Summary of

Recommendation:  APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 110


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=330239
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=330239

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 The application submitted is for the demolition of the existing substandard agricultural sheds and
structures and their replacement with a new livestock (dairy cattle) shed, a rotating milking parlour,
indoor dry manure storage, an additional silage silo along with ancillary facilities comprising a
dilution water basin, landscaping bank and associated works including a cattle walkway and the
creation of hard surface areas within the existing agricultural holding together with supplementary
agricultural structures such as water holding tanks and cattle feed bins to the south of the main
cattle shed and milking parlour. The proposal can be divided into several elements as follows: -

e Demolition of the existing substandard construction which comprises the milking parlour,
livestock shed, and two slurry towers.

e Erection of a building for a rotating cow milking parlour measuring 20.5m x 50m with a
ridge height of 6.9m and eave height of 4m (1,000 m?). The milking parlour will be
attached to the new cattle shed on the east side and will wrap in an “L” shape around the
existing roundhouse cattle shed. Internally, the building will include an office, two tool
and equipment rooms and a washroom. Externally, the building will be fabricated of steel
corrugated profile roofing sheets; walls to comprise of Yorkshire boarding, steel profile
covering, concrete panels; doors of timber to be confirmed and windows to be confirmed.

o Erection of a livestock building to house 224 dairy cows measuring 47.5m wide, 70.5m
long with a ridge height of 9.1m (3,306 m?). Internally, the building will contain stalls for
resting, an assembly area for cows before milking, concrete pathways for feeding together
with an equipment room. The building will also include a planked floor allowing the cows’
manure and slurry to drop into an underground tank. Externally, the building will be
fabricated of steel corrugated profile roofing sheets; walls to comprise of Yorkshire
boarding, steel profile covering, concrete panels and natural stone cladding on the centre
part of the front elevation; doors of timber to be confirmed and windows to be confirmed.

e Erection of an indoor dry manure storage area alongside the existing storage area. The
building will measure 20m x 12m with a ridge height of 6.2m. Externally, the building
will be fabricated of steel corrugated profile roofing sheets; walls to comprise of Yorkshire
boarding, concrete panels along the bottom.

Erection of a feed storage silo adjacent to the existing silage storage area.

e Location of a tank to capture water from the milking parlour and the water waste from the
silage heaps

e Creation of a hard surface yard south of the dairy unit and north of the pig unit.

e Creation of two foul water pits (one on the east side of the site and another on the west
side) which will be landscaped with wildflower wetland grass.

e Creation of an internal road network within the existing yard with a new cattle walkway
to the north of the livestock shed and milking parlour.

e Creation of a 1m high bank/bund on an impermeable membrane to be planted with a native
hedge to the west of the new dairy unit.

o Biodiversity improvements through provision of boxes for swallows, bats and sparrows.

e Use of the existing private road network within Glynllifon is proposed to serve the site.

1.2 The site is situated next to a number of existing agricultural buildings/structures in Glynllifon farm
with the Pentref Addysg Glynllifon (PAG) (education centre) building located to the West of the
dairy farm buildings. Forming the southern part of the site are a number of the traditional farm
buildings, several of which are grade Il listed buildings, with the grade I Listed Glynllifon Park and
Historic Gardens situated to the South and East of the site. It is also noted that the Glynllifon Special
Area of Conservation along with the Glynllifon Site of Special Scientific Interest adjoin the
southern and eastern part of the site with the Afon Llifon Wildlife Site approximately 400m west
of the site.

Page 111



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.3 To support the application the following documents were submitted:

Design, Access and Planning Statement;
Pre-Application Consultation Report;

Heritage Impact Assessment;

Arboriculture Report and Restrictions;
Arboriculture Impact Assessment;

Drainage Strategy;

Archaeological Assessment; Trench testing
Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan
Ecological Survey Report;

Bat Survey Report;

Construction Details for the Livestock Shed and Dairy Parlour
Water & Energy Conservation Statement;
Construction environmental management plan.

1.4 It was confirmed that the applicant had undertaken a consultation prior to submitting the application
in accordance with the requirements of Article 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (Wales) (Amendment) Act, 2016 as the proposal is a development defined
as a major development. A Pre-Application Consultation (PAC) Report is included with the
application to reflect this consultation.

1.5 The development is described as an agriculture and aquaculture development project under
Schedule 2, Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 which requires the application to be screened. To this end,
the application has been screened but taking into account its scale, nature plus mitigation measures,
an Environmental Impact Assessment will not be needed with this current application.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that applications should be decided in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless a material planning consideration indicates otherwise. Planning considerations include
National Planning Policy, and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in the exercise of its functions to achieve the 7 well-being objectives within the
Act. This report has been prepared taking into account the Council’s duty and the ‘sustainable
development principle’, as stated in the 2015 Act. In forming the recommendation, the Council has
sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to satisfy their own needs.

2.3 Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (LDP) adopted 31 July
2017: -

PCYFF 1 — development boundaries.

PCYFF 2 — development criteria

Page 112



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

PCYFF3 — design and place shaping.

PCYFF 4 — design and landscaping.

PCYFF 5 — carbon management.

PCYFF 6 — water conservation.

ISA 1 — infrastructure provision.

ISA 3 — further and higher education development.

PS 1 — Welsh language and culture.

PS 4 — sustainable transport, development and accessibility.

PS 5 — sustainable development.

PS 19 — conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment.

PS 20 — preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets.

TRA 2 — parking standards.
TRA 4 — managing transport impacts.

AMG 5 — local biodiversity conservation.

AT 1 — conservation areas, world heritage sites and registered historic landscapes, parks and

gardens.

Supplementary Planning Guide: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable

Communities.

Gwynedd Design Guide (2003).

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Issue 12 - February 2024)
TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities.
TAN 12: Design.
TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh language.

TAN 24: The Historic Environment.

3. Relevant Planning History:

Page 113



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

3.1 CO7A/0729/17/YA - INSTALLATION OF UNDERGROUND SLURRY CHANNELS, INTAKE
TANK AND SILAGE EFFLUENT TANK — Permission Granted with Conditions - 02-11-2007

C12/0459/17/LL - CONSTRUCTION OF NEW AGRICULTURAL BUILDING AND SILAGE
CLAMPS — Permission Granted with Conditions - 13-09-2012

C13/0625/17/LL - ERECTION OF NEW PIG SHED AND NEW MACHINERY STORAGE AND
ERECTION OF 4 SILOS — Permission Granted with Conditions - 16-08-2013

Since 2018 a number of planning applications have pertained to the original farm listed buildings
in the western part of the site.

4. Consultations:

Community/Town  Support the application.
Council:

Transport Unit: I do not intend to give a recommendation as it is assumed that the proposed
development would not adversely affect any road, or proposed road.

Natural Resources  (Due to the number of responses and length of comments, only NRW?’s final
Wales: comments are shown, previous comments can be found on the Council’s
website through the track and trace system.)

Comments 11/04/2024

We continue to have concerns about the application as submitted, however,
we are satisfied that these concerns can be overcome by attaching the
following conditions to any planning permission granted:

CONDITIONS 1-2: PROTECTED SITES

We also advise, based on the information submitted to date, that the documents set
out below (Protected Sites section) should be included in the approved document
plans and conditions on the determination notice. Without inclusion of these
conditions and documents, we would object to this planning application:

Protected Sites

Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

The proposal is located within 75m of Glynllifon SAC. We have concerns that a
significant impact from the proposed development on Glynllifon SAC (designated
feature: lesser horseshoe bat, Rhinolophus hipposideros) cannot be ruled out.

We note that the following documents are submitted in support of this application
and these address many of our concerns identified in our previous response dated
03/08/2023 (ref: CAS-221751-Z9S1)

Page 114



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

* Proposed External Lighting (WSC-WSP-XX-XX-DR-E-63 0001KC T04 WSP).
12/09/2023

* Proposed Landscape Plan (WSC-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-0001A)WSP 18/05/2022

* Proposed Site Ecology Features (WSC WSP 00 ZZ DR A 900002) WSP
08/09/2022

* Bat Cavity Roosting (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 770001) WSP 30/03/2023

e Zone 1 Section A-A, F-F, G-G, H-H, and J-J (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A
063001)WSP.25/07/2022

* Zone 1 Proposed GA Elevations Sheet 2 - East and West (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR
A 062003 P02) 22/07/2022.

» Zone 1 Proposed Elevations (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 062001 P02) WSP
22/07/2022

* Proposed Sections - Welsh Sheep Centre (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 050009 P05)
WSP.23/03/2022

* Proposed Elevations - Welsh Sheep Centre (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 050008
P06) WSP22/03/2022

» Zone 1 Sheep Farm Proposed Ecology Plan (WSC WSP Z1 00 DR A 061008)
WSP .12/09/2022.

+ Bat Loft Box Plan, Elevations and section (WSC WSP Z1 ZZ DR A 770002)
WSP 18/09/2023

We welcome the proposed additional proposals, including:

* Incorporating a purpose-built bat loft suitable for Lesser Horseshoe Bats (LHB)
in the larger building.

* Bat boxes and openings including bat cavity roosting boxes. These appear to be
well planned and located.

* The exterior lighting is an improvement on the current situation and is welcomed.
Downward-pointing 2700K exterior lights, activated by movement, will be a major
improvement for bats and other wildlife. We note that all lighting at the College is
being inspected and upgraded by the Dark Sky Project and welcome the College’s
co-operation in this project.

* Removal of non-native rhododendron and replanting with native, shade-tolerant
species to replace the understorey, which will provide better habitat. Future
increased thickness will increase LHB feeding and dispersal.

We recommend that the hedges be maintained ‘above’ 2m as the desired height.
Ideally, at a height of 3m, and 3m width at the base, they will form sturdy, sheltered
flight lines for bats. We also recommend that other hedgerows within the farm are
allowed to grow to this size, to enhance the area for the benefit of bats.

We also recommend that suitable wetland tree species (e.g. alder and willow) be
planted in the proposed wetland meadow. This would create a better and more
suitable habitat for bats in the short term, and would be easier to manage in the
long term.

In order to confirm the mitigation measures set out in the above information, we
advise that the above reports must be included in the ‘approved list of
plans/documents’ condition within the decision notice should permission for the
project be granted.

However, we advise that long-term management of habitat features should also be
ensured and we therefore advise that the conditions and obligations set out below

Page 115



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

be attached to any future planning permission for this development. Provided that
the development is carried out in accordance with those conditions, and with the
details described in the documents listed above, we do not consider that it will
adversely affect the integrity of Glynllifon SAC

Conditions:

Condition 1: No development, including site clearance, will commence until the
submission of a Long-Term Management Plan (for a duration of not less than 25
years). The Management Plan should include:

» Defined aims and objectives (including targets that can be used as key
performance indicators for monitoring purposes);

* Habitat management and roost maintenance prescriptions;

* Details of the size and scheduling of any arboricultural work proposed, and how
the natural range of LHBs should be maintained at all times.

* Details of site liaison, wardening, incident reports and response arrangements;

* Details of the skills and competencies required of those undertaking identified
work (including building maintenance) or activities (including surveillance)
including whether European Protected Species licences are required for the
proposed activities;

« Introduction of a Post-Construction Monitoring and Record Dissemination Plan
over a period of 25 years (minimum). This plan will include surveillance
methodologies, timescales and reporting requirements. The approved monitoring
plan will include monitoring artificial lighting during the construction and
operational phases of the plan.

* Periodic review mechanism for the Management Plan.

Condition 2: No development, including site clearance, shall commence until the
submission of an Ecological Compliance Assessment Plan (ECAP) to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. Due to the importance of the site for
bats, we advise that ECAPs be maintained by an external party.

The purpose of the ECAP is to implement all evidence-compliant ecological
avoidance, mitigation and compensation work — either proposed or subject to the
provisions of reserved matters conditions. The Audit will identify Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) to be used for evidence assessment and compliance
purposes. The approved plan will include a specific KPI in relation to lighting. We
also advise that an evening inspection of the lights should be carried out after the
construction work to ensure that lights are working as they should.

Planning Obligation:

We advise that any subsequent planning permission be subject to the requirement
for an appropriate planning obligation (Unilateral undertaking/Section 106
Agreement) to ensure the long-term functionality of the site for bats in relation to
defined “red” and “blue” land. The applicant may wish to amend the red line
boundary to incorporate all proposed mitigation, which may obviate the need for a
planning obligation.

The provisions of the scheme to include:
a) Long-term dedication of red and blue land specifically identified for bat

conservation purposes,
Page 116



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

b) Long-term restrictions on the future use of identified land including the
surrender of future development rights for land proposed for long-term bat
conservation purposes;

c) Review and update of the Management and Monitoring Plan every 6 years to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the SNCB.

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to grant
permission for a project that is likely to have a significant impact on the
SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or in conjunction with other plans or projects,
make an appropriate assessment of the project’s implications for that site given its
conservation objectives. You must consult NRW for the purposes of the
assessment and address any comments we make within the reasonable time
indicated. In the absence of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals
would not result in an adverse impact on the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site.

Shadow HRA

We note that a 2023 Update to the Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment
(HRA) 2023 has been submitted for Glynllifon Welsh Sheep Centre and Dairy
Development Projects. We note that it states:

“The Rural Economy Hub currently risks causing adverse effects alone and
mitigation of the current proposals is unlikely to be sufficient, which is likely to
preclude it from being permitted. It is also anticipated to take place at a later stage
than these developments and is not yet permitted so where the proposals for that
development indicate loss of woodland and hedgerows, this is not confirmed and
is unlikely to be permitted and so is not a consideration for this in-combination
assessment at this time.”

We agree that the proposal risks causing adverse effects alone and that the
proposed mitigation is unlikely to be sufficient. We advise that as the Competent
Authority, you consider whether the Rural Economy Hub constitutes a Scheme or
Project under the 2017 Habitats Regulations (as amended) and whether its potential
in-combination effects on Glynllifon SAC and the LHBSs it sustains with the dairy
development project proposal should be considered as part of your HRA.

We note the 5-year tree felling plan included in the Shadow HRA. We have
concerns about the potential impact of this work. The shadow HRA indicates a
significant area of woodland within the SAC to be worked within a period of five
years. The information about tree felling and the impact from the tree works in this
document is unclear. The LHB element of the SAC depends on allowing access to
the woodland and hedgerows within the SAC, and to the wider environment, for
foraging and commuting. Therefore, any reduction in these habitats will directly
affect the LHBs. It is essential that the overall woodland (and hedgerows) are not
reduced and that commuter routes are maintained at all times.

Five years is also too short a time to allow for sufficient regrowth before cutting
additional sections. We note that section 8 of the shadow HRA states:

‘The natural range of lesser horseshoe bats is unlikely to be reduced by these
proposals once all mitigation measures are in place as planned, the planting is
mature and the bats have had the opportunity to adapt to the new landscape and
associated features (if indeed they can and do)’.

Please see the 3rd bullet point of the Long-Term Management Plan above. Any
felling may require a felling permit and/or NRW consent.
Page 117



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to grant
permission for a project that is likely to have a significant impact on the
SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or in conjunction with other plans or projects,
make an appropriate assessment of the project’s implications for that site given its
conservation objectives. You must, for the purposes of the assessment, consult
NRW and consider any comments we make within the reasonable time you
indicate. In the absence of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals
would not result in an adverse impact on the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site.

Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)

In NRW’s view, the proposals have the potential to affect Glynllifon SSSI. Should
the aforementioned impact pathways for the SAC be adequately addressed, NRW
believes that the characteristics of the SSSI will also be adequately protected. We
would welcome an on-site meeting with the developer to discuss our concerns and
also the long-term management of the SSSI and opportunities to work in
partnership.

Protected Species

Bats

We note that the ecological Report submitted in support of the above application
(Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) and Preliminary Roost Assessment
(PRA) Report Glynllifon Welsh Sheep Centre. Capita. 15 July 2022) noted that
bats are present at the application site (lesser horseshoe bats).

From the information submitted, we consider that the proposed development is
likely to represent an increased risk for bats, as defined in our guidance document
‘Natural Resources Wales Approach to Bats and Planning (2015)’.

Bats and their breeding and resting places are protected under the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Where bats are present and
a development proposal is likely to contravene the legal protection which they
have, the development can only proceed under a licence issued by Natural
Resources Wales, having satisfied the three criteria set out in the Regulations (refer
also to Paragraph 6.3.7 of Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and
Planning). Please note that for the purposes of providing advice during the
planning application stage, our comments are limited to the criterion relating to
“demonstrating no harm to maintaining the favourable conservation status of
European protected species”.

Please see our detailed comments above relating to protected sites.

As long as those measures described are implemented, we consider that the
proposed development is unlikely to be detrimental to the restoration or
maintenance of favourable conservation status for all local bat populations
recorded in and around the application site.

Great Crested Newts

Section 4.6.12 of the PEA and PRA Report regarding the pond at the site says:
“The HSI results for the pond at TN3 are in the table below, indicating a ‘good’
scoring for potential to support great crested newt . It goes on to state: “An attempt
to collect eDNA on 21 June 2022 was aborted as the pond had largely dried up
with a thick layer of silt present (Photograph 45).”

Great Crested Newts and their breeding sites and resting places are protected under
the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).

Page 118



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The Pre-Application Consultation Report (October 2022; Cadnant Planning; ref:
2019.176_05) confirms: “The ecological reports have been updated to confirm
that the proposal does not propose to discharge into the pond, only into the rushes
around it, therefore there would be no detrimental effect on GCNs. ”

Therefore, we have no representations to make in relation to this aspect as
presented. You should consult us again if any survey carried out finds that Great
Crested Newts are present on site, and further advice is required from us.

Otters and Water Voles

We agree with the conclusions in relation to these species. Natural Resources
Wales would refer the local authority to the Chief Planning Officer’s letter of 1
March 2018, which advises local planning authorities to attach licence requirement
information to all consents and notices where European protected species are likely
to be present on site.

Barn Owls

We note that the revised plans show that the proposed Barn Owl box will now be
mounted on a sturdy tree trunk at least 3m high, facing east, away from buildings
and the prevailing winds. We welcome this, however we advise that any proposed
Barn Owl provision should be as far away as possible from any planned bat access
points, and not at a minimum of 3m away, as described. Keeping these 2 species
separate is essential to avoid predation of the bats.

We are satisfied that the protected species survey has been carried out to an
acceptable standard. Given the nature and scale of the development, we are in
general agreement with the conclusions in the Report and agree that a survey for
Barn Owls would need to be carried out before demolition of the existing sheds, to
avoid adverse effects.

Foul Drainage

After considering the further details submitted, (Response to Natural Resources
Wales Planning Consultation Feedback - Welsh Sheep Centre ) we raise no further
concerns regarding this matter. However, if a private drainage solution is to
proceed, the Applicant will need to apply for an Environmental Permit from us. It
is important to note that a grant of planning permission does not guarantee that a
permit will be granted, should a proposal be deemed unacceptable (either because
of environmental risk or because on further investigation, connection to the main
sewerage system was deemed practicable). Therefore, the Applicant is advised to
enter into pre-application discussions with our Licensing Team on 0300 065 3000,
at the earliest opportunity, to try to ensure that there is no conflict between any
planning permission granted and the permit requirements

Pollution Prevention

We note the CEMP submitted to support the application (Welsh Sheep Centre
Construction Environmental Management Plan 38782 R1 Revl. Atmos
Consulting. January 2023). We advise that the CEMP is acceptable for the purpose
of informing the planning decision-making process.

We also note that the CEMP is described as a live document that continues
throughout the construction phase. Therefore, your authority may wish to
request that the document be updated to also refer to the most recent plans
and documents submitted and listed in the “approved documents” list in the
Protected Sites section above, as the CEMP predates these documents.

Page 119



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Agriculture

Drainage Plan

In our Statutory Pre-Application Consultation response, we noted that section 3.2.2
of the Proposed Drainage Strategy (July 2022; Capita) explains that a storage tank
to collect dairy effluent would be used. We advised that the formal planning
application should provide further clarification on the number of days of storage
that would apply. We note that the Proposed Drainage Strategy (September 2022;
Capita) 3.2.2 now states: “The drainage connected by manholes discharge into a
small holding tank for 2 weeks before being pumped and tankered away to be
distributed across the local fields as specified by operators.”

It was also noted that the sheep were to be located on hardcore rather than concrete.
We advised that more details should be provided on how the sheds would be
cleaned. Section 3.2.2 of the proposed Drainage Strategy now states: “The milking
ewes and lambs will be housed on straw bedding. The bedding will be collected as
Farm Yard Manure and either stored under cover or taken directly to a temporary
field site, in accordance with The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural
Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021”.

Any manure produced (stored and applied to land) should be managed in
accordance with the Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales)
Regulations 2021 and Code of Good Agricultural Practice guidance. Transition
periods apply to manure management and further guidance can be found here:
Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021
Guidance for Farmers and Land Managers (gov.wales).

Groundwater

We refer the developer to ‘Approach to groundwater protection’ by the
Environment Agency (2017) adopted by Natural Resources Wales. Specifically,
the developer should be aware of the position statements in Section G “Discharge
of liquid effluents into the ground” and H “Diffuse (rural) sources of pollution”

Ancient Woodlands
The application site is adjacent to a Plantation on Ancient Woodland Sites. Please

refer our advice to planning authorities considering proposals affecting ancient
woodlands.

Comments 31/1/2024

Thank you for consulting Natural Resources Wales (NRW) on your Habitats
Regulations Assessment for the above development, which we received on
19/01/2024. Our response should be taken as NRW’s formal representation, as the
appropriate nature conservation body, to your appropriate assessment (Appropriate
Assessment. Emily Meilleur. 17.01.2024) under Regulation 63 of the Conservation
of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, as amended. In consideration of the
mitigation measures detailed, we agree with your conclusion that the development

Page 120



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

is unlikely to adversely affect the integrity of Glynllifon Special Area of
Conservation.

Welsh Water: No response.

Public Protection Demolition and construction can cause a noise and dust problem for members of

Unit: the Public and employees close to the site. Before work begins, a detailed plan to
control dust, noise, vibration as a result of the demolition should be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The demolition should be
carried out in agreement with the approved plan.

To protect the residents of the area, any demolition and construction work must
take place between the hours of 09:00-18:00 Monday - Friday, 09:00-13:00
Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

During demolition and construction, the best practical methods should be used to
reduce noise and vibration from the work with regard to the recommendations of
‘BS5228: Control of Noise and Vibration on Construction and Open Sites’.

An asbestos assessment should be carried out prior to any demolition to establish
if asbestos is present and to ensure that hazards of asbestos to the environment,
land users and any residents are minimised and risks are managed.

Gwynedd Although archaeological records have been created of the standing stone located

Archaeological adjacent to the existing slurry store (western part of the site), it is considered that

Planning Service:  details of archaeological programme records will still need to be submitted for
Local Planning Authority consent within 6 months of completion of the fieldwork
by way of a planning condition.

CADW: Although the development does not involve additional improvements to the grade
1* listed building (Fort Williamsburg), taking into account the location and layout
of the existing construction work together with the content of the Heritage Impact
Assessment submitted with the application, CADW has no objection to the
proposal. The additional landscaping included as part of the revised plans is
welcomed.

Water and Since 7th January 2019, sustainable drainage systems (SDS) have been required to

Environment Unit:  manage surface water for all new developments of more than 1 house or where the
building area with drainage implications is 100m2 or more. Drainage systems must
be designed and built in accordance with minimum standards for sustainable
drainage published by Welsh Ministers.

These systems must be approved by Gwynedd Council in its role as the SDS
Approval Body (SAB) before construction begins.

Page 121



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Due to the size and nature of the development an application will need to be made
to the SDS Approval Body for approval prior to the start of construction. The
information provided suggests that the developer intends to use suitable
sustainable measures to drain the site, but until an application is made to the SAB
there is no assurance that the site plan would enable compliance with the full set
of national SDS standards. Early consultation with the SAB is recommended.

Biodiversity Unit: ~ Comments 21/3/2023

Thanks for the comments from NRW. | agree with the concerns and requirements
NRW has identified, especially as the application is within Glynllifon SAC and is
likely to affect bats requiring an assessment under the Habitats Regulations (HRA).

The applicant has not provided sufficient information for the HRA assessment. The
applicant will therefore have to provide information for the HRA.

The application needs a plan to improve biodiversity. | recommend that it includes
creating wildflower meadows, planting trees (parkland trees), planting hedgerows,
planting woodland.

The application needs to provide the following:
1. a nature and wildlife enhancement scheme, shown on the plans.
2. Information for the HRA assessment

3. Manure plan — showing on which fields muck spreading will occur and how
frequently and what amount volume of manure.

Comments 29/08/23
The applicant has provided updated information and plans:
e Glynllifon Welsh Sheep Centre and Dairy Development Projects Shadow
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 2023 Update (June 2023 WPS)
e Landscaping Plan
e Applicants’ response to NRW & ecology comments (16th June 2023)
Lesser Horseshoe Bat & Glynllifon QTS

Information to inform a Habitats Regulations Assessment is required that includes
in-combination impact from other proposals: Glynllifon Sheep Sheds
C22/0952/17/LL, Glynllifon

Business Hub, Tree Felling Plan.

A Lesser Horseshoe Bat roost must be provided and hedgerows enhanced and
additional hedges created.

Page 122



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

IHlumination Plans & Lighting

I have concerns regarding the outside illumination and lighting plans which
suggest that areas with illumination of less than 0.2 lux are dark; Clear Full Moon
is between 1-0.25 lux and Moonlight/Cloudy Sky is 0.1 lux. I therefore recommend
that illumination plans showing more gradations of lux levels are provided.

Detention Basins & grasslands mixes

The plans include two detention basins, the one on the east side will result in the
partial loss of an orchard. The landscape plans include the planting of orchard trees,
I would like to suggest that these trees are transplanted and another orchard is
created. Plans show that detention plans will be seeded with wetland wildflower
mix which | welcome.

Landscaping Plan

This plan shows a Species Rich Grassland Mix species list, however | am not sure
where this will be used.

Hedges

The plans include a hedging around the site most of the site which | welcome, and
this will replace the hedge that will be lost around the round house cow shed, this
hedge was found to be used by Lesser Horseshoe Bats. However, it is important
that hedges are as dense and wide as possible and planted as soon as possible to
replace the hedge that would be lost.

Tree Felling Plan

The 5 year felling plan years shows considerable areas of trees will be felled,
leading to the loss of wooded corridors which bats use as flight routes as they
provide cover from predators and a foraging habitat. This will have a significant
impact on bats for several years. Trees take many years to grow and therefore it
will be over 15 years before the wooded corridors have regrown. | recommend that
the tree felling plan proposed by the College be amended to smaller felling areas
and replanting with a mixture of broadleaved trees and a variety of conifers species.

Manure Plan and Ammonia Impact Assessment

I recommend that the applicant provides the above and that the assessment includes
the proposed sheep sheds and other livestock activities on the farm.

Biodiversity Enhancement

Page 123



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

I recommend that the proposal includes biodiversity enhancements such as
hedgerow planting, hedgerow enhancement, planting parkland trees and managing
grasslands with species rich wild flower meadows.

INNS

A plan for the control and eradication of non-native plants species e.g. Himalayan
balsam and Rhododendron.

Summary

I object to this proposal until further information above is provided and the tree
felling plan is amended.

Comments 17/1/2024

The following is an assessment under the Habitats Regulations. The applicant has
provided documents to support this process:

e Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 2023 Update by WPS

e Ecological Survey Report Proposed Coleg Glynllifon Dairy Development
21st October 2021 Cambrian Ecology

e Lesser Horseshoe Bat Monitoring Report Proposed Coleg Glynllifon
Dairy Developmentlst December 2022 Cambrian Ecology.

Habitat Regulations Assessment

Gwynedd Council as the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), must before deciding to give consent
for a project which is likely to have a significant effect on a QTS, either alone or
in combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives.

Appropriate Assessment

Proposal

Planning application for the demolition of a number of existing agricultural
buildings and the construction of a new dairy unit with a large underground slurry
tank. The scheme also involves removal of hedgerows.

Location & Proximity to QTS

The application borders with, and slightly overlaps the Glynllifon SAC. Glynllifon
Campus is an active sheep and dairy farm and an agricultural college where
students are trained in agricultural skills including tree felling. Parts of the college
grounds are also designated as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC), designated

Page 124



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

for its population of lesser horseshoe Rhinolophus hipposideros bats (an Annex Il
species).

Consideration of Alternatives

No alternatives to the Dairy Development Project were considered due to the need
for its adjacency to the existing cow milking parlour.

Likely Significant Effect

The Dairy Development is likely to cause loss of lesser horseshoe bat flight line
and loss of foraging habitats due to removal of hedging and external lighting.

Lesser Horseshoe Bats are sensitive to light, and will keep away from illuminated
areas where they are vulnerable to predation. Illuminated areas can cause barriers
to their flight paths while foraging or accessing their roost, this could eventually
lead to abandonment of the roost.

There are no Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosting within the buildings of this proposed
development.

Conservation Objectives of QTS

Glynllifon SAC is designated for its population of lesser horseshoe Rhinolophus
hipposideros bats (Annex Il species, which is the primary reason for the SAC
designation). The estate includes three summer roost sites and two hibernation sites
for the lesser horseshoe bat, comprising about 6% of the UK population. The main
maternity roost is situated in the cellars of the Glynllifon mansion house, built
during the 1830s. Within the estate, bats from the mansion forage in areas of
plantation woodland along the River Llifon and on the southern side of the estate
near to Plas Newydd. These areas also act as flight routes for bats going to other
feeding areas outside the estate boundaries. A number of other bat species are
found within the Glynllifon Estate. These include whiskered bat Myotis
mystacinus, Natterer’s bat M. nattereri, Daubenton’s bat M. daubentonii, common
pipistrelle Pipistrellus pipistrellus, soprano P. pygmaeus, noctule bat Nyctalus
noctula and the brown long eared bat Plecotus auritus.

The Glynllifon SAC also contains areas of woodland which is used by the bats as
foraging areas as well as hedgerows and other linear features used as flight routes.
The conservation objectives for the SAC are as follows:

e The natural range of lesser horseshoe bats will not be reduced, nor be likely
to be reduced for the foreseeable future.
e There is, and will continue to be, sufficient habitat to maintain the lesser
horseshoe bat population on a long-term basis.
e The three maternity roosts will continue to be occupied annually by lesser
horseshoe bats and their babies:
I.  Glynllifon Mansion (maternity and hibernation roost, Unit 16)
Il.  Peny Bont (maternity roost, Unit 36)

Page 125



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

There will be a sufficiently large area of suitable habitat surrounding these roosts
to support the bat population, including continuous networks of sheltered,
broadleaved and coniferous woodland, tree lines and hedgerows connecting the
various types of roosts with areas of insect rich grassland and open water. All
factors affecting the achievement of these conditions are under control.

These conservation objectives as well as performance indicators and a core
management plan for the site (albeit from 2008) can be viewed online on the
Natural Resources Wales website. The performance indicators largely relate to the
maternity and hibernation roosts themselves as well as maintaining woodlands and
flight lines. It refers to ‘good condition hedgerows’ as being those more than 2m
in height with no gaps over 5m in length.

Potential Impacts to Glynllifon SAC without mitigation

e Obstruction of bat flight paths & foraging habitat due to lighting
e Loss of bat flight paths & foraging habitat due to habitat destruction

These impacts could reduce functionality of the Glynllifon Lesser Horseshoe Bat
population at Glynllifon.

The proposal will not result in the direct destruction of Lesser Horseshoe Bat
roosts. Surveys of the area proposed for the Dairy Development by Cambrian
Ecology did not record any lesser horseshoe bats roosting or foraging activity in
the buildings proposed for removal. They did however record commuting or
foraging lesser horseshoe bats on all static detectors deployed.

Different locations were used for the 2021 and 2022 static detector surveys with
the majority of lesser horseshoe bat calls on the statics during the 2021 surveys on
the southern boundary of the proposed scheme, along the woodland edge, and the
majority during the 2022 surveys were on the north side of the hedgerow situated
to the north of the existing dairy centre which connects directly to SAC woodland
habitats. Significantly fewer calls were recorded on the south side of this, which is
impacted by artificial lighting.

Mitigation

The proposal has incorporated mitigation to reduce the impact to Lesser Horseshoe
Bats. Mitigation shown on the landscape plan for the development and has
included:

e Planting new hedgerows as recommended in Figure 7 of the Cambrian
Ecology Report (see below).

e Installing 2m high solid fencing on the side of the new hedges facing the
proposed development, due to the fact the hedgerows will take several
years to become viable flight paths for lesser horseshoe bats.

e Orchard planting to the southeast of the development connecting to
existing woodland.

e Use of appropriate native species for planting along with tree guards

Page 126



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

¢ Dense hedgerow planting in a double staggered row, with six plants per
m2

e Translocation of existing hedgerows (H2 and H3 references), and

e Standard tree planting in hedgerow gaps so the canopy will eventually
connect the gaps.

The planting of new hedgerows and translocation of the existing hedgerow are
designed to maintain connections around the perimeter of the Dairy Centre and
connect back into the woodland south of the development that surrounds the
Mansion House which supports lesser horseshoe roosts. A 1m high bund on which
a hedgerow is to be planted is also incorporated to create a barrier to the woodland
to the south and shielding of the Dairy Centre development from the woodland.

The lighting plans indicate the existing and predicted proposed lighting spillage
which shows limited extents of light spill as well as showing the predicted ‘dark
zones’ where light spill will be below 0.2 Lux. The lighting plans indicate motion
sensor Type EX2 luminaires (2700k ‘bat friendly’ LEDSs).

Assessment Alone with Mitigation

It is considered unlikely that this proposal will result in adverse effects on the
integrity of the Glynllifon SAC alone, provided the impact avoidance and
mitigation measures including post construction monitoring, management and
remediation (if required) are fully implemented, and once the planting has become
established. This proposal for Dairy Development has incorporated mitigation and
will not have an adverse impact to the conservation features of the Glynllifon SAC.

In-combination Assessment

In combination effects are those effects that may arise from the development
proposed in combination with other plans and projects proposed/consented but not
yet built and operational (i.e. those developments that are separate from the
baseline).

There are several other proposed planning developments and projects with the
potential to affect the Lesser Horseshoe Population of the Glynllifon SAC, these
are:

Peblig Industrial Estate

Glynllifon — Welsh Sheep Centre

Rural Hub — pre-application

Glynllifon — college commercial forestry and woodland management
Ty’n Llan Llandwrog, restaurant extension

There are numerous planning applications for barn conversions & house
renovations which are associated with Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts and
habitats.

Peblig Industrial Estate is a current planning application, yet to be determined
located along the River Seiont and is 6.5km from Glynllifon SAC. The site has

Page 127



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

many derelict industrial buildings, some of which have been found to be Lesser
Horseshoe Bat roosts. The proposal is to demolish the buildings and build new
buildings for business use. As this proposal would result in the destruction of a bat
roost, it has included the building of a bat roost and enhancing the river corridor as
mitigation. This proposal is yet to be determined.

The Glynllifon planning application for a Welsh Sheep Centre is surrounded by
the Glynllifon SAC. This proposal will not directly destroy a Lesser Horseshoe Bat
roost, it will result in the loss of a small amount of habitat, but the main concern is
the lighting and illumination of the buildings. The proposed Welsh Sheep Centre
development has incorporated mitigation which includes the provision of a bat loft
suitable for Lesser Horseshoe Bats, hedgerow planting, tree planting and habitat
enhancement and have ensured that lighting will not impact bats. This proposal has
sufficiently mitigated impacts to the Glynllifon SAC. The planning application for
the Welsh Sheep Centre is yet to be determined. The Rural Hub would result in
removal of woodland within the SAC for an access road as well as development
on an agricultural field adjacent to the SAC, involving loss and severance of
hedgerows. Following advice at pre-application stage, this proposal is very
unlikely to proceed in its current form.

Glynllifon Commercial Forest Felling & Woodland Management schemes: There
currently is a proposed 5 year management plan for forest felling at Glynllifon
which would reduce the wooded areas at Glynllifon significantly and cause the loss
of bat flight paths and foraging areas and this would result in an adverse impact
due to the loss of foraging areas and loss of connectivity of flight paths for lesser
horseshoe bats to use and impact the functionality of the Glynllifon SAC. This tree
felling scheme will not be licensed unless it ensures that there will be no adverse
impact to the Glynllifon SAC.

Ty’n Llan is a permitted planning application which has incorporated mitigation
and will enhance an existing lesser horseshoe bat roost and provided a hedgerow
for foraging and habitat connectivity.

There are numerous planning applications for barn conversions & house
renovations which are associated with Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts and habitats.
None of these will be permitted unless they ensure that bat roosts and their habitats
will be enhanced. Most of these sites were structures which were derelict and
collapsing, without renovation would result in the loss of the bat roost.

Conclusion of in-combination assessment

These plans and developments have incorporated mitigation to avoid any impacts
to Lesser Horseshoe Bats. Therefore, they will not contribute any impact to the
Glynllifon SAC. The Dairy Development Proposal in-combination with other
plans and projects will not have an adverse impact on the conservation objective
of the Glynllifon SAC.

Integrity Test & Conclusion of HRA

Page 128



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The proposal Dairy Development at Glynllifon will not have an adverse impact on
the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC.

NRW Consultation

As part of the HRA process Gwynedd Council must consult NRW. In a letter dated
20th December 2023 NRW state, that provided the development is carried out in
accordance with their recommended conditions, they do not consider that it will
adversely affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC.

Recommended Conditions to ensure that impacts to the Glynllifon SAC are
avoided

1. Glynllifon College Commercial Forestry and Woodland Management schemes
must be amended to be sensitive to the lesser horseshoe population and enhance
the habitats for this species, by creating more wooded area. The plan must be
extended for 25 years. This plan must be provided before any works take place for
the construction of the Dairy Development.

2. Before any works takes place a Construction Environmental Management Plan
must be provided. This should detail hedgerow translocation, tree planting.

3. Before construction commence, hedgerow planting and hedge translocation
must take place and be completed the satisfaction of the LPA.

4. Construction and works must only take place in day light hours and no flood
lighting is to be used during construction.

5. Once construction is complete an audit of the lighting must be carried out, with
any remediation required implemented as soon as possible.

6. Monitoring of light levels must take place three times between April-September
for the duration of the operation of the site. This report must be sent to the LPA
each time monitoring is undertaken.

7. Bat monitoring of the site once it is operational.

Historic Gardens No response.
Trust for Wales:

Public Notice was given in the press and near the main entrance to Glynllifon and nearby
Consultation: residents were informed. The advertising period has already ended but no response
has been received from the public following the statutory notification period.

Page 129



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

51

52

5.3

54

55

Assessment of the relevant planning considerations:
Principle of development

Policy PCYFF 1 of the LDP states that outside the development boundaries, proposals will be
rejected unless they are in accordance with specific policies in the LDP or national planning policies
or the proposal demonstrates that its location in the countryside is essential. The application relates
to improving the facilities of the existing dairy farm at the Grwp Llandrillo-Menai campus within
Glynllifon Agricultural College and to this end, its location in the countryside is considered
essential. It is also noted that it replaces an existing substandard construction on the application
site.

Policy ISA 3 relates to further and higher education developments that support proposals for new
facilities or extensions to existing buildings for academic or support purposes or for ancillary social,
cultural or leisure activities at a further or higher education site subject to considerations of scale,
location, design, amenity and transportation being acceptable. Priority should be given to re-using
existing sites or buildings. Note, in addition, that the sequential test should be adopted when
determining the location of proposals for further and higher education with priority given to sites
which are located: - (i). Firstly, on existing further or higher education sites; or (ii). Secondly, on
sites which have a close association with an existing campus.

The clarification to this particular policy states - The University of Wales, Bangor, Coleg Llandrillo
Menai and Coleg Meirion-Dwyfor have numerous and extensive educational facilities within the
Plan area. They make a valuable contribution to the local economy by providing employment for
local people, improving skills locally and through expenditure by students. The Council is
committed to improving the standards and availability of further and higher education facilities in
the Plan area. New developments and enhancements to existing facilities are considered necessary
to support proposed growth.

As alluded to above, the proposal is to build contemporary and modern facilities replacing existing
substandard construction on the same site for the purpose of agricultural education while boosting
the local economy. This innovative project will promote effectiveness, sustainability and excellent
standards of animal welfare within the dairy sector while also demonstrating good practice on the
sustainable management of water and waste including farm slurry within the Welsh dairy industry.
The proposal would provide potential additional income for agricultural enterprises and for Coleg
Glynllifon to play an important role in developing the dairy sector by developing a better
understanding of the commercial opportunities. It should be noted that proposed new projects by
Grwp Llandrillo-Menai provide a range of modern facilities to help develop learning, enterprise,
innovation, exchange of knowledge and the development of enterprises. To this end, therefore, the
proposal is deemed to comply with the requirements of Policy ISA 3 of the LDP.

The document TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities states:- Strong rural
economies are essential to support sustainable and vibrant rural communities. A strong rural
economy can also help promote social inclusion and provide the financial resources necessary to
support local services and maintain attractive and diverse natural environments and landscapes....
Farm plans may usefully support applications relating to farm diversification proposals, although
they should not be made a requirement of applicants. Such plans can demonstrate how the
diversified activity fits into the wider farming picture, and set out its environmental consequence,
highlighting how any significant adverse effects will be mitigated. In this particular case, the current

Page 130




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

application was submitted in order to expand and meet the needs of the Agricultural College for
the purpose of education and its important contribution to the local economy as stated above, and
in consideration of this, it is believed that the proposal conforms to the objectives and aims of TAN
6. Although the application is considered acceptable on principle, however, other relevant policies
within the LDP must also be complied with and these are discussed below.

Visual amenities

5.6 The application site is situated adjacent to the existing Glynllifon College farm buildings and forms
part of Glynllifon Historic Park with original grade 2 listed farm buildings immediately to the
South-west. A monument known as the Glynllifon Standing Stone is located on the western
boundary of the site and is at present to the rear of the slurry store. To the west is Pentref Addysg
Glynllifon (PAG) with a car park and internal road network located to the West. Bordering the site
to the North and beyond is open agricultural/pasture land. In all four directions Glynllifon
woodlands are located, with the woodland adjoining the site to the East and South, approximately
500m further to the North, while to the West the woodland is located behind Pentref Addysg
Glynllifon. The proposal will involve demolishing the existing substandard construction and
replacing it with sheds of larger scale including the erection of a bank on the western edges of the
site with two foul water ponds (one on the east side of the site and another on the west side) which
will be landscaped with wildflower wetland grass. The two sheds will be located adjacent to each
other and to the north of the existing roundhouse cattle shed. The height of the sheds would range
from 6.2m to 9.1m above ground level with a combined floor area of 4,546m2 replacing
substandard and smaller agricultural sheds and structures. In addition, the proposal will also involve
locating a silage heap to the East of the new milking parlour and adjacent to the existing silage
heaps.

5.7 The exterior elevations of the new sheds will be of traditional materials for this type of construction
including a steel corrugated profile covering; Yorkshire boards, concrete panels and natural stone
to be re-used from the existing constructions if possible; doors of timber to be confirmed and
windows to be confirmed - materials that are non-reflective. Taking into account the location of the
construction within and adjacent to existing farm buildings, along with an undertaking to carry out
a landscaping plan along the western boundary of the site, together with the fabric and elevations
of the construction, it is not believed that the proposal would have a significant material impact
within the local landscape and having regard to these elements of the application, it is believed that
the proposal is acceptable based on the requirements of Policies PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4
and PS 19 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.8 The site is situated in the middle of Glynllifon Park with one residential dwelling within the site
and two residential dwellings located approximately 30m to the east. Confirmation has been
received that these three properties are within the ownership of the applicant with employees and
the farm manager occupying these three residential units. The College Campus is located
approximately 160m to the South; the Grand Lodge (the main entrance to the College) about 550m
to the west is also owned by the applicant; Plas Newydd (including residential apartments) which
lies beyond the College grounds along with Grafog to the east which is also beyond the College
grounds. In consideration of the fact that this current proposal replaces existing agricultural
structures on the site; the fact that the dwellings near the dairy farm are occupied by the farm
workers, and the distance between the residential dwellings outside the site (taking into account the
undulating topography of the landscape combined with established vegetation), mitigation actions

Page 131



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

to be undertaken by the applicant and the continuing educational needs on the site itself, it is not
considered that the application, if granted, would undermine the residential or general amenities of
local occupants on the basis of noise disturbance and other forms of pollution such as dust, fumes,
litter, drainage and lighting. To this end, then, the proposal as submitted is deemed acceptable as it
meets the requirements of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP regarding protecting the amenities of local
property occupiers.

Transport and access issues

5.9 It is proposed to use the main College entrance off the A499 trunk road for light vehicles and the
“new” underground entrance to the main entrance for heavy vehicles as well as the private internal
road network to serve the new facilities subject to this application. Existing substandard buildings
will be demolished to create a hard shoulder and create a parking and turning space for service
vehicles/trucks. No additional parking spaces will be proposed as part of the application. The
Transport Unit had no objection to the application and on the basis of the information that has been
submitted, it is not considered that the proposal, if granted, would adversely disrupt road safety
along the trunk road or the private road network within Glynllifon itself considering that the facility
already exists on the application site and is located some distance away from the main entrance to
the College itself. To this end, then, the proposal is deemed acceptable, meeting the requirements
of Policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Biodiversity issues

5.10  The site is surrounded by the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation (SAC) as well as the
Glynllifon Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), with these designations existing along the site’s
southern and eastern boundaries and also the area extending 100m west of the application site
together with the Afon Llifon Wildlife Site (WS) approximately 400m south-west of the site. The
SAC is a European site designation while the SSSI is the UK designated site designation and the
WS designation is the local designation. Due to the importance of the statutory designations (the
existence of a designated feature, the Lesser Horseshoe Bat), the applicant has submitted a number
of ecological reports and assessments as noted in the first part of this report.

5.11  Nevertheless, in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the
Council is required to undertake a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) and Appropriate
Assessment. Under the provisions of the regulations, the Local Planning Authority has a statutory
duty to consult Natural Resources Wales when undertaking an appropriate assessment for a new
scheme or project, and is required to consider any representations made by NRW in order to
demonstrate that this particular proposal, together with the cumulative and joint effect of allowing
other developments within Glynllifon, would not undermine the SAC and SSSI designations. To
this end, an assessment was undertaken by the Biodiversity Unit which noted that the proposal
would not adversely affect the integrity of the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation (SAC). In
accordance with the requirements of the habitat regulations, Natural Resources Wales were
consulted on the Biodiversity Unit’s HRA assessment and were also of the same opinion provided
the development was carried out in accordance with the conditions recommended in their ecological
reports.

5.12  Itis also noted that Natural Resources Wales has made representations regarding other protected
species and has raised concern of a potential impact of pollution hazards to the water environment
that would arise from the proposed development and these comments are included in the above
assessment. In response to these concerns the applicant’s agent has submitted details stating: -

Page 132



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

o Further details regarding light (internal and external) mitigation measures to safeguard
protected species.

e A scheme to plant banks of trees to form continuous woodland zones and planting
wildflower wetland grass in the two foul water basins

e Landscaping and Ecology Management Plan.

¢ Building Environment Management Plan (received on 21.12.23)

5.13  In response to the information submitted by the agent, NRW says that any concerns relating to
protected species can be allayed by imposing conditions on the application when submitting a long-
term management plan and Ecological compliance audit plan. These conditions then will manage
and protect any protected species on site. In this regard, as well as receiving a favourable response
from the Biodiversity Unit to the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), it can be confirmed that
the proposal complies with the requirements of the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 and that the proposal will not adversely affect the SAC or SPA. The proposal
therefore complies with the requirements of Policies PS19 and AMG 4 of the LDP.

5.14  Onthe 7" of February 2024, the Welsh Government published an update to Chapter 6 of Planning
Policy Wales (PPW), which covers green infrastructure, net benefit to biodiversity, the protection
afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and woodlands. The amendments to PPW
have been considered alongside the comments from the Biodiversity Unit and NRW but, in this
case, they do not raise any new issues that have any significant influence on the decision and it is
considered that the content of the ecological reports along with the ability to set conditions to ensure
mitigation measures and biodiversity improvements ensure that the proposal meets the
requirements of PPW.

Heritage Assets

5.15 The application site includes ten listed buildings. It is also close to other listed buildings,
immediately adjacent to a scheduled ancient monument, partly within Glynllifon Conservation
Area, within Glynllifon registered historic park and garden (Grade I), and partly within the area
identified for the garden and historic grounds. A standing stone which is a scheduled ancient
monument is immediately adjacent to the western boundary of the application site and dates back
to the Bronze Age. A Heritage Impact Assessment has been received together with an
Archaeological Assessment in support of the application. The Heritage Assessment concludes that
this is the most suitable site for the new construction. The proposals will inevitably affect to some
extent the character, appearance and layout of the park and the overall registered historic garden,
but given the present agricultural landscape, and the presence of existing farm buildings and
structures, it is not considered that they will have an impact on this area or the general registered
area in terms of the character of the parkland or pleasure grounds.

5.16  Considering that the farm’s agricultural structures have already been altered over time and that
agricultural uses exist on the site, the proposal is not considered unacceptable. However, it may be
necessary to undertake an archaeological watching brief considering its proximity to the standing
stone itself. In response to the statutory consultation process, comments were received from
Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service stating that a condition must be included within any
planning permission regarding the need to submit details of archaeological programme records to
be permitted by the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of completion of the fieldwork.
CADW has no objection to the proposed development and, therefore, the proposal is considered
acceptable based on the requirements of Policies PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

Page 133



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The Welsh language

5.17  In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 it is incumbent in deciding on a planning
application to give consideration to the Welsh language, as it relates to that application. This is
further supported by para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021) together with Technical
Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) ‘Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities’ (adopted July 2019) provides further guidance on how
Welsh language considerations are expected to be incorporated into all relevant developments.

5.18  Certain types of developments require the proposal to include the submission of a Welsh Language
Statement or Welsh Language Impact Assessment Report. The thresholds as to when such a
Statement/Report is expected to be submitted are highlighted in Policy PS1 of the LDP together
with Diagram 5 of the SPG. With regard to the types of developments involved, it is noted that an
educational development as submitted here would not be subject to a language statement.
Nevertheless, the applicant has submitted a statement that refers to the Welsh language by noting
as follows: -

e Any sign erected would be bilingual.

e The proposed creation of a National Sheep Centre here at Glynllifon, if allowed, would be
a valuable asset to the agriculture industry (sheep and dairy industry) and to the future of
the College.

o A large part of the facility’s students would be local or from this part of north Wales and
would be bilingual.

In this regard, then, the intention is deemed acceptable on the basis of the requirements of Policy
PS 1, the relevant SPG together with the advice contained within TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh
Language.

Sustainability issues

5.19  Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments consistent with the principles of
sustainable development, and where appropriate, developments should: “Reduce the need to travel
by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all users to travel when required as often
as possible by means of alternative modes, placing particular emphasis on walking, cycling and
using public transport in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 4”.

5.20  LDP policies are seen as consistent with national planning policies in terms of how they approach
the principles of sustainable development. Paragraph 3.39 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Issue
11, February 2021) states: “In rural areas most new development should be located in settlements
which have relatively good accessibility by non-car modes compared to the rural area as a whole.
Development in these areas should embrace the national sustainable placemaking outcomes and
offer good active travel connections to the centres of settlements to reduce the need to travel by car
for local journeys.”

5.21 This is supported by paragraph 3.11 of Technical Advice Note 18: Transport which states:
“Development in rural locations should embody sustainability principles, balancing the need to
support the rural economy whilst maintaining and enhancing the environmental, social and
cultural quality of rural areas. Most development should be located in places accessible by a range
of travel modes.”

Page 134



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024
REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.22  The applicant has submitted details stating the following information: -

o The College is accessible from the A.499 highway which connects the Caernarfon bypass
with the Llyn Peninsula.

e There are bus stops near the main entrance to the College which are already used by
students attending the educational facility.

e Students would continue to use the new facility as at present.

5.23  In addition to site accessibility, an Energy Conservation Statement was submitted to support the
application which refers to an energy conservation strategy along with the adoption of low carbon
modes and renewable energy sources as part of the construction of the proposed sheds. In this
regard, then, the proposal is deemed acceptable based on the requirements of Policies PS5, PS 6
and PS 14 of the LDP as well as complying with the advice contained in the TAN 18 document and
Planning Policy Wales, 2021.

Section 106 Agreement matters

5.24  The Pentref Addysg Glynllifon (PAG) building is located to the west of the site and under a S106
agreement to the planning permission granted to this building in 2010, within a specific area
designated on the plan as part of the application for the Education Village, no new buildings or any
extensions or alterations to buildings may be erected, and no mineral, mining or engineering work
may be carried out. A piece of land that falls as part of the site of this application is also situated
within an area that forms the S106 agreement for Pentref Addysg Glynllifon. It should be noted
also that Natural Resources Wales’ comments included a request for an undertaking as part of the
S106 agreement to include certain areas within the scheme for bat conservation purposes.
Discussions are ongoing regarding the terms of the S106 agreement, however, should the
recommendation be to permit the proposal it would be possible to ensure that a condition be
attached to the application to protect and create bat conservation areas. In this regard, it is
considered that the proposal could be deemed acceptable in terms of the requirements of Policy
PS2 of the LDP relating to infrastructure and developer contributions.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Considering the above assessment in its entirety, it is deemed that the proposed erection of a
livestock shed together with a milking parlour and ancillary facilities to include an additional silage
heap and indoor dry manure storage, a landscaping bank, two dilution water basins together with
associated works on this particular site within the Agricultural College holding would be a positive
response to the need to upgrade and enhance existing facilities as proposed by the College. In
assessing the application full consideration was given to the comments and responses received from
the statutory consultants. Based on the above assessment, the intention is not considered to be
contrary to local or national policies and there is no relevant planning issue that outweighs these
policy considerations. Therefore the proposal is deemed to be acceptable subject to the inclusion
of the following conditions.

7. Recommendation:

7.1 That the application be approved subject to the following conditions: -

Page 135



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5 years.

In accordance with the documents and plans submitted as part of the application.
Submission of external elevation details.

Submission of asbestos details prior to demolition

Compliance with Part 5 (Interpretation and Advice) of the Ecological Impact Assessment
document together with the Shadow Species Regulations Assessment and comments by the
Biodiversity unit.

Completion of the landscaping plan within a specified period.

Compliance with the content of the Arboricultural Assessments.

8. The standard conditions of Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service regarding
submission of details of an archaeological recording programme initially, and following
this, the submission of a detailed report of the archaeological work within 6 months of
completing the archaeological work at the site.

arwdE

~No

Page 136



P acas s

Cynllunio

sty 03 0229

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

i e

Ry

et
CGrwp Liandrilo-Menai

Diry Devalopment Projecd -
Campws Ghyllifon

Site Location Plan

Zor " P

Asindiated EC AJ

23.05.2022

0000 _rev P08

g Bt e B D i Kt

e oz sy
_ wetkina:




P e SIS W

T cenERAL NOTES

ety

N LT b S S g A T
L
-

o 2y

W b Pt 41 b s s i e o
wgers.

SRR o T MR i )

R ket Shrte i b

s e ek i 1
s it

P

B e S S
\ T s s ot o e ek s e e bt

B g T i

PRI ™ i i ¢ KA .

Cynllunio

Derin 04152 28 TR N

5

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Pian -

— Ot By

—agicatcn Buindzy

T Spacia doma of Consanvaton § 5551

{77 vematean

t:

Afor

Dty Formn (o £ 5 s

Pripnsad Damolion Pran DDP-GAP-£1-22.DR-A 0002
mmmmmmmw

Shmy Tank East (Zono £ o

Pruposed Deolin Plan DDP.CAP.£1.22.0ADI000%

Shiry Tank West (one E4) ;

Praposec Dealien e DOF-GAP-4-22 OR-A-GI000S

P4 Plannig lstve (ariévdrienl] 28
i3 Plnnng lewe fLE -
P2 Planning Frakppicabon [siue a7
PO Dralt s for e plaaning consublion Zosam
Fere Doserpiion RLiRDh D
Sahus

§2 - Fit for Information

Crasatisation

Confidential

Cliat.

Grwp Llandrillo-Menai

Dairy Dvalopmeit Project -
Campws Glynllifon

=
Existing Block Plan

Snaa @A Eraun o
Asindicated EC AJ EC

ey =
C5/098555-70 23.03.2022
iy o R R R

DDF-QAP-OG-ZZ-DR-A'-OWIJMEQ_%
\\\l)

Architecture
ings Orchard, | men 3¢ Briated BEZ 43, Ut Kingéom

W
| wsrusimesa




Key
— e dacia;
— e

[

T — Progesd Sisge Camp
v

. Tankmcoletie, s fesiatrg o
~ new ana siage Susal iom CaMDS POy Tud]

46 md minimam +10%

Praased Diy Manuro Siarags

P 10 e

[—p—

Soned up woityard ares Fobawing cemlison
ol exisiog cuw shed and oiher sriceres

= il accass peicd

o Futrs sarcrmte Gad wih neer

S Mom et e ok and gl e
undereunt |mmlmmma
exisling faedbin platfaem

Cynllunio

)

Dy Pl Broided -
Campws Giyallfon

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan Proposed Sie Pan

o

I
Agindicated EC A E

(5108855570 23.03.2022

DCR-WSP-

'\\s|)

000 ey 05 -

..... : i i L W o 1 e BN b Ko
&0 oam 158m 200m

s
- - o etk

Proposed Site Plan f i ' ) ' ) i ) - 7 - 5 5 TR
e i ; i

P ad




a0an vk

ot T obed

Tureg s nd dlveris
= Iooncelel
o
art areas 10 s Gaeslped by ahers 7

Vg B sniling tiasal sk and
e e Lrdegraund 153,000
el 1Nk O e adsing lesdben
patom

v i
i
F
Fd
'
:
- e
g
. 7
i g o
it
# . o
Cynllunio : i
kg D022 o A
o i 5

[ Cynilun Diwygiedig |
7 Amended Plan |

/‘i\ Preposed Block Plan
1 500

[ e ——————

Key
— s ey
— b

[T s o om0
L ——

[

[ED oo b S e 2
[ e mangts 1

— e

[ Aot e

ot sam
i ' stman
H6 bt b s s nmaa
FI2 - Focang P ncn e P
At Lot b e g o e
T Darpten i
S

S Rl
Ei-omn};enﬂal

Gt
Grwp Liandrilo-Menai

Dy Development Projsct -
Campws Glyallfon

Proposed Block Plan

e

S T
Asindicated EC AJ

EC

E;DQSESS-TD 53.03.2022
S AR o
WS I )

Architecturs

Bt 1 e Bl BT Y o i
Taxeca e ariens

VP L L




s

TyT obed

P e Bt

Cynllunio

Derty

Proposed

Cynllun Diwygiedig Swale
Amended Plan
| Proposed
Detention Basin
/ Privony s acenss raad
5 ‘Hedgetobe""-.
& 7 tran nted into
v .
V.
) \«’/ v
Standing \\
stone /.
~ Sl boundary

Courtyard

> H3on 1m high

Main Fire Service
Access Points.

Fire Exit

Muster Paint

Fire Egress Route

Indicative Fire Hydrant
Location

O Key Access Points
o

Facility for fire engine 1o enter and turn
without reverswing more than 20m.

Fire Brigade has access to more than
15% of perimeter of the building via

road and concrete path.
P4 Plang lssve (aniendian(] g
63 Planmg e 9008022
PUZ Plinning Pranopicabon lssue o7 2
PO Dreft ke forpr pianning consubalion msxn
Rew Doserplion. (=0

Satus
§2 - Fit for Information
Clasaeation

Confidential

éwr;vp Llandrillo-Menai

Proect
Dairy Development Project -
Campws Glynilifon

i’lre Strategy Site Plan
s Erzun Chocaed  Approvet

1:500 EB EC JD

CS/098555-70 17.05.2022

Doy Warifer
T

DODP-CAP-22 - ZZ E!;K 0‘5:‘001 _rev ;;4
\\‘\l )

Architecture
¥ange Orchard, 1 Queen S5, Brisiot BEZAHG, Unfisd Kingsom

W i camen g
WP UK Lmeed

e e, e

S




et

0 Scmgheon 4 S a2 st v,

D a0 s
=

s Ak DO AP 2

Py
e e

Fun f

A e R ey

B b = R O Tt i 1 e s

Pt 1O A Ao B e S ot
e oA BOPTAP B MR 1 P
e et .

R

gt L ombic iy b4 O

- Ftiem i
&

i b g i o,
s i P b iy

B0r.
(AR 220 A 950 o) i iy

I SN 7 G A B

LA T b Lo

e S50 Singe gvoe wses el s
oo e < BORAP)

Sl A
. Bt bl i g § S i ™
T e ok G oy :
| R ¥ |
= 7 R -l:—mummhﬁ'—l-_gr
L =N T S
| | \ :'*k i o B P ot 42 v
| J . ) s o
— o Extn o e O
Rt L] i o S -
i o
£ i “ —
, i el
LN ‘
| I
g
I 1 \
ok v sdone g Ty
e, - — — _
. ) £ (LR ea— ot
i | o N . == priforicy i
=, 7 P T T e o e ]
e e MY P e P
I I oy W e Pl Dol et (o 0T A
| | 3 pe
| 1l = reres S w4
SR OF s o e 1 b .
PR Grwp Liandrilo-Menai
| - o oncari;
| | =
j Dairy Development Project -
Campws Ghynllifors
Cynllun Diwygiedig - Indicative Mixing Point
Cvnll ———————
Amended Plan yniiunio A ———
Dertryn 18.10.23 Farm
] |
, T T — T
| PR Asindicaled  EC
| ‘ C3/008555-T0
] | # DOF-WEP- 21 - 00 - DR - & - 050005 _rev POS
| \\\l )
I
Architecture
om 10m Q0 s ow 1 Seendt Bkl BERAG Lr d Kigam

1hsctea e vy

R




VDWWI oy S
vnw
e T T R T Ty e e b e e e T raLgr
T IlIlIJIIH I
: 1 i
\J East Elevation
1:100
B
e Cynliun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan
-
Exiod S Pk
-
Cynllunio
e Disitigh 154523
. e
> e T e e
2 i omm
G o
Sy S e
o 2 Fato iomaton
E:.o:wﬂr;ﬁenw
_a‘wnLlaMrlMenai

Campws Ghyllifon

e -

o) T
Agindicated EC

€5/088555-70 23.05.2022
ok

wpooo

ure.
W B 1 S Bk ML LN W g

1hsctea e vy
| vkl




1A DRIPANGCALEREL KA G0 X3 Pl G068 PO DR, et S Shcle e 021 SIS 2y L it

bed

' I, Basin

transplanted into
original location

4 following laying of
- drainage pipe "

5

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Plan

Round House  _ %

DONOT SCALE
ey

Native Standard Tree Planting
SPECES G Planied oghl__| Mataeheigh, | Ciarsion [ Type | We E Piceoesd She Blintary
(Bp) Betuiz penduia T0-T2om | 300-380m G 15-20m | 175200m | BR 7
(Cbj Carpius behs 10-T2m | 300-350cm Grea 2o Ts2iem | BR T Progested wethund wildfiower grass
e seed to be <ut onice per yeer in fate
T0f2om | 306950 GG 2w 7520em | BR 7 Sepembier/ eauly Ot 10 3 height of
T o Ao, Remave wisngs
(—/WWWWWW B
Proposed reed plating
c Reed Planting IZI
Spedies  Specification | Density] Mix | ho. €
{ |[Prragmies assirate ook red) |15 [aw [so% | 100 - Frrpisad Miondiand Pog
Phakars anndinacea (eed canary grass) | 1L 2w eo% |00
it P Sogtibes Phact W SIEUEh v s (e ] 1 S B Proposed Native Stargdord tree planting|
e DPP-GLHDH KX-DR-L-0003)
Native Hedgerow Planting E Broposediseation o transpisntes
SPECES Feigh | Spadficaion Wi [m |2 R i
Roereampeste | B0-800m | B, 11 Transplnt - seed raise % | @ (81 70
Corlus avillana | 60-B0cm | B, 192 Transplant - seed rased, branchad, 3 brks 0% | vas |56 | V6 | E Propoed Hative hedae
Cratsegus monogyna| 60-80cm | B; 141 Transplant - seed raised A ER e
g sougim 080G | L Leader whh lalerals N CIN G t';“ﬁ*“'“’“"""”'“ Flang,
Rosa canina B E0Gn | B 1+1 Transpiant ceed rased tranad dbs (6% |19 |40 |40 s BT
Vibumumcpdus | E0-B0Gm | B 1+E Transplant - seed raised, branehad, 3 b T |1 |40 |40
Existing w be retaied
e = I R
il [CE=5] Tree Root protection mones and tree
15 refs, Kefer o Amenity Care Tree
N3 survey Constraints Report and
R @ Arboticultural Impact Assesiment
O ) 7 Vagetation to b ramoved autside the
0 bird nesting séasen {Mareh - Rugust)
24 ori gutside this periad » nesting bird
gls check is to be undertaken by an
ecoiogist
o O C [
— = tobe transplanted
Species Rich Grass Mix || f
P mrvem———" | i Feoposed Stackprood fence
(see drawing
SPECIES: S WX Hedge Planting Disgram DPP-GLH-00-X¢-DR-L-D004)
Achillza milefoum 2.0% S
- Propoced 1m high selid timber fence.
Wicia satva 08% E T b mintained until the hedge has
ks pseudaoonus % o l: esablishied and provides screening
Méﬁp Tupelli T We“aﬂd Grass Mu from artificial lights. Once removed
0 prlica: 20% fanca to b reglaced with stackproct
Eeaci 1% oo e e W WG Vi) i B Taneing
Frunalia wigars 1% | SPECES o MIX Pecvisional 2m high solid timber fance
Ritinanihus minor 19 ‘Sanguisodha minor 8% should transplanted hedge fai and new
Taityrs pratens i Puiltaria oysentenca 05% e s
Trigium oratense 2% Filpenduda ulmaria 5% Praposed legf brash pile
Lythrum 1.5%
Triloum sopa: 2.2% SR For planting informatian rafer ta nates on drawing
Carastum fontanum 0.1% s Preudsconss | a0 DPP.GLH-O0-XX-DR-L-0002
TaraxatUm offitnae Y Lotus Lginosus D1%
Lonis somiuiatis 1% E Po%
mingr 1% Beun rivale 02%
Witia cracea 0.5% Juncus effusis 1.5%
Ranuncutus actis 0.8% Carex pendula 0% W | 1A | 15 | P e B | |
Cantaurea scabioss 05% LLotus comi 24% = | BTk KmeL W ek i e
> > — il
Antfriscys sybesii 1% 2 B | S0 | | Ssidtent emannt e A
Lakum perenne 10% Rawnculus atrs 0.5% | e | 0 | isatrphenky ¥ |
ermaiﬁa“ 25% Trickom i i A% Pi| GO | F | ek L s
Fesluca rubra ltoralis 15% Festuca b Horale 1% v | OATE | BY | CESCRETION Gt | APP
FPoa pratensis 15% Cynoslinus tistalus 1% —
Trsetum favescens 35 Pos praiwese 424 52 - FOR INFORMATION
Frp—— W Feshuca arundnacea %
Agrostss capilans 45% Festuca rubra commutata. 10%
Phicurn bertoioni an Deschamps:a tespitosa T5%
im0 T s T ! \\ \ I )
Native Woodland Mix
':zi{gc_\g;; HEIGHT | SPECIFICATION P i 751 T2 T53 | e . ML TR
Aris gutrass | GO-Boc | B, 192 Uaimspian - 506 raied ESE *“‘Mm
Castarea safiva | 50-00cm | B; 1+2 warsplan - soed raised 1% | 188) 26 | 10|
Queicus robur GO-B0CT: | B: 192 DarSpan - 3060 raBed 0% J70531 |7 K [aee
Ceataogas §0-B0cm | B; 192 arsplan - ssed raiesd, beanched 3brks | 207 (211 61| 1 Grip Uandrito Mensi GLLM
Coryhis aeelana | 60-90cm | B; 122 iransphant - saed resed branched 3 beks | 20% 4 211[ 61| 19 |
e aquitohom 60-80cm | 5L, eadar wih aterdis ES B
‘Sobus aucupars | 60-80cm | B; 141 ranaplant - seed rased 0% {10531 |7
Tooe clertel of STRRLET
Dairy Devekapment Project
Faoposad hedge Campuns Gy
planting
Pmposed inpermeaie. 1 high b e
Proposad Landscape Blan
Srest 1 ofl
i e o =
R S /‘V_x\// T & e
) \(\_ SN S = a3 |m &
R < & AR Ed ¥ TR
G NS
S =T =
Sesice thiough bund DPP-GLA-00-X(-DR-L-0001 I PO5
Scae 1:50

@ WSP UK Ltd

T o

) i G Sy M LT R S et



[ DONOT SCALE

Maiive Standard Tree Planting ¥ex

SPECES Girh Plaried Reight | Makurs naigit__| Clearsem [ Typa | Wo I Pragosed Native Stondare tree plating
[Bp) Belis perculs T0-T2an | 300350 A 15-am | 17sa0ion | BR 5 {See drawing DPP.GLH.00-XX-DR-L0G03}
53] Sorbus autupara 10-12an 300-380cm drca 10m 175-20om | BR &

{003 Cuieicus pelraea 12| 30-askn “roa T T75200em | BR 3

E Frososed Notive hedge

.. | #ronased stockproot fence
(5ee driwing DPP-GLH-00-XX-BA-L-0004)

o b ekt ot v T e g el s g P8 LR GG

Native Hedgerow Planting
SPECES gt Spaicaton Mx | H3 | H4
R campesie B0-80cm_| B, 1+1 Transplent - sved raised 19% [ 70 | 150
Carylus avellana G800 | B, 1+2 Tranepiant - 6oad 1se. Brancheg, 3 brks. A (25| 6 |
Craregus manogys 60-80cm | B, 1= Transmlant - sees mised 5% |10 | 375 ' . H
5L Contr v EARE] Cynllun Diwygiedig
#1 Transplant - Seed raised: branched 3 s ENEIED
2 Trangplanl - send rae, bR, 3 biFS, CEED KD Amended Pfan
T

SPECIFICATION NOTES
D PRE ATION: PLANTING W
it i S ccio:o A —— Cynllunio
musting roes m be soTaittely Mmowed Dy SUMp gANGRG! gribing (MAMod depanding on presence of Al piants to be Brilsh Pravanance and natve plant stock 1vae fram local provanancs area 30 soad zone areas 303, A provenance
undarground uitns). Exisling vogstaion mmaval i nat 1o be rmovnd during the bird nissting atason which  cartficats 1o be suaplsd, All planting shall ba ool digped 8t e nursary. Gontiactor o give 7 ays aohos for plarling opsrations
Aypicaly extends bebween 151 Manch - 3st July  Brd nesting howewer can start as eady i1 Mid Feb er extend  and inform Overseemg Organisation of plant delivery to sie. Derbyn 18.10.23
i August, A check for nesting Biris prar a sils clearance warks i mausd
A application of herbitid 1o areas i be seedad s ba uidetaken, beteedn # and 75 diys prior i B oot plants priar i despateh o on armval 3 site iy be stoed upto 3 days = bundias with 3 covaring of fresly drining mosture’
s0odng, WABrT te area o e reated with nertkecs has been cul the Gontrastor shall await active fatorive malonal UCT ag wat 5aking or Sraw, For Storage bayond 3 oavs, bundies sNal b ogenad and plants spread out and nealod
vegetative re-growt suffcent for the hirbicda 10 be a it mes! effective Befors agplying the hedicide nta trenehes 1 fopsod, min depeh 300me wih raots fully 1 Contact with tha soil, Plants fransported In plasiic bags must be storsd one

fayar doep 1 2 600l shady 500t for ane Ay For SIMBgE KINGer Nan | dRy HANTs.3re 0 DR NeNeT i EAChas a5 J950bad.
Trea rool proleaticn areas o be protecied By ke probactian fencing in accardance wih BSSE37-2012 rees in
relaton 1a design, demaiiion & consinyction, Coniainer plants. 5hall b Maintained UpTgre.one layer deap, watered a5 faquiied and pratscted fram frost and shollared from wind
Centainars ta complataly compast Any plinks which hiawa ksl mon than 10% compost shall be replased. A1
Bubsoil Treatment to areas fo be seeded: The sal shall be dpped, using a rpping fine o subsall pleughin  containe-ised piants shal be Iorughly somked pror to paning
‘areas 1o ba steded. Thi minimum dapth of tealment shal be 450mm

Wiatering fn be undertaien immedintily after planking. All canes, wragping, Iabels, fastening et shall be removed off S
Soil Depths: Minimum soil depths ar ss folows:

* Swales and Detention Basin - Minitern 1500 subsoll o low utient soil o Drensge Exgineers Phaning Tites: T be underaan in lavowabie weather s soil codilions
‘spacification = Buve rooted or rmotball decducas iraes and shrbs: Late Octoter b fate March.
+  Reeds tobe plantsd i sandy loam lpsti 1 & depih of 400Mmm with 20% sdded campast Evergreans; Septemben Ockober or Apeil' May.
«  Container can be ol time: f ground ‘candiians are fvaurble howeser the mest fwarale
O site soil shall be used whate poasble. Where then s & shartige, imposted subsoil shell be Cenesal limes e stated bave,

Purpase Grade canorming ko BS B0
Standard Tree Plonting: To be planled in spsordance with details shown on Drawing DDP-GLH-00-50%-DR-L-0003

Final Preparstion of Soils: Tha tap 6dmm of all sail to be rsdused I & fine Hih with sl undesirable matesial

Brought lo e surface including stones larger then SOem i any dimension, ools, tufls of grasss and keign Hedge Transplanting: Any redgerows on Be devalopment focterind shal be ransolanted 1o locatons 8 shown, fhe best lime s

AT 5 40 e rireined off St early pTN ST 1S 1347 ISt OF SEy BUIITA G wesks Dstore e Evecege date of the finst Srose. Wallsr tha S01 Wharcghsy 3 day pror
o sxcavelion and trm Ihe foiisge by 173, Dig the hedoe deep and wide keeping a8 much ool growth 88 possibie especielly fap roots.

Finlshed levals of material afier setemant shell De 0307 above adjoining pevigs. kerbs and Keeq 196 BOll 20uNd e 100l sySEM,  Dig 8 VEncn in e naw 10035KN Ensurag (L 5 IWICa 65 Widk &6 158 1001 6y518M enEuTing e

marnokiserices Lovers. B s planled b e sams decks s &5 previousty. Add 20% compoel ke the backfibed soll and firmly bred in, Water Ihoraughly

Anid 30 A AT SoRITEN of 10U fertiiar. KRaR N6 500 Mart {101 Wa 10r 34 weeks) 10 Naif e fa0ME ra-astadlisn hamsenes.
e e e e e N

e

% Orchard Tree Transplanting: Orchard tees are o be liansplanted In iheir domant perod befors they nave staned developing tuds
E

(GRASS SEEDING:

ration: In a7eas to be seadad e 50 shall ba cultvated to crests 8 fine Fisble seedbed down 4o
950mm in daplh, immediataly prior t sowing the upper Sdmm of soil snal be reduced & 3 fina

Wl Now - Fabi, Waler the soil Borcughly s day pros I excavaton, Maks a isnch on B1e ntsids sdge of the canopy and tig down
B00mm 1o Meke sure you'e galanng ¥ the major 10ot, Use & shar spads fo cut any mnor rools. Wrap (e root tell In gamp b
antl you can pient it snony ahar.

‘Seading: Wesand Widllowar Grass Areas Seed Mix 10 be WEGEH (Walland and Pond Asers) 1o be sown 8t 3
rate of Sgm’ ©ig 2 teae p 10 wice tha width of #1a frut sree’s currant roat system; ensuring the 1o of rot Bal i avove piaming grade, Hosd tha
s i & bt swhien fling i Ena planting hole 10 sllcw noses il b fall undes and around Ky mats and 1o centar the tes and keep it
‘Girnss: anon 1o e BOWN are 151 MAFOA 10 3151 May o 160 SepleTace 10 316 Oolober 006 graund has
drsnpd It is rocommerded that spad is SO durirg pevods of gAon weathor 1o teduon the sk of un oft
(peearably sow in the spring).

SUAKNL. Tamp down 16 &l 1o FMOYE air POCHSLS. ANGINGT way of movng air POCKSIS & 1 84K WaleT gradualy 65 You Dackil tha
praneing hoin, Tis. wil e the root ball sellle proparly. Add 20% compost 15 ihe backiind sa and firmly Itead in. Water haroughiy
and add a light sokation o liqud fortiiser. Add 75mm bark mulsh from the rees base 1o 5 eutermost leaves. Keep the sf mofst (nol

¢ wet tor 3-4 waaks} ta Halp tha racts re-aslatiish femseives.

Sands shall e distriided by camying o tw equal sowhgs al ight angles 1 sach other and diagonally 1o

mian auis ke  depsh of 10mm (mmediatsty firm i wih a i, or by reading, 1o give good sail’ ssed contact Staks If required (S8 drawing DDP-GLH-00-X%-DR A 0003}

]
Z
2
3
g
il
H
3| (Do ot incorperate or cover the seed)
2 Any Irisas fhat fad ace to be repiaced and planted 95 per cetail on drewing DOP-GLH 00 XX DR 0093 WW) Pi | ISEENGS | (F | e ens Sluing RN cotmnes & |
5| Estabiistment Cuts: Grass shil s cut bistwesn March - Sepiember A e e N gl A P B A 5 (. [ it T
£ Hadge Planting: Hedges shall be planted in trenches 600 mm wide: & 300 mm dess, Tha deptn of cultvaton at the tase of the pit
3 Firat vear . Mow niewly aughout the firs yaar of hesght af shall be 150 mm. Hidge Irenches shall be backilled wih a are-mixed 8% tonsoil 20% compast mixhare. A hedges ans o 16 | A | | Pl e
£l a0.80mm, remowing cullings. This wil contrel anfual weeds and e mainiain balance between faster paned in a4 3 density of v per 1 in 3 double shaggened row. Set out plants svenly (see hedge planiing disgram). with speces Hev | DATE | BY | CESCRETION G | APP
| arowing prassen and slowsr daveloping wid e, mixad throughout s indicaled on planting pians. Plants may nend stakng’ supparing shoud windrock bacoma an isua.
g et e e A A o i e NN e
Bl Carfuly dig out or spat reat any residual panarvial woeds such as docks Racd Planting: Reeds o be piantad in groups in sandy laam topsail 403mm deap pestianed in wattast parts of detantion bagn, 20 52 - FOR INFORMATION
F cOmnsL i 10 be @00k 10 B S0 o rekan Moo and Drovas NULIENE R Sl whith (6eds requine 10 Survive, pH of 561 Showd be
2| manTENANCE: batwarn 8.4 -6 8. Koop plznis well wakered whist astablhing
g - A N D S
| Watering: To e undertaken st intervals necessary Wroughout the Contract o ensure that grass conlinues fo Mulching: Antiy 3 medium grade bark mulch: 1o pianiing areas deoeh of 75mm. Belore spplication of any muich Ihe sianting sreas
£ e ahell e ek of grasss and weed Growih 24 shall B walemd 1o fiEd Capacty
3 Weed Coniral. To be Undaraken on & monlhly basis during ihe growing sassan By Nendpuling Stock Fencing with rabbitmare netting: Stock fenchg to sncioss granig arsas. Refer (o Block Fenoe diawing \\ \ )
5 DOP-GLH-00-KX-DR-L-0004
Grass Culling: In tha second and subseguent years Wikdflowar Grass i 1o be <l orce per year in fele
§|  Septarmvert nany Ocaner 1 & height o1 #orvn. Ramovs ansings PLANT MAINTENANGE:
X o B Frat Seet Manchesier 1S 4RP LK
Faliure of Gras: For the duraen of the Contract a0y grass a1eas that have taied or have bscome paichy The Plantng is to be mamtained for a & year period post oractical comaietian, T a4 40} 151 2005000
‘shall be re-seeded In the next sutable season at the Contractors exparise b wpi
8 ‘Wanaring: To be undertaken immacately aftar pinling and al IMErvals necassary Mrougnodt tie CAnirack 1o ensare 1hat DanME/rass =
§ continue o thrie \?i"\u\
Wead Controk To e undedalen an a manthly ¥ hand: Woeds ta 395, thistie sps, mgwart seF Gk Lindeilo Henl GLLM
g sendect srab, cotoneaster. Rhodocardron 1o be conlrotied by culling. Snould any nvasiss wesds be found durmg the diration warks —
2 s i5. 1 be repanted to the Oversesing Organisation and contml methads © be agresd, Hedges Planted as ol
Fortlisers Stow roleass forlses 5 ba appind 1o pransn pits in March o gt part of Sheep Centre S
T
Hedge Maintenance: works Q-/
s Year 1. Lightly lnm sds branches to ancourage bushing out. (Fab! March & June-Aug) /n\’ Dairy Develapment Project
* Yewr . Cut back mavmum 50% of the pravious years growth in Feb) March. In the summer tim side brarches o malabai siles Carepis Gy
it taper bewands the g - 5/
 Year d crwands in Jand Fab Hedge to be cut fo i a0 form, lewing 4 #
appaarance, pruning lap of hedge 35 required o Traintain desired haight of bebwsen Im. Hedges o be malntened by sither 7
culling one side of the hedge and laving ane side for wikdife, or operating 2 23 year cutting rlation. Arsings o be colected s g
and removed i recycing facity.
* Ay section of nedge hat hos besorme outgrawn I bie extent whers gaps Deut o e i 8 ok of density o the bass should be. Propocad Landsczpe Plan
-U 10 oF coppoee in wnber (November to Feanary) Shext2otl
5 Mulch: Tap up muleh annually b 75mn depth (Marchy 5
Q _ - = =
Plants snd Supports: Plants shal be refimmed pariodically periculady s%r any disturbancs sirang winds st hasve etc. Check _— "
gQ stakes! ties for loonsness, bresk of decay and reglace any defective fems on sanwe dey. Remaoval of stekes (Typcally 1manths) snd
it sheliers guands {Years 3-5) once plaats have sstabished and 1o longer ecuired. ka— ki .
S E
(D Plant Replacements: For the durstn of s Contact &1 plents which are missing, are damages, have died, ar are faiing 1o make o
salisfactory exlension growth, shall be reptaced in the nest pianling season &1 he Conlraciors erperse.
DPP-GLH-00-XX-DR-L-0002 | P03
- H ECOLOGICAL MEASURES: Log! Brash Piles 7
g 3 snatiw hee S00MM deap. Icsely fil wih SrGar iogs and bicks 50 e Are 1015 o gaps and Man smal lngs/Iwigsrashsal on
1A [ s © WSPUKLW
= m-mm. [T T —p—————






LT abed

g@ﬂ_]yﬁiinﬁﬂ@mmr@!mnau?




Page 148









Page 151



Page 152



Agenda Item 5.4

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 4
Application C23/0917/14/DT
Number:

Date Registered: 16/11/2023

Application Householder

Type:

Community: Caernarfon

Ward: Menai

Proposal: Full renovation of existing house, proposed new garage,

proposed photovoltaic system, landscaping and flood
mitigation measures as well as demolition of existing
outbuilding

7, Marine Terrace, Porth Waterloo, Caernarfon, Gwynedd,
LL55 1LP

Location:

Summary of the
Recommendation:  TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 153


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=29446
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=29446

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 This is a householder application for alterations and modifications to a property to include
landscaping, flood prevention and installation of the proposed photovoltaic system. An existing
outbuilding will be demolished and a new garage will be built in its place on a location to the
north of the site and will measure 6.1m X 8.5m. Opposite the new garage a solar panel
arrangement will be installed on the former location of the outbuilding. This arrangement will
consist of 4 lines of solar panels facing south to benefit from the sun's rays. Landscaping will be
carried out on the site including creating a new footpath from the Menai Straits to the new garage
passing the existing garden building on site. A new vehicular entrance track will also be installed
in front of the existing property up to the proposed garage. Trees will be planted on the northern
flank of the site. In addition to this flood relief works will be provided on site. These will include
two flood gates on the boundary of the property with the Menai Straits.

1.2 In discussing the changes to the property the largest proposed changes will be internal, including
the use of the existing connecting garage as a kitchen and dining room and changing the
arrangement of some of the existing rooms, but there are some changes to the exterior elements of
the property. There is no change to the overall floor area size of the property but a section of the
ridge roof will be extended down on the south-eastern elevation which means it will extend over
the outer wall to create shade. There will be changes to the north-eastern elevation including a
slate diamond pattern finish and a new window arrangement will be created with the addition and
repositioning of several windows. On the north-western elevation the proposed first-floor balcony
will be extended to run up to the boundary of the property, and it is proposed to provide two open
porches at the rear of the property.

1.3 The property is located near the Menai Strait at the far end of a row of residential houses on
Marine Row, Port Waterloo. Due to its location near the water the Development Advice Maps
state that the property is partly within the boundaries of flood zone C2 as well as within zone 3 of
the flood maps for the latest planning. The property is located outside the Caernarfon
Development boundary as set out in the LDP.

1.4 The application is before the Planning Committee because of a family connection with one of the
planning officers.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017

TRA 2: Parking standards
Page 154



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Mitigate and adapt to the impacts of climate change

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping Policy

PS19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment

ARNA 1: Coastal Change Management Area

ADN 2: PV Solar Energy

AMG 3: Protecting and improving features and qualities that are unique to the character of the

local landscape.

2.4 National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Technical Advice Note 12 - Design.

Technical Advice Note 15 - Development and Flood Risk

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 Not relevant.

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council:

Transportation Unit:

Natural Resources Wales:

No objection noting that the Committee acknowledged that the
application is an an area of high risk (Unanimous)

I refer to the above application and | confirm that the transportation
unit does not have any objection to the development.

We do not oppose the proposed development as submitted and we
provide the following advice.

Flood Risk

The site is partly within zone C2 in accordance with the
Development Advice maps that correspond to TAN 15:
Development and Flood Risk. The site is also shown to be partly
within flood zones 2 and 3 for the Sea in the more recent mapping
known as Flood Maps for Planning (which accounts for the impacts

Page 155




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

of climate change).

The applicant has commissioned a Flood Outcome Assessment
(Waterco Limited), October 2023) which considered the risk of
flooding from the sea and provides suggested flood mitigation
measures. It is noted and accepted that the proposal is for the
householders' renewal of the existing house and does not create a
new unit that is highly vulnerable (figure 2 in TAN15).

We note that the extreme sea level marks used (for 2018) are a mark
point at the Menai Strait entrance along the coast off Fort Belan and
quote a value of 3.51m AOD. Please be aware that the source of data
used (DEFRA 'Coastal Design Sea Levels - Coastal Flood Boundary
Extreme Sea Levels' (2018)) has values for estuaries including along
the Menai Strait. There is a mark point off the town of Caernarfon
where the river Seiont enters the Menai Strait with a value of
4.02mAOD which should have been used alone. However, it is noted
that the FCA has used the 70th and 95th percentages to assess
climate change scenarios. Despite this, due to the height of the
existing walls, to which the flood gates will tie, the site/dwelling may
still be at risk of flooding during the events considered i.e., the 0.5%
event (2023) and contrary to the statement made in FCA page 10.
The proposed garage is suitable above all the events considered.

The FCA also suggests a flood warning serves the site. Please be
aware that the site falls within a flood warning area for the LIyn
Peninsula and Cardigan Bay coast and does not benefit from the
flood warning service. The quay in Caernarfon is served by a flood
warning service as is Felinheli. The triggers to consider issuing
warnings are around 3mAOD in Caernarfon and 4.5mAOD in
Felinheli. Therefore, it may be appropriate to register as an ‘area of
interest' through our local Alert and Information team (
rhybuddio.hysbysu.gogledd@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk) and
decide when to lift/close the flood gates.

We identify the additional flood mitigation measures proposed that
would be appropriate to reduce the effects of sea/tidal flooding
forming.

The FCA also refers to a culverted watercourse that could overflow
under the proposal (as it can currently do). As the proposal does not
imply any additional load (which could affect any culverts) and the
fact that the watercourse is considered an ordinary watercourse. We
would also suggest that you consult your colleagues in the Flood and
Water Management team at YGC who act as the Lead Local Flood
Authority and may be aware of the watercourse.

Therefore, we would advise that, although the FCA may not have
used the most suitable mark to assess offshore flood risk, it may be
appropriate for the applicant to engage further with the FCA authors.
However, as the proposal is not seen as intensifying use and
providing flood mitigation i.e., ‘improvement' in terms of risk, we do
not want to make any further representations for the current proposal.

Protected Species

We note that the bat report submitted in support of the a

Bage 156



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

application (Clwydian Ecology, July 2023. Protected Species
Survey) reported that bats did not use the application site. We
therefore have no adverse representations to make on the application
as submitted.

Protected sites

The application is located within 75m of the Menai Strait and
Colwyn Bay Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

From the information provided, we consider that the proposal is
unlikely to have a material impact on the SAC, as long as the
developer acts in accordance with the common building standards
and practices.

Our advice may change if modifications are made to the proposed
development before the application is decided. If there are any
changes to the proposed development that could affect the
consideration of potential environmental impacts, please contact us
again before you determine the application.

As the competent authority under the Habitat and Species Protection
Regulations 2017 (as amended), it is your Authority that will
undertake the Likely Significant Impacts test for the proposed
development. Should you conclude that the proposal is likely to have
a significant impact on the Special Area of Conservation, either in
isolation or in conjunction with other plans or projects, a proper
assessment of the project's implications for that site must be carried
out taking into account its conservation objectives. You must, for the
purposes of the assessment, consult NRW and consider any
comments we make within the reasonable period indicated by you.

Landscape

The development is located within 975m of the Ynys Mén Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). We note that there is no
landscape assessment information with the application and therefore,
we assume that your Authority has screened the application and
concluded that any impacts on the landscape are unlikely in line with
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) of the Welsh Government's
Planning Policy. If you need further advice, then please re-consult us.

Welsh Water: Comments, conditions and advice offered to the applicant or letter
dated 27-11-2023.

Biodiversity Unit: I do not expect that this development would have a significant impact
on the Menai SAC / SSSI providing strict pollution prevention
measures are adhered to. The Ecology Report has been produced to a
good standard. The assessment confirms that no bats are present in
the building prior to development and justifies reasonable avoidance
measures which must be taken to ensure there is no loss of habitat or
disturbance to bats. All RAMS detailed with in the Ecology Report
provided must be adhered to. The design drawings / green
infrastructure statement (GIS) and design plan must incorporate the
enhancement measures provided (Section 8 and 9). These are suitable
and reasonable for the scale of this development The design provided

Page 157



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

incorporates the measures from the ecology report, this design should
be conditioned with planning.

Further response:

This development will not have a significant impact on the SAC and
can be screened out at the first stage of the HRA process.

Land Drainage Unit: The site of the development is within flood zone C2 and because of
this we will leave NRW to comment on flood risk issues facing the
development. This unit has no further comments to offer.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertisement period has expired and one letter of objection was
received on the following grounds:

e Loss in privacy following extending the balcony to the
boundary between number 7 and 6 Marine Terrace
e Plans do not give an accurate picture of the site.

5. Assessment of the relevant planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 The house is located on a site near the Menai Strait and consequently partly within flood zones
C2 in the Development Advice Maps and zone 2 and 3 in the flood maps for planning. The
proposed changes and landscaping would mean providing a safe place for cars and also access
with less risk of flooding. In addition to this the flood gates are being installed to mitigate against
the potential impacts of flooding. It is planned to provide an arrangement of solar pv panels near
the new garage. There are no major alterations to the property in terms of extensions, although
two open porches are provided at the rear of the property, but rather its overall appearance and
finish. A slate finish will be added to one elevation and the arrangement of windows and doors
will change throughout the property. The biggest change would be to extend the existing balcony
up to the property boundary. It is likely that only a few of the changes would be visible from
public spaces. The intention includes internal alterations including the use of the existing
connecting garage as a kitchen and dining room. The proposal as a whole is considered
acceptable subject to compliance with relevant local and national policies which are addressed in
the remainder of the report below.

Visual, general and residential amenities

5.2 Policy PCYFF3 states that proposals will be approved, including extensions and changes to
existing buildings and structures, if they comply with a number of criteria that include that the
proposal complements or enhances the character of the site, the building or the area in terms of
siting, appearance, scale, height, massing and elevation treatment; that it respects the context of
the site and its place in the local landscape; that it utilises materials appropriate to its
surroundings and incorporates soft landscaping; that it enhances a safe and integrated transport
and communications network; its drainage systems are designed to limit surface water run-off and
flood risk and prevent pollution; that it achieves an inclusive design by ensuring barrier free
environments, allowing access by all and to help create healthy and active environments, and
considers the health and well-being of future users. The proposal includes minor external
alterations to the existing building together with providing a garage and floodgates. It is

Page 158



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

considered that the visual impact of these elements of the proposal are acceptable and are in
compliance with the policy principles of PCYFF 3.

5.3 Policy ADN2 also states that proposals will be permitted provided the panels have been
adequately mitigated ensuring that this will not lead to a significant change to safety and
amenities. It is believed that due to the small scale of the solar panel arrangement and its location
in the curtilage of a property situated at the far end of a row of houses that the panels are suitably
fitted in the landscape and have no impact on road safety, landscape designations and
biodiversity. Although the panels will be a new feature in the landscape it is not believed that
their impact will be significant enough to cause a negative impact to the amenities of
neighbouring residents' and they will not be visible from neighbouring houses. It is therefore not
believed that the proposed installation of solar panels will have a characteristic adverse effect on
the character of the built form or natural landscape and therefore comply with policies ADN2 and
AMG3 of the LDP.

54 The application was advertised on the site and nearby residents were notified and a response was
received with concerns about the extension of the balcony and the potential impact and loss in
privacy to property number 6. It is recognised that the balcony is slightly higher than the balcony
level of the property next door, but due to the orientation of the houses as well as the location of
the windows on existing balconies there is existing over-looking on site. It is therefore considered
that extending the balcony will not have a materially different effect from the present situation.
However, it is felt that a condition should be imposed forcing a privacy screen to be installed
along the side of the balcony adjoining the property named number 6 Marine Row to protect
residential amenities and privacy that may originate directly from the balcony extension. The new
garage will be built on the curtilage of the property and the old garage will be demolished. The
location of the proposed garage will mean it will be partially hidden by the property and it is
believed it will not have a negative visual impact on the landscape or neighbours due to its size,
scale and design. A screen by the property boundaries and landscaping will also help reduce the
visual impact of the proposed garage.

55 The application site is located at the far end of a row of houses and would therefore be unlikely to
significantly disrupt other houses nearby as the site is naturally subject to more change than
houses with neighbours on each side. The proposed garage, and external alterations apart from the
balcony are located on elevations away from the nearby houses. It is unlikely that the proposal
would have a significant negative impact on the amenities of nearby residents. The application is
therefore considered to be in accordance with policy PCYFF 2 in the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.6 The proposal involves demolishing an existing outbuilding, constructing a new garage and also
creating an additional access track within the property. Comments have been received from the
Transportation Unit stating no objections to these proposed changes. It would therefore not be
contrary to the objectives of Policies TRA 2 or TRA 4 within the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

5.7 Comments were received from the Biodiversity unit stating that the ecological report submitted as
part of the application was acceptable and that the measures set out in the report needed to be
followed when carrying out the work. It is noted that bird and bat boxes will be installed on the
property and this is clearly shown on the plans. Confirmation has been received from the
Biodiversity unit that this development will not have a significant impact on the adjacent Menai
Strait and Colwyn Bay Special Area of Conservation and will be screened out of the first stage of
the process under the Habitat and Species Protection Regulations 2017 (as amended). The
Ecological Report was produced to a good standard. The assessment confirms that there are no
bats present in the building prior to the development and justifies reasonable avoidance measures
that must be taken to ensure there is no habitat loss or disruption to bats. Subject to appropriate
conditions, the application is deemed to comply with policy PS 19 of the LDP, together Wlfﬂéh@e 159



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

update to chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales published on 7™ February 2024 relating to green
infrastructure and the phased approach.

Flooding matters

5.8 This site is in a flood sensitive location and partly within zone C2 in accordance with the
Development Advisory Maps in line with TAN15: Development and Flood risk. The site is also
shown to be partly within flood zones 2 and 3 for the Sea in the more recent mapping known as
Flood Maps for Planning (which accounts for the impacts of climate change). Natural Resources
Wales' comments state that there is no objection to the proposal as it is not seen as intensifying
use and provides flood mitigation i.e. a 'risk-based improvement'. As a result of this, there is no
objection to the proposal in terms of flood impact and the proposal to comply with the policy
requirements of PS6 and TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk.

5.9 The site is situated on the edge of the Waterloo Port to Felinheli Seafront Coastal Change
Management Area (PU16.13) and therefore policy ARNA 1 applies. No new residential unit is
being created at this location nor is there an increase in the number of bedrooms. Section 8 of the
policy notes that limited residential extensions that are closely related to the existing scale of the
property are permitted as presented in this application and therefore doesn't result in a potential
increase in the number of people living in the property. In addition to this the policy allows for
ancillary development such as the solar panels, a new garage, flood mitigation works and
landscaping within the curtilage of existing dwellings as presented here. Natural Resources Wales
has confirmed that the proposal is acceptable in terms of the impact of flooding. To this end, due
to the small scale of the developments and does not significantly increase the bulk of the
property, the proposal in its entirety complies with policy ARNA 1 of the LDP.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having weighed-up the proposal in the context of the relevant policies, it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable as it would not have an impact on the streetscape, the amenities of nearby
residents, road safety or biodiversity and is acceptable in terms of flooding matters.

7. Recommendation:

To approve — conditions

1. Five years to commence the work.

2. In accordance with plans.

3. Slates to match.

4, Opaque glass to be installed along the side of the balcony that borders with number 6 Marine
Terrace

5. In accordance with the ecology report

6. Welsh Water Condition

Information note: Welsh Water/Natural Resources Wales and Biodiversity

Page 160



T9T abed

- i . iy
ReQuestsPlan ) e .
: LOCATION PLAN @ 1:1250

Location Plan & Flood Risk Map

Cynllunio




sting Site Plan

9T abed

7
v

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components, Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. Do not scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.

MEMAISTRAIT

EACH
BUAT LAUNCH
RaMPE
_—_
RERTE
Jereat
\.utrl‘:&\
et
\-;(_\}Y. L
GARDEN
RooM

SLOPEDGARDEN

O DRIVEWAY

GRAVEL

7 SHRUBS

VEHICULAR GATE

OQUTBUILOING

i BE e Pl aHEl

0 GARDEN

I 1/

Ll

I lf MARINE TERRACE

1
Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/11/2023

EVERGREEN
Architects

Menal Science Park, Baerwen, Ynys Man
01248 719284
enquiries@evergreenarchitects.co.uk

PROJECT DETAILE

DRAWING No

Y Cil S3.04

7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, v PROJECT No
Gwynedd, LL55 1ILP JAH 23242
NTLE

Existing Site Plan

STATUS DATE REMISION
Planning Application S3 18.1.23 |E

d




All dimensions are to be verified on sile prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. Do not scale from drawings. Repart discrepancies to the Designer

|
Cynllunio

Derbyn - $5/11/2023

BOAT LAUNCH
RAME

SR

GARDEN
ROGH

PROPOSED OROHARD
SUOPED GARDEN TREES

SLOPED DRIVEWAY

./.
3
e

SLOPEDGARDEN

BOX PLANTER
TOFILTRATE
SARAGE
SURFACE
BTER
RUNOFF

1)
PERMEABLE PAVING:
(Foa)

PROFOSED GARAGE

MARINE TERRACE

]

|

LANDSCAPING
¢ PROJECT DETAILS
The landscaping proposal improves vehicular and pedestrian Flood gates are praopesed to the pedestrian and vehicular gates adjacent Y Cil
accessibility, to future proof the site for the client. The proposed the beach. EVE RG R E E N .
icular ramp allows level access to the house when the beach 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon,
is closed due to high tides / flooding. The proposed garage gutters drain into a box planter, which filtrates the Gwynedd LL5S 1LP
'

me

g surface water runaff, A rC h i te C t S

he additional of new local plants and trees will enhance the
xisting biodiversity. Permeable paving is used where possible to reduce surface water runoff, PI‘OpOSEd Site Plan

SCALE @ A3 DRAWING No

S3.10

Menai Science Park, Gaerwen, Ynys Mén STATUS OATE HEVISION

EPrO p O Sed Slte Pla i b Planning Application S3 15.11.23

enquiries@evergreenarchitects.co.uk

w



All gimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. De not scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.

MATERIALS:

Render, pebbledash and slate to brick walls
Slate raof

White UPVC windows

White UPVC gutters, fascias and soffits

NW House Elevation 1:100

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/11/2023

House Elevation 1:100

NE ELEVATION

NW ELEVATION

NE ELEVATION

isting Elevations

EVERGREEN
Architects

Menal Science Park, Baerwen, Ynys Man
01248 719284
enquiries@evergreenarchitects.co.uk

PROJECT DETAILE

SCALE @A

DRAWING No

Y Cil 1:100 S3.08

7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, DRAWN BY PROJECT No
Gwynedd, LL55 ILP JAH 23242
NTLE

Existing Elevations

STATUS DATE REMISION
Planning Application S3 15.1.23 | E

79T abe




All gimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. Do not scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.
MATERIALS:
Render, pebbledash and slate to brickwalls  ~~ FEESSSE —
Slate roof
White UPVC windows
White UPVC gutters, fascias and soffits

NE ELEVATION NE ELEVATION

NE House Elevation 1:100 1

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/11/2023

SE ELEVATION SE ELEVATION

PROJECT DETAILS

Y Cil

EVERG RE E N 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, DRAWN B PR ST Neo

Gwynedd, LL55 1LP

House Elevation 1:100 Architects TiLE

ci Park, Baerwen, Ynys Man

Existing Elevations
isting Elevations
pevergreenarchitects.co.uk Planning Application S3 15.1.23 E

enquiriess

49T abed




All gimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. De not scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.

HOUSE MATERIALS:
insulated render and slate to brick walls = PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS:
Slate roof —= x e i | 9 kW system

White UPVC windows S s et 1 Stone plinths
White UPVC gutters, fascias and soffits fis -

W PV Elevation 1:100

E PV Elevation 1:100

NW House Elevation 1:100

S PV Elevation 1:100

N PV Elevation 1:100
Cynllunio
Derbyn - 18/11/2023
PROJECT DETAILS SCALE @Al DREAWING Ne
Y Cil 1:100 S3.14
% EVE RG R E E N 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, DRAWN BY PROJECT No

House Elevation 1:100 Gwynedd, LL55 1LP JAH 23242

Architects

Proposed Elevations

enquiries@evergreenarchitects.co.uk P|aﬂnin9 Application S3 15.11.23 E

&
®
Eyoposed Elevations HeraiScinco P Gaerwen Yoo | ST
SL)




All dimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only. De not scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.
HOUSE MATERIALS:
insulated render and slate to brick walls
Slate roof
White UPVC windows
White UPVC gutters, fascias and soffits

MATERIAL:
Slate diamond pattern.

E= Twao Vivara Pro woodstone swift
nest boxes will be installed on the
north-east side elevation (as shown
inred)

Any removal of shrubs or other
vegetation should only be carried
out between September and
February inclusive to avoid any
disturbance to nesting birds.

All breeding birds are protected
under Section {1} and (2} of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended. This makesit an offence
to damage, disturb, or obstruct
access to nests during the bird
breeding seasen (generally March to
August).

Ll

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/11/2023

NE House Elevation 1:100

u] A Beaumaris “midi* bat box will be secured to
the wall on the rear south- east facing
elevation wall (as shown in red).

All external lighting for the house will be of a
low luminance and directional towards the
ground,

All external lighting will include a motion
sensor and a one-minute timer to avoid them
being left on continually.

A warm white spectrum (ideally<2700Kelvin}
should be adopted to reduce blue light
compaonent. Lights should feature peak wave
lengths higher than 550nm to avaid the
component of light most disturbing to bats,
This will be achieved by using LED light bulbs.

Any external lighting should be on a short
timer with a cowling to prevent any up-lighting
ot light spread.

PROJECT DETAILS SCALE @ A% DRAWING No

Y Cil 1:100 83.15
EVERG RE E N 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, DRAWN BY PROJEQT No

Gwynedd, LL55 1LP JAH 23242

House Elevation 1:100 ArChitectS TTLE

Proposed Elevations

abed

oposed Elevations HeraiScinco P Gaerwen Yoo | ST

enquiries@evergreenarchitects.co.uk P|aﬂnin9 Application S3 15.11.23 E

4




GARAGE MATERIALS:

White render on blockwork walls
25° pitch slate roof

Timber cladding to gable

|

4

2
e

SW Garage Elevation

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior to manufacture of any components. Drawings are for the purpose of Planning Permission only, Do net scale from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.

1:100 NE

Garage Elevation

R RN

ShRUBS

_1:100 NW Garage Elevation

1:100 SE Garage Elevation

f o
abed

Proposed Garage

Phatovoltaic and Garage Plan

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 1511/2023

CARPARKING /
PERMEABLE

swV
£8.500

SE A

enquiries@evergreenarchitects co.uk

PROJECT DETAILS SCALE®@ A3 DRAWING Na

Y Cil 1:100 S§3.16
EVERG R E EN 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon, DRAWN BY PROJECT No |

. Gwynedd, LL55 1ILP JAH 23242

Architects ‘

Proposed Garage
Menai Science Park, Gagrwen, Ynys Man STATUS: DATE REVISION
s Planning Application S3 5123 |E

89T




All dimensions are to be t ompone c on only e from drawings. Report discrepancies to the Designer.

P,
N ey g [

NW ELEVATION SE ELEVATION

NE ELEVATION

e ——
Y Cil
EVERG REEN 7 Marine Terrace, Caernarfon,

Gwynedd, LL55 1LP

Cvn”UﬂIO Architects

Derbyn - 15 2 ) Proposed Visuals

Park, Baerwen, Ynys Man 1l

STATUS DATE
Planning Application S3 15.1.23 E

oposed Visuals

697 abed




0.T abed




T.T obed




Agenda Iltem 5.5

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 5

Application C23/03/TP
Number:

Date Registered: 23/11/2023

Application Trees
Type:

Community: Bangor
Ward: City Centre

Proposal: Mixed woodland with mature trees

L ocation: College Park, Deiniol Road, Bangor, Gwynedd, LL57 2TQ

Summary of the TO CONFIRM THE TREE PRESERVATION
Recommendation: ORDER WITHOUT CHANGES

Page 172



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. BACKGROUND:

1.1 This report is to consider whether a Tree Preservation Order should be confirmed. Local
authorities have the general right to make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) if it appears to be
expedient in the interests of amenity to do so.

1.2 The right to issue a tree preservation order has been delegated to officers within the Planning
Service. However, when objections to an order are received, it is appropriate to submit the order
to the Planning Committee to decide whether it should be confirmed.

1.3 A Temporary Tree Preservation Order ("the Order") was placed on two individual trees, five
groups of trees and one coppice in the location shown on the enclosed plan on 23 November 2023
following the Council Biodiversity Service's assessment of the site. An assessment of the trees
was carried out using the TEMPO system (Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders) and
the trees scored 23 points. The TEMPO system notes that any trees that score 16 points or more
merit being protected.

14 The site is within a conservation area, and therefore the trees already have an element of
protection, it was decided to issue a temporary tree preservation order in this case as it is
considered that the trees and the woodland are of high amenity value and are very visible within
the townscape, and form an important feature within the city centre.

1.5 The Council is of the opinion that the trees and coppice are of a high amenity value, and merit
specific protection, especially as there is a direct threat to the trees due to proposed development
work within the park area. The Council also has evidence that suggests that work has already
been carried out within the site without the prior necessary consent, and that no notices have been
submitted to the Council in accordance with the relevant legislation that would avoid the need for
formal prior approval or consent.

2. LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION:

2.1 The trees and the coppice that are subject to the current temporary tree preservation order are
located to the north-west of Deiniol Road, and to the west of Lovers' Lane in Bangor City Centre.
The Pontio centre lies to the south-west of the site's location, and Rathbone Hall and other
university buildings lie to the north-west. All the land to which the temporary order applies is
owned by the university.

2.2 The two individual trees that are subject to the order are yew and lime trees. The five groups of
trees consist of the following: -

. Group 1 - Lime, Sycamore, Hornbeam, Maple, 3 Beech, Norwegian Maple. 5 Cherry, 3
Holly
e Group 2 - 19 Oak, 9 Black Poplar, 4 Plane, 4 Birch, 2 Maple, 3 Red Oak, Beech, Lime,
Elm, Sycamore, Aspen, Cherry

. Group 3 - 4 Holm Oak, 3 Scots Pine, 10 Beech, Sycamore, 3 Oak, 14 Birch, Lime
o Group 4 - 4 Lime, Oak, Birch

. Group 5 - 5 Lime, 2 Cherry, 7 Oak, 7 Chestnut, 2 Birch, 6 Beech

2.3 The W1 coppice consists of a mix of oak, sycamore, beech, cherry, ash, yew and holly trees.

Page 173



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

3. EXTERNAL OBSERVATIONS:

3.1 In accordance with the statutory requirements, we consulted the Local Member, Bangor City
Council, nearby residents and the landowner after issuing the temporary order and notices were
posted on the site with 28 days to respond. No response was received from Bangor City Council
or from the members representing the City Centre ward.

3.2 No response was received within the statutory notification period which ended on 29 December
2023, and no observations from nearby residents have been received after this date.

3.3 An objection to issuing the Temporary Tree Preservation Order was submitted by Bangor
University on 20 December 2023 for the following reasons:

o The reasons for making the Order states that there is an immediate threat to the trees from
proposed development works. It is noted here that there is no known and immediate threat
from the proposed College Park works. If this observation refers to the College Park
development project, supported by Cyngor Gwynedd and Transforming Towns then it is
highlighted that this is currently being considered for Planning and involves very little or
no actual tree work. If this objection refers to the Levelling-Up ‘Nature Zone’ scheme,
which is also supported by Cyngor Gwynedd and supported by Levelling-Up and which
aims to enhance the amenity value of the woodland, then it is highlighted that this scheme
actually seeks to enhance the ecology of the woodland and link it with other close-by green
spaces in Bangor, and there are certainly no plans to fell any trees as defined: >75 mm
when measured at a height of 1.5 metres above ground level on the main stem, subject to a
further tree safety survey. If there were any such recommendations, then such would
already be restricted act through the Conservation status.

o The temporary Order seeks to protect trees that are already afforded the protection given
with a Conservation Area and therefore unnecessarily adds an additional level of
bureaucracy.

3.4 It is also noted as the site is within a designated conservation area, and as an acknowledgement of
the university's proposal to improve the site for nature and the people of Bangor, that the order
should not be confirmed in its current form. The concept of the nature area is to create a quiet
area for people and groups to engage with nature, whilst only a few steps from the hustle and
bustle of the city centre. Funding has been received from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to
enable the university to open up the land, encourage its use, to prevent any potential antisocial
behaviour and to make the park a space where people can walk and enjoy the tranquillity that
nature has to offer. This will be achieved by establishing sympathetic nature trails within the
woodland and the site in general, by improving paths and connecting aspects of the site,
improving the variety and structure of the existing woodland and developing a small wetland in
the interest of wildlife and plants. It is also proposed to interpret the woodland for users by means
of interpretation boards and information signs around the site. It is also asked what threat is there
to the proposed work that would warrant issuing a temporary tree preservation order on the trees

and coppice.
4, ASSESSMENT:
4.1 Preservation orders are made if it appears to the Local Planning Authority that it would be

expedient in the interest of amenity to make a provision for preserving trees or coppices in its
area. The visibility of the trees to the public assists the Local Planning Authority in assessing
whether or not their impact on the local environment is substantial. However, the visibility of the
trees is not sufficient in itself to warrant a preservation order. We must assess the importance, size
and form of the trees themselves, and their future amenity potential. Consideration must also be

Page 174



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

4.2

51

5.2

given to the significance of the trees in their local environment. If it is believed that trees are at
risk of being felled, or pruned in ways that could have a significant impact on the area's amenity,
then it would be timely to issue a preservation order. The risk need not be serious.

In light of receiving an objection to the temporary tree preservation order, we contacted the
Council's Biodiversity Unit for its observations. The following observations were received in
response:

1. A tree is not protected merely by being located within a conservation area. Current
legislation means that a notice of 6 weeks must be provided to the local planning
authorities before commencing any work on a tree or trees within such an area. The
Council is not able to refuse or permit such works. Rather, the notice provides the
Council with an opportunity to consider whether a formal Tree Preservation Order is
required in the case to preserve any trees, if it is appropriate to do so in the interest of
amenity. In such cases, an application will need to be submitted to replace a notice to
undertake work to any tree or trees, and it is not considered that this creates an additional
unnecessary layer of bureaucracy.

2. A standard TEMPO assessment (amenity assessment) was conducted at College Park, and
it was confirmed that the trees are of sufficient amenity value to warrant their
preservation including, but not limited to, any anticipated threat to the trees by
development. The reasoning for the order includes the associated public visibility and
appreciation, the trees' assumed retention period (their condition); their coordination with
the landscape, the presence of ancient trees, good woodland form, ecological and historic
importance (it is understood that a number of the trees were planted by the university's
forestry department in 1900 as part of innovative research projects). As noted in the
objection to the temporary order, the University proposes to open the woodland, and this
could be interpreted as clearing the ground surrounding the mature trees, that could lead
to losing the woodland within the park in future. A tree preservation order does not
prevent the ability to carry out work, rather, it enables the Council to manage the work to
ensure that it is done in a sensitive and appropriate manner through the planning process,
in conjunction with the Council's ecological and woodlands experts. The order will act to
ensure that the proposed enhancements for amenity and ecology achieve their desired
targets.

3. Trees are not defined under tree preservation order legislation as they are under
legislation relating to conservation areas. This enables the longevity of the woodland
through natural regeneration. The purpose of preserving the woodland is to ensure that
the woodland itself can rely on regeneration and new planting in future.

4. The order contains a schedule of trees and specific groups along with a specific coppice,
and therefore we cannot agree that the order itself is all-encompassing.

CONCLUSIONS:

It is important to note that imposing an order on a tree or trees does not prevent the ability to
carry out any work on those trees. Rather, imposing an order is an effective way of ensuring that
no unnecessary or destructive work is carried out directly to, or close to, trees that make an
important contribution to our local environment. As can be seen from the content of this report,
the trees and woodland have scored significantly higher than the test score noted under the
TEMPO system, and they fully merit their preservation through a formal order.

Whilst we recognise the university's objection to issuing a temporary tree preservation order in
this case, we consider that the trees have a significant amenity value, which merits an element of
preservation that goes beyond merely their location within a designated conservation area. Such
an order should not have an impact on the ability to consider a redevelopment plan for the park

Page 175



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

area, however it will be necessary to consider the importance and existence of the trees as part of
a prospective redevelopment scheme. It is understood that discussions are ongoing between the
university and the Council's Biodiversity Service to secure a plan that would meet the university's
aspirations for the park, but that will also ensure the safety and continued existence of the trees
for future generations.

6. THE CONFIRMATION PROCESS:

6.1 There are four options for the Committee, after considering this report and the objections and
observations received, which are:

To confirm the order as it stands, without amendments
To confirm with amendments

Not to confirm the order

To conduct a public inquiry.

PN E

6.2 After considering all the matters raised in this report, it is recommended that the Committee
selects option 1 above, which is to confirm the order without amendments.

7. RECOMMENDATION:

7.1 To confirm the order without amendments.

Page 176



1/ T abed

Cynllun Gorchymyn

C23/03/TP Order Plan

;
¥ "-
. /
i b 7
W
)

November 23, 2023

MapGwynedd, Gwynedd

© Hawliraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2023 Arolwg Ordnans ACOD00821460 - Cyngor Gwynedd




M:Mm‘m}d_h_nﬁﬂ- ~

=
-
—




Wawih pare newydd yo dod-]
Youy naw park e coming..

ki M.

QUF new park 4 comiag ..

¥

T
!
g
4
s
g
-







Agenda Item 5.6

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Number: 6

Application No:  C21/0861/23/LL

Date of 29/10/2021

Registration:

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llanrug

Ward: Llanrug

Proposal: Application for remodelling and extending the existing

hotel and spa together with siting 39 holiday lodges, the
provision of an outdoor activity centre zone, a reception
and biomass plant unit together with a temporary road for
construction traffic, parking and landscaping.

L ocation: Seiont Manor Hotel, Llanrug, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55
2AQ

Summary of the
Recommendation:  APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 181


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=298
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=298

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

1. Description:

1.1 This is a full application for the redevelopment of the disused Seiont Manor/LIwyn y Brain hotel
site on the western edge of the village of Llanrug and in open countryside by redesigning and
extending the existing hotel and facilities together with siting 39 holiday lodges on land north of
the applicant-owned hotel. The application has been submitted on the basis of the following
developments:-

e Extensions and remodelling of existing hotel structure including: - lounge bar and
restaurant with accompanying terrace; provision of 28 additional bedrooms of 32m2;
provision of 29 additional bedrooms size 28 to 35m2 on two floors; provision of spa
facilities on the northern wing of the extended hotel and provision of 4 bedrooms within
the roof (a total of 61 bedrooms compared to the existing 33-bedroom provision).

¢ Provision of 39 one-storey 3-bedroom holiday units in the form of lodges together with 2

parking spaces for each lodge. The lodges are located within 3 zones north of the existing

hotel and served by private single driveways. Please note that a revised plan has been
submitted following the Local Planning Authority’s concerns about the visual impact of

some of the lodges located on top of the hillock in zone 1.

Provision of 2 laybys/passing places along the driveway currently serving the hotel.

Provision of 43 additional parking spaces parallel to the hotel.

Creation of an open play/amenity area immediately north of the hotel.

Provision of landscaping areas within and around the application site.

Erection of a reception for the lodges, an activity centre together with a play equipment

point.

e Erection of a biomass plant unit opposite the hotel’s main entrance.

1.2 The site is located in open countryside to the west of the settlement of Llanrug and within the
PSR4 Landscape Character Area (Caernarfon Coast and Plateau). The majority of the land subject
to the application is within Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) 3a. The Glanrafon Wildlife
Site lies north of the hotel and on the northern edge of the lodges site, and the north-western part
of the site where some of the lodges will be located is included within the Dinorwig Landscape of
Outstanding Historic Interest designation by CADW.

1.3 The site is served by an existing private driveway which connects the site to the class 1 county
road, Llanberis Road, southwards. Please note that a small section of private driveway near the
hotel and which runs northwards parallel with zone 2 and 3 (lodge area) is a public footpath
identified as public footpath No. 31 Llanrug.

14 Plasty Llwyn y Brain, which is a grade Il listed building, is located to the south-west of the hotel
itself but this particular property is not part of this current application although it is intended to
refurbish and alter the mansion in future which would be the subject of a separate listed-building
application and planning application.

1.5 Commercial properties along with residential dwellings are located around the site, including
Glanrafon Farm (351m north); Glan Seiont (267m west); Swn y Gwynt (507m south-west);
Challoner Caravan Park (260m south-east) and Bryn Afon (303m east).

1.6 In support of the application, the following documents were submitted:- Design, Access and
Planning Statement; Design Strategy Statement; Transport Statement; Welsh Language
Statement; Landscape and Visual Appraisal; Arboricultural Survey to requirements BS 5837;

Page 182



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

PAC Report; Ecological Impact Assessment; Ecological Summary Statement and Addendum; Bat
Survey; Landscape and Environmental Management Plan; Screening Report for Potential Impact
on Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation together with the SuDS Sustainable Drainage
Strategy Report.

1.7 The development is described as a Tourism and Leisure project under Schedule 2, Class 12 (c)
Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales)
Regulations 2017 which requires the application to be screened. To this end, the application has
been screened but taking into account its scale, nature and mitigation measures, an Environmental
Impact Assessment will not need to be submitted with this current application. It was confirmed
that the applicant had undertaken a pre-application consultation in accordance with the
requirements of Article 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Wales)(Amendment) Act 2016 as the proposal was defined as a major development.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that applications should be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless a material consideration in respect of planning indicates otherwise.
Planning considerations include the National Planning Policy, and the Local Development Plan.

2.2  The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to undertake
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being objectives within the Act.
This report has been prepared having regard to the Council’s duty and the ‘sustainable
development principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In formulating the recommendation, the
Council has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their needs.

2.3 Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) 2011-2026 adopted 31 July
2017: -

ISA 1: Infrastructure provision

PS 2: Infrastructure and developer contributions

PCYFF 1: Development boundaries

PCYFF 2. Development criteria

PCYFF 3 : Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PCYFF 5: Carbon management

PCYFF 6: Water conservation

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Mitigating and adapting to the effects of climate change

AMG 3: Protecting and enhancing features and qualities that are distinctive to the local landscape
character

AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT1 : Conservation areas, world heritage sites and registered landscapes, parks and gardens
PS 1: Welsh Language and Culture

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4 : Managing transport impacts

PS 14: Visitor economy

TWR 2: Holiday accommodation

Page 183



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

TWR 3 : Static caravan and chalet sites and permanent alternative camping accommodation

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable

Communities as well as SPG: Tourism Facilities and Accommaodation.

2.4 National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040.

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 — February 2024).

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature Conservation and Planning.

TAN 12: Design:
TAN 13: Tourism.
TAN 18: Transport.

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language.
TAN 23: Economic Development.

TAN 24: Historic Environment.

3. Relevant planning history:

3.1 Pre-application enquiry No. Y20/0442 extension of the number of bedrooms from 28 to 63; siting
of 50 holiday lodges; provision of 10-bedroom accommodation for staff; development of 45
retirement flats; development of conference and wedding pavilion; new biomass equipment and
outdoor activity area. The Local Planning Authority has responded by stating that consideration
will need to be given to visual amenities; residential amenities; local biodiversity conservation;
road safety; Welsh language; accessibility and sustainability along with heritage assets. Concern

over the scale of the proposal.

3.2 Application number CO7A/0730/23/LL for a conservatory as an extension to a bar permitted on

28.11.07.

4, Consultations:

Community/Town At a meeting of Llanrug Community Council held on 16 November 2021, the

Council: council resolved to oppose the application for the following reasons:-

a) The council is concerned about the number of cars / traffic going to Seiont Manor
because the entrance is narrow and also the amount of traffic that would come out of
Seiont Manor wanting to join the main road either towards Llanberis or Caernarfon.

b) The council considers that the development of the hotel and 39 lodges is
unsuitable for the area due to employment and it is felt that there are not enough

local people to be employed

¢) There is concern about the impact of the development on the Welsh language, and

the environmental impact

d) The council considers that the development is too large, and an unnecessary
addition to an area where many similar holiday destinations already exist. The self-

Page 184



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

sustaining nature of the scheme in terms of having a shop there along with leisure
resources means very little benefit would come to the local economy. It is felt that
the scheme is incompatible with the area and would have a detrimental effect
linguistically, and that quality jobs would not come as a result. The council does not
have confidence in the business plan.

e) There are sufficient caravan spaces in the area already let alone the HGV traffic
that comes with them.

f) Also, it is impossible to know who this company is, so there is no way of knowing
by looking at their history so far what sort of employers we will have, how
sympathetic they are to language, culture, community needs. Once again, they are
from outside the area rather than a local or community company, so they don’t have
to be accountable to the community.

Transport Unit:  The existing entrance is appropriate along with the passing places on the access track.
Question whether 43 parking spaces are adequate for a 61-bedroom hotel.

Conservation There are no major concerns regarding the impact the redevelopment aspect of the

Officer: site or lodges will have on LIwyn y Brain as it is not considered that these would have
an impact on the layout of the building. A track already exists on the maps near the
building, but please note from the plan that the new track would follow a different
route to this track. If the finish of the new road were to be quite soft (rather than a
large concrete scar) it may suit the site without having an impact, but without further
detail I am unable to comment on this aspect of the application.

(Since receiving the Conservation Officer’s comments please note that the access
track has been removed from the application).

Natural (Because of the number of responses and length of comments, only final comments
Resources are shown, previous comments can be found on the Council's website via the track
Wales: and trace system.)

Response to the Appropriate Assessment:

Thank you for consulting Natural Resources Wales (NRW) on your Habitats
Regulations Assessment for the above development, which we received on 16th
January 2024.

Our response should be taken as NRW's formal representation, as the appropriate
nature conservation body, to your appropriate assessment (AA) (referenced/dated)
under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017,
as amended.

In consideration of the mitigation measures detailed, we agree with your conclusion
that the development is unlikely to have an adverse effect upon the integrity of the
Glynllifon SAC.

Page 185



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Response 24/11/23

We refer to additional information submitted in support of the above application,
which we received from the applicant on the 23rd October 2023, 7th November 2023,
and 9th November 2023.

We continue to have concerns with the application as submitted. However, we are
satisfied that these concerns can be overcome by attaching the following conditions to
any planning permission granted:

Please note, without the inclusion of these conditions we would object to this
planning application. Further details are provided below.

Condition 1: External Lighting Plan
Condition 2 - Updated Landscape Environmental Management Plan
Condition 3 - Ecological Compliance Audit

Condition 4 - Environmental Management

Protected Species

We note that further information has been submitted in relation to impacts on
protected species (specifically bats and otters):

e Brooks, B. (2023). Seiont Hotel, Wales Lighting Impact Assessment —
Baseline Survey Report. The Lighting Bee. (Unpublished Report No 1276-
LB-XX-XX-RP-E-7080-01)

e Flowers, C. (2023). SeiontManorHotel,Llanrug,Caernarfo
nOtterSurvey. Wildbanks Ecology. (Unpublished).

e Humphreys, S., and Campbell, A. (2023). Proposed Lodge Development at
Seiont Manor Hotel, Llanrug, Gwynedd. Application No.: C21/0861/23/LL
Landscape and Environmental Management Plan (Revision 3). Land and
Heritage. (Unpublished).

Bats and otters, and their breeding and resting places, are protected under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.

Bats

A revised LEMP was prepared following a series of bat surveys undertaken at Seiont
through May, June and July 2023.

In our response dated 14th September 2023, we advised:

(a) Relocation of the maintenance track from the north side of Llwyn y Brain to an
existing access track to the east.

Page 186



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

(b) Including LIwyn y Brain into the suite of surveys.

(c) Omitting Lodge 15.

(d) Proposed new location of Lodges 22 to 25 away from the bat commuting route.
(e) Inclusion of fencing and hedge planting.

In the updated LEMP, the applicant proposes:

() The temporary track below Llwyn y Brain has been omitted.
(b) Lodge number 15 has been omitted.
(c) Lodges 22 to 25 have been moved 5 m to the west.

(d) Buildings associated with the parking area to the north of the hotel have been
removed and the layout of the parking changed to reduce potential lighting impacts
on bats.

(e) Fencing has been added around the Lodge area to deliver dark corridors for
commuting bats with a lux level of [10.5 lux.

We advise that the applicant has appropriately considered our advice in respect of
bats. Proposals include amendments to accord with our earlier advice, placement of
wooden fencing and proposed consideration of external lighting.

An external lighting report has been submitted by the applicant. The purpose of the
report was to record existing light levels throughout the site to inform the Ecological
Assessments.

The external lighting report advised that to minimise lighting impacts on bats, it is
recommended that any new lighting for the proposals is completely downward
directional (with 0% ULOR), with warm white (2700K) LED light sources. It is
recommended that no new floodlighting is added, and where possible that any
existing floodlights are omitted rather than replaced, as flood lights are often angled
in directions that cause excessive spill at ground level, and upward light pollution/
spill.

We therefore advise your Authority to attach the following condition to any planning
permission granted:

Condition 1: Prior to commencement of development, full details of lighting shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme
shall consider existing and proposed lighting together with any spillage originating
from internal locations. Details shall include:

a) An assessment of lighting in respect of wildlife interests of the site, notably bats
and otter

b) Details of the siting and type of external lighting and internal light spillage during
and post development. This shall include plans illustrating the location and type of
lighting together with Isolux drawings.

c) Details to demonstrate that light spillage will not affect wildlife sensitive areas.
This shall include plans illustrating projected or retained bat emergence points;
together with retained or proposed features planned to be functionally used by bats

Page 187



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

for foraging/dispersal purposes.

d) Measures to monitor light spillage once development is operational (post-
construction light monitoring).

e) Ecological compliance audit external lighting key performance indicators.

Provisions of the scheme shall accord with the provisions of the Institution of
Lighting Guidance Note 08/23: Bats and Avrtificial Lighting at Night

Lighting shall accord entirely with the details so approved for the duration of the
operation of the development. Reason: To protect the wildlife and the ecological
interests of the site including protected species.

Otters.

We note the conclusions of the otter survey undertaken by Wildbanks Conservation.
No contextual information has been provided within the provisions of the ecological
submission. We advise that the survey is inadequate for the purposes of confirming
that the pool is not functionally used by the local population of otter.

We advise that outstanding concerns remain with respect of otter, that primarily
concern managing visitor pressure (including dogs). This could be addressed by
fencing and restricting access to:

a) the eastern woodland planting zone,
b) within woodland habitats along the Afon Seiont.

We also note that invasive non-native species were detected during ecological
surveys (American mink and Himalayan balsam).

We therefore advise your Authority to attach the following conditions to any planning
permission granted, to address our concerns regarding otter:

Condition 2 - No development shall commence until an Updated Landscape
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The Plan shall include, but not necessarily be limited
to:

(a) Build upon the principles outlined in the ecological report ((Reference:
Humphreys, S., and Campbell, A. (2023). Proposed Lodge Development at Seiont
Manor Hotel, Llanrug, Gwynedd. Application No.: C21/0861/23/LL Landscape and
Environmental Management Plan (Revision 3). Land and Heritage. (Unpublished).
(b) Defined aims and objectives for ecological feature including bats and otter (Detail
shall include defined key performance indicators for each feature which can then be
used for future monitoring purposes).

(c) Submission of details concerning visitor exclusion areas. Details to include
locations and specification of fences together with monitoring and maintenance
regimes;

(d) Locations of proposed and dedicated ecology areas to be provided to the LPA,

Page 188



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

NRW and the relevant local biological records centre.
(e) Site wardening and ecological visitor awareness raising prescriptions.

(f) Long-term surveillance and monitoring proposals including methodologies and
reporting requirements.

(g) INNS management and biosecurity; and
(h) Periodic review mechanism for the Management Plan.

Condition 3 — The applicant shall submit an appropriate ecological compliance audit
(ECA) scheme to the satisfaction of the LPA. The purpose of the Ecological
Compliance Audit is to evidence compliant implementation of all ecological works
specified in the LEMP (Version 3) together with Conditions 1 and 2 above. The Audit
shall identify Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) that are to be used for the purposes
of assessing and evidence compliance. The ECA shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Protected Sites

We continue to have concerns that a significant effect from the proposed
development on the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation (SAC) cannot be ruled
out. The application is located within nine kilometres of the Glynllifon SAC.

Lesser Horseshoe bats, that roost within Llwyn Brain, use the surrounding habitat for
foraging and commuting. Lesser horseshoes are a feature of the Glynllifon SAC.
Section 2 of the August 2021 ecological report also notes that the bats may form part
of the Glynllifon SAC population.

To secure appropriate mitigation measures, we advise that the conditions 1 to 3 set
out above should be attached to any planning permission for this development.
Provided the development is carried out in accordance with those conditions, we do
not consider that it will adversely affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC.

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to give consent
for a project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives. You
must for the purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have regard to any
representations we make within such reasonable time as you specify. In the absence
of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not result in an
adverse effect upon the SAC.

Environmental Management

The proposed development would involve a significant construction scheme, with the
potential to cause significant pollution, if not managed correctly. The construction
scheme would also potentially create significant quantities of waste. We ther<i._f)0éege

189



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

advise that prior to commencement of any site clearance, or construction, that the
applicant produces a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), that
will consider these risks, and appropriate measures are followed. We would therefore
advise that the following condition is attached to any permission:

Condition 4 - No development, including site clearance, shall commence until a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP should include:

e Construction methods: details of materials, how waste generated will be
managed.

e  General Site Management: details of the construction programme including
timetable, details of site clearance; details of site construction drainage,
containments areas, appropriately sized buffer zones between storage areas
(of spail, oils, fuels, concrete mixing and washing areas) and any watercourse
or surface drain.

e Biodiversity Management: details of tree and hedgerow protection; species
and habitats protection, avoidance and mitigation measures.

e CEMP Masterplan: details of the extent and phasing of development; location
of landscape and environmental resources; design proposals and objectives
for integration and mitigation measures.

e Resource Management: details of fuel and chemical storage and containment;
details of waste generation and its management; details of water
consumption, wastewater and energy use.

e Biosecurity risk assessment which includes measures to control, remove or
for the long-term management of invasive species.

e Traffic Management: details of site deliveries, plant on site, wheel wash
facilities.

e Pollution Prevention: demonstrate how relevant Guidelines for Pollution
Prevention and best practice will be implemented, including details of
emergency spill procedures and incident response plan.

e Details of the persons and bodies responsible for activities associated with the
CEMP and emergency contact details.

e Ecological clerk of works to ensure construction compliance with approved
plans and environmental regulations.

The CEMP shall be implemented as approved during the site clearance, preparation
and construction phases of the development.

Due to the proximity of the site to watercourses, all works at the site must be carried
out in accordance with GPP5 and PPG6: ‘Works in, near or over watercourses’ and
‘Working at construction and demolition sites’ which are available on the following
website:http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-
guidelines-ppgs-and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-
list/

Foul Drainage

The applicant has confirmed within their email (Marc Hamilton, Cadnant Planning,
3rd November 2021) that the foul drainage from the site will drain to the main selxger.
age

190



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

We welcome this approach. However, we note that the most recent plans i.e., Design
Strategy, Steet Design Partnership, Drawing No. P.04, 09.08. 2023, and also the
Proposed Site Plan, Street Design Partnership, Drawing No. P.04, 09.08.2023, are
still showing a former Foul Treatment Plant. For the avoidance of doubt, we
recommend that these plans are further revised to omit reference to the former Foul
Treatment Plant. We would agree with DWwr Cymru / Welsh Water’s advice that a
condition relating to foul water drainage is included within any permission. However,
if an alternative form of drainage, i.e. private drainage is proposed, please re-consult
us.

Flood Risk

We have reviewed the Flood Consequence Assessment (Integra Consulting). It is
noted from the FCA that the development site boundary shows that the proposal does
not encroach into the flood risk area (Zone C2 as referred to in the Development
Advice Maps or Zones 2/3 as shown on the Flood Map for Planning) associated with
the river Seiont. We are therefore generally satisfied with the FCA which
demonstrates that the flood risk can be managed and is in line with TAN15.

We have no other comments on flood risk although note that a drainage assessment is
to be undertaken (Section 3.3). Therefore, the views of Gwynedd Council acting as
both the Lead Local Flood Authority and the SUDS Approval Body should be sought
on this aspect of the proposal.

Other matters

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist,
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018),
which is published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other
matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other
interests.

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their
responsibility to ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to
their development. Please refer to our website for further details.

Dwr Cymru: Any planning permission needs to include the following conditions: -

e Detailed plan regarding disposal of foul water from the site.

e Survey for the assessment of the current flow and load of foul water received
by Llanrug Water Treatment Works together with the results.

e |f applicable, a consolidation scheme for the Water Treatment Works to be
able to receive an additional flow from the development which is the subject
of this application.

Page 191



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Public
Protection Unit:

Flood Risk and
Land Drainage

Licensing Unit

The following information required:-

* Full details of the biomass unit to be installed including manufacturers, model,
thermal size and all technical information (such as thermal capacity (kw / MW),
efficiency, maximum fuel consumption rate (kg /hr or m3 / hour), fuel specification)

* Details of maximum PM10, PM2.5 and NO2 emissions.

* The diameter and height of the stack which will serve the biomass unit above
ground.

* The size and dimensions of the building on which the stack is placed.

» The size, measurements and distances of any building within 5 times the height of
the stack above ground.

* A copy of the stack height calculation to justify the proposed height.

Any wood used in the biomass boilers must be new or untreated waste wood, outlined
in the documents by the Wood Recycling Association. The applicant will need to
receive documentation from the supplier to confirm this. If either biomass receives
any other waste material as fuel, a Licence will be required under the Licensing
Regulations Act

If any plant/units are to be installed externally (e.g. cooling air units etc) then a noise
assessment must be carried out, which includes low frequency levels to indicate that

it will not have a negative impact on the surrounding area.

Our maps show that an open watercourse/in culvert runs through the proposed
development site. We recommend that the developer identifies the exact route of the
culvert and avoids installing / erecting any structures within 3m of the watercourse as
this may prevent future maintenance. Any works that may affect the flow of the
stream including further culverting will require an Ordinary Watercourse Consent to
create new access.

Since 7th January 2019, sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are required to manage
surface water for all new developments of more than 1 house or where the
construction area with drainage implications is 100m2 or more. Drainage systems
must be designed and constructed in accordance with minimum standards for
sustainable drainage issued by the Welsh Ministers.

These systems must be approved by Gwynedd Council in its role as the SuDS
Approval Body (SAB) before construction commences.

Due to the size and nature of the development an application may need to be made to
the SuDS Approval Body for approval prior to the commencement of construction. It
appears that the developer intends to drain the site in a suitable sustainable manner
but until an application is made to the SAB there is no certainty that the site layout
would enable compliance with the full set of national SuDS standards. Early
consultation with the SAB is recommended.

Paragraph 5.12 within the Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed
units will be structured chalets not ‘caravans on wheels’ therefore a site licence and
its requirements will not be required.

However, the development will be subject to other legal provisions such as the

Page 192




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and the requirements of the Regulatory Reform
(Fire Safety) Order 2005 under the enforcement of North Wales Fire and Rescue
Service.

Language Unit:  No response.

Biodiversity (Because of the number of responses and length of comments, only final comments
Unit are shown, previous comments can be found on the Council's website via the track
and trace system.)

Habitats Regulations Assessment

The following is an assessment under the Habitats Regulations. The applicant has
provided documents to support this process:

e Habitats Regulations Assessment by Land & Heritage dated 16th March
2023.

e Amended Landscape and Environmental Management Plan Rev 3 by Land &
Heritage 23rd March 2023, updated 8th November 2023

e Lighting Impact Assessment, dated 27.11.23 produced by Lighting Bee

¢ Amended Bat survey report dated 14th August 2023 by Land & Heritage

Habitat Regulations Assessment

Cyngor Gwynedd as the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), must before deciding to give consent for a
project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives.

Appropriate Assessment

Proposal

Planning application for the remodelling and extension of the existing hotel and spa
to together with the siting of 39 holiday lodges, formation of tennis courts, activity
centre, reception, staff accommodation block and biomass plant room, with
associated access roads, paths, parking and landscaping.

Location

The Seiont Manor Site is located 9km from Glynllifon SAC and the proposal is next
to the Seiont River.

Likely Significant Effect

Llwyn y Brain is an old manor house that is part of Seiont Manor Site has a lesser
horseshoe bat roost. The bats here are part of a metapopulation associated with the
Glynllifon SAC, which is designated for its population of lesser horseshoe bats.
Alternations to the Seiont Manor Site and especially an increase in external lighting is

Page 193



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

likely to impact bats. Lesser Horseshoe Bats are sensitive to light, and will keep away
from illuminated areas where they are vulnerable to predation. Illuminated area can
cause barriers to their flight paths while foraging or accessing their roost, this could
eventually lead to abandonment of the roost. Bat surveys provided by the applicant
identified 2 main Lesser Horseshoe Bat flight lines from Llwyn y Brain to the River
Seiont.

Conservation Objectives of SAC

Glynllifon SAC is designated for its population of lesser horseshoe Rhinolophus
hipposideros bats (Annex Il species, which is the primary reason for the SAC
designation). The estate includes three summer roost sites and two hibernation sites
for the lesser horseshoe bat, comprising about 6% of the UK population. The main
maternity roost is situated in the cellars of the Glynllifon mansion house, built during
the 1830s. Within the estate, bats from the mansion forage in areas of plantation
woodland along the Afon Llifon and on the southern side of the estate near to Plas
Newydd. These areas also act as flight routes for bats going to other feeding areas
outside the estate boundaries. A number of other bat species are found within the
Glynllifon Estate. These include whiskered bat Myotis mystacinus, Natterer’s bat M.
nattereri, Daubenton’s bat M. daubentonii, common pipistrelle Pipistrellus
pipistrellus, soprano P. pygmaeus, noctule bat Nyctalus noctula and the brown long
eared bat Plecotus auritus.

The Glynllifon SAC also contains areas of woodland which are used by the batts as
managing areas as well as Hedgerows and other linear features used as Flight Routes.
The conservation objectives for the SAC are as follows:

* The natural range of lesser horseshoe bats will not be reduced, nor be likely to be
reduced for the foreseeable future.

 There is, and will continue to be, sufficient habitat to maintain the lesser horseshoe
bat population on a long-term basis.

* The three maternity roosts will continue to be occupied annually by lesser horseshoe
bats and their babies:

o0 Glynllifon Mansion (maternity and hibernation roost, Unit 16)
0 Melin y Cim (maternity roost, Unit 32)
0 Pen y Bont (maternity roost, Unit 36)

* There will be a sufficiently large area of suitable habitat surrounding these roosts to
support the bat population, including continuous networks of sheltered, broadleaved
and coniferous woodland, tree lines and hedgerows connecting the various types of
roosts with areas of insect-rich grassland and open water.

* All factors affecting the achievement of these conditions are under control.

These conservation objectives as well as performance indicators and a core
management plan for the site (albeit from 2008) can be viewed online on the Natural
Resources Wales website.

Page 194



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

The performance indicators largely relate to the maternity and hibernation roosts
themselves as well as maintaining woodlands and flight lines. It refers to ‘good
condition hedgerows’ as being those more than 2m in height with no gaps over 5m in
length.

Potential Impacts to Glynllifon SAC without mitigation

e Disturbance to Lesser Horseshoe Bat roost at Llwyn y Brain during
construction due to noise and lighting

e Disruption and obstruction of bat flight paths & foraging habitat due to
lighting during construction and operational.

e Loss of habitat used by bats as flight paths

e Loss of foraging habitat due to habitat destruction

e Loss of access to bat roosts

These impacts could lead to the abandonment of the bat roost at LIwyn y Brain and
reduced functionality of the Glynllifon Lesser Horseshoe Bat population.

The proposal will not result in the direct destruction of Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts.
Llwyn y Brain is not within the current application area.

Mitigation

The development proposal has incorporated 3 dark corridors across the land from the
hotel to the river, these will be provided by:

e Temporary Featherboard timber fencing 1.8m high to reduce light spill
e Tree & woodland planting
e Suitable external lights with fixtures and positions
These measures are to ensure the provision of dark corridors suitable for bat

commuting with a Lux level of no greater than 0.5 lux. The proposed illumination
calculations show that the boundary of the development will be between 0.3 and 0.2
lux (Lighting Bee Assessment November 2023).

There will be a lag time from when trees are planted until they have grown
sufficiently to provide a wooded corridor, however the temporary timber fencing will
ensure that the corridor is shaded from lighting. |1 recommend that the timber fencing
is constructed first and the tree planting takes place before any other construction to
provide as much time as possible for the trees to grow.

Although I have concerns about the proposed tree planting scheme specifications (as |
have detailed in my previous comments to planning) because it lacks the sufficient
density of tree planting, the aim of this planting is to provide a wooded corridor and
habitat suitable for foraging bats and the proposed scheme can be amended to achieve
this.

In the supporting document by Land and Heritage (Habitats Regulation Assessment,
16th March 2023) it states that construction of lodges will only take place during day
light hours and no external lighting will be used for their construction.

The development proposal does not include the loss of wooded habitats apart from
the removal of one or two trees, however the development proposal is not clear

Page 195



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

regarding the tree works and construction required on the driveway. This requires
further information.

e Grassland enhancement for foraging bats

e Tree and hedgerow planting along the side of the access road to the lodge
field will screen car headlights. This planting extends well beyond Llwyn y
Brain to the west.

Assessment Alone with Mitigation

This proposal for holiday lodges and extension to the hotel has incorporated
mitigation, and will not have an adverse impact to the conservation features of the
Glynllifon SAC.

In-combination Assessment

In combination effects are those effects that may arise from the development
proposed in combination with other plans and projects proposed/consented but not yet
built and operational (i.e. those developments that are separate from the baseline).

There are several other proposed planning developments and projects with the
potential to effect the Lesser Horseshoe Population of the Glynllifon SAC, these are:

Peblig Industrial Estate

Glynllifon — Welsh Sheep Centre

Glynllifon — Dairy Development Proposal

There are numerous planning applications for barn conversions & house
renovations which are associated with Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts and
habitats.

Peblig Industrial Estate is a current planning application, yet to be determined located
along the River Seiont and is 6.5km from Glynllifon SAC. The site has many derelict
industrial buildings, some of which have been found to be Lesser Horseshoe Bat
roosts. The proposal is to demolish the buildings and build new buildings for business
use. As this proposal would result in the destruction of a bat roost, it has included the
building of a bat roost and enhancing the river corridor as mitigation. This proposal is
yet to be determined.

The Glynllifon planning applications for a Welsh Sheep Centre and Dairy
Development are surrounded by the Glynllifon SAC. Neither of these proposals will
directly destroy a Lesser Horseshoe Bat roost, they will result in the loss of a small
amount of habitat, but the main concern is the lighting and illumination of the
buildings. Both developments have provided mitigation which includes the provision
of a bat loft suitable for Lesser Horseshoe Bats, hedgerow planting, tree planting and
habitat enhancement and have ensured that lighting will not impact bats. These
proposals have sufficiently mitigated impacts to the Glynllifon SAC and are yet to be
determined.

There are numerous planning applications for barn conversions & house renovations
which are associated with Lesser Horseshoe Bat roosts and habitats. None of these
will be permitted unless they ensure that bat roosts and their habitats will be

Page 196



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

enhanced. Most of these sites were structures which were derelict and collapsing,
without renovation would result in the loss of the bat roost.

Conclusion of in-combination assessment

These plans and developments have incorporated mitigation to avoid any impacts to
Lesser Horseshoe Bats. Therefore, they will not contribute any impact to the
Glynllifon SAC. The proposal at Seiont Manor in-combination with other plans and
projects will not have an adverse impact on the conservation objective of the
Glynllifon SAC.

Integrity Test & Conclusion of HRA

The proposal at Seiont Manor Site will not have an adverse affect on the integrity of
the Glynllifon SAC.

NRW Consultation

As part of the HRA process Cyngor Gwynedd must consult NRW. In a letter dated
24th November 2023 NRW state that provided the development is carried out in
accordance with their recommended conditions, they do not consider that it will
adversely affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC.

Recommended Conditions to ensure that impacts to the Glynllifon SAC are avoided

1. Construction and works must only take place in day light hours and no flood
lighting is to be used during construction.

2. Timber fencing to reduce light spill must be erected before any other works for
construction take place.

3. Hedge and tree planting plans must be amended to be plant at a much greater
density.

4. All hedge and tree planting (hedgerows, along driveway, woodland and for
screening) must take place after the timber fence has been constructed and before any
other works to install and construct lodges.

5. All existing flood lighting on LIwyn y Brain and Seiont Manor Hotel and driveway
must be removed and if required replaced with lighting sensitive to bats. This must
take place as soon as possible.

6. The bat roost at LIwyn y Brain is must be enhanced.

7. Monitoring of light levels must take place three times between April-September for
the duration of the operation of the site.

8. Bat monitoring of the site once it is operational.

Page 197



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Final Comments on the Application (03/01/24)
Further to my comments in March this year, the applicant has provided the following:

e Amended Bat survey report dated 14th August 2023

e Amended Tree Survey August 2023 by Land & Heritage

e Grassland Fungi Assessment October 2023 by Debbie Evans, Mycological
Consultant

e Otter Survey October 2023 by Wild Banks Conservation & Land & Heritage

e Lighting Impact Assessment, baseline survey report 27th October 2023 by
The Lighting Bee

e Amended Site Plan dated 7th November 2023

e Amended Landscape and Environmental Management Plan Rev 3 by Land &
Heritage 23rd March 2023, updated 8th November 2023

e Habitats Regulations Assessment by Land & Heritage dated 16th March 2023

e BS5837 Arboriculture Survey: February 2022 by Land & Heritage revised
August 2023

e Lighting impact assessment date: 27.11.23 produced by Lighting Bee

Grassland Fungi

The fungi survey and report has been undertaken to a good standard, although only
two survey visits were carried out. Over the 2 surveys a total of 23 grassland fungi
species (waxcaps, fairy clubs, earth tongues, pink gills) were recorded on the site,
including a total of 13 Hygrocybe Waxcap species. A summary of the species
recorded across the whole site, comprised of 3 Clavarioids, 13 Hygrocybes, 5
Entolomas, 1 Geoglossaceae and a Dermoloma. Two, high value indicator species of
an unimproved or semi-improved quality grassland habitat were recorded on the
northern end of the Northeast Field, which will not have lodges sited on it. These 2
species and a further 2 species recorded here are of International conservation value.
Citrine Waxcap Hygrocybe citrinovirens & Fibrous Waxcap Hygrocybe intermedia
both are globally ‘Vulnerable’ (IUCN Red List) and thus of conservation concern.
Crimson Waxcap Hygrocybe punicea were recorded on the east side of the field near
the fence. This is a significant species regarded as an excellent indicator of old,
traditionally managed, semi-natural grasslands.

The proposed development’s footprint does not include the areas of conservation
concern for grassland fungi. The fungal survey report recommends “There is no need
for any acid grassland restoration in the northern area and it should be preserved as
itis.”

I recommend that the recommendations in the fungal survey report be followed and
that this is a planning condition.

Bat Surveys

The updated bat survey report 14th August 2023 includes the use of 11 locations for
static bat detectors each over 6 nights. All detectors recorded Lesser Horseshoe Bat
passes, except for 2 locations. A bat transect survey was also undertaken. Bat
recorded included LHS, Brown Long-Eared Bat, Pipistrelle species, and Myotis
species.

Page 198



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

The additional bat surveys have confirmed the previous bat roost locations and in
addition have identified a soprano pipistrelle maternity roost within the main hotel
and Lesser Horseshoe bat maternity roost within a chimney of Llwyn y Brain.
Activity surveys have identified two main bat migration routes to and from the river
to the hotel and Llwyn y Brain. The survey findings have informed the Scheme
design and changes have been made to the layout and access provision. Additional
mitigation measures have been incorporated to avoid adverse impacts to bats.

The information from surveys in the bat report indicate that there is a Brown Long-
Eared Bat roost in LIwyn y Brain.

Bats & Lighting

Lighting Assessment by Lighting Bee dated 27th November 2023 this report provides
model for the proposed illumination of the site however does not include existing
lighting as stated under 1.2:

“No existing lighting has been included in the calculation model. In the areas where
new lighting is proposed, all existing lighting is proposed to be removed. It has been
assumed that the existing external lighting to the elevations and areas of the hotel not
affected by the proposals, of the hotel will remain as existing, as these areas do not
have the potential to directly impact onto the dark zones. Where any lighting is
proposed to be replaced however, this will be specified in accordance with the
parameters of this lighting strategy to reduce the lighting impacts on bats.” This is
concerning because around the hotel and LIwyn y Brain are areas that can impact bat
flightlines, | recommend that the proposed new lighting for the hotel be included in
the assessment.

Site illumination model and calculations Lighting Bee November 2023. This plan has
not covered or calculated the illumination of the existing hotel or Llwyn y Brain or
driveway. The proposed illumination calculations show that the boundary of the
development will be between 0.3 and 0.2 lux (Lighting Bee Assessment November
2023), however the existing illumination (Lighting Bee — baseline report October
2023) on the hotel, car park and driveway includes numerous floodlights. There are
currently about 5 floodlights on trees along the drive and 2 floodlights on trees
around the car park and two lanterns.

The Lighting Assessment November report concludes under section 5:

The aim of this Lighting Impact Assessment is to provide an assessment of the impact
of the new external lighting associated with the development, and internal lighting
from the proposed lodges on sensitive ecological receptors, in terms of predicted light
spill onto the proposed dark zones. Lighting impacts in terms of obtrusive light are
excluded from the scope of this report.

I am a confused by the final sentence in the above statement; does it imply that
current prominent lighting has been excluded because this will be removed? This
requires clarification.

Light spill from the combined internal and external calculated at the edge of the

Page 199



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

proposed dark zones is predicted to be <0.5 lux both horizontally at ground level,
and vertically on the calculation planes (up to 2m in height) included, with the
mitigation measures included.

It should be noted that the calculation model represents the worst case scenario, with
all lights switched on simultaneously, no blinds or curtains included, and the
screening effect of any vegetation and planting not being included, levels of
illuminance will be further reduced when these factors are taken into account.

In conclusion, the lighting impacts from the proposals with the proposed mitigation
applied, are not predicted to be significant.

Lighting Impact Assessment, baseline survey report 27th October 2023 by The
Lighting Bee. This report has mapped all existing lighting and recorded the types of
lights.

The lighting baseline report is too vague stating “that the perimeter of the main hotel
building is predominantly lit, with a zone of influence of approximately 20-25m,
where levels of illuminance are greater than 0.5 lux. Levels of illuminance
throughout the main car park/ tarmacked entrance area are also greater than 0.5 lux.
Levels of illuminance along the main access drive are expected to be significantly
higher than recorded, and greater than 0.5 lux if the floodlights were operational at
the time of the survey. The survey locations show that the northern fields, where the
lodges are proposed, are currently dark (<0.5 lux).”

The lighting report recommends that new lighting “is completely downward
directional (with 0% ULOR), with warm white (2700K) LED light sources” and that
no new floodlighting is that any existing floodlights are omitted rather than replaced.

Recommendation — updated illumination maps showing lux levels for whole site
including the hotel, LIwyn y Brain, car park and driveway.

Habitats Regulations Assessment

Llwyn y Brain, part of Seiont Manor has a lesser horseshoe bat roost. The bats here
are part of a metapopulation associated with the Glynllifon SAC, which is designated
for its population of lesser horseshoe bats. Alternations to the Seiont Manor Site and
especially lighting can impact bats.

The applicant has provided information to inform a HRA dated the 6th March 2023.
This does not include the information from the bat surveys carried out in summer
2023. Under section 1.3 there is a table listing all the likely impact to the Lesser
Horseshoe Bat colony at Seiont Manor, but it does not make an assessment of this
development before then moving on under section 1.4 to consider in-combination
impacts. The main concern is loss of bat flight routes due to habitat loss or lighting
creating a barrier. The report states that the development will incorporate mitigation
to reduce impacts to the bat colony, these include: wooden fencing to screen LHS bat
flight routes from light spill; tree and hedge planting and grassland management to
enhance foraging habitats. The design of the development has been altered to
minimize the impact to Lesser Horseshoe Bats, and includes fencing to screen light
spill and by planting woods and hedgerows.

Page 200



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

There will be a lag time (of more than a few years) for mitigation as tree planting
until the tree have grown enough. The report concludes that providing mitigation
measures are put in place, impacts to the Lesser Horseshoe Bat colony at Seiont
Manor Site and therefore the Glynllifon SAC will be reduced to negligible. NRW
(24th November 2023) do not consider that this development proposal will adversely
affect the integrity of the Glynllifon SAC as long as conditions are in place to ensure
that suitable mitigation is carried out and that dark corridors are retained along bat
flightlines.

Cyngor Gwynedd as the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), must before deciding to give consent for a
project which is likely to have a significant effect on a SAC, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives.

This proposal has provided information to demonstrate that the development will not
have an adverse impact on lesser horseshoe bats and the population associated with
the Glynllifon SAC.

Landscape Management Plan & Bat Mitigation

This has been updated to follow the recommendations in the Fungi Report. Slow
worms are present in small numbers in the grassland area next to the pond and the
LEMP provides measures for their protection.

Under section 4.2.3 of the LEMP it outlines measures to create bat mitigation along
the “Western Boundary dark edge” to create a 30 metres buffer zone. The corridor
will be screened with a 2.1 metre ( 7 feet) high timber fence at the rear of the lodges.
This will be approximately 130 m in length ...A woodland area will be planted
between the fence and the western boundary to provide additional screening. This
will cover approximately 3450 square metres...Planting should be at an average
density of one tree per 3.25 m2 ( average spacing of 1.8 m or 3000 trees per ha)
Approximately 1060 trees will be planted in this area. This is a high density of plants
to provide screening as quickly as possible.”

The proposed planting is not dense enough as it is a third of a tree per square meter, |
recommend that at least 100 trees per meter square are planted. | also recommend that
this is undertaken before the lodge construction commences to allow for this
mitigation habitat to become established.

The under section 4.2.5 of the LEMP “North /South Migration Route™... “This route
following the existing farm track, is used by Soprano Pipistrelle bats and LHB” It is
proposed The corridor will be screened with a 2.1 metre ( 7 feet) high timber fence at
the rear of the lodges. This will be approximately 97 m in length. A native broadleaf
hedgerow will be planted on the east side of the fence to provide additional
screening.... The hedgerow should be planted Im to the east of the timber fence.
Whips should be planted at 150mm spacing in three offset rows which are 500mm
apart. This is equivalent to 18 whips per linear metre, However | recommend that 7
rows are planted at a distance of 150mm apart, and that this is carried out before
construction takes place.

Page 201



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Otter

Otter Survey by Wild Banks Conservation & Land & Heritage dated October 2023,
undertook a field survey on 9th October 2023. No otter signs were found but several
potential holt sites, laying up sites and community habitats were noted. Otters are
known on the Afon Seiont and there remains the likelihood that they travel through
the site and have resting sites and a holt. The report recommends “that any work
within 30m of the water bodies on site should have pre-work commencement checks
for otter activity or signs to ensure the likely absence of otters.” | recommend that
before any works otter surveys are undertaken and measures to avoid harm to otters
are established.

Bryophytes

No bryophyte survey has been undertaken. Records show that some of the boulders
and walls creating boundaries in the fields along the river support uncommon mosses
(Grimmia lisae, Grimmia hartmanii, Hedwigia stellata, Pterogomium gracile). |
recommend that there is condition stating that all walls are to be retained as they area
and any work to walls require ecological advice. The bryophytes must be monitored
to ensure that the development is not impacting them.

River

This development within 10 meters of the river, and abuts the trees. | recommend that
a greater buffer (at least 20 meters) is between the trees/river and the development.
This will protect the river corridor and ensure that the green infrastructure is
maintained. Rivers and woodlands provide wildlife corridors and forms part of the
localities green infrastructure. Planning Policy Wales 11 states (paragraph 6.2.4):

“The planning system should protect and enhance green infrastructure assets and
networks because of these multi-functional roles. The protection and enhancement of

’

biodiversity must be carefully considered as part of green infrastructure provision...’

I recommend that the number of lodges is reduced to ensure a sufficient buffer
between trees and river from impacts of the development. See plan below on which |
have marked a green line and | recommend that 4 lodges are omitted from the plans.

Construction is likely to cause run off and | recommend that Pollution Prevention
Plan is provided.

Non-native invasive species

Himalayan Balsam is abundant along the river and other areas in the site. This plant
potentially poses a threat to the uncommon bryophytes. I recommend that it is
eradicated every year for the perpetuity of the use of the site. It should be removed by
pulling and cutting.

Access & Driveway & Trees

The Transport Scheme (Focus April 2021) includes plans for the creation of 2 new
passing places along the existing drive and the creation of a new track from the
existing drive. The driveway has several large mature trees, which are a substantial

Page 202



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

part of the landscape. | am concerned that this work will damage the existing mature
trees along the drive and that the creation of a new track will cause the loss of
hedgerow. The Tree Survey report does not cover the driveway trees. These matures
trees have a high potential for bat roosts and bryophytes and lichens of conservation
concern. The LEMP (23rd March 2023) under 2.3 states “The final Tree Protection
Plan should also make recommendations for the protection of mature trees along the
main hotel driveway from construction traffic. Currently the access route to site, the
size and type of construction vehicles, and the size of material loads are all
unknown.” This is too vague to assess the impact to the trees or to ensure their
protection. The large mature trees are likely to be a habitat for bats, lichens and
bryophytes.

The Tree Survey (BS 5837 Arboriculture Survey revised August 2023) states in the
summary “The proposed Scheme will require the removal of eight young amenity
trees from part of the hotel gardens. No other trees will need to be removed.”,
however it does not cover the driveway.

The report states under section 5.6:

Construction traffic will use the main driveway to the hotel which is lined with
mature trees on both sides. Currently these trees provide crown clearance for large
commercial vehicles such as waste trucks and delivery lorries. It is proposed that the
lodges will be of flat pack construction which will not require large vehicles for
deliver. Existing height and width clearance is considered adequate, so that trees are
not considered to be at risk of damage from construction traffic.

But is has not considered the creation of passing places, nor has it assessed the trees
along the driveway.

Summary & Recommendations:

I object to this proposal until amended plans are provided to ensure that the river
corridor is protected and until further information is provided regarding the impact to
trees along the drive way. This development proposal still has the potential to have
significant impacts on ecological features such as driveway trees and their associated
species.

The above HRA has concluded that this development will not have an adverse impact
on the Glynllifon SAC.

e Bats & Lighting —I recommend that an updated illumination map modelling
lux levels for whole site including the hotel, LIwyn y Brain, driveway, and
car park is provided. I recommend a condition for lighting and illumination
monitoring before site is operational and after one year of site being
operational. Light barriers must be in place, hedge planting must take place
before construction commences to the satisfaction of the LPA. | recommend
that all existing flood lighting is removed. Monitoring of lighting yearly once
site operational.

e River - | recommend amended plans that ensure a buffer between the
development and the river of 20 meters. A Pollution Prevention Plan must be
provided.

e Non-native invasive plants - Himalayan Balsam eradication scheme
covering at least 10 years (or for the perpetuity of the site while E’ is
a

ge 203



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

operational) by pulling and cutting and yearly monitoring and a report to be
provided to the LPA every two years.

e Trees & Bats & Epiphyte Cryptograms (Bryophytes & Lichens) - More
information regarding tree works on drive to create passing places. Ideally
this is provided before the application is determined, however if the council is
wishes to grant permission, then a condition for detailed plans of work to
driveway must be provided showing which trees will be felled or lopped. Bat
surveys and lichen and bryophyte surveys of tree will be required. These
must be provided before any works commence.

e Bryophytes - Condition for all walls around fields to be retained. Condition
for bryophyte monitoring to take place within two years of the site being
operational and again in five years.

e Fungi - Condition for recommendations of the Fungi Report to be followed.
Before any works commence a fence must be erected to protect grassland
fungi area. No vehicles on grassland areas of wax cap importance (see yellow
areas on plan above for areas conservation concern identified in fungi
survey). Before any ground works take place or construction take place and
that the fencing shall be approved by the LPA.

e Reptiles - Condition to protect reptiles. A plan detailing suitable measures
for translocating and protecting reptiles must be provided before any works
take place.

e Otter - Condition — before works an otter survey must be undertaken.

e Condition for ecological clerk of works for all ground works and
construction.

Gwynedd Thank you for consulting us on the above application. Having reviewed the area of
Archaeological ~ proposed works with reference to the regional Historic Environment Record (HER), |
Planning have determined that there is a potential for archaeological impact and would like to

Service draw your attention to the comments below.

The proposed development is for the remodelling of and extension to Seiont Manor
Hotel, a 19th century manor complex located on the western extent of Llanrug.
Llwyn-y-Brain (Cadw ref. 22239, PRN 1988, NPRN 26735) is a grade Il listed
building, and is present throughout a historic map regression. Both the regional
Historic Environment Record (HER) and National Monuments Record of Wales
(NMRW) also record a number of sites and features within the immediate vicinity of
the site.

It should be noted that GAPS responded to a pre-application consultation for this site
recommending both Desk-Based Assessment and Geophysical Survey. The PAC
document suggests that this work has not yet been pursued.

There is a potential for sub-surface remains of various periods in and around the
manor complex, dating both the to the post-medieval activity associated with the
manor as well as much earlier settlement. Medieval potential is suggested by an
undated enclosure at Bryn-y-Fedwen (PRN 3462) and Roman potential is evident via
the discovery of a coin hoard to the east of the site (PRN 3716). Two linear
earthworks may extend into the application site: one is undated, and corresponds with
a 19th century field boundary, but could have earlier origins (NPRN 423646); the
other is recorded as a possible Roman road (PRN 17589), but does not align with
known sections of this road (which connected the forts at Caernarfon and Caerhun),
though the reported coin hoard does indicate some potential for Roman activity in this
area.

In addition to these existing records, the location of the site adjacent to the ,Igjon
ag

e 204



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Seiont conveys a potential for as yet unknown prehistoric to Roman remains in
particular, river valleys being routes for communication and transport, and favoured
for settlement. Although previous landscaping may have had some impact upon any
buried archaeology in the grounds close to the hotel, the fields proposed for lodge
development appear to be undisturbed agricultural land, indicating that any
archaeology present may be well preserved.

As per our pre-application response, further information is still required in order to
better understand the archaeological potential of the development site, and allow for a
better-informed planning recommendation. The work recommended comes under the
category of archaeological pre-determination, primarily comprising of a formal
programme of archaeological evaluation known as Desk-Based Assessment, as well as
a Geophysical Survey. It should be noted that the survey may require further, follow-
up evaluation work such as Trial Trenching in order to interrogate the results.

An appropriate, qualified archaeological contractor should be appointed to undertake
the work, a database of which can be found either at
hiip://www.bajr.org/RACSmap/default.asp ~ (British  Archaeological Jobs &
Resources) or at hiips://www.archaeologists.net/civicrm-contact-distance-search
(Chartered Institute for Archaeologists). The appointed archaeological contractor
must agree a specification for the work with GAPS before commencing the project.

Rights of Way If this planning application is granted, | would recommend that a condition is
Unit. included on that planning permission stating that an application to divert the route
should be submitted before any development works could commence.

The applicant is advised that Public Footpath No 31 Llanrug crosses the application
site and it is an offence to block or divert any right of way unless it is made in
accordance with the appropriate legislation. During the development phase and
following completion of any development work it should be ensured that the right of
way:

* remains open, unobstructed and safe for public use at all times;
» that no construction materials are kept on the surface of the public right of way;
» that there is no restriction on the width of the public right of way.

Before undertaking any work on site the applicant is advised to contact the Highways
Authority Public Rights of Way Team for further advice.

Public A notice was placed on site and nearby residents were informed. The notice period
Consultation: has ended and correspondence has been received objecting on the basis of the
following:

e The application is invalid, in the absence of a Welsh Language Statement or a
Welsh Language Impact Assessment Report for a site of 1,000m2 or more.
e Granting the application would be contrary to JLDP Policy TWR 3.

Page 205



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.

51

52

5.3

e The site is not eligible for consideration under the permitted exceptions to
existing sites.

e There are already more than enough holiday accommodation provisions in
the area, and allowing the application would be overdevelopment.

e The decision of the Arfon Council regarding Bryn Afon in 1987 can be
regarded as a precedent for rejection.

e The provision of more accommaodation facilities in the area is likely to lead to
an increase in demand for second homes and self-catering holiday units, an
increase in property prices, immigration and problems regarding lack of
affordable homes. These trends erode the fabric of local society and
undermine the existence of the Welsh language as a living community
language.

e The local community is against the application.

e Itisan intrusive development in the landscape.

e Development too large

e Loss of agricultural land

e Road concerns.

e Development outside the development boundary.

e Concern over the impact of the failure of the proposal on the open
countryside.

e Proposal not positive to local businesses and residents.

e Too close to the River Seiont and a threat to wildlife.

e Threat to local woods

e Access is unsuitable for additional traffic generated by the proposal.

Assessment of the relevant planning considerations:
The principle of the development

The proposal includes the redevelopment of a hotel by erecting substantial extensions of size and
scale to the existing structure together with siting 39 permanent lodges on land to the north of the
hotel. The site is located in the open countryside outside any development boundary as defined in
the LDP. Policy PCYFF 1 states that, outside development boundaries proposals will be rejected
unless they are in line with other policies within the local development plan, national policies or
that the proposal indicates that its location in the countryside is essential. The principle of
development must, therefore, be assessed in accordance with the needs of Policy PCYFF 1.

The explanation of Policy PCYFF 1 states that the development boundaries were identified for
each type of settlement in the Scheme other than clusters. Please note that development
boundaries amongst other things prohibit inappropriate development from being located in the
countryside, provide clear guidance and clarity on where exceptions can be supported, e.g. rural
exclusion policy, identify places where development could be approved and promote effective
and appropriate use of land and buildings. It is considered, therefore, that the remainder of the
Plan area is subject to greater control and is largely restricted to developments requiring a rural
location or meeting local rural demand, supporting rural diversification or rural sustainability.

With regard to the protection of the countryside, it can be recognised that some types of
development are required if the location of the proposal is essential e.g. agricultural sheds and
addresses the social, economic or environmental needs of the area. It is recognised that the hotel
establishment is an existing commercial development on the site and has existed there for many
years, and in that respect Policy PS 14 and TWR 2 are supportive of proposals which involve
extending visitor attractions and improving and protecting the provision for existing servicelgand

age 206



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

self-catering accommodation. It is also noted that holiday units are a development that can be
supported in the countryside under Policy TWR 3 and although the applicant states that there are
several elements to the proposal (as noted above), they should be considered as one
comprehensive development within the visual context and considering the viability of the
development. Given the above and the other relevant policies, the proposal is not considered
contrary to policy PCYFF 1.

Extending the existing hotel

54 The principle of extending the hotel will be considered against the requirements of Policy TWR 2
of the LDP. Policy TWR 2 facilitates proposals for serviced holiday accommodation as long as
the proposal complies with the criteria included within the policy, namely:

i. In the case of new-build accommodation, that the development is located within
a development boundary, or makes use of a suitable previously developed site;

ii. That the proposed development is appropriate in scale considering the site, location
and/or settlement in question;

iii. That the proposal will not result in a loss of permanent housing stock;

iv. That the development is not sited within a primarily residential area nor significantly
harms the residential character of an area;

V. That the development does not lead to an over-concentration of such
accommodation in the area.

55 In relation to this particular intention, the criterion to be considered is criterion ‘ii’, namely that
the scale of development is appropriate having regard to the site and location.

5.6 As has already been mentioned, the existing hotel is located in the open countryside and has been
established on this particular site for some time. The present structure is a mix of single storey
and two-storey structure made with natural slate roofs, natural stone walls and a gravel whipped
rendering and in a form which more or less corresponds to a “Y shape” and the agent has defined
the existing structure of the hotel as — (i) rose garden wing; (ii) pool wing; (iii) spa wing and (iv)
centre core.

5.7 There will be no external alterations to the two-storey building with slate roof rose garden wing
which is located below Plasty Llwyn y Brain. Within the pool wing space, it is proposed to create
4 new visitor rooms which would involve the creation of 7 curved windows in the roof facing
east with a traditional design and a connection to the second floor of the spa wing. The proposed
work on the spa wing (which is an 8.5m high two-storey building with ridged roof and installed
on the western part of the hotel) will involve the creation of a three-storey structure ranging from
11.5m to 13.5m high with two slate roofs installed alongside each other creating two symmetrical
gables from the west and this is the most visual element of upgrading the existing hotel. An
element of the basement will have a green flat roof (biodiversity improvement) and will be
located on the western gable of the spa wing. The proposed work to the central core (which links
the two above wings together) will involve increasing the height of this section of the two-storey
building to create a three-storey structure with a flat roof to replace the existing slate roof.
External materials used on the proposed elevations will include natural slate roofs; green roofs;

Page 207



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

openings from wood-effect composite material; walls from a mixture of white coloured render or
another alternative colour to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority; natural stones; glass
panels and tree-effect vertical panels.

5.8 The proposed structure immediately north of the hotel will be a rectangular-shaped single storey
structure with slate roofs and white-coloured rendering materials to the walls together with
openings of wood-effect composite material. According to the contents of the Design Strategy
Statement, the new structure is designed largely in a native architectural form with regard to
form, mass and external finish including complementary local contemporary features and that the
design follows the existing topography of the land together with the natural woodland of the local
landscape. The proposal would also involve undertaking landscaping together with extensive
groundworks within and on the edge of the application site in order to minimise the
environmental impact of the development.

5.9 The nature and character of the landscape in which the hotel is located can be described as a
undulating landscape that generally runs down from the south to the north and towards the banks
of the River Seiont with a prominent hillock between the existing structure and the river itself.

5.10 In support of the application a Landscape and Visual Appraisal has been submitted and the
Appraisal notes that the hotel and surrounding landscape are located within an undulating
landscape with small to moderate hillocks within it, with the local landscape running down
towards the river in the vicinity of the application site. The site is also surrounded by banks,
shrubs and trees/woodlands. Any views of the development will be views from close to the site
and from the nearby footpath network with views of the development as a whole from a distance
between openings in the landscape and vegetation from the north-west. Whilst it is inevitable that
the development would have an element of impact on the local landscape, such an impact would
not be considered substantial and significant considering the design, nature and scale of
extensions and alterations to the existing hotel; that part of the hotel is a backdrop to the new
extensions together with the fact that the work would be located within a site that already contains
an established structure.

5.11 It is also noted that there are a number of heritage assets in the vicinity of the application site
including listed buildings and monuments together with the designation of Dinorwig Landscape
of Outstanding Historic Interest on the northeastern part of the site. However, the development is
not considered to adversely impact the setting or character of these designations (including the
setting of grade Il listed building at Plasty LIwyn y Brain) considering the location, nature, design
and scale of development in relation to these designations.

5.12  Taking into account the above assessment, the development relating to improvements to the
existing hotel is considered acceptable on the grounds of safeguarding visual amenities and
heritage assets and therefore the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy TWR 2,
PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4, AMG 3, PS 19, PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

Siting of 39 holiday lodges

5.13 Policy TWR 3: Chalet and static caravan sites and permanent alternative camping
accommodation stating that static caravan sites, chalet or permanent alternative camping
accommodation are permitted if a number of criteria can be complied with.

Page 208



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.14  Criterion i) refers specifically to a significant intensification of new developments. In order to
define ‘significant intensification’ in this context, reference should be made to explanatory
paragraph 6.3.69 which refers to the ‘Isle of Anglesey, Gwynedd and Snowdonia National Park
Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study’ (Gillespies, 2014). Within each Landscape Character
Area (as defined by the Gwynedd Landscape Strategy (2012)) the capacity of the landscape is
assessed to determine the capacity of the local landscape for additional holiday caravan or chalet
developments.

5.15  This particular development falls within Landscape Character Area LCA4 (Caernarfon Coast and
Plateau). The Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study identifies indicative capacity for the
Landscape Character Area (LCA). Specifically, in relation to the LCA relevant to this application
it is noted that: - Outside the AONBs and Special Landscape Areas there may be some capacity
for small to very small scale development located sensitively and well designed, which should
relate well to the built environment / existing urban land cover. The Study defines very small
developments as those up to 10 units and small developments between 10 - 25 units. Therefore,
due consideration will need to be given to the scale of the proposed development in the location
in question.

5.16  The development involves siting 39 lodges on a northern part of the application site with a private
driveway as a cul-de-sac. There will be 32 lodges located on level land between the hotel and the
River Seiont and 7 lodges will be located on the southern side of a hillock above an existing lake
to the north-east of the hotel itself. Following concerns about the visual impact of the lodges in
the landscape, the applicant has now removed lodges from the most prominent part of the hillock
and repositioned them on the level ground area below the hillock itself.

5.17 The lodges will be single storey with a gable roof and of wood-effect composite material. They
would be 12.8m in length, 6.7m wide with parking spaces for 2 cars parallel to the lodges
themselves. Existing trees will be retained between lodges locations and proposed landscaping
and planting of vegetation within the lodge site and along the edges where spaces currently exist.

5.18 In accordance with the Gillespies Study, the number of units (39 lodges) offered on this site
exceeds that recommended in the Study, which was 25 units. However, it must be noted here that
paragraph 0.8 of the Study states - “It is important to note that this report represents a strategic
study and is not prescriptive at an individual site level. It does not replace the need for the
Councils or Park Authority to assess individual planning applications or for specific local
landscape and visual impact assessment as part of formal EIA on a case-by-case basis.

5.19  As referred to above, a visual impact assessment has been submitted with this application in the
form of Landscape and Visual Appraisal taking into account the context of the site, a wider
assessment of its context together with undertaking a Zone of Theoretical Influence scene
assessment of the landscape. The Gillespies Study identifies 8 guidelines that need to be
considered when dealing with applications for chalets and caravan parks within LCA4: -

(i)  Landform - the development is designed and sited so that it works with the existing
landscape taking into account the ground levels and topography of the local landscape.

(i)  Landcover — the development has been well screened by vegetation and structures
together with consideration of the topography of the local area.

Page 209



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Man-made influences - man-made structures are located within the application site and
in the vicinity of the application site in the form of a structure comprising dwellings,
agricultural holdings including agricultural structures, stone walls and water treatment
works. It is considered that these man-made influences would reduce the impact of the
development on visual amenities.

Visibility, vistas and views - taking into account the layout and design of the lodges in
the landscape and that the close views of the lodges themselves from the nearby
footpath network with views of the development as a whole from afar and between
openings in the landscape and vegetation from the north-west, the impact is not
considered substantial nor significant. In order to contribute towards reducing visual
impact, it is proposed to undertake a landscaping and planting scheme within and
around the site.

Scenic quality and character - the application site is not designated for any particular
landscape area even though it is located in the countryside. The north-eastern part of
the site is included within the Dinorwig Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest
designation, however the siting of 7 lodges on the southern side of the hillock will not
be considered to have a substantial impact on the setting and character of this wider
designation.

Remoteness and tranquillity - the site is located close to the settlement of Llanrug to
the west, and is served by a busy road network surrounded by a varied number of land
uses which contribute to anticipated disturbance of this part of the countryside.
Consideration must also be given to the fact that the site currently has legal use as a
hotel and that such uses, including associated activities, create an element of noise
disturbance. Whilst it is inevitable that the development would have an element of
additional impact on the tranquillity of the area, such impact would not be considered
substantial or significant given the layout of the cabins within the landscape and that
the site has been partially screened by existing vegetation as well as additional
vegetation by undertaking landscaping and groundworks within and around the site.

Landscape value — as referred to above, there is no designation of special landscape
area for this part of the countryside.

Historic value - as referred to above, the northeastern part of the site is included within
the Dinorwig Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest designation, however the
siting of 7 lodges on the southern side of the hillock is not considered to have a
substantial impact on the setting and character of this wider designation. A number of
heritage assets lie within the vicinity of the application site such as monuments and
scheduled buildings but taking into account the location, layout, scale and nature of
the development it is not considered to have substantial adverse effects on the
character or integrity of these assets.

5.20  To ensure that the site is developed in an orderly rather than piecemeal fashion, a condition may
be included if it is recommended that the application be permitted, requiring the development be
carried out in stages so that the holiday accommodation element cannot be developed separately
from the development of the existing hotel and vice versa and, to this end, the applicant through
his agent has confirmed that the development is an integral part of the hotel site as a whole. That
will also ensure that the holiday accommodation element forms part of a wider tourism
development that provides services beyond a holiday park alone. As a result, the development
will offer quality tourism that will support the economy of the area. Taking into account the
above appraisal, the principle of this current development in terms of policy TWR 3 is considered

Page 210



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

acceptable but it is also necessary to comply with all other relevant policies within the LDP and
these are discussed below.

Visual amenities

5.21  The proposal involves the development of an existing hotel site by undertaking refurbishment and
improvements which include the extension of the structure and the construction of a new structure
and a change of land use for the siting of holiday accommodation in the form of lodges and the
creation of a temporary driveway in the countryside to the west of the settlement of Llanrug. The
above appraisal sets out the local planning policies relating to the principle of the intent and
which include its visual impact on the local and wider landscape and in addition to these policies
the requirements of Policy PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and AMG 3 of the LDP should also be
considered. Policy PCYFF 3 encourages high quality proposals based on layout, appearance,
scale, height, mass and elevation treatment whilst respecting the context of the local landscape.
Policy PCYFF 4 states that all proposals should integrate with their surroundings and Policy
AMG 3 states that development will need to demonstrate that they do not have a significant
impact on qualities and features unique to the local landscape in terms of visual, historic,
geological, ecological and cultural aspects.

5.22  In support of the application, a Landscape and Visual Appraisal has been submitted, taking into
account the context of the site, a wider assessment of its context together with undertaking a Zone
of Theoretical Influence scene assessment of the landscape. The assessment anticipates that any
views of the development will be views from close to the site and from the nearby footpath
network with intermittent views of the development as a whole from a distance between openings
in the landscape and vegetation from the north-west. Taking into account factors such as layout,
scale, nature, design, topography, landscaping and proposed groundworks as well as considering
that the application site is not designated for any particular landscape of visual amenity (apart
from a small section in the north east of the site designated as a special historic landscape), it is
not considered that the proposal as a whole would create substantially incompatible features
within the local landscape than within the wider landscape and the development is considered to
have a moderate impact on visual amenity. It is therefore considered that due consideration is
given to its natural, historic and built environmental context and that it complies with the
requirements of Policy PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and AMG 3 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.23  Policy PCYFF 2 states that proposals will be refused if they would have a substantial adverse
effect on the health, safety or amenity of occupiers of local properties due to increased activities,
disturbance, noise, light pollution or other forms of pollution or disturbance. Commercial
properties are located along with residential dwellings around the site including Glanrafon Farm
(351m north); Glan Seiont (267m west); Swn y Gwynt (507m south-west); Challoner Caravan
Park (260m south-east) and Bryn Afon (303m east). The existing hotel is situated together with
much of the holiday accommodation site on a low plateau in the local landscape with 7 holiday
accommodation sited on the southern part of a hillock and as noted in the above assessment, the
site is located close to the west of the settlement of Llanrug and served by a busy road network
with a varied number of surrounding land uses which contribute towards the anticipated
disturbance of this part of the countryside.

Page 211



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

Consideration must also be given to the fact that the site currently has legal use as a hotel and that
such use, including associated activities, create an element of noise disturbance. Whilst it is
inevitable that the development would have an element of additional impact on the tranquillity of
the area, such impact would not be considered substantial nor significant given the layout of the
lodges within the landscape and that the site has been partially screened by existing vegetation as
well as additional vegetation by undertaking landscaping and groundworks within and around the
site. To this end, therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable based on the
requirements of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP which seeks to protect the residential and general
amenities of occupiers of adjacent properties.

Transport and Access

The site is served by a private single driveway which extends from the hotel to the junction with
the class 1 A.4086 county road (Llanberis Road). It is proposed to create 2 new laybys along the
existing driveway for additional traffic; create a temporary driveway for construction traffic;
provide 2 parking spaces for each holiday accommodation; provide 13 parking spaces near the
outdoor activity area; provide 43 parking spaces parallel to the main hotel building together with
parking and turning areas for service vehicles within the site.

In support of the application on grounds of road safety and parking considerations, a Transport
Statement has been submitted and the Statement concludes that the proposal would create a
suitable development for its location in terms of road safety and traffic. The existing junction with
the county road is suitable for increased traffic in and out of the site, and there is adequate
provision of parking within the site for the needs of the development itself. The proposal would
not require improvements outside the site to make it acceptable based on road safety. Following
the statutory consultation process, the Transport Unit has stated that the existing entrance is
appropriate as the proposal includes passing places on the sides of the driveway to the hotel itself
but questions are raised as to whether the parking provision for 43 cars is adequate for a 61-
bedroom hotel. The Wales CSS document identifies for hotels in the countryside that 1 space is
required for a commercial vehicle; 1 space for every 3 members of staff and 1 space for each
bedroom. However, it must also be noted that the site is considered an accessible site (see below)
and consideration given to extending and increasing parking spaces within the site taking into
account the area of land owned by the applicant and this can be achieved by including a relevant
condition should this application be granted.

As referred to above, the site is crossed by public footpath No 31 Llanrug and to this end the
Countryside Access Unit has identified that as a result of the statutory consultation process, a
condition will need to be included within any planning permission stating that the applicant will
need to submit an application to divert the route first before commencing any development
works. Taking the above assessment into account, it is considered that it is an acceptable proposal
based on the requirements of Policy TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

Several responses were received from the Biodiversity Unit and Natural Resources Wales stating
that further information regarding protected species would need to be submitted together with
biodiversity improvements and the provision of a Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment
(HRA). As seen from the Biodiversity Unit’s comments (03/01/24) several additional and revised
reports have been received on the application in response to the consultants’ concerns. The HRA
process needed to be completed as there are landscape features, including trees and hedgerows
connecting the site to the Glynllifon Special Area of Conservation (SAC) protected becausel__c;gts

ge 212



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

bat population. Although the agent has submitted a shadow HRA assessment as part of the
application, the Council has a duty as the competent authority to complete the assessment. The
shadow HRA is therefore to assist the council in its assessment. A copy of the Council’s
assessment can be seen as part of the comments from the above Biodiversity Unit. In accordance
with the Habitats Regulations, NRW was consulted on the conclusions of the appropriate
assessment, and comments were received from NRW confirming that it agreed with the council’s
conclusions.

5.29 In response to all additional information NRW was satisfied that the development could be
managed through conditions. Please note that the Council’s Biodiversity Unit continues to object
to the proposal due to the proximity of the holiday units to the river and potential impact on the
trees along the access road. The concern about the river corridor is acknowledged but there is no
evidence of any negative impact arising from the current setting. The appropriate assessment has
also concluded that the development is unlikely to have an adverse effect on the integrity of
Glynllifon SAC. Measures are in place to prevent light pollution with a 2.1m high wooden fence
to the rear of the units, together with planting and then an agricultural fence to prevent access to
the river. With all these measures in place it is not considered justified to request a revised plan
nor to refuse the application on these grounds.

5.30  The comments still refer to the temporary access track that has already been withdrawn from the
application and as a result, that part of the objection no longer applies. The other part of the
concern relates to the existing trees on all sides of the existing access track and the potential for
the construction traffic to damage the trees. Impact on trees is a material consideration when
assessing an application but please note that there is no tree preservation order protecting any
trees on the site. It must also be remembered that until a few years ago the hotel was in use and a
variety of traffic was going to the hotel and this would have included lorry deliveries. However, it
is likely that there is potential for the construction traffic to be greater than normal service
vehicles. It is possible to impose a condition on any consent to agree any work required for the
trees together with a transport management plan to protect the trees along the access road. With
appropriate conditions placed on the development it is possible to overcome the Biodiversity
Unit’s concern and it is believed that this development will meet the requirements of Policies
PS19, AMG 3 and AMG 5 of the LDP which encourage proposals to conserve and, where
appropriate, to enhance biodiversity in the area.

5.31  On 7th February 2024, the Welsh Government published an update to Planning Policy Wales
(PPW), which covers green infrastructure, net benefit to biodiversity, the protection afforded to
SSSls and trees and woodlands. The changes to PPW have been considered together with the
comments from the Biodiversity Unit but, in this case, they do not raise any new issues that have
any material influence on the decision and the content of the ecological reports and the ability to
set conditions to ensure mitigation and enhancements to biodiversity are considered sufficient to
meet the needs of PPW.

Language Matters

5.32  In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 there is a duty to consider the Welsh language
when making a decision on a planning application, where it is relevant to that application. This is
reinforced further by para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 2018) together with
Technical Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) ‘Maintaining and
Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities’ (adopted July 2019) provides further
guidance on how Welsh language considerations are expected to be incorporated into all relevant

Page 213



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.33

5.34

5.35

5.36

developments. It is noted that there are some specific types of development where the proposal
will need to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment
Report. In this case a Welsh Language Statement has been submitted with the application which
concludes that: - (i) an overall beneficial effect on the Welsh language in the area; (ii) the
proposal would provide a wide range of holiday accommodation increasing the choice of quality
holiday accommodation in the area; (iii) the construction and post-completion operational
arrangements would support the local economy whilst promoting a sustainable Welsh
community; (iv) undertaking mitigation measures to support the local labour supply chain during
construction; (v) internal and external bilingual signage and (vi) a second chance for those who
lost jobs when the hotel closed back in 2016 and keeping the name “Seiont” as an integral part of
the development itself.

Although no response has been received from the Language Unit to the proposal and in order to
ensure that the proposal itself complies fully with the requirements of Policy PS 1, specifically
criteria 4 and 5 which note the need to ensure bilingual signs and a Welsh name on the new
development, it is intended to reinforce a standard condition that would require details to be
agreed regarding these elements. In doing so, it is considered that there would be a positive effect
on the local community and that it would add to protecting the linguistic character of the local
area. Taking into account the above assessment, the development can be considered acceptable
based on the requirements of Policy PS 1 together with the SPG: Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities.

Sustainability matters

As referred to in the above assessment, the site is located in the countryside on the western edge
of the village of Llanrug. Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments that are
consistent with the sustainable development principles, and where appropriate developments
should: “Reduce the need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all
users to travel when required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, placing
particular emphasis on walking, cycling and using public transport in accordance with Strategic
Policy PS 4”. This is supported by bullet point 4 of Policy PS14 (The Visitor Economy), which
states: Supporting appropriately scaled new tourist provision and initiatives in sustainable
locations in the countryside through the reuse of existing buildings, where appropriate, or as part
of farm diversification, particularly where these would also benefit local communities and
support the local economy and where they are in accordance with sustainable development
objectives.

LDP policies are considered to be consistent with national planning policies in terms of how they
deal with the principles of sustainable development. Paragraph 3.35 of PPW (Edition 10, Dec.
2018) states: “In rural areas the majority of new development should be located in those
settlements which have relatively good accessibility by non-car modes when compared to the
rural area as a whole. Development in these areas should embrace the national sustainable
placemaking outcomes and, where possible, offer good active travel connections to the centres of
settlements to reduce the need to travel by car for local journeys.

This is supported by paragraph 3.11 of Technical Guidance Note 18: Transport which states:
Development in rural locations should embody sustainability principles, balancing the need to
support the rural economy, whilst maintaining and enhancing the environmental, social and
cultural quality of rural areas. Most development should be located in places accessible by

a range of travel modes. In addition, paragraph 3.15 of TAN 18 states that tourism proposals,
particularly in rural areas, should demonstrate access by a choice of modes to avoid the
requirement to travel by car and, in rural areas, a lack of public transport access needs to be

Page 214



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

balanced against the contribution tourism makes to the rural economy in the specific area. In
addition, it is noted that the nearest village to the site offering a limited range of services is
Llanrug (556m north-west).

5.37  The following information is noted when considering the sustainability and accessibility of the
site: -

o  Official bus stops closest to the site are parallel to and opposite the main entrance to the
site itself.

e A footpath/pavement is located 250m east with a green carriageway parallel to the
highway between the main entrance and the footpath.

e There is a network of public footpaths in the area including footpath number 31 Llanrug
which runs through the application site.

e There is a wide road network in the vicinity of the site with direct access to Eryri
(Snowdonia) and the National Park.

e The proposal would provide services and facilities within the site avoiding the need to
travel.

5.38  The Chartered Institution for Highways and Transportation (CIHT) in their document Providing
for Journeys on Foot (2000) recommends walking distances (which are relevant to this
application i.e. outside town centres and commuter areas: - 400m (desirable), 800m (acceptable)
and 1.2km (optional maximum). It is also noted in appeal judgements that Inspectors have used
the 800m distance as an acceptable distance to undertake a comfortable walking journey.

5.39 Although it is acknowledged that the majority of the users of the development would use a private
car to reach the site there are different options for using alternative modes of transport once they
have arrived at the site including cycling, public transport and by foot. The applicant has also
confirmed that there will be some parking spaces for electric cars, as well as charging points. To
this end, therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable based on the requirements of
Policy PS 5 and PS 14 of the LDP and that it complies with the advice contained in TAN18, TAN
23 and PPW.

Agricultural land matters

5.40  The document Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11, states that Agricultural land of grades 1, 2 and
3a of the Agricultural Land Classification system (ALC)16 is the best and most versatile, and
should be conserved as a finite resource for the future.....Land in grades 1, 2 and 3a should only
be developed if there is an overriding need for the development, and either previously developed
land or land in lower agricultural grades is unavailable, or available lower grade land has an
environmental value recognised by a landscape, wildlife, historic or archaeological designation
which outweighs the agricultural considerations. If land in grades 1, 2 or 3a does need to be
developed, and there is a choice between sites of different grades, development should be directed
to land of the lowest grade.

5.41  The need to protect the best agricultural land is highlighted in strategic policy PS 6: Mitigation of
the effects of climate change, which states that proposals will only be permitted where it can be
demonstrated with appropriate evidence that they have taken full account and responded
appropriately to a series of points including: “Safeguarding the best and most versatile
agricultural land, promoting allotments, support opportunities for local food production and
farming in order to reduce the area's contribution to food miles (point 6)”

Page 215



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.42  Although the proposal involves the loss of an element of Class 3a agricultural land together with

543

544

5.45

5.46

land not recorded within the Welsh Government’s Land Classification, factors such as: - (i) that
the proposal is otherwise acceptable in terms of other Planning policies and that the development
is justified (ii) that the proposal involves extensive landscaping and groundworks; the retention of
existing vegetation including trees, shrubs and hedges; (iii) the imposing of ecological mitigation
measures; (iv) the prevention of pollution within any planning permission together with (v)
noting that the minimum area of Class 3a land is to be partially developed as part of the
application in comparison with the remaining class 3a land in the site’s catchment, it is not
considered that the intention to permit the application would undermine Policy PS 6 as well as the
guidance within Planning Policy Wales.

Infrastructure / drainage

The information submitted as part of the application confirms that there is an intention to connect
the development to the main public sewer. Dwr Cymru has confirmed that conditions will be
required to receive further information to ensure that the proposal does not overflow the sewerage
system. The following information must be received before commencing any work on the site:

o Detailed plan regarding disposal of foul water from the site.

e Survey for the assessment of the current flow and load of foul water received from
Llanrug water treatment works together with the results.

o If applicable, a consolidation scheme for the Water Treatment Works to be able to receive
an additional flow from the development which is the subject of this application.

It is therefore considered that the proposal does comply, with conditions, with the requirements of
policy ISA 1 of the LDP.

Policy PCYFF 6 requires proposals to incorporate water conservation measures where practicable,
including Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) and that proposals over 1,000m? should
be supported by a water conservation statement. Water Conservation Statement matters have been
addressed as part of the Planning statement received which confirms the intention to provide a
Sustainable Urban Drainage System, and whilst the statement does not provide full details for
achieving this, it is considered acceptable in terms of policy requirements PCYFF 6 of the LDP.

Archaeological matters

Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service (GAPS) states that the archaeological potential of this
site is for remains that may date back to the prehistoric and Roman age with existing records of
some historic features present in the area. In order to gain a greater understanding of the potential
for additional heritage assets, it was recommended that initial archaeological research be
completed before a decision is made on the application, in the form of a Desk Assessment
together with a Geophysical Survey and trial trench.

The agent is aware of this but asked whether it was possible to impose a condition on any consent.
It is ideal to receive information before the application is determined as there is potential for
archaeological issues to cause delays and additional costs or if there was a need to avoid specific
areas, the plans would need to be amended. As the agent is aware of the risk and willing to agree

Page 216



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

a programme of archaeological work by condition, it is considered in this case that the proposal is
able to comply with policy AT 4 of the LDP.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 In assessing this current planning application, full consideration was given to the comments
received from residents and statutory consultants, and by assessing the intention in its entirety, no
substantial adverse effect was identified contrary to local planning policies and relevant national
advice. To this end, therefore, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable subject to the
following conditions.

7. Recommendation:

7.1 Delegate the right to the Senior Planning Manager to grant the application subject to the
following conditions:

Consent — conditions: -

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

5 years.
In accordance with the revised details submitted with the application.

Submit details to be agreed in writing with the LPA from the biomass unit before
commencing any work on the site.

Provide details to be agreed in writing with the LPA of examples of external uses for the
extensions and external elevations of the holiday accommodation/lodges before
commencing any work on the site.

Submit a Construction Method Statement before commencing any work on the site.

Condition of application to the Rights of Way Team for diversion of Footpath No 31
Llanrug which runs through the site.

Dwr Cymru’s condition with regard to the introduction of a foul water drainage plan
before commencing any work on the site.

Dwr Cymru’s condition regarding the submission of details of the capacity of Llanrug
Water Treatment Works to be approved by the LPA before commencing any work on the
site.

Introduce an Environmental Construction Management Plan before commencing any
work on the site.

Submit details of a programme of archaeological work to be agreed in writing with the
LPA to include an archaeological evaluation programme and geophysical survey.

Submit a detailed report of the archaeological work required by condition (10) which is to
be permitted in writing by the LPA.

Complete the development in stages to be agreed in writing with the LPA.

Compliance with mitigation measures within ecological and arboriculture documents.

Page 217



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Limit the use of holiday lodges for holiday use only and not as permanent residential
accommodation.

Introduce a detailed plan regarding landscaping and groundworks to be agreed in writing
with the LPA.

Introduce an Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Plan to be agreed in writing with
the LPA.

Submit a revised Landscape and Environmental Management Plan to be agreed in writing
with the LPA.

Introduce a scheme that provides additional parking spaces within the site.

To agree details of Welsh names for the development together with signs advertising and
promoting the development.

Agree a lighting plan.
Introduce an ecological compliance audit.
Introduce and agree a transport management plan to protect trees along the access road

Notes and advice for the applicant relating to the responses of the statutory consultants.

Page 218



Cynllunio

6T¢ obed

a1

AN

Location Plen

0 20 40 80 B0 100m
| /- . . ..

Schedule:

Caemarfon Properties Limited
Orwinership Line
Sile Boundary Line —

Services Egsement

o 6. Bourtary fre énanants dhatn VG4

v A Bourdarylom refremert e W4

- oy

i .

i B

R O———

™| e | e n | wmm o
el /|

K D e A TR e o e s



0¢¢ abed

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Plan : Cynllun

Uik comidor Propnea nitye Yy
hesdaeraies and standard Foas, P
refiee n LEMP spocificatiors,

VEIEEY
'ROMan of Dubling t ba ef 1 51 wih | 5
o amestio L S|

of

Sfind Por tn bn sniancod. nine siandord e
Proposes arcund i, Phse wlel In LEMP peciicaing.

Proposed Site Plan
Benoral Schedule:
ﬁ ‘semmm Extonscn & Remadaling: Y

T L e & et i T
3. 28 Mo Exiskg Bedrooeis {32 56 1)

28 No. Addtionst (28-35 s}
-2 Floors, 'SPA’ Becrsors Wing
™ (28-35 .11}

i irg
1 Mo, Badmemns Total (rc. Famity & DDA roome)
4, Lodges Reception in the Hols!
e 13 Ludges.
38 1o 3 Boama |

B Lodgas.
JHRERR i 2ok soaces perunn
Grassorat Car Park

—— ¥ B
|| v e mameced n Retutishac
——— {5utiect 1o @ Sazarae Planning Acsbcatcn)
. Holiocprerianding
N AcosssLinks
B S Plint Rosn
- Erposal Brimday Lino

Camnarkin Progeries Liniled.
[— Ownership L

—— Smrvioms Fmeant
— T TR Fonce (P86 180 1 LEWF SpECNEAONS]

Btk corridors (Lingae wb katures)

et |

i e i s e e e S i et e bt



T¢e¢ abed

North East Elevation

T T

North West Elevation

(1B FBRRE NN 1 BRRNA

South West Elevation

Vihare testrmcns ars oo gn. drmmirgs e e e e v B
At vl i st St

n 100 e veer ofary emsora conict between Larbert Sestn
aToton Deasinga. e muate i b4 ke 1o L amben Smit
ruampton - st

Tha Eoscton st s el o Lo

Hamptun Soec ot o b 1A S Conanchan wit 1t Dweg.

Nalen

Lambert
Smith
Hampton

Property Solutions
Northampton Building Consultancy
Pyramus House
Roman Way

Grange Park
Morthampton NN4 SEA
Telephone: 01604 664366
Fax: 01604 664367
www.Ish.co.uk

.

RURAL RITRIATS & LsURS UK.
The Rural Retreats Group of
Companies

Plas Glynllifon

Clynnog Road

Caemarforn

LL54 5DY

Gilent

Praject

Seiont Manor Hotel
Llanrug
Caernarfon
Gwynedd

LL55 2AQ

Drawing

Existing North East, North West &
South West Elevations

01168762-BC-0000| 005
AZ[@1:200| 02/0818 RS oJc




Ground Floor Plan

Wl s i o, e s 0 s st i B
e seltec oL 9

" b ) Lt Sl
g

s o sk e N 1 £ Bt LaDR SAry

Hotes

Revisians

Lambert

Smith
Hampton

Property Solutions
Northampton Building Censultaney
Pyramus House
Roman Way
Grange Park
Northampton NN4 5EA
Telephona: 01604 664366
Fax: 01604 864367

e 15h oo Uk

Cliont

CALITY m-&
IRURAL RFTRAATS & Luasuns UK

The Rural Retreats Group of
Companies

Plas Glynflifon

Clynnag Read

Caernarforn

LL54 5DY

Prajsct

Seiont Manor Hotel
Lianrug

Caernarfon
Gwynedd

LL55 2AQ

Drawing

Existing Ground Floor Plan

T [
0116762-BC-0000| 002

£ T o )
A2@1:200 | o20v18 RS oue

zee abed




cee abed

[
|
|
|
|
|

Lower Ground Floor Plan

Wl s i o, e s 0 s st i B
e seletest b L et Sl gk

w e COES
o S A N
Hrg b e ik

s o sk e N 1 £ Bt LaDR SAry

Hotes

Revisians

Lambe

Smith
Hampton

Property Solutions
Nerthampton Building Consultaney

Pyramus House

Roman Way

Grange Park
Northampton NN4 5EA
Telephons: 01604 664366
Fax: 01604 864367

e 15h oo Uk

Cliont

SALITY AT 178 BEST
(RyTkAL RFTREATS & LuSURE UK

The Rural Retreats Group of
Companies

Plas Glynflifon

Clynnag Read

Caernarforn

LL54 5DY

Praject

Seiont Manor Hotel
Lianrug

Caernarfon
Gwynedd

LL55 2AQ

Drawing

Existing Lower Ground Floor Plan

s e
0116762-BC-0000 001

= T o )
A2@1:100 | 020318 RS oue




First Floor Plan

—
et scdared 5 Lambort S Hamgtae.

v vt of ey ol Confic betwaies Lamten Sins

Fioepton for clanfucion

T ioriaciar st ks e 15 ey WA Laohust St
A, SOaCISCaon B 4 Hod ) ersancias i) T A

Heigs

Ravizions.

Lambert

Smith
Hampton

Property Solutions

Nor Building C

Grange Park
Morthamplon NN4 SEA
Telephone: 01604 664386
Fax: 01604 664367
www.[sh.co. Uk

Y

Cliamt

AN

The Rural Retreats Group of
Companies

Plas Glynllifon

Clynnog Road

Caernarforn

LL54 5DY

oS

Seiont Manor Hotel
Llanrug
Caernarfon
Gwynedd

LL55 2AQ

Orawing

Existing First Floor Plan

0116762-BC-0000| 003
— =3 = ==
A2@1:200| 0200318 RS DJc

vz abed




e Y

1 Level B1 - GA Proposed
] 41100

) i Lasai i i /
@ e e e

i it

] [ et
[ e i
i " i
Eban & A
Ehan— o
I e c e e
| et P
| Bt ! Laveog bp
I d
| =l
1 \
R0 1500 VAT 4082 B,
i p
i’ i

o n

s .,

Pl M
s w0
street design rtneshi
e b
s e te D




i D

Cynllunio ) \o! "

HE Level 0 - GA Proposed
1 1]
Daibigh i 3 A TPV A I
| # il et L e |
; \ SN ey e
— / | wnwm-mmw‘
= I 0 T s e
; | : | A R R
| i
Il | i |
b N | W &
I ] - b i s
| | i L . 1 e
| i | ey
[ R | e =
4 .
!
I (|
i ]
| in
[
| | =
| !
= | i | | "
Iy ! .‘ | | |
T . FEET
Q SR YErey
m p f | | | ’ #I B iy i S e
o | . { m;uwﬂ;@gﬂ—w s
I\)‘ | f ’1 _— T T T e na
I J Pl { { l / J i ! -
(@)) ! Lo 3 |
i ! H

street design partneship
s P

i o e A il




s Dk

J | f 4 HE Level 1 - GA Proposed
. " S ; 200
Cynllunio - j
Buebyts - SO0EE0ZT ) X % i ¥ i HEE SRR AV SO G
; : . ‘ e ay e
= / ! - SRR T
- 7 % t y ‘ | : S — BT
L .
{ }
L T ;
) L R
b o =
¥ [ |- el | {
T | { )

N H [ / f ! ! 7o i i
\l ) |

o |
3 x iy

- BT B e e
/ street design eshi

g . 7 (el _ ooy Mogoend_
| i l ¥ - i o e A il




Cy

-
Q
@ ]

b LD

[ —
et e s

e i

. HE Level 2 - GA Proposed
1:100

AR SR AV RO

i oy
- Fm Few
ooty o] ]

s L i, e




CanIL_lnio

e St S Beteurs
Hh

T Bk

1 P SO DL
T epen b u
- 5 gt s compane bt wint o ser- e s
s [ e e e
[y

e Y

-

i

- el

G4 North West Elevation
LS00

;3.%95@5115@@ Ty

o




SA West Elevation = SA-Visual 01
1:100 A 5/

Cynlluﬂnio

~r SALEVEL]
S

g SALEVELD
e

-

5 SA - South Elevation A SA - North Elevation
L&Y ;100 s 10100

L

b 7 _ r |||||||_M||||“|“ ||H\ﬂ .,
{ % ol | .

Q0]

- SALEVELS
w

- SALEVELD

@ S East Elevation e SA - Visual 03
1 R

oo

U Nota Block - Elevations - GA.
.a}\,_mﬂ 1 Proposedwhiararck TBC and fa LA spproval R i Gl ok e s sl e a0zt A
(Q“‘“ 2 Proposeddoubia sy st ol T
D e e At . O et |G e PR, RIS ‘
& Progesed sione kel TBC and b LA sproval, | STHETD L3tk CERIBHD CLEYS ANDUSUALS
& Proposed waish sigte roof. TBC snd i LA sposoval. |-=vrw [y cg e T T
ﬁgm & Wakrsl ool sicne facing, TEC and s LA spproval. st ar & n b 1 om ‘
: )
Mmlﬂnh\wﬂ
w s gty serang wan e o g Gy b snbe 1 w1 2 3 s s street design paﬂneship'
O memwnuw AR ‘archdecthsrs urban cesign “ntedors
9 Progosed il gazed proprietry systen. SCALE 1110 - e ‘




T abed

LOBGE TYPE T

MODEL: DOVECOTE
PRESTIGE y
LODGE TYPE 02
MODEL LODKOUT
PRESTICE HOMESEEKER
LODGE TYPE D
BODEL: CABA DI LUSSO
PRESTIGE HOMESEEXER
PROPUSED LODGES
Genersl Schedue
3 b, Prapasea Bedrmam Logges
it 02 M. ratking $ace3 per uril
Eﬂn“mrctm SEIDHT MANGR FROPOAED | DOGF
LMTED GATHEDD s
o e s e
in P, A ln e

street design partnershi
fiect design ooy

-, /|







jabl
«Q
®
N
w
w



Page 234




nership



















Page 241







Agenda Item 5.7

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Number: 7

Application No:  C23/0981/39/AM

Date of 11/12/2023

Registration:

Application Outline

Type:

Community: Llanengan

Ward: Llanbedrog with Mynytho

Outline application with some reserved matters to demolish
existing dwelling house and commercial garage together
with associated buildings and re-develop brownfield to
create new hotel, community pub and parking area to
share with village hall (second submission from application
C23/0089/39/AM which was withdrawn)

Proposal:

Location: Mynytho Garage, Mynytho, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 7RH

Summary of the
Recommendatio ToO REFUSE
n:

Page 243


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=84552

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

1. Description:

1.1 Outline application with some matters reserved to re-develop a former commercial garage site
and residential site as well as greenfield land to create a mixed development to include a
community pub, hotel and community parking area to share with the village Memorial Hall.

1.2 For clarity, further details of the application as submitted are as follows:

o Demolition of former garage building and associated structures and demolition of single
storey residential house

o Create vehicular access with an access road through the site and parking spaces for the
pub and hotel, staff parking and community parking. There is also a cycle storage area on
part of the site.

e Create a communal car park to share with the memorial hall

e Construction of a building described as a community pub comprising an internal floor
area of approximately 323m?

e Construction of a building to be used as a hotel with floor space of approximately 836m?

1.3 It is noted that a previous application for this site has been withdrawn. The most obvious changes
between the two proposals are that the residential houses and holiday units included as part of the
first application have now been removed from the current proposal with a hotel and community
car park now forming part of the current proposal as well as the community pub. This application
has been submitted as an outline application and therefore the detail of the development in terms
of detailed plans, design issues, finishes, layout etc has not been included as would normally be
the case with a full application. That is, apart from the principle of the proposal itself, within this
outline application consent is only sought for details of the access and consent will not be sought
in respect of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the proposed development. Should
the current application be successful, these details would be subject to a further application.
However, as is now required with outline applications, the minimum and maximum height of
buildings to be erected on the site has been recorded and it is seen that an outline plan has also
been submitted showing the likely layout of the proposed site.

1.4 The proposed development site currently comprises approximately 1,553m? of brownfield land
(previously developed land) which includes a range of buildings associated with the garage, a
residential house, existing access and hard standing. The remainder of the proposed development
area of approximately 929m? is greenfield land and is situated between the existing garage site
and Mynytho Memorial Hall.

1.5 The whole site lies outside the existing development boundary of Mynytho village and therefore
in open countryside. The busy B4413 road is located parallel with the front of the site with a
public footpath also leading off the public road along part of the front of the site and then
onwards in a westerly and northerly direction. The entire site lies within the West LIyn Special
Landscape Area and the Llyn and Ynys Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest
designations. The nearest boundary of the Llyn AONB designation is approximately 138m west
of the site. The green land forming part of the proposed development is located within the Caeau
Mynydd Mynytho wildlife site which is currently rough grazing.

1.6 In terms of the details that have been submitted as part of the application, the following are set
out:

Page 244



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

e Community pub building — a single storey building with an internal area of
approximately 323m?2. It is noted that the maximum height of the building would be
5.81m and the minimum would be 2.22m.

e Hotel — a two storey building with 25 individual bedrooms together with a reception area
and stores. It would include 836m? of internal floor space over two storeys with a height
of 8.32m at its highest and 4.42m for the lower part.

e Community car park - the car park between the Memorial Hall and the pub contains 27
individual parking spaces but there does not appear to be a formal arrangement
separating the car park from the parking area for the entire site which also includes
parking spaces to the front of the hotel and the pub and staff parking spaces to the rear.
The whole site is served by the same access which would serve the hotel, pub and the car
park.

1.7 Due to the indicative proposed floor space of the buildings, this application is defined as a major
development. As part of the application, in accordance with the requirements of the Town and
Country Planning (General Development Procedure) (Wales) Order, a pre-application
consultation report was received. The report shows that the developer has informed the public and
statutory consultees of the proposal before submitting a formal planning application. Note that the
Local Planning Authority was not part of this consultation process.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that applications should be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless a material consideration in respect of planning indicates otherwise.
Planning considerations include National Planning Policy, and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to
undertake reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being objectives within
the Act. This report has been prepared, taking into consideration the Council’s duty and the
‘sustainable development principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In formulating the
recommendation the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their needs.

2.3 Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1: Welsh Language and Culture
ISA 2: Community facilities
TRA 2: Parking standards
TRA 4: Managing transport impacts
PS 5: Sustainable development
PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change
PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
Page 245



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 13: Providing opportunity for a flourishing economy
PS 14: Visitor economy

TWR 2: Holiday accommodation

PS 15: Town centre developments and retail

MAN 6: Retailing in the countryside

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment

AMG 2: Areas of special landscape

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

AMG 6: Protection of sites of regional or local significance

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 1: Conservation areas, world heritage sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and

Gardens

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

SPG: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable communities

SPG: Tourism facilities and accommodation
SPG: Landscape character

SPG: Wildlife sites

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 — February 2024).

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 4: Retail and commercial development

TAN 5: Nature conservation and planning

TAN 6: Planning for sustainable rural communities
TAN 13: Tourism

TAN 18: Transport

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language

TAN 23: Economic development

Page 246



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

TAN 24: Historic Environment
3. Relevant planning history:

3.1 C23/0089/39/AM - Qutline application with some reserved matters to re-develop a former
commercial garage site and residential site as well as an area of greenfield to create a mixed
development to include public house/restaurant, 5 local market two storey residential dwellings
and 16 self service holiday units - Withdrawn 17/05/23

C05D/0453/39/LL — Construction of single storey house with integrated garage — refused
21/10/05. An appeal was lodged against the Council’s decision to refuse, and the appeal was also
dismissed.

C09D/0409/39/LL — Construction of furniture shed — refused — 15/12/99

C00D/0115/39/LL — Construction of shed for storage of tractors and agricultural machinery —
granted 21/06/00

3/4/360D — Installation of petrol tank — granted 01/11/73

3/4/360C — New garage frontage and petrol pumps re-fitted — granted 01/06/73

34/64/360B — Full details of residential house and garage — granted 07/12/72

34/64/360A — Construction of house — granted 19/07/72

3/4/360 - Outline application for intended use of caravan as office and seasonal accommaodation -
granted 30/06/64

4559B — Access improvements — granted 11/11/61

4559A — Additional petrol pumps — granted 29/03/61

4559 — Installation of additional petrol pump — granted 03/05/56
Page 247



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

4, Consultations

Community/Town
Council:

Transport Unit:

Natural
Resources
Wales:

It is opposed because of substantial and unnecessary overdevelopment, certainly as
regards a new hotel and community pub outside the development boundary which
would be highly visible and prominent in the LIyn AONB from all directions.
Concern is expressed at their proximity to the Village Green and the Wild Meadow
on the lower side of the Playing Field.

I refer to the above application and wish to declare that | object to the proposal on
the basis that the proposed parking area is not adequate for the size of the
development which could lead to an increase in parking problems within the
highway.

The planned number of parking spaces is approximately half the requirement as
outlined in the SSC Wales Parking Standards 2014. The application has not
provided any details of the type of commercial vehicles likely to attend the site and
therefore it has not been possible to ascertain whether the commercial space
provided would be sufficient.

I am concerned that the lack of parking spaces could lead to an increase in on-street
parking in the vicinity of the site, which is on a corner. The combination of more
parked vehicles and the alignment of the highway could lead to hazardous
situations developing.

We have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate information
has been provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you
should seek further information from the applicant regarding designated landscape.
If this information is not provided, we would object to this planning application.
Further details are provided below.

We also advise that based on the information submitted to date, conditions
regarding land contamination should be attached to any planning permission
granted. Without the inclusion of these conditions we would object to this planning
application.

Designated Landscape

Our landscape planning advice relates to the development’s potential landscape and
visual impact on the Llyn Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The site
lies approximately 130m east of the AONB at its closest point.

We have previously provided advice to the applicant with respect to the Llyn
AONB in our statutory pre-application response (dated 19/10/2023, our reference
CAS-237560-D2N1) however we note that no information has been provided as
part of this application to address our concerns. We therefore reiterate our advice
below.

The site lies within the Gwynedd Landscape Character Area LCA 7 ‘Western Llyn’
and LANDMAP Visual and Sensory layer ‘Boduan-central plateau of Lleyn’
GWNDDVS044 ‘mosaic rolling lowland’. Locally, field boundaries are gorse or

Page 248




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

simply fenced where the original hedge is in a poor condition, there is very little tree
cover and as a consequence any elevated locations currently have a view down to
the sea.

Impacts on the AONB special qualities may arise from the building massing and the
introduction of a large two storey building potentially affecting views of the coast in
particular from higher ground. The proposals will also affect views from the AONB
of the wider settlement roofline of mainly (but not entirely) single storey buildings.
We note that the adjacent village hall is a substantial stone two storey building.

We advise that the impacts on each of the relevant AONB special qualities should
be reviewed by a suitably qualified landscape professional, set out in a
proportionate Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVA). The LVA should review
impacts on published and site landscape character appraisals, and review visual
amenity impacts to include the following viewpoints in the AONB: the public
amenity area near the B4413 (which provides picnic tables, parking, toilets and
access into the AONB footpath network); higher open access land with footpaths at
Foel Fawr (National Trust) to the north and Foel Gron to the west; views from
different locations along the AONB road boundary heading north for 1km which
should include the footpath intersections.

The red line boundary is tightly drawn resulting in very small areas of soft
landscape which will be insufficient to provide mitigation of the elevations from the
AONB. Mitigation options may be limited but could potentially be achieved
through: adjustment to the layout to release more soft landscape opportunities where
needed; planting within the wider land ownership line which extends to include the
paddock to the north; careful building elevation and roof detailing; boundary
treatment for example use of stone walling.

In summary, we advise that a proportionate Landscape Visual Assessment (LVA) is
undertaken to clearly demonstrate the impacts of the proposal on the AONB. The
LVA should also incorporate a landscape mitigation and enhancement strategy plan.
The LVA should be used to inform the overall proposals, including building
massing, detailing, wider site layout, soft and hard landscape proposals which
should reflect the close proximity to the AONB boundary and the strong landscape
character of the area.

Land Contamination
Potential for land contamination

From the previous outline application, we noted that the site was a vehicle servicing
and repair garage. However, the details submitted at that time to support the
previous planning application indicated the presence of a tank, which will likely be
associated with a petrol filling station. Given the ongoing uncertainty of the site and
previous land use, we advise the following suit of land contamination conditions are
imposed on any planning permission to confirm the status of the site with respect to
potential contamination and the risk to controlled waters. These conditions would
address the concerns we have identified, please note without the inclusion of these
conditions, we would object to any future planning application.

In addition to the planning conditions, Environmental Permits from NRW may be
required (during construction and operation) and we recommend early consultation
with the relevant permitting teams to ensure all permits are in place prior to
commencement of development.

Page 249



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Condition 1: No development, of land known to be / suspected of contamination,
shall commence until the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks
associated with contamination at the site, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

i. all previous uses

ii. potential contaminants associated with those uses

iii. a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
iv. potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to in
(2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full
details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete
and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

The remediation strategy and its relevant components shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the risks associated with contamination at the site have been
fully considered prior to commencement of development as controlled waters are of
high environmental sensitivity; and where necessary remediation measures and
long-term monitoring are implemented to prevent unacceptable risks from
contamination.

Condition 2: Prior to the occupation of the development a verification report
demonstrating completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include results of sampling and
monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to
demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include a
long-term monitoring and maintenance plan for longer-term monitoring of pollutant
linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the
verification plan. The long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the methods identified in the verification plan have been
implemented and completed and the risk associated with the contamination at the
site has been remediated prior to occupation or operation, to prevent both future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors.

Condition 3: Prior to the occupation or operation of the development , a long term
monitoring plan for land contamination shall be submitted and approved in writing

Page 250



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

by the Local Planning Authority. The long term monitoring plan should include:
Details of the methods and triggers for action to be undertaken

* Timescales for the long term monitoring and curtailment mechanisms e.g. a
scheme of monitoring for 3 years unless the monitoring reports indicate that
subsequent monitoring is or is not required (for x years)

* Timescales for submission of monitoring reports to the LPA e.g. annually

* Details of any necessary contingency and remedial actions and timescales for
actions

* Details confirming that the contingency and remedial actions have been carried
out.

The monitoring plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details,
within the agreed timescales.

Reason: A long-term monitoring plan should be submitted prior to occupation or
operation, to ensure necessary monitoring measures are approved to manage any
potential adverse impacts as a result of development on controlled waters.

Condition 4: If, during development, contamination not previously identified is
found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until a
remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt
with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The remediation strategy shall be carried out as approved.

Reason: To ensure the risks associated with previously unsuspected contamination
at the site are dealt with through a remediation strategy, to minimise the risk to both
future users of the land and neighbouring land, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks.

Informative/ advice to LPA

These conditions have been recommended as Natural Resources Wales is satisfied
that there are generic remedial options available to deal with the risks to controlled
waters posed by contamination at this site. However, further details will be required
in order to ensure that risks are appropriately addressed prior to development
commencing.

In line with the advice given in Planning Policy Wales we understand that the
Authority must decide whether to obtain such information prior to determining the
application or as a condition of the permission. Should the LPA decide to obtain the
necessary information under condition we would request that the above conditions
are applied.

Informative/ advice to applicant

Natural Resources Wales recommends that developers should: 1. Follow the risk
management framework provided in Land contamination risk management (LCRM)
2. Refer to ‘Land Contamination: a guide for developers (WLGA, 2017) for the type
of information

that we require in order to assess risks to controlled waters from the site. The Local
Authority can advise on risk to other receptors, such as human health. 3. Refer to

Page 251



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

North Wales
Police:

Welsh Water:

our groundwater protection advice on www.gov.uk

The treatment and disposal of contaminated soils and groundwater is regulated by
waste legislation and requires an environmental permit.

Excavated materials that are recovered via a treatment operation can be re-used on-
site under the CL:AIRE Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of
Practice. This voluntary Code of Practice provides a framework for determining
whether or not excavated material arising from site during remediation and/or land
development works are waste.

Developers should ensure that all contaminated materials are adequately
characterised both chemically and physically, and that the permitting status of any
proposed on site operations are clear. If in doubt, Natural Resources Wales should
be contacted for advice at an early stage to avoid any delays.

Foul Drainage

No information has been provided regarding the disposal of foul waters from the
proposed development. We refer you to Welsh Government Circular 008/2018 on
the use of private sewerage in new developments, and specifically paragraphs 2.3-
2.5, which stress the first presumption must be to provide a system of foul drainage
discharging into a public sewer. We advise you that the proposed development is in
a publicly sewered area.

Please consult us again if foul sewage from the proposed development is to be
disposed of by a private sewerage system.

Protected Sites

The development site is located within 194m of the Foel Gron a Thir Comin
Mynytho Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

Providing the information requested above for Land Contamination are adequately
addressed, and that the developer adheres to general pollution prevention guidelines,
NRW consider the features of the SSSI will be adequately safeguarded.

Protected Species

We note that there is no information about protected species with the application
and, therefore, are assuming that your Authority has screened the application and
concluded that there is not a reasonable likelihood of protected species being
present.

Not received

The site is crossed by a water main and public sewerage pipe and it appears that the
proposed development would be located within the easement zone of these public

pipes.

Advice was given during the pre-application consultation that the water main and
easement zone should be located within a public and accessible area. It is strongly
advised that the site layout should be amended given the location of the assets
crossing the site. Alternatively, consideration should be given to diverting the assets

Page 252




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

through a formal application under relevant legislation and that options should be
discussed with Welsh Water.

Considering the above, it is therefore suggested that conditions and advice notes be
included if a decision is made to grant the application to ensure that there would be
no harm to existing residents, the Environment and the assets of Welsh Water.

Public Protection  Polluted Land Conditions

Unit:
1. Due to the historical use of the site the land may be contaminated. A desk

inspection will therefore be undertaken to assess the potential on-site pollution risk
for the proposed development.

2. Should the recommendations of the desk inspection indicate a need for further
action, an adequate intrusive investigation will be required to assess the risk of
potential pollution on the site. If necessary, a Recovery Strategy will be
incorporated.

3. The desk inspection, site investigation, risk assessment and any precautionary
and/or remedial measures will need to be approved in writing by the Public
Protection Service prior to the commencement of the development.

4. Once the development has been completed, a Completion Report should be
provided on the site and will need to be reviewed and approved by the Public
Protection Service.

* The Public Protection Service has made every reasonable effort to recommend the
most appropriate measures regarding potential pollution risks. However, this
recommendation should not be taken as an indication that the land is safe or
otherwise suitable for this or any other development.

* The responsibility for assessing whether land is suitable for specific use
fundamentally rests with the developer.

* Should any contaminated land problems emerge during the development which
could disrupt the proposed development, e.g. if an unusual ground condition occurs,
then correspondence should be entered into immediately with the Public Protection
Service.

 All actions should be recorded, and the information disseminated to the Public
Protection Service on site investigations, assessments and remedial work carried
out, where relevant, and included in the site’s Completion Report.

* Any inspection should follow the document order below: - BS 10175:2011
Investigation of potentially contaminated sites — Code of Practice (British Standards
Institution 2011.) - Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 23: Planning and Pollution
Control, Annex 2: Development on Land Affected by Contamination (Office of the
Deputy Prime Minister 2004, Published by The Stationary Office). - Contaminated
Land Report (CLR) 11 Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination (Environment Agency 2004). - Land Contamination: A Guide for

Page 253



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Developers (Welsh Local Government Association, Welsh Assembly Government
& Environment Agency Wales 2006)

Reasons for conditions

The measures are considered necessary to protect the occupiers of the site and
surroundings.

Rights of Way Llanengan No 62 public right of way (footpath) crosses close to the front of the
Unit: development site; it must be ensured that this right of way is unobstructed and
accessible to users during and after the completion of this development.

AONB Unit: The former garage is situated in the village of Mynytho and a short distance from
the boundary of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The garage,
other buildings and the nearby field are prominent from the lane that passes through
the village and other public spaces such as Y Foel Gron, which is a popular site in
the AONB. Mynytho Memorial Hall, which is a historically important building, is
situated nearby.

There is currently a single storey house, a former garage and two outbuildings on
site. These buildings are not historic and do not make an important contribution to
the environment of the area. The field between the house/garage and hall is rough
grazing.

The proposal would involve demolishing all existing buildings on site and creating
a relatively substantial new development to include the construction of a single
storey public house and a 25 bedroom two storey hotel. A car park for the
development and hall would be located on the field near the hall. The sketches of
the pub show a long one-storey building with lots of glass in the front elevation.
The hotel would be a substantial two storey building with its gable end towards the
lane, again with a lot of glass in the front elevation. Also, as part of the
development, an access, new road and hard standing would need to be created to
park approximately 40 vehicles.

A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment could be useful to undertake a detailed
assessment of the development but with the information to hand it appears that the
development would affect the AONB by:

e Introducing a significant new development of unfamiliar design that would
be visible from public spaces within the AONB (see Policy TP2 of the
AONB Management Plan)

e Increasing movement and traffic in a rural area near the AONB

¢ Introducing additional lighting which may prejudice night darkness (see
Policy PP3 of the AONB Management Plan).

e Loss of a site of natural green land between existing buildings which may
be of nature conservation value.

Page 254



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Land Drainage Standard response on need to include surface water treatment system or SUDS
Unit:
Language Unit: It is not possible for the Language and Scrutiny Unit to comment fully on this

application at this stage as no relevant documents have been submitted with the
application. Without a Language Statement document (or relevant information
within access plans), which includes information on the nature of the development
with regard to the hotel and community pub and how they affect the community
and the language, it is not possible for us to comment on the potential impact of the
development on the Welsh language. We would expect to see more detailed
information as the full application is submitted.

Gwynedd There is potential for the proposal to have an archaeological impact and therefore it
Archaeological is suggested that conditions be included to agree a programme of suitable
Planning Service: investigation prior to the commencement of any element of development on site.

Fire Service: Not received
Biodiversity Ecological reports have not been submitted. Part of the development falls within a
Unit: wildlife site and in parallel with a Site of Special Scientific Interest. The ecological

value of the site to be developed is considered to be high.

Part of the development falls within a wildlife site which is likely to have a high
value for biodiversity. Ecological surveys should be undertaken including, but not
specifically, a grassland survey. They must be carried out by a qualified ecologist
who knows the local area and they must comply with Planning Policy Wales.

The impact of the development must be limited in accordance with relevant
guidance within Planning Policy Wales (PPW) — the developer must provide
evidence of how the appropriate steps have been taken within a green infrastructure
statement together with evidence of how Biodiversity can be improved.

Benefits must be framed in accordance with PPW guidance including DECCA and
relevant standards. Mitigation and enhancement measures must be included within
green infrastructure/landscape design.

Scottish Power: Not received

Page 255



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Public Notices were displayed on site and in prominent places within the surrounding area
Consultation: and nearby residents were informed. The notice period ended and a considerable
number of representations were received opposing on the basis of:

e Prominent location outside the development boundary close to the AONB
and within the West LIyn Special Landscape Area.

e The scale of the buildings and site having a significant adverse effect on the
visual amenity of the local area and the open nature of the land; a visual
impact assessment must be undertaken.

e There is no evidence of a need for the pub, there may be a need for a hotel
but no assessment of the commercial viability of such a resource has been
submitted/concern for its long term use.

e The pub is described as a community resource but it is not clear if this
means genuine community ownership/no benefit to the local community.

e Out of character and not needed/urban appearance/lack of landscape
plans/overdevelopment/prominent raised location

e Inadequate parking provision which would create tension between site users
and the hall

o Lack of demand/significant impact locally

Adverse effect on the Welsh language/lack of quality jobs for local

residents

Non-compliance with adopted policies

More need of housing for local people

Pubs lead to anti-social behaviour/noise

Increasing traffic flow/harmful to the safety of nearby pavement users

including children walking to school/dangerous location on the

corner/harmful impact on movements and functioning of the local public
road network

e Lack of information/disinformation

e Concern over application registration/description/payment of fees

o Detrimental effect on the residential amenities of local residents/significant
disruption to the life of the countryside and spoil the character of the area

e Harmful to other established businesses in nearby villages/pressure on local

neighbourhood

Environmental/ecological/biodiversity harm

Wet land/developing the site will create surface water problems for others

Overlooking/detrimental to the privacy of neighbouring housing

Unsuitable design and finishes/building scale unacceptable and detrimental

Loss of residential home

Demolition works create waste

Lack of information on sewage disposal arrangements

A number of objections as submitted with the previous application remain

relevant to this application

Concern about the impact on the adjacent playing field

Lack of meaningful consultation

Harm to the dark sky nature of the local area

Concern about the viability of such a development given the current

economic climate

Page 256



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.1

5.2

53

54

55

5.6

Assessment of the relevant planning considerations:
The principle of the development

Policy PCYFF 1 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) states that
the plan itself identifies development boundaries for the range of settlements within the county
and that proposals are permitted within the development boundaries in accordance with the
requirements of other relevant policies in the Plan. It also states that “outside the development
boundaries, proposals will be refused unless they are in accordance with specific policies in this
Plan or national planning policies or that the proposal shows that its location in the countryside
is essential .

In this case, no detailed information or justification has been submitted to develop this site
outside the development boundary and, therefore, the proposal fails to satisfy the basic
requirements of policy PCYFF 1.

Pub

It is intended to develop a pub as part of the proposed development and, therefore, when
considering the propriety of the principle of the development, the requirements of policies ISA 2
and MAN 6 are addressed. Policy ISA 2 is relevant to the provision of new community facilities
and paragraph 6.1.19 of the policy defines public houses as community facilities. The proposal
fails to meet the criteria of the policy as the site is not located within or adjoining a development
boundary and it does not form part of a cluster. No information was received to indicate that the
needs of the local community cannot be satisfied by making dual use of existing facilities or
converting existing buildings.

Although policy MAN 6 refers mainly to shops, the principle contained in it is also relevant in
this case. However, the proposal cannot be supported under policy MAN 6 as no assessment of
impact or potential impact on other local businesses has been presented. No evidence was
received indicating that priority has been given to the use of an appropriate existing building and
there is no existing established business on site.

Hotel

The policy that applies in this case in considering the principle of developing a hotel on the site
would be policy TWR 2: Holiday Accommodation. This policy sets out that proposals for the
development of new permanent serviced holiday accommodation will be granted subject to high
quality design, layout and appearance, and if all of the following criteria can be met:

i. In the case of new build accommodation, that the development is located within a development
boundary, or makes use of a suitable previously developed site;

ii. That the proposed development is appropriate in scale considering the site, location and/or
settlement in question;

iii. That the proposal will not result in a loss of permanent housing stock;

iv. That the development is not sited within a primarily residential area or does not significantly
harm the residential character of an area;

v. That the development does not lead to an over-concentration of such accommodation in the
area.

In terms of criterion (i) the development is not located within the development boundary of
Mynytho so consideration will need to be given to whether the development is located on suitable

previously developed land. Guidance on the suitability of previously developed land can be B%{ge

257



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

in paragraph 4.42 of the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourism facilities and
accommodation (March 2021): 4.4.2 In accordance with this definition, it must be established
whether the development is located on previously developed land and an assessment of its
suitability must be carried out. Factors that define the suitability of the previously developed land
include:

e Location — as the plan promotes sustainable development, proposals involving the development
of a poorly located development are not compliant with the principle of the policy. In line with
national planning policy, new development is expected to be located within or close to existing
settlements, with existing infrastructure to serve the development and accessible by sustainable
modes of transport.

e The nature of land previously developed — urban development (its nature and appearance) in the
open countryside can often be viewed as being alien to its natural environment and therefore
careful consideration should be given to the visual/landscape impact of such development, i.e.
new buildings located above the ridge line or on top of a cliff/location of the ridge or which
would otherwise be an unacceptable feature in the landscape. It should be ensured that no
proposed development will have a significantly greater effect on the character and openness of
the surrounding area compared to the previously developed land.

5.7 The proposal includes demolishing the existing garage and residential house buildings and
replacing them with the hotel and pub. The structural state of the existing buildings is not known
although it is believed that the residential unit is in use and that its condition therefore enables it
at least to be occupied. The site is mixed in terms of land use with the garage and residential
house part being previously developed land (brownfield) and part being greenfield land believed
to be grazing land. In this case, part of the proposed development site is existing greenfield land
and an essential element of the development would be located here, namely the access and the
proposed road along with the main car park. Agricultural grazing land such as this is not
previously developed land and therefore as it is a necessary element of the development and it
would not be possible to complete the proposal without this element, it cannot be considered that
the proposal is fully compliant with the requirements of criterion (i). In terms of criterion (ii), the
scale of the new development is much greater than the residential unit and buildings attached to
the existing on-site garage in terms of footprint and height. It is acknowledged that the hotel ridge
would appear to be slightly lower than the Memorial Hall and if it were adjacent to this building it
could at least be demonstrated that it would not be the highest structure comparatively. But as
there is some distance between the buildings the location of the hotel would be by itself without
any similar structure directly adjacent and it would therefore stand out prominently in the
landscape and is consequently unacceptable. In terms of criterion (iii), in demolishing the house
currently on site the proposal leads to the loss of permanent housing stock. Criterion (iv) refers to
ensuring that development is not located within a predominantly residential area. Although
residential properties are prominent nearby, the location stands by itself and therefore is not
considered to be a wholly residential site. No information has been submitted in support of the
application in relation to over-concentration issues as set out in criterion (v) and therefore there is
insufficient information to ensure it would not cause over-concentration. Due to the matters raised
above it is considered that the proposal is contrary to the relevant requirements of policy TWR 2.

Page 258



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

Language Matters

5.8 In terms of the planning system in relation to land use, Section 31 of the Planning (Wales) Act
2015 notes that there is a duty when determining a planning application to include considerations
in relation to the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application.

5.9 Policy PS1 and the associated Supplementary Planning Guidance (Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities) confirm, if any retail, industrial or commercial
proposal has a floor area of 1,0002, then it is necessary to submit a Welsh Language Statement.

5.10  Due to the lack of provision of any type of linguistic assessments, the proposal cannot be assessed
in terms of its impact on the Welsh Language and no conclusion can be reached regarding the
compliance of the proposal with Policies PS 5 and PS1 of the Joint LDP. Consequently, the
proposal as submitted does not comply with Policy PS1 and Policy PS 5 nor with the relevant
Advice given in the SPG: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable communities,
paragraphs 3.25 - 3.29 of Planning Policy Wales (edition 11 2021) and the relevant advice set out
in paragraph 3 (Development Management) of TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language.

Visual amenities

5.11 In this case, as the application is in outline form with matters relating to appearance, landscaping,
installation and scale reserved, not all information is available. However, the minimum size
provided suggests that the scale of the proposal combined would be substantial within an open
area of this type in the countryside. It is acknowledged that the existing ridge height of the nearby
Memorial Hall appears to be higher than the proposed ridge height of the pub/restaurant. It must
also be acknowledged that there are existing buildings within part of the site. However, the size of
these buildings is relatively small and the hotel and pub would be significantly larger in bulk and
scale, substantially changing the visual appearance of the site. Criterion 3(ii) of Policy TWR 2
states that proposals will only be permitted if “..the proposed development is appropriate in
scale considering the site, location and/or settlement in question”.

5.12  Although not within the AONB itself, the site is completely visible from the nearest parts of the
AONB as the nature of the land elevates from the application site towards spaces such as Foel
Gron, Foel Fawr and beyond. This does not necessarily mean that the proposal would have a
completely detrimental impact on the AONB or on the Special Landscape Area either but, due to
a lack of evidence or consideration to the impact by means of a landscape and visual impact
assessment, the impact of a development of this size on these designated areas cannot be fully
considered. You will see from Natural Resources Wales’ comments noted above “We have
previously provided advice to the applicant with respect to the Llyn AONB in our statutory pre-
application response however we note that no information has been provided as part of this
application to address our concern..we advise that a proportionate Landscape Visual
Assessment (LVA) is undertaken to clearly demonstrate the impacts of the proposal on the AONB.
The LVA should also incorporate a landscape mitigation and enhancement strategy plan. The
LVA should be used to inform the overall proposals, including building massing, detailing, wider
site layout, soft and hard landscape proposals which should reflect the close relevance to the
AONB boundary and the strong landscape character of the area”. There are therefore clear
concerns that the development would not be suitable for its location as there would be an adverse
visual impact on the AONB.

5.13  Given the lack of evidence to fully assess the impact of the development (although the proposal is
in outline form), it is not considered acceptable on the basis of non-compliance with the relevant
requirements of policy PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4, TWR 2 and AMG 2. Neither is it considered to be

Page 259



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

wholly acceptable based on the requirements of policy AMG 1 which states that proposals that
are within or affecting the setting and/or significant views in and out of the AONB must have
regard to the relevant area management plan. It is seen from the LIyn AONB management plan
that policy TP 2 "Resists developments that would be prominent in the landscape and impair
views including developments near the boundary, which would impact views into and out of the
AONB". Therefore, it is not considered that the application as submitted contains sufficient
information to be fully assessed and it fails to meet the requirements of this policy as a result.

General and residential amenities

5.14 It is unavoidable that there would be an increased impact on the general amenities of the local
area and neighbouring residents compared to what is currently experienced as the site currently
appears to be unoccupied in terms of any intense use. However, it can be seen that an element of
local intervention has existed in the past as a result of the historical use of part of the site as a
garage. Clearly, the scale and nature of what is proposed is greater than the historical use of
course. Despite this, it must be acknowledged that part of the site had not been entirely empty and
unused and that the nature of the use and work had seen more movements than would be the norm
from a residential site only. It is also likely that re-establishing a garage would be possible
without planning permission as a result of its historical use.

5.15 However, it must be considered that this is an outline application where all of the proposal's final
details are currently unknown. For example, agreeing on the details of suitable boundary
treatment and landscaping for the site could protect some of the general amenities of the local
area while it would be customary to include conditions to agree suitable measures to manage any
extraction systems or other similar equipment that could affect the amenities of an area. Although
a site plan has been submitted, scale and layout are reserved matters and therefore there would be
an opportunity to consider the true impact of any proposal when discussing further details.
Therefore, although it is acknowledged that the effect of the proposal is likely to be an additional
adverse impact compared to the current situation, one cannot be certain of the extent of this
impact and, therefore, it is not believed that the proposal is entirely unacceptable based on all the
relevant requirements of policy PCYFF 2.

Transport and Access

5.16  The Transport Unit's comments on this proposal confirm their objection on the basis that the
proposed parking area is not adequate for the size of the development which could lead to an
increase in parking problems within the highway. The Transport Unit notes that the planned
number of parking spaces is approximately half the requirement as outlined in the SSC Wales
Parking Standards 2014. The application has not provided any details of the type of commercial
vehicles likely to attend the site and therefore it has not been possible to ascertain whether the
commercial space provided would be sufficient. It is acknowledged that layout is a reserved
matter and therefore the final layout of the site may be subject to change and consequently the
parking provision requirement as well. Despite this, details of the likely size of the buildings have
been presented and based on what is shown, it is very unlikely that it would be possible to either
increase the parking provision to meet the requirements based on the indicative size of the pub
and hotel, or reduce the proposal in terms of the number of bedrooms and floor space to such an
extent that would result in a need for fewer parking spaces without requiring a new application as
these changes would not accord with the boundaries shown on the application.

5.17 It must be acknowledged that such an application could change the situation locally in terms of
the current density of movement and nature of use as well as the historic use of the site as a
garage and therefore adequate information should be submitted to enable a full assessment.
Access details are the only element not reserved as part of the outline application and it should
therefore be possible to assess the proposal fully. As well as assessing the proposal in terms of

Page 260



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

movements in and out, parking provision etc, the impact on other road users must also be
assessed including the local pavements typically used by a number of local residents including
pupils from the nearby primary school.

5.18 Again, therefore, concern must be expressed at the lack of information to conduct a full
assessment of the proposal in terms of this consideration as well. Note that the site plan shows
parking provision and that the Transport Unit has objected on the basis of the number of parking
spaces proposed, however, layout is a reserved matter and therefore the parking provision layout
may change. However, as a result of the Transport Unit’s opposition to the indicative layout and
lack of evidence to assess the impact of the proposed development on the highway, the proposal
is not considered entirely acceptable based on the relevant requirements of policy TRA 2 and 4
which ensures adequate parking standards and notes that proposals that would cause unacceptable
detriment to the safe and efficient operation of the highway and other transport networks
including pedestrian routes will be refused.

Biodiversity Matters

5.19  Part of the proposal would involve development on greenfield land located within the designated
Caeau Mynydd Mynytho wildlife site. Within the existing greenfield land, the intention would be
to create the community car park. No ecological assessment of the value of the existing land has
been submitted. It is not known whether there are established rare species in terms of plants or
creatures on the land, or using the land, but without any assessment as a starting point for a
baseline of the land's value, the real value of the land in question cannot be considered.

5.20  Despite this, policy AMG 6 only allows a loss of wildlife sites when there is an overriding social,
environmental and/or economic need for the development, and that there is no other suitable site
that would avoid a detrimental impact on sites of local nature conservation value and/or local
geological importance. As the principle of the proposal is contrary to the fundamental policies of
the LDP, as discussed above, there is no justification for the loss of a wildlife site.

5.21 No information has been provided regarding the buildings for demolition, including the
residential dwelling that includes a slate roof. To be able to assess the proposal, there is a need to
provide an initial assessment at least of the presence of protected species within buildings to be
demolished and, therefore, without this information to hand, it cannot be ensured that the proposal
will not have a detrimental effect on protected species. As the impact cannot be fully assessed in
terms of developing the greenfield land that is part of the wildlife site or demolishing existing
buildings, it is not believed that the proposal is acceptable in terms of the relevant requirements of
policies AMG 5, AMG 6 and PS 19, along with the relevant advice given within TAN 5 together
with the revised Chapter 6 of PPW published on 7" February 2024 relating to green infrastructure
and the phased approach.

Archaeological Matters

5.22  The Archaeological Service confirmed that there was potential that the proposal could have an
archaeological impact given its location within an area of historic landscape on the outskirts of
Mynytho village. As is usual in such cases it is considered reasonable to include standard
conditions to agree on a suitable inspection programme prior to commencing any element of
development on the site should the application be approved. In doing so, it is believed that the
proposal can be acceptable based on the relevant requirements of policies AT 1 and PS 20.

Any other considerations

Page 261



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

5.23  No justification or explanation was presented as to why this proposal was selected for the site in
particular due to the marked change between the previous application and the current one. It is not
known if other options had been considered before arriving at this final plan and no evidence has
been presented to test the need for the hotel and pub or the impact of the hotel and pub on local
established businesses.

5.24  Although not a statutory requirement, no pre-application enquiry was submitted to ascertain the
Planning Authority’s view of the proposal; there would have been an opportunity to discuss
concerns before submitting an application if an enquiry had been made. TAN 12 notes that “4
multi disciplined collaborative approach and a shared ambition for quality are important in
delivering good design and should be evident at each stage of the design process. This is best
achieved by ensuring the continuous involvement of professionals providing expert advice such
as: planners; architects.... and others. Engaging those who procure, promote and finance
development early on in the process is essential to assist a shared commitment to design
guality..... Local planning authorities should also help applicants and potential applicants to
respond effectively to the planning and design process, through an advisory as well as regulatory
role.....”.

5.25 A proposal of this size would have benefited from a discussion in order to ascertain what would
be needed to facilitate the decision-making process. Although this would not necessarily have
made the application acceptable, it would have at least provided an opportunity to voice opinions
and provide advice before the applicant decided to proceed to submit an application. It is noted
that the applicant has undertaken the process of completing a pre-application consultation report,
but that the Local Planning Authority was not involved in that process.

5.26 It is noted that the report refers to a lack of information in relation to several relevant planning
considerations. Usually, it would be possible to ask for additional information in order to carry
out a full assessment. However, this in itself would not make the application acceptable due to
fundamental policy concerns about the proposal and, therefore, it may be argued that it would be
unreasonable for the applicant to incur additional costs of providing this information as this
would not make the application acceptable.

5.27  Welsh Water has stated that it appears that there are public pipes crossing the site and that it
would be necessary to either alter the plan to avoid development over them or to arrange for the
pipes to be diverted at the developer’s cost. Should the application be granted by the Local
Planning Authority, a condition would be required to introduce a complete drainage plan for the
development with confirmation of these details to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. Given therefore that appropriate conditions may be included, it is considered that the
application may be acceptable based on the requirements of ISA 1 of the LDP.

Response to the public consultation

5.28 It is acknowledged that a substantial number of objections have been received to this proposal
and it is considered that all relevant planning matters have received appropriate attention as part
of the above assessment. The decision will be made on the basis of full consideration of all
relevant planning issues and all representations received during the public consultation and on the
basis that no one suffers an injustice in considering this application.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including local and national
policies and guidance, as well as the representations received, it is believed that this proposal is

Page 262



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

unacceptable in the form submitted, as it fails to satisfy the requirements of the relevant policies
and guidance as noted above.

7. Recommendation:
7.1 Refusal — reasons

1. Due to the lack of relevant information with the planning application, the Local Planning
Authority has not been persuaded that there will not be a negative effect on the Welsh
language in accordance with criteria 4 of Policy PS5 and the requirements of Policy PS1
of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (2017), Supplementary
Planning Guidance: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities (2019) and national guidance contained in paragraph 3 of Technical Advice
Note 20:Planning and the Welsh Language (2017) and paragraphs 3.25 to 3.29 of
Planning Policy Wales, 12th Edition (2024).

2. It is not considered that the proposal would be a high-quality development nor integrate with its
surroundings as a result of the site’s prominent location when viewed from the adjoining public
highway and adjacent land. Consequently, it is not considered that the proposal would add to
maintaining, enhancing or restoring the recognized character of the Western Llyn Special
Landscape or views in and out of the Llyn Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and that the
proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of policies PS 19, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4, TWR 2,
MAN 6, ISA 2, AMG 1 and AMG 2 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development
Plan (2011-2026) and policy TP2 of the LIyn AONB Management Plan.

3. No Protected Species Survey was submitted in relation to the buildings to be demolished on site
and no ecological assessment was carried out in relation to the area of land to be developed which
is currently located within the designated Caeau Mynydd Mynytho wildlife site. As a result, the
true impact of the development cannot be assessed and the protection and enhancement of local
biodiversity cannot be assured. In addition, there is no justification for the loss of land within the
wildlife site. The proposal is therefore unacceptable in terms of the requirements of relevant
criteria within policies AMG 5, AMG 6 and PS 19 and advice as contained within TAN 5
together with Chapter 6 Planning Policy Wales Version 12 relating to green infrastructure and the
phased approach.

4. The indicative site plan does not indicate enough parking spaces in relation to the proposal and no
information has been provided to fully assess the impact of the proposed development on matters
relating to movements in and out of the site, the local highway network, pedestrian routes and
parking provision within the site, it is therefore considered, that the application does not comply
with the requirements of Policy TRA 2 and 4 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local
Development Plan (2017) which ensures adequate parking standards and states that proposals that
cause unacceptable harm to the safe and efficient operation of the highway will be refused.

5. No evidence has been submitted with the application to indicate that there is an identified proven
need for new commercial units at this location and no evidence has been submitted using a
sequential test to demonstrate that there is no alternative site within the development boundary of
the village or other local settlements for a hotel and public house. Furthermore, although i
: P o hGe 263



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 26/02/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT’S REPORT

houses are defined as community facilities in paragraph 6.1.19 of policy ISA 2, no information
has been received to demonstrate why the needs of the local community cannot be satisfied
through the dual use of existing facilities, conversion of an existing building or locating the
proposed development within or adjoining development boundaries. As a result, it is considered
that the development, due to its location, is likely to harm the vitality and viability of local
settlements and therefore the proposal is contrary to the aims of policies MAN 6 and ISA 2 of the
Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan.

6. It is considered that the proposal is contrary to the requirements of criteria 3(i), 3(ii), 3(iii) and
3(v) of Policy TWR 2 and criteria 2 of Policy PS5 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local
Development Plan, 2017 as the site is located in open countryside and it does not make use of
suitable previously developed land, that the scale of the development is not appropriate
considering the site, that the proposal will result in the loss of permanent housing stock and no
robust evidence has been submitted to confirm that the development would not lead to &n over-
concentration of such accommodation within the area.

Page 264



Cynllunio

=norrh 3

331300m

230400m

230500m

Neuadd
Mynytho

331200m

WIS CEARING 15 CORYEIGHT FROTECTED K NAIST O B REFRSOUCED 1 WHOTE OF

NOTES: AR, WITHOUT THE EXPRIES IWRITTE CCREENT 38 T ATVES (CEEH, LD,

331200m

= Gacge ' — - o

2021 Google Qverlay
1:1250 @ A1

Praducad from the Ordnanca Survey National 22/09/2022 This produel contains data surveyed al one of maore
Geographic Database incorporating surveyed revision available at  of the following scales: 1/1250, 12500 & 110000,

this date. & Crown Copyright & Detabase Rights 2022.
Vo ate. B o o el gt The representation of a road, track or path is no

Reprocuction in whale of in part is prohibitad without the prior evidence of a right of way.

permission of Ordnance Survey. B B
The representation of features as fnes is no

Ordnance Survey and the OS symbol are registered trademarks  evidence of a property boundary
and OS Sitemap is a trademark of Crdnance Survey, the naicnal

rapping agency of Geaat Sritain, Heights are given in mefres abave datum

Growin Gopyright All Aghts ressrvet Licanee no. 100051861 The alignment of unnels. s approximate.

Initiatives (Design} Lid Paper Map Copy Licence no. 100064548

House

Ffynnon AR #
Arian / PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING
2 P - : *\-:"
A o ‘23} O ’
Location Plal ’cﬁtgwk’ “
1:500 @ Ar: " ‘.%:;‘:\Z.@:é.:;f e
ROy
-U 3o i i o *;f
9-) 0 100m Existing Site Photo 1 &
m oaTE:

Q i o
%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL. S e

MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH

@XISTING SITE & LOCATION PLANS
o1

PROECT
DFOSED DEVELDAMENT
LAND AT MURNUR Y MDA & MYNYTH0 GARAGE. PWLLHEL LS Ths

DRAWING N B27.1OBHIZ0001 ey -




NOTES:  [SEEAMING i O0MERHT SROTECTED VAT NOT 2 SSSSCOUCED 1 WHOIS 0 M
T PART NTINUT THE EXPREEE WAITTEN COMEENT OF T ATVEE (EEE-GHE LT,

Cynllunio

Existing Site Block Plan
1:200 @ A1

~vorm

Schedule of Areas:-
Footprint cia
Murmur Y Mor 167.6 1514
Garage 246 208
Store 146 130
Mynytho Garage 1290 1194
Caravan 385 387
Store a5 350
Total Az ws9mz
| |Total Sauare Foot 44885 4046507

Area of previously developed land
1,553m2 (16,716 sqf)

Existing Site Photo 3

Neuadd

ll Parcng
‘ Site Area = 2,482 m?
(26,716 ft2) M n th o
! Rough Grazing Land y y OISIbOH)e
) House
PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING
ey 2 y L]
y | Existing Existing i\“
&

g
+§
)
-
>
LE 8
H
i_
N
|
"",4%"4,

o s :
By S
V4 S L oo S
3 2 S i g i s
%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL. el — W
MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH FROPDsbDEvELSeET i, DY
@IISTING SITE BLOCK PLAN :‘R::::”'m‘::ﬁ:::‘“"m“ :: _

(0))



! NOTES: [ SRAMNG S oOmRGKT BECTECTED £ 1St N GE SESSCOUED OIS O M
i AT TV TV EXPRESE YT N SONGENT 58 BT ATVES {PEEHILTD

Cynllunio

ey 1142202

Proposed Site Block Plan
vis

1:200 @ A1 Summary of the Revised Propesal

Folkawig th previous propasal, mow withdrawn (applicacion C23X08939ANE submittid in February

2025, snc n response 1o comments From the Local Community Town Council. Stannory Corsultecs snd

Planring Offieer, this revived propasal hus heen amended os Fillows-

~vorm

- Dematition of the existing residential dwelfing and commercial gamge along with all

chancel mneiltary bui ks, te of u singl sy peiblic house umd 8 two-upecy 25 bed hotel,
the caention of parking arcas fos joint use with the Village Hall Neaadd Mynytw, snd improvenents w e
‘existing vehicusi access.

2 e 1y fous proposals:

* The 16 self-serviced Holiday Accommdstion on the govenficld Lusd ke the rear of Qe site removed,
*+ The 3 tna-starey Local Market ouses o the field removed.

This revised applisation:- i sunmmy, is 1o re-develop this existing residential and commercal site nd
crzate a new mixed use development shed includes:

*+ wsiple-starey Public Houss,
* o Twe-storey 25 Hed Hotel.
* shared parking arss for the Village Hall'Newadd Mynyshe.

The: proposd will als ineludz-

an uparuded vebicular soces g the exivting sise,

cycle spaces for the public and aafT,

geen inffusiructire & permeable pas g to inimize the eny ironmental impests,

electric vehicle vharging points,

 reducrion in seale, fornwpartern and re-designed 1o reduce the massing,

1 less intrasive aund intense desiga o seduce the imoaet of the development,

retention of the ruml broak Betvween | & the Village Hall and
ressining the viswal separation,

the e of koval maverialy,

* Jess madfarmae surfaced areas,
Pl *  sustainohie surfice water deainsge system (SUDs),
B 2 = ol drairige gfschanging inlo eifber the msins seweras: sysem of privaic sewog realment,
Total Footprint
] Toulois Totaoia } NG
j (m2) {m2) leaf) « all new buildings locsed within the exisiing boundry of the existing dwelling sl counmercial garage,
| am Prerviosly Peveloped Brownfield Land
Single Storey Public House  Ground Floor 346 23 3477
! This s an outlive appicadion s ih soms reserved matiess as permision for appearnse, landseaping layout
25 Bed HotellGwesty Ground Floar 445 418 4,495 and seale is mot soght. Funlber details sublect to the wsusl application for seserved matiers sesolving any
i First Floor NA a18 4,495 conditions will he ushmitied shauld this revised outline application he sucoessful
T G | * Plens ilhustruting she proposal along with the minimum ard maximum heights hav been provided
' - - 5 + The site inchudes approsinately b 181 (16716 syf) of Previeasly Developed Land Brownficid Lad,
i | 791 1,158 m2 12,467 s et we exiig reses il i s sl sk, S Sl wovisses el

ateas of hasd standirgs.

o Dvebopnsens on the preenfeld jond locsed 1o the north has beea onsiibed,

+ The site i outside the LHn Ares of Omstanding Manrl Benury designation

+ “The site is owslde the Foel Gron a Thir Comin Mynytho Site of Special Scientifie Inserest (3681).

Community
Public House

Neuadd
Mynytho Osborne

House

PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING

el
. o &
\6
= ‘;\\.
< ‘ y
A
&
& 4\,
S e SEEN,
= Sl »
L ) ) = \Q\"\\vn‘f‘@“
. e S
o & 7
! L > s T T R S e e e e e &
«Q Lo $5 / S

%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL. e
MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH P

@ROPOSED OUTLINE SITE BLOCK PLAN LAKD AT MURMR ¥ G & M1 GARAGE, PRLINES) LR TR

DRAWING N B27.1/0BH'200:03 ey -




Proposed Hotel/Gwesty Floor Plans

1100 @ A1
Cynllunio
Derbyn - 11/12/2023
Proposed Hotel/Gwesty Front Elevation
1100@ A1
.k'
it
:
"
o
Proposed Hotel/Gwesty Rear Elevation
1400 @ AT
e
!7'?\
-
ot = 445m2 (4,790 590 Ground Floor GIA 418m2 (4,495 sqf) l‘ I
Typlcal Double Bedroom GIA 24m? (258 sqf) Total GIA = B36mz (5,090 sqf)
Proposed Hotel/Gwesty Side Elevation 1
Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1:mnp@ ot ty
3D Perspective
A
U R e eesssE e Tesen 5 = -
QJ < Proposed Hotel/Gwesty Side Elevation 2
(@] it TR 11100 @ A1

: B T
E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL.
MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH
OVTLINE HOTEL/GWESTY GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

WS RPN 15 OOYEGHT FROTECTED £ RAIST NOT BE
e

NOTES: AT wIneuT T EXeRess

5 OIS OF 1

sEpzCOuTEn
‘GONEENT 8 T ATVEE {CERCH LD,

]

[ S TR R

S 4.»..1-_14’3\

Osborne
House

PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING

S
5 e,
& R 5,
Pt il & [
o y@» c]
op &
el o>
R J
S P
DATE:
cRRWING TITLE werzmnz
‘QUTLINE HOTELGWESTY GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS 3
foe A5 SHOWN & 41
‘OEBORNE HOUSE LD FILE NAME:
PROJECT: e
PROFOSED DEVELDPMENT DRAWN Y
LAND AT MURMUR Y HOR & MYNFTHO GARAGE. FRLLHEL L TRY  RAJ

DRANING NGO

B27.1'OBHIZ0004

REV. -




g . THSCRAPING 5 OOYEGHT FROTECTED K RAIST NOT BE RESRSOUCED 1 WHOIE OF
o NOTES: AR, WITHOUT THE EXPRIES IWRITTE CCREENT 38 T ATVES (CEEH, LD,

Cynllunio |

13.7m

Public House | = Entrance Prgp&s:td Single Storey Public House Front Elevation
1:100

Ground Floor GIA = 323Im2 (3,477 sqf)
{Public Area = 264m2)

Proposed Single Storey Public House Floor Plan Proposed Single Storey Public House Rear Elevation
1:100 @ At 1400 @ AT

3 F
5 T
; £ hfldae
Proposed Single Storey Public House Side Elevation 1 Osbome
1100 @ Al H:()HSE

PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING

oA | | S5
Proposed Single Storey Public House Side Elevation 2 ’f
1100 @ AT S— P
cH-lE REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL. PEa— :mﬂfﬁ;
MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH o e . e
OVTLINE COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS “:m:”“z";":;:‘”“‘” ": _

(o]



Elevation 1 - Facing South
1:200 @ A1 (Showing Dimensions)

NOTES:  [SEEAMING i O0MERHT SROTECTED VAT NOT 2 SSSSCOUCED 1 WHOIS 0 M
T PART NTINUT THE EXPREEE WAITTEN COMEENT OF T ATVEE (EEE-GHE LT,

Proposed Heights
s Upger Lower &
Hao'iu‘{gw\ﬂ!ffe e 8.32m A.42m Cyn I | u n I 0

Community Public House  581m 2.22m Derbyn - 11/12/2023

-\

L

@

Hotel/Gwesty Community Public House

Existing Village Hall

Car Park
Elevation 3 - Facing North
1:200 @ A1

Community
Public House

Site Elevation Key Plan
1500 @ A1

T
jab)
Q

%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL.

MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH
QY TLINE SCALE, LIMITS & KEY PLAN

o

Car Park

Existing Village Hall

Planning Policy Cs

This revised proposal is for a new Public House and car park which is to

Iz0 shared with the adjacent
Village Hall. this will help sustain and enhance this existing community ¥

These proposed new facilities:-
= are adjacent to the development boundary,

are located outside the development boundaries within a cluster,

will provide an essential facility to support the local community,

EEET

are of an appropriate scale and type compared to the size, character and function of the settlement,

Gommunity Public House Hotel'Gwasty

are casily avoessible by fool, eyele and public transport,

are new and enhanced multiuse,

are inan accessible location alonyg & busy road.

. Policy TWR 2: Holi X
Existing Village Hall This revised proposal is also for new permanent serviced holiday accommodation, which:
* isofa high quality design, layout and appearance,

makes use of a suitable previously developed site;

is appropriate in scale considering the site, location and settlement,

will not result in a loss of permanent housing stock,

is not sited within » primarily residential arca,

does not lead 10 an over-concentsation of such accommaodation within the area.

HateliGwesty

Elevation 2 - Facing West
1:200 @ A1

Osborne

House

PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING

HoteliGwesty

Community Public House

Elevation 4 - Facing East
1200 @ A1
o

CLIENT
DSBORNE HOUSELTD.

PROFDSED DEVELDAMENT
LAND AT MURNUR Y MDA & MYNYTH0 GARAGE. PWLLHEL LS Ths

DRAMWING HOH B27.1OBHI20008 REV. -




NOTES:  [SEEAMING i O0MERHT SROTECTED VAT NOT 2 SSSSCOUCED 1 WHOIS 0 M
AT WTTHENNT THE EXPRESE W TEN CCWEENT 0% BT ATVEE (EEEGH LT,

63 and K S &3 Managing Growth Exonomy and : 4 o Hosithy, Distinctive and
g Ples SUDAALE
I in e case o mem bk aicommadosion, than the, pewwiener . feried s
Relevaam Pelicies: - i
Sk 2 Mol X D R A 0O S ik T e ol e E e VRN BA2: SONMETY AT
Wales Pheveopren P, unkess . et gsenen:
. ¥ : o Paly wad the . T s deselegmers i siapport ard eaerd v cargr of Sufbie within s Foe " " T AR B TR 8 ARS8 RN TS Ty
Local Develogunest Fian. i BT e Craennent 1 oA (A W 3 BBy SRS e 06 0588 WA
° ot ol g I G thy s smant of e sty 28, e Gt
ek et 2015 2 uneil s e % T e Sevsioomene dsen het inae 1o an cunasotTien of e seesrmOA
fuscrcas: e e seven wll-being gl ithin the At ane Vustaiable Lre—— K e Aaoned e o1 afiing drveiseoant B o8 iy et eciEG
vl Frinciple.
Y g it e — [ ———
ey amd Gy o Loest ecapasens lam 20113026, adogred 81 oy 2007

[ P R S I —p——

DALT T iy bt 4 s e A s B S rmcara bty

i b G et Rty g s S e ol s ormabi i cm TWA 3 L o
o TR o 1 e L8 g it Tt

Sooctianot st ants
¥ S craponat b ety scciviste b f, el s bl Ararmger.

The moin of i o b vl i e, axdosieg the 0 S0cabon o

Anglesey and

ikl .

R e
e T Gwynedd Joint Local =

P Cousery g o whone ippeegeiads enbons fog e st el
arcs

Development
AN 5. Prokrsion sies n ool o regioeal sigsiiconce Plan 2011 -2026

P21, Preiersing s whrs aprmpiians cnhancisg hiritags ook
AT Coumervaon e, werkd hiageshck s epiacned Wiy e, parks s pndes

— etom ek, sl o R kst b,

BT L p—————————

Written Statement

Happlementary Flanning Guidanes (SP1G1:
PG Miaimainlng and eaing distactive and wstimabds commerities
S Tousist it wd wecmmindsicn
P Chatasrir o the ldseasns

G Wikl shes
———
Futiure Wales: The Nirtiomal Plaa 2040 RICYTIVE 3 SOUDAT ACCOMMOOATION.
e o s (1AM 4 B s Comanil D Wi e i  t te,  wr ,
T Adoee ;R sl Comeiial Dol -
TAN : o e L RO sTent M AL W MAAL 1O 04 VU Gt A MUY T AL O
Manning for vsaimable sl somonnitics o Thecomarsion of rising tnsddings s asch accem modaticn, o

L Fimarng g ety seesrrrad stion sl

Peanting aod the Wi L. i ik, aaeded they ”'\AIW‘!WW’Q‘INM # A, Loyindt el apieris e
s deneliert g a0t 8 the Radping cinarie e

CYNGOR,

Hisore esvircament heys MoN
ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY COUNCIL

ot o
oo A e ek e Tt 1 e S gt e e e

gy v et ol T man o (T iy, M e s i g 1 e 2] v s sk ey o = 1 A £

.making use of a previously developed site, ...helping to sustain and enhance an existing community facility

Cynllunio

3D Site Perspective 1 Darbyn - 11/12/2023
NTS

Osborne
House

%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL. e
INAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH Trcre

PROFDSED DEVELDAMENT DRAWN BT
RAal

=3{] SITE PERSPECTIVE 1 T 8 UAROR 7 MR B TN THO GARAGE, PALLHELS LL8S TR

o oG o B7. 1OBHIZO00G v -




Anglesey and
Gwynedd Joint Local
Development

Plan 2011 - 2026

Review Report
March 2022

(D)

sl CYNGOR AL
" b YNYS MON
@ ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY CORNCH,

. THSDRAPING 5 OOPYEGHT FROTECTED K RAIST NOT BE REFSSOUCED 1 WHOIE OF
NOTES: PART WTTHOUT THE EXPRIEES WATTTEM GONSENT OF 84T ATVES (CERGH) LT

Wb Tha, Act she g Welsh Miniatan the 1esk o Se0ing Tegens 10 raduce precshose
. v ol

R 41 Ak ST
Wl suing of Fusurs Gararatioss (Wakes) At 1923

28 Abboogn the dsbe o i Act b 3035, 1 came o e sher the 1

oessiiogitiisttsert it i it
deecioponert 8 the heard af desivn mde by pove et and Subi Bades. s a ke
p i e

e,
by Tamese for fhe wenracon of Local Wedl eing o, which aipbee Seigh

Imeprated Para

e e s
AWl o esbeshe cuunites

. e b b B Tohing Wk L sege
& ety recevie waley

24 Cuen the et L0V, o e
hat e Ml reiectnd s m chmtad i o K25,

Revisios to Maticnal Planning Policy guidance
atiansl lons aed Folkies

Future Visir: The Hiational Pl 7040 071

B8 e Wiabes: T Notkal Mo 2905 . e rasional sevelopment famewonk, sl U
i S i e o 1 8 S m«-mmw
atdreasiog ey nabona poier thevog the planng spaem, nckdng
e i e, b bt e B, SR
g sconstans ind imesuing the Beatn ind walkbaing of o comrusiies

s

R, T o o 4 4 i e s e O

Planeing Policy Wi Eian 13 (Feboaary T021)

AL This dacure sas sigiioant malicatizns e he clanwing spsem 1 Wales ard demfes the
- e

et the vabiization
v e 10w poblhed i rten 3015

AT insdaien, oo "
Pesing seve 5 trem shsm She LCP i wdeeaed i s 917,

BAS T At Mot 7T Ko S e s vy sl e ok Charge
PR e ot Local Planeing Aus e housr
el g g requirenam,

ke

218 Folimwing the publcatin of future Wales: The Hotonal Aen 3090 1621H AN & was reviked.

3D Site Perspective 2
NTS

MNAND AT MURMUR Y MOR & MYNYTHO GARAGE, PWLLHELI LL53 7RH

={ SITE PERSPECTIVE 2
N

%E REDEVELOPMENT OF BROWNFIELD LAND TO CREATE A NEW HOTEL, COMMUNITY PUBLIC HOUSE & SHARED COMMUNITY PARKING FOR THE VILLAGE HALL.

Cyn_IIunio

House

PLANNING APPLICATION DRAWING

+ & b
Sl ®,
Rt *
R
R S
& é@" &
Lo &
L
DaTe:
CRAWING TITLE werzmnz
30 STEPERSPECTVE 2 =
T A5 SHOWN & A1
OEBORNE HOUSE LD FILE NAME:
i
PROECT Lol
PROFOSED DEVELDPMENT DRAWN Y
LAND AT MURMUR Y HOR & MYNTFTHO GARAGE. FRLLHEL L TRY  RAl

DRAMWING HOH B27.1OBHIZ000T REV. -










T
jab)
Q
®
N
\l
ol




	Agenda
	4. MINUTES
	5.1 Application No C23/0302/22/LL Chwarel Cae Efa Llwyd, Penygroes, LL54 6PB
	Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12


	5.2 Application No C22/0952/17/LL Land At Coleg Glynllfion, Llandwrog, LL54 5DU
	Plans

	5.3 Application No C22/0953/17/LL Land To The North Of Existing Farm Yard At Coleg Glynllifon, Llandwrog, LL54 5DU
	Plans

	5.4 Application No C23/0917/14/DT 7, Rhes Marine Porth Waterloo, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1LP
	Plans

	5.5 Application No C23/03/TP  College Park, Ffordd Deiniol, Bangor, Gwynedd, LL57 2TQ
	Plans

	5.6 Application No C21/0861/23/LL Seiont Manor Hotel, Llanrug, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 2AQ
	Plans

	5.7 Application No C23/0981/39/AM Mynytho Garage, Mynytho, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 7RH
	Plans


